TORRANCE COUNTY

- CoMMISSION MEETING
February 24, 2021
9:00 A.M.

For Public View
Do Not Remove




Torrance County
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS (BCC)
Kevin McCall, District 1
Ryan Schwebach, District 2
LeRoy M. Candelaria, District 3

Janice Barela, County Manager

10.

11.

Torrance County

ADMINISTRATIVE MEETING
AGENDA

WEDNESDAY, February 24 @ 9:00 AM

Call to Order

Invocation and‘Pledge of Allegiance

Changes to the Agenda

PROCLAMATIONS

CERTIFICATES AND AWARDS

BOARD AND COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS

A.  CLERK: Motion to appoint Mary Otero as a new Board of Registration member of
Torrance County as one of the current members is no longer a Torrance County Resident.

PUBLIC COMMENT and COMMUNICATIONS

'APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A, COMMISSION: Motion to approve the February 10, 2021 Torrance County of
County Commission Minutes.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

A, FINANCE: Approval of payables.

ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE/AMENDMENT TO COUNTY CODE
ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION

A. FINANCE: Motion to approve and accept the FY2020 Audit, Resolution No. .

B. FINANCE: Motion to approve Budget Increase, Resolution No. .

Page 1



Administrative Meeting Agenda February 24, 2021

C. MANAGER: Motion to approve Acceptance of Agreement for Capital Appropriation
Project Torrance County Torrance County Emergency Response Vehicles, E3419, Resolution
No. . b

D. MANAGER: Motion to approve Acceptance of Agreement for Capital
Appropriation Project Torrance County Torrance County Administrative Offices, E2774,
Resolution No.

E. MANAGER: Motion to approve Acceptance of Agreement for Capital Appropriation
Project Torrance County Torrance County Road Department Equipment, E2771, Resolution
No.

F. MANAGER: Motion to approve Acceptance of Agreement for Capital Appropriation
Project Torrance County Torrance County Fair Grounds Improvements, E2775, Resolution
No. '

12. APPROVALS

A. DWI: Motion to approve Budget for FY2022 Local DWI Grant Application.

'B. DOMESTIC VIOLENCE: Motion to approve funding increase of $20,712 for
FY2021 Domestic Violence Grant for the Survivor Services component.

13. DISCUSSION

A. FINANCE: Presentation of FY2020 Audit Report Kubiack Melton and Associates
LLC.

B. DWI: Local DWI Program Activity Report and update for Calendar Year 2020.
C. GRANTS: Projects update, ICIP Work Group.
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION

A. MANAGER: Purchase of the County Fairgrounds, closed pursuant to NMSA 1978,
Section 10-15-1(H)(8).

15. Announcement of the next Board of County Commissioners Meeting: March 10, 2021 @
9:00 AM. :

16.  SIGNING OF OFFICIAL DOCUMENTS
17. ADJOURN

Torrance County Page 2



da Item

Agen

1

No.



Agenda Item
' No. 2



Agenda Item
No. 3



Agenda Item
No. 4



Agenda Item
No. 5



Agenda Item
No. 6-A4



Agenda Item
No. 7



Agenda Item
No. 8-4



Draft COPY
TORRANCE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION MEETING
February 10, 2021

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: RYAN SCHWEBACH -CHAIRMAN, DISTRICT 2
KEVIN MCCALL -DISTRICT 1
LEROY CANDELARIA ~DISTRICT 3

OTHERS PRESENT: JANICE Y. BARELA-COUNTY MANAGER
PHILIP TENORIO-DEPUTY COUNTY MANAGER
JOHN BUTRICK-COUNTY ATTORNEY
YVONNE OTERO-COUNTY CLERK
STEFANI ZAMORA- CLERK III

1.) CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Chairman Schwebach calls February 10", 2021 Regular Commission Meeting to order at 9:00
AM.

2.) Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance

Pledge lead by Chairman Schwebach

Invocation lead by Commissioner McCall

3.) Changes to the Agenda

Madam County Manager Barela states that there is a change to the agenda. The only request is
to move agenda item 12-B to 12-A and 12-A to 12-B.

4.) PROCLAMATIONS

Commissioner Candelaria expresses gratitude to Art Swenka for all the service he has given to
Torrance County from protecting our local water to our way of life. Overall making Torrance
County a better County to live in. Commissioner Candelaria also gives thanks to Eddie Padilla for
all the service he has given his community over the years and working for Public Works located
in Mountainair.

5.) CERTIFICATE AND AWARDS

None,

[1]



6.) BOARD AND COMMITTEE and APPOINTMENTS
None
7.) PUBLIC COMMENT and COMMUICATIONS

Kassandra Sandy Torrance County I-Count Coordinator, states that at the end of October 2020
I-Count committee came to an end, but before it ended, they were able to complete one last
community outreach. Due to Covid-19 local school districts had to close all water fountains. The
students wete required to bring their own water bottles from home. This caused a problem because
students would forget to bring in water bottles. Kassandra explains that the schools reached out to
parents of the students about the need for water bottles. When finding out about the situation
Kassandra reached out to Cheryl Allen who contacted DFA finding out that the Community
Outreach program grants would cover this need allowing the purchase of 9 pallets of water. Each
pallet contained 85 cases of 24 packs of water that were delivered to Mountainair, Estancia,
Moriarty and EVCA. The schools did reach out giving thanks to the County for the needed help.
Kassandra states her appreciation to all that helped.

Chairman Schwebach speaks on behalf of the Board of Commissioner showing appreciation to
the County staff that participated and served the community.

Cheryl Allen, Torrance County Grants Manager, would like to also give extra thanks to the
County Road Department who helped deliver all pallets of water on such short notice.

8.) APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. COMMISSION: Motion to approve January 26", 2021 Torrance County of County
Commission Minutes.

ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schwebach makes a motion to approve the January 26, 2021
Torrance County Board of County Commission Minutes. Commissioner McCall seconds.

District 3 votes yes, District 2 votes yes, District 1 votes yes. All Commissioners in favor.
MOTION CARRIED

9.) APPORVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
A. FINANCE: Approval of Payables
ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schwebach makes a motion for the approval of payables.

Commissioner McCall seconds. District 3 votes yes, District 2 votes yes, District 1 votes yes.
All Commissioners in favor. MOTION CARRIED

[2]



10.) ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE/AMENDMENT TO COUNTY CODE
There were none presented.
11.) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION

A. FINANCE: Motion to approve Budget Increase, Resolution No. 2021-08

ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schwebach makes a motion to approve Budget Increase,
Resolution  No. 2021-08. Commissioner Candelaria seconds the motion. Discussion open.

Jeremy Oliver, Finance Director, states the need of a new vehicle for the manager’s office. This
will replace the current vehicle allowing the old one to be used in other departments such as
Domestic Violence, Finance as well as any other departments in the County who needs to use the
vehicle.

Mr. Oliver shares information about Tyler Technology and discuss the possible use of money from
other funds, however they need to budget around Two Million of the GRT increase. It will take a
large part of the budget although most of it will not be used until next year.

Mr. Oliver continues discussing plans for the budget and finances. He states $30,000 is dedicated
to Professional Services fund to hire a consultant to help with RFP and architectural services for
the new building and possibly the Road Department building. $5,000 for General Supplies this is
to help employees with remote work. $5,000 for furniture, fixtures equipment to have another
office, allowing to move needed employees and making better use of space. $7,000 is budgeted
for software, this is for a redaction software for IPRA request. $2,000 for Postage due to the high
demand of postage use during the General Elections. $135,000 for land or land improvements this
will also replace some of the money that was used on the Emergency Management Department
building allowing available money to be used for the purchase of needed land and part of the
money will be transferred to be used for possible updates to the AV System in the Commission
Room as well as security cameras around the building. $10,000 for training for selected employees,
some of the training programs are pricey leading us to look for grants and scholarships
opportunities that could help cover it.

Mr. Oliver continues to the next subject of a bid that has been placed for a Fire Truck out of
Nevada. He states that money for the bid has already been collected. There is still about another
$50,000 in the Fire Excise Tax that need to be budgeted for. $1,000 for the Juvenile Justice Grant.
This is for an admin fee that we can use for additional training for the Juvenile Justice program.

Chairman Schwebach asks Mr. Oliver about the county vehicle he wants to know more about the
need.




Jeremy Oliver explains that in the past other departments needed the vehicle that the Manager
Office has leaving the Office without one causing County employees to use personal vehicle for
county business.

Madam County Manager Barela states that there has been more of a presence from the County
Managers Department out in the community. They are participating in more community events,
She expressed the concern for employees wanting to ensure that they are safe and have reliable
transportation. Also making sure there is enough room in the case that multiple employees must
go to an event,

Chairman Schwebach asks Mr. Oliver about the postage why is there a difference in postage
what are we doing different?

Jeremy Oliver states that there was a lot of mail that went out during the election. We did apply
for a grant and did not feel it would be wise to take reimbursement from Secretary of State and
basically double dip the funds we overextended from a normal election.

Chairman Schwebach ask Mr. Oliver about training for employees is this standard training or
additional training?

Jeremy Oliver shares there is additional training that has been discussed and they want to make
sure we have funds if we are approved. This is a subject that Deputy County Manager Tenorio has
been working on with some individuals, The largest one is for the Maintenance Department we
want to make sure we have funds available so that we do not kill our maintenance and operation
budget.

Commissioner Candelaria shares that employees using personal vehicles for County business
puts the County at risk because if something goes wrong in their personal vehicles the County
could be at fault,

Chairman Schwebach asks Mr. Oliver in the future to have a layout of all the one time increases
done throughout the year.

Jeremy Oliver explains that this year it is done slightly different. This is just a portion of increases
needed for GOT. We need to budget it with plans to use it. He states that sometimes plans to use
money does not always go as planned. His projections are showing around Two Million extra this
year and this is about $800,000 of it.

Chairman Schwebach asks if there is any further discussion. There being none District 3 votes
yes, District 2 votes yes, District 1 votes yes. All Commissioners in favor, MOTION CARRIED

B. MANAGER: Motion to approve Resolution in Opposition to HB 40, The Private
Detention Facility Moratorium Act, Resolution No. 2021-09



ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schwebach makes a motion to approve Resolution in Opposition
to HB 40, The Private Detention Facility Moratorium Act, Resolution No. 2021-09
Commissioner McCall seconds.

Madam County Manager Barela shares information on the Resolution in hopes to approve this
in opposition to House Bill 40 which is an act of Private Detention Facility Moratorium. She asks
to read it into the record.

Madam County Manager Barela reads into record the Resolution opposing House Bill 40 in
acting the Private Detention Facility Moratorium Act. Here to attached.

Nathan Dial Mayor of Estancia speaks on behalf of the town of Estancia stating that the town is
in full support of this resolution. The town is completely against House Bill 40. He shares that HB
40 will be detrimental to the town, Last time The Torrance County Detention F acility was
temporally shut down we lost at least one teacher and 50 students. Property values went down due
to families losing homes to foreclosure because both parents were employed by the TCDF. In
conclusion the town of Estancia completely stands with this resolution to stand in opposition of
HB 40.

Chairman Schwebach shares “the drive behind this bill has nothing to due with finances it has

nothing to due with anything but the fundamental belief that the job of incarceration is solely to
the government and the government is responsible for it because we are removing liberties from
these individuals that’s the thought behind it.” He is against the bill since this bill is not being
applied to every manner of government, but they are selectively applying it. He does admit there
are times that a private corporation housing inmates has done wrong. Nine out of Ten times it
usually has to do with procedure or with an employee and it is rectified immediately. He states
other industries can fire an employee with no consequences of paying unemployment but a
classified position within the state government when there is an issue its not as easy to just fire
someone, it becomes a heavy cost to the taxpayers, Chairman Schwebach encourages the citizens
of this county to do your research and completely understand the issues they are voting on.

Commissioner McCall stated that he has talked with Madam County Manager Barela who has
reached out to Representative McQueen and from the information they received Commissioner
McCall believes that in the Governments eyes this is a great place for a State Penitentiary and
possibly leasing it from CCA. From their standpoint there will still be jobs available but the one
thing they missed is the GRT that is paid to the Town of Estancia. He states the fact that we as a
County get to tax it under property tax rule and we get to gleam those funds from CCA. The
moment that becomes a State Penitentiary the local community loses out on all attributes that we
are receiving currently. Commissioner McCall states he too is opposed to HB 40,

Chairman Schwebach says this community needs to honestly ask themselves do they want a State
Prison here? What would it look like with the inmates and those who may come to visit the
inmates?

Commissioner Candelaria shares that he is in alliance with his fellow Commissioners. He talks
about his personal background working both for the government as well as a private sector and

[5]



states that there are times that the Private Sector can operate certain things better than the
government can and he believes this is the case here. Currently, we as a community need to look
out for us as a whole in Torrance County,

Madam County Manager Barela states that not only Estancia, but the entire County will have to
reduce the basic services that are provided to the community. She shares that HB 40 will impact
our budget for the community in a negative way. She continues to say that they have been preparing
for the day that CCA may close but in the meantime having that money available not having to
spend it allows opportunities to provide better services. HB 40 would also affect Estancia school
district because they receive 35% of the distribution of tax payments. Straight across the board this
bill would have a negative impact for the community. District 3 votes yes, District 2 votes yes,
District 1 votes yes. MOTION CARRIED.

12,) APPROVALS

B. MANAGER: Motion to approve Contract for Donald Dirks as Torrance County
Fire Chief.

ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schwebach Motion to approve Contract for Donald Dirks as
Torrance County Fire Chief Commissioner Candelaria seconds.

Commissioner McCall expresses the importance of Mr. Dirks getting his EMT license and
maintaining the proper training in medical.

Donald Dirks states he is looking into a class starting in April 2021.

Madam County Manager Barela adds in that part of Donald Dirks contract that they review his
pay at the end of his probation period. She states that there will be mile marks that will be getting
checked off along the way.

Chairman Schwebach Shares that the board of Commissioners has taken a lot of time to find the
right fit for the job and all though there was a lot of qualifying applicant’s they feel that Don Dirks
will be the best fit and right one for the job allowing the proper group for the EMT, Fire Department
and all the Community. District 3 votes yes, District 2 votes yes, District 1 votes yes. All
Commissioners in favor, MOTION CARRIED.

A. FIRE: Discussion and motion to approve Fire Department Funding.

ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schwebach motion to approve Fire Department Funding,

Madam County Manager Barela shares that this is something that has been deferred to the next
agenda multiple times. She feels it would be ok to do so again allowing a couple weeks for Donald
Dirks to get his feet under him.

Chairman Schwebach steps in saying that they do not have a couple weeks to wait on this subject
and it needs to be addressed now. He calls Donald Dirks up to speak. Sharing that they did discuss

[6]



in their Executive Session about the stipend and taking the stipend from $50,000.00 to $80,000.00.
Mr. Dirks said this is correct. Chairman Schwebach continues to tell Mr. Dirks how important it
is for him to come before the Commissioners and share his updates and what his plans are. Having
an open communication with the board and administrative staff and is how we will fix this.

Chairman Schwebach makes a motion to approve the stipends from $50,000 to $80,000.00
Commissioner Candelaria seconds.

Madam County Manager Barela asks the Commission if they want to earmark where that money
should come from? She recommended gross receipts Mr. Oliver can investigate it. Chairman
Schwebach asked if this would work? Mr. Oliver said agreed it should work. District 3 votes yes,
District 2 votes yes, District 1 votes yes. All Commissioners in favor. No further discussion.
MOTION CARRIED

13.) DISCUSSION
A. MANAGER: Manager Updates.
Here to attached.

Commissioner MeCall speaks on behalf of what Madam County Manager Barela has shared and
he states that the community needs to reach out to our Representatives and Senators and let them
know how we feel about these Bills. He also shared that he believes that a Police Officer should
not be shamed upon for a decision that they have to make in a split second. It is hard enough to get
and keep Law Enforcement as it is.

Chairman Schwebach shares from a financial standpoint that if these Bills are approved this
Commission will be forced to reserve around Two and Half — Three Million dollars to cover
training, liability, loss of prison and prison transport. He urges the community to get involved and
learn all they can about the Bills they will be voting on.

Mayor Nathan Dial states if these Bills move forward, the Estancia Police Department could be
taken over by the Torrance County Sheriff Department because we are having a hard finding Law
Enforcement Officers without this Bill. He continued to say that 29 of the Counties are against
these Bills. He also states that they will need roughly Two-Three Million put aside because there
is no limit on what they can be sued for if these bills pass. A lot of small Counties can lose out on
Local Police Departments Mayor Dial spoke with New Mexico Legalization who said we can
expect a double in insurance premiums.

Commissioner Candelaria shares that if this Bill moves forward it will make it easier for he
government to pursue lawsuits against smaller Counties.

14.) EXECUTIVE SESSSION

None



15.) Announcement of the next Board of County Commissioners Meeting.

Chairman Schwebach states that the next commission meeting will be held on February 24,
2021 @ 9:00 AM.

16.) SIGNING OF OFFICIAL DOCUMENTS
17.) ADJOURN

ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schwebach makes a motion to adjourn the February 10th, 2021
Regular Commission Meeting.

MEETING ADJOURNED AT 10:06 AM

Chairman Ryan Schwebach Stefani Zamora Clerk III

Date

The video of this meeting can be viewed in its entirety on_the Torrance County NM
website, Audio discs of this meeting can be purchased in the Torrance County Clerk’s
office and the audio of this meeting will be aired on our local radio station KXNM,




Agenda Item
No. 9-A



OTTIIP®s "7 Adexl

TSHDHHD ESEHLI SSHD0¥d Ol INAWLIVAHd FONYNIA ZHI FZI¥OHINY AGF¥EH SEOd ANY I¥d SIHL NO
QINSSI ZE OL SMOEHD ITEYAYE SINNODDY HASHHIL Y04 LSIXHE SONNE INIIDIJINS IVHL AATIIED AGHYAH SHOC ¥ANNSYENI AINAOD GANDISYHANN HHL

0I930 auuoAk ypeqanyss wedy 2TICTOPURD “W AOXST TTeDOH UTASY

A" LSILLY qQINDIS

TALNAOD HONVIYOL A€ QIVd NIHE SYH I¥VY4 ON IVHI ANV dEE¥OV SY ANV ‘EISYNOSYHY ‘4SAL H¥Y JINIVID SINQOWY

HHL IVHL ‘CENIWVXKE NEZ3E SVH JTHONOA SIHL IVHL ’‘¥IJ0¥d GNY AAVSSHDEN ¥V AHHL IVHL ‘NIZISEE SINAODOY THL NI QEIVIS SY QENIOJNHd

NIZd HAVH SEDIAYHS HHL IVHL "NIZSEH QILVLS NOILVSNIJWOD HHIL EAIEDEE OL ODIXEW MAN 40 SHINIVIS IHI 40 NOILALILSNOD THI IHANN CITLILNI

ATIVDET FYY SNOS¥Ad CEWYN NIHLIM HHIL IVHL AJIL¥ED =M - TZ0Z/8T1/20 ONIANZ dOI¥Ed HHL J04 FAOEY NMOHS SY SEDIANES HHL ¥OS qENInDd

~NI SNOIL¥DITEO 0 INNODIOY NO LL°T66°869 d0 WS HHL ¥04 ALNACD HONYIICL A0 SANNL HHIL ISNIVOY SINVIEYM THI ZZIUOHIAY 00 ® dEMOTIY
QEAOVAAY HYEM HAQOHY CELVIEWONE SHIVID JHIL IVHL AJIL¥HAD O SYEANOISSIWMOD 40 QU¥YOod XINNOD HONVIIOL HHI J0 SUSGWIW CANOISIYIANO FHI

€ST CHINI¥E SYDHEHD IY.LOL

NOILVYOIJAILAETHAD

(T9D0"EHD) €g+ IZ/8T/Z :93eQ




00LELZHOT/000ELTHOFHIOOV NINAY
TZ0Z NYL DINIDIETIE ATHINOW

8E CLTC SHDIAIO HATILVILSINIWAY
TZ02/80/20
8€°ZLIT

"d00D DI¥IDATE WN TYALNED S86%IT ¥ 10

8€°ZTLIT 1z02/%0/20 TZ¥%zZZT 80CZ-ST-10%
88 6%T FYOSSHESSY ALNACD S6° 6% NOILVILSINIWNAY INVED 6T°0€€ RANSYALL XINOOD
¥ €8T LIId QNIM 98°§% TZXI INV¥D TYD0T IMJ 98°S% ONIYOLINOW ALINOWWOD
09°282 AHLNID HOLYESIA-TTI6 BH€8T SHDIANIES TYWINY 98° 6% ONISSHIAAY TVAENI
ZLTT6 ONINOZ ® ONINNYIA 98- 6% MIETD AINOOD 0L L%T THOYNVH ZLNOOD
0T 7€0T INIWINVAEA YOI AINAOD 85°L66 ININIOTIY HITI HIVIS $9°9%T X¥1 SWE/SNOILVDINQWWOD
7€ E9T INEWLIIVIEA TONUNII 0€°€E€Z  NUNIINIVH ® SNOILVIZJO 98" §% AANIOLLY
78 T0T NOISSIWWOD ALNAOD 0L°99%  SI¥d J0 NOILVINOISNVUL L %882 AITITHS ALNAOD
$0°0TT /7 L0ZZ-S5-T0% HONYNIA
88 6%T /7 L0ZZ-0%-T0% "OSSHSSY
$8°T0T /7 LOZZ~0T-10% ATDVNYH
S6° 6% /7 LOZTZ-6%-T0¥ SINTID
6T°0€€E /7 L0ZZ-0€-T0% YAUNSYIAL
¥y €8T /7 L0ZZ-60-069 0doL
98- 6% /7 L022-22-509 mMa
98" 5% /7 L0TT-CL-0T% YOLINOW ALINAWANOD
09282 /7 L0ZZ-08-TI6 HOIVASIA
TH €8T /7 L022-28-T0% SEHOIAYHES TYWINY
98°5% / / L0ZZ-L0-GLS ONISSHICAY TVINA
zL T6 / 7 L0ZZ-80-T0% zda
98° 5% /7 L0ZZ-0T-TO¥ pixsicisvel
98°S¥ /7 L02Z-0T-T0% 609ST6TLTLBTHIDIY TTZOZITIOX/IH
96°6¢T / 7 L0TZ-99-T0% SS799568TLBTHADIOANT /TDNUNALNT VI
0T %€0T / / L0ZZ-09-20% avod
0£" €S /7 L02Z-T6-60% ¥ ISIA
og-€s /7 L0ZZ-16-8T% 9 1sIa
%0 0% /7 L02Z-T16-80% € ISId
0€° €5 / /7 LOZT-T6-L0% T LSIa
vE €6 /7 L0ZZ-T16-907% 'z I5Ia
Y€ €6 /7 L0Z2~T6-50% TZ0Z XWYANYL/S ISIA
96°019 / 7 LOZZ-T6-€T% SHOUVHD ATHINOW/NIWAY ITAId
v 9%T /7 LOTZT-€8-%09 AEOYNYN XDNTOIINE
0E" €S /7 L02Z-S5-T0% 0do
TETE6 /7 L0ZZT-59-T0% 540
98°5% /7 L0ZZ-95-T0% ALANTT
78 T0T / L0ZZ-S0-TO¥ NOISSIWWNOD TZ0Z/80/20
0L 99% /7 L0TZ-%L-02% 1Z0Z AVYNANYL/LEOdSNVEL 9% ZTLIL
YL P88T 120Z/%0/20 TZ¥ZT L0ZZ-0S-TO¥% A4TYHYS /SEOAVHD A THINOW OTI ALITIEHOW I B IW ¥86%1T ¥ 10
05°2ZL8% NUNIAINIVW ® SNOIIVIEJIO
1202/80/20
¥688HIDTOANT SHXYL 0§°ZL8Y
0§°ZL8% T202/80/20 TTHZES €I2Z-59-10% TZ0Z-T-2/TZ02-T~T ESYHOENd ¥DOId OTT1 dNO¥D ZDOTONHDHEL SNOILIGHY €86%TT O TO
00°009 ¥ SSO¥D FANIDOUISYIINT
WSLZTESES9ILEY
H#IDOY THSA-9ALN-IONT#EIDIOANT
62T9E XIANOD TZT0Z/80/20
6ZT9€E HOVIOLS SAIODTY JYOd SHATIHS 00°009
06°009 62T9¢€ T20Z/%0/20 TZHZ0E 8TZZ-v6-029 MOVY FTOSOW HET AASNANVYS SSENISNE NOZYWY Z86FTT ¥ 10
Junouwy # 0d HIVA # SoTOAUT wa1T JUTT uotadraossag suren HI¥A #4D
T :abeg 1202/8T/2 OL 1202/S/T WO¥d CQHINIEA SMDIHD ONILSIT MDIHD (09DHHD) GZ:0T:L iz/8T/Z :93eQ



z€°0zZ02 1202/%0/20 1Z%CE 802Z-9T-10% TZ0Z N¥L DIMLODATH ATHINOW "dO0D DIULDETI WN TYEINID 986%TT ¥ 10




1202/80/20

NIWNAY HITA/T0L0LZO888H#IDOY 807¢Le
807 €LT TZ02/%0/20 TZ¥%2ZT 8022-16-€1¥ TZ0Z NY[ SHDYVHD XATHINCOHW “dOo0D DI¥LDHETH WN TYILNED S66%TT ¥ TO
08 G%T YI¥d XINONOD
00Lv900888
00€ZLSP0%/002ZLSTOP/00STLSY0F 1202/80/20
/0069€ESTOFHIIOY QUWOd ¥IVA 08°S%T
08°9%T 120Z2/%0/20 1Z%ZIT 80CC-€S-T07 TZTO0Z NYL SEDYVHD ATHLNORW “d00D DTALDETH WN TVAINZD T66%IT ¥ 10
877 LOE INIWNLOTIVY . §4Id HIV.LS
aiA S LSIO TOLTT?0888 TZ202/80/20
/00ZE0TET/00EECTETHIODY 8% LOE
8% LOE 1Z202/%0/20 TZ%ZOT 802Z-16~-50% TZ0Z NY[ SHOUVHD ATHINOW TdO0D DTI¥ELOETH WN ‘I¥VILNID €66%TT d 1O
8L°0Z¢ SHEDIAYNES TYWINY
1Z02/80/20
SHOTIAYES TYHWINY/T0¥¥800883#L0DY 8L 0z¢
8L°0C¢t 1Z02/%0/20 12%Z6 802Z-Z8-T0¥% 120T NYL[ SEDIVHD XATHINOW “d0O0D DINULDATE WN TEALNID Z66¥%TIT ¥ IO
S§5°70Z YHILNHD YOINIS ALIYITOW
TZ0Z/80/20
28 ALMVINOW/TOZTIZPIOFHIODY 55°20C
s5720¢ T20Z/%0/20 1C%Z8 80CTZT-LE-TO¥ TZ0Z NVYD SEDIYHD XTHINOW “d00D DOI¥IDHATH WN ITALNED T66%1TT ¥ IO
£€v-92Z¢ GHINTD JOINES WIDNYLST
1202/80/20
DS YIDNVISH/Z0L60T0888#LDDY €P gce
€¥ 9CE T2Z02/%0/20 TZ¥ZL 80ZZ-92€-10¥% TZ0Z N¥YL SHDYVHD ATHINOW TdO0D DIYLDITIHE WN TYIINAD 066%TT ¥ IO
TS €8% NEID JOINIS AIVYNIVINLOW
1z02/80/20
DS ¥IVINW T06LOLSOTHIDOY TS €8%
TS €8% 1202/%0/20 1Z¥%Z9 80CZ-LZ-TO0% TZ0ZT N¥L SHOWVHD ATHINOW Td00D DIWIDETHE WN IYILNHD 686%TT ¥ TO
ST LTE INIVA 9079 I4dE80 HIIVEH
T2Z0Z/80/20
T08Z6¥¥0PH#IDDY ST LTIE
ST LTE 120Z/%0/20 1Z¥%ZS 802C-%Z-10¥% TZO0ZT NYL SHDYYHO XATHLINOW “dO0D DIULDHETH WN TIVILNAD 886FTIT ¥ T0O
00°¢€9 SNOILDITH
T20Z/80/20
00E62950888H#I00Y 00" €9
00" €9 T1202/%0/20 1T%T¥ 80€Z-12~-10% TZ0Z NY[L SHDUVHD ATTHLNOW “dO0D DIULDETE WN TYALNHD LB6FTIT ¥ IO
Z2E€°0Z0C INIVH XETAWOD TI¥IDIaNC
1Z0T/80/20
TO06LTO888#IDDY (AR ATEA
AUNOWY # 0d qIVA # 9DTOAUT wa31T SUTLT uvotadransag SueN HIVA #JID
< cabeg TZ0Z/8T/Z OL TZ0Z/S/Z WO¥d CALNIIE SADIHD {09DHEHD) SC: 014 iz/8T/z :*e3ed

DNILSIT MOIHD



80 €LT INIWLOTIVY d¥Td HIVLS



80°€ITZ ¥ SSOUD TINIDNULSVUINI 0E"6EW EINTD HOIVISIA-TTI6 I6°T0E€  NHD JOINES JTYNIVINAOW
0% 559 ITD HITVEH JIVYNIVINQOW $0°99L  NITID TYDIQEN VZNVIEISHE LOT€6Y  INIVW XAIAWOD T¥IDIdNr
1Z°T¥%S INIWIOTIV HdId IALVLS 8T €¥¥  INIVW D478 I1dZd HLTIVIH TP €69 SHDTII0 FATIIVIILSINIWNAY
66°L9C T6€S¢E / / SYTZZ-£S-10% SYREOL T SLZTOOL
69°ZLE T6ESE /7 S5T2Z-9€-T0% #IDDY NYL/LLOTTT-PZH#EDIOANT
60°88¢€ T6€SE /7 S1ZZ-LE-TO%
80 €TTZ I6€5€E / /7 STZZ-%6-029
0E€"6€% T6EGE / 7/ STZz-08-T16
T6°10€ T6€£5€ / / STZZ-LZ-T0%
0%°559 I6€5€ / /7 STZZ-€C-TO0% T0ZI-9L0-8T
¥0°S9L T6ESE / / STTZT-L8-0€9 IDYELNOD SdD
LO €67 T6ESE / /7 STZZ~9T-10% XINO ¥OIYI NO XYL $61°8
Tz Z%S I6€S€E /7 STZZ-T6-£1% 1202/0€/90 - 020Z/T0/LO T20Z/80/20
8T E¥¥ T6€SE / /7 STZT-vZ-10% 120TXd 0% SLBL
7Y €69 T6ESE 1Z0Z/80/20 1TZvZS9e STZZ-ST-10% HOVIHACD TI0D DIFADIAYES TUYNOIIVONATE FATIVIEIOOD £00STT ¥ I0
99°L%T INIWIOTIY TILI ILVLS
ain ¥ ISIa 1Z02/80/20
00L28Z0888/00075S0Z#IDDY 997 LYT
99°L%T 1202/%0/20 T12¥%Z61 80Z2-16-60% T2Z0Z NYL SHDUVHED XTHINOW "d00D DIVIDATT WN TYELNTD ZOOSTIT & 10
¥H 96€ INAWLOTIY TIAII FIVIS
adA € ISIA 00.88%0888 T20Z/80/20
O0TSTI6T/009PL00888HIIDY TH96¢€
¥Y96¢€ TZ0Z/¥0/20 1Z%Z8T 802Z-16-80% 17 NYL SEDEVHD XTHLNOW "d00D DIUIDITE WMN TYALINID T00SIT ¥ 10
69°GST INAWLOTIV HALA ZIWLS
adas T ISIA 0015Z80888 1Z0Z/80/20
/00TSO0T0888/0009E0TZHIODY 69°GST
69°SST 1202/%0/20 TZHZLT 80ZZ-T6-L0¥ IZ0Z NV SEDUVHD X THINOW Td00D DIMIDFTT WN TYLINED 000STIT ¥ 10
€% 09T INIWLOTIY TITA LIVLS
1202/80/20
00S0LLET/00T6600888#1DDY £%°09T
€% 09T T20Z/%0/20 TZ%Z9T 80ZZ-T16-90% TZ0Z NUL SEDUVHO ATHINOW “dO0D DTEIDHETHE rul TYELNTD 666%TT ¥ 1O
00°9LT XYL SHE/SNOIIVDINAWHOD
HSNHIIAA TIALD 1202/80/20
SO0SLTT0888/E0SY0T0888HIIDY 00°9LT
00°9LT 1202/%0/20 TZ%ZST 80TZ-€8-%09 TZ0Z NYL SHEDEVHD ATHLNOW “dO0D DIUIDITI WN TYIINID 866%TT ¥ I0
6T1°8€CT YLINAD HOLVASIA-TTE
HOLWdSIA /00ST8S0888 1202/80/20
/D0SS0L6T/00ETBZ088BHIODY 61°8ETT
6T 8EZT TZ0Z/%0/20 TT¥TFT 80ZZ-08-TT6 Tz0Z NYC SIOUVHD KTHLNOW "d00D DIYIDITT WN TYELNED L66%TT ¥ T0
YL 69 INEWIOTIY FIId TIVLS
1202/80/20
QdA 9 ISIA/TOE6LOLOTHIOOY L 69
YL 69 1Z0Z/%0/20 TT%ZET 802Z-T16-8T¥% TZ0Z NYL SHOUVHD ATHLNOW “d00D DIWLDITH WN IYHINID 966%TT ¥ I0
Junouy # 0d HIVA  # 9DTOAUT we3I SUTT notadrIoseq sweN "INV #MD
QEININE SMOTHD  ONILSIT MOIHD (09DHHD) SZTOT:L 1z/8T/2 :@3ed

:aBea

1202/8T/2 OL 120Z/S/T WO¥SE



66°L9C : EI¥4d ALNQOD 69°2LE YAINAD JYOINIS YIDNWISH 60°88¢ FAINED JOINIS ALIYIIOW



7 L8Y INFWIOTTY S¥Td HIVIS
86 €9¢€ /7 6022-16-90% 000-089€-0L/QJA T ISIA 120Z/80/20
000~00$0-0€/QdA 9 ISIA vy L89
9%-gze 120T/%0/20 02%ZLT 60ZZ-16-8T% T20T NYL SEDEVHD S¥O ATHLNOW NOIIVIDOSSY SYD MWH TIOSTT ¥ 10
€57 6€ET YAINTD HOIVESIA-TT6 zE"91T dOHS a¥o¥ ALNAOD 9T " TLL INTWLOTIY TAId TIVIS
98°19€ / /7 602Z-16-S0% 000-0€29-TL/CG3A S ISIA
£5°6€T / /7 60ZZ-08-TT6 000-0£56-09/HOIVASIA
ZE9TT /7 6022-19-20% 000-0695-0T/QY¥0Y 1202/80/20
T00-0%T9-0T/NINAY H¥Td T0°L20T
0€°60% TZ02/%0/20 02%Z9Z 60ZZ-T6-€1¥ 120z NYC SEONVHD SYD XTHINOW NOIIVIDOSSY SVD MWA 0TOSTIT ¥ IO
89°09¢€ SEDIANAS TYNINY £€°92L INIHLOTIY FUII ALYLS $Z E€0TT SHEDIAIO0 FATLVILSINIWNAY
S0°zew /7 602Z-16~80% 000-06€S-09 QIA £ LSIA
89°09¢€ /7 602Z-28-10% 0T0-0850-09 SIADIANIAS TYWINY
82 76C / 7/ 602Z-16-50% 000-0TS%-TL QdA § ISIA T202/80/20
000-0S8T-0T/NINTY ST 0612
$Z E0TT T20Z/%0/20 1Z%ZSZT 60ZZ-ST-TO0% TZ0Z NU( SEDEVHD ATHINOW NOILYIDOSSY S¥D MWA 600STT I TO
9z 822 INEHLIOTTY HITI ALVILS
TZ LBET INIVW XETIAWOD TYIDIANL €6 16 MUITD AINNOD 0L 509 dOHS AYO¥ ALNAOD
9z-8Z¢ / 7/ 6022-16-80% 000-0526-09/Q3A € ISIA
TZ LBET / 7/ 602Z-9T-T0% 000-0009-0T/I¥IDIANL
£€6°16 /7 80€2-0Z-2T9 000-08€£9-0T /XITTD TZ0Z/80/20
000-098T-0T/Q¥0OA 0T €T€ET
0L°S509 T202/%0/20 Tzwewe 6022-19-20% TZ0Z NYL SEOUVHD S¥D ATHINOW NOIIVIDOSSY SYD MWZ 800STIT ¥ I0
€9°2%T  INIVH 5079 IdAd HITYIH
€1°SLZ  ¥EINTD WYOINAS VIDNVISH €6°9ZE€  YHINID JYOINAS ALYYIIOW 00°s€ ¥I¥S ALNOOD
€9°2%T /7 602Z-72-TO0% 0T0-066T-0T/IdEA HITYHEH
€1°6LT / 7/ 602Z-9€-T0% 0T0-0L8S-0T/SWA VIDNVISH
£€6°92¢ / 7/ 602Z-LE-TO¥ 0T0-0€€E-02/08 ALIYIION 1202/80/20
0000-060%-0TH#IODOY/QIV0OL JIVS 69°6LL
00- 8¢ 120Z/70/20 1THZET 6022-€5-107% 1207 NYL SEOUYHD SYD ATHINOW NOIIVIDOSSY SYD MWH LOOSTIT ¥ TO
00°T9 ONINOZ » ONINNVIL
120Z/80/20
1z/€/2 00°T9
00°T9 08€ESE TZ0Z/80/20 T1Z¥%Z8S 50ZZ-80-T10% DNILEIW QIVOd Z¥d 0202 ANHINY * EWIYHONG 900STT ¥ IO
LT SL X¥1 HSIDXE =¥Id %%/1
9S%ZTZ690#IDDY 1202/80/20
$ZTO0TTXOSYZTITE690H#IDIOANT LZ"SL
Lz SL 120Z/%0/20 TZ%Z0S TLZZ-26-TT¥ 1202 €984 JOVd IDETES SSENISNI “OTT CALDHEIIA S00STIT ¥ 10
ST EILSL TIVD HIVWNI IINAY
SAVANYW ADNIDY ¥AHLO /0 STIIN
HONYINEWY /D OHOYWYD FONYINGWY 1202/80/20
Y€ E€SCT / 7/ €LTZ-0L-02F% SAVE-X/IUOISNYAL TVOIAHK HIVANI S E€TLSL
TI 09%€EL 1202/80/20 1T%ZOL TLTZ-0L-0T¥ SYNOH QEYND/ONISNOH TLYHNI TONI DIAIDEEOD $00STIT O I0
QUNOWY # Oa qI¥Ad # 90ToAUT wWa3T DUTLT uotldrInssa [|wen dIVa #2310
4 :obeq 1202/8T/2 OL 120Z/5/Z WO¥A QIINI¥E SYOEHD  ONILSIT MDIHD (090¥HD) §2:0T:L  TZ/8T/Z :93eq



Zy L6T 1202/%0/20 TZTHZLE 0IZC-ST-T0% TZ0Z NYL SHDYYHD ATHINOW A0 NMOL ‘VIDNVLSHE ZTO0STT ¥ 10




TZ0Z/80/20

T6VTZTIH#HILIODY 6Z0STOANISHIDIOANT S6°¥%T
S6°%T 66€SE T202/80/20 1Z%Z399 £02%Z-02-219 TZOZAL JOA IDIAYIS ONIAAITIHS ODIXENW MAN 40 SNOZIJO0OH 8T0STIT O TO
vLT0EE INFRLIVAEA a¥0d ALNQOD
TzoZ/80/20
ZTEESEHOL AHA TZZOHADIOANT vLT0EE
vLT0EE TZ02/80/20 TZWZIL 6TZZ-09-20% SMIEDS/ONININYD /IANOILIANOD ¥IY HIVMTIYH AHLIOMLSOIL S:.LIVH LTOSTT ¥ IO
77 €0T LNIV DJ71d 1dd3d HITY=EH
MIIDS/M FIIT JOHONY
Zd THAOHS ¥IHSNd MONS "IQH-Aa
NOTIVD Z IDHIIS AVIdSHINS SCT
#IDDOVY €E6TSZ ® TEZTSTHADIIOANT
£58e5¢ TZ0C Ad
€5€S¢E SHLIS ONIJINg
Y¥€0T £5€SE / /7 STZZ-%Z-10% ALNQQCD TTIY ¥O4 ISHODHIY 04 NHJC
£€9E€SE HONUNALNIVN ONIAIING ¥04 1202/80/%20
£5¢5¢ ‘SEITIANS FUYMCIVH 3 ONIL0OH ¥ €01
£€5E5¢E icveeL ‘ONIFHATE ‘TIYDIEIDATE “DSIN TONI HIYMJIVH NILSND 9T0STT ¥ TO
00°9T DNINOZ »® ONINNYIg
1z02/80/20
00°ST
00°S8T 1Z0Z/80/20 TZHZT¥9 Z202Z-80-10% 1zZ/€/T €-2d4 0ST-4 d04 TANS NIALLS ‘MOHDSIIND ST0STT O TO0
00 T9 ONINOZ ¥ ONINNVId
120Z/80/20
TZ/c/e 00°T8
00°T9 T8¢€8¢ 1Z02/80/20 TZ¥ZLS S0ZZ-80-107% ONILHEN qUV0dg Z=3d WIrD ‘1s0o¥d TI0SIT ¥ 10
0Z° 98T dOHS QY0¥ ALNNOD
1202/80/20
a¥0d 80TTHIODY 0Z°98T
0Z2°98T T202/%0/20 TT%Z8E 0TZZ-19-20% TZ0Z NYL SEDIVHD ATHLNOW 40 NMOL ‘YIDNYLISH €I0STT ¥ I0
£€6°CCT LNANLOTIY HITA HIV.LS ZE8%T INIVH XITIWOD TIYIDIANr 80 LIT FILNED JOINAS YIODNYLSH
09°56 INIVH S071d LdZd HITYEH 26" 91T dIVA AINNOD TT LE6T SEDIAAO HAILVIALSINIWAY
08ETHIODY NIWAY HITA
€6°2CT 1202/%0/20 1T%T¥%% 0IZZ-T6-€1¥ TT0ZT NY[ SHDIVHO ATHINOW
0P#IDD¥ T¥IDIANL
ZE"8%C 1202/%0/20 TZvZEY 0TZZ-9T-T0% TZ0Z NY[ SHEDAVHD ATHINOW
67ZHLODY YILNAD JOINIS
80 LTI 1202/%0/20 TCTVZZ% 0TZZ-9€-T07% TZ0Z NVL SEHOUVHD ATHLNOW
TEZHLOOY qIV0d JIVI
80°9% 1202/%0/20 TZ¥ZI® 0TZZ-€9-T0% TC0Z NYL SEDYVHD ATHLNOW
ELEHIDDY IdHA HITVHH
0956 120Z/%0/20 TZvZ0% 0TZZ-vZ2-T07 1202 NYL SHDEVHD ATHINOW
0SL#LOOY QUV0od AIVI
¥8°0L 120Z/%0/20 TZ¥%Z6E 0TCZ~-E£S-T0% TZ0Z NYL SHDYVED ATHINOW 1z02z/80/20
ZTITH#LDODY/NIHAY LZ°868
aunowy # o4 HIVA # 9oTOoAUI wa3T SUTTI uotadrIsssa sSweN HILYA #JAD
g sabeg TZ0Z/8T/Z OL TZTO0Z/S/Z WO¥S CQAINTYd SADTHO DNILSIT MOHHD (09DFHD) SZ:0T:L 1z/8T/2 $@3eq



S6°7T MEHETD ALNOOD




Tz0zZ/80/20

TZ/€/T 00°T3
00°T®2 £€8€5¢E 1202/80/20 TZ¥ZTES S0TZ-80-T0% ONILHEIN TIY0d Z3d ANIYTHLIYD ‘HONXT LZ0STI ¥ 10
89°2%9 LNEWLOTIVY FIId ALVILIS
¥8°82 /7 LOTZ-T6-ET¥ NIWAY dTd9Id
€C°6TT / LOZTZ-T6-90% 9Z60THIDOY/Z LSIA
£T°61T / / L0TC~T16-50% 91-9T60TIN/S ISIA T202/80/20
£€T°6TT /7 L0ZTZ-T6-607% ST-9Z60TNHADIOANI/? ISIA 89°C%S
ST°9ST 1Z0Z/%0/20 1Z%TSE L02Z-T6-80% €LSI0 LANIELNI AINNOD HDNVIIOL ALT SEOTA¥YAS LANJIHINI OdOT 9Z0SIT ¥ IO
00" S¥ SEDIAEEIS TYNINY
Y80ZTHIODY
PT-780CTTNH#IDIOANI TZ0Z/TE/€ OL 1Z0z/80/20
I2/1/€ SHIYA FDIA¥ES SIDIAVIAS 00°S%
00°S¥% T20T/%0/20 TTPZVE L0TZ-TB-TO0¥ SINIILINT SSHTIIIM ATHINOW QLT SEHDOIA¥AS LIANJHLNI O€01 SZOSTIT ¥ 10
00°19 ONINOZ ® ONINN¥TIJ
1Z0Z/80/20
00°TS
00° T3 v8ESE 1Z0T/80/T0 TZ¥Z09 S0ZZ-80-T0¥ DNILIEEN qIv0g Z3d NUYTIVH ‘NOSMYT PZTOSTT ¥ 10
00°T9 DNINOZ % DNINNYId
1202/80/20
T2/€/2 ONILIANW 00°T9
00°"TS TZ0Z/80/20 TZ%TTI9 S0CZ-80-T0% QIV0od DNINOZ ANV ONINNYII IIVD TIEONVI €Z0STT O 10
00°020¢ ©SI¥d 40 NOILYLIOISNVELL 00-00¢g€ AJdTYHHS ALNQOD
STLOCZTHIDIOANT
T6ToE INNODSIJ %02 SHEINLAVYD EDI¥Ed
007098 Z6I9¢E /7 CLZT-¥L-0C% TIDS LYOJSNYAL
Z6T9¢E Y04 SHSNEOIT d¥0 ATINO MATA
00°00%CT Z619¢E / / CTLTT-¥L-0T% SHILONGAQ LIOISNYAL 1z0z/80/20
T6ToE ¥O04 SESNADIT FATIEOW O¥D 060" 09¢€9
60-00¢€€ [A RN TZ0Z/80/20 TT%ZIS8 TLZZT-0S-T0% SHSNADIT J¥D ATINO MHIA ONI HOTOHDITIZLNI 2Z0STT ¥ TO
S6°%T ININIEYIIA HONYNIAL
SO8TZTHIODY LZOSZOANISHIDIOANT 120Z/80/20
S6°PT 8EESE / TLCC-S99-T0% HOTA4A0 HONUNIA S6° 7T
BEEGE TT¥T69 HDOTIAZ0 S JEDVYNVNA ODIXHEW MIN A0 SNOZIYOH TZOSTT O 10
S6° 7T JOSSISSY ALNNCD
YOSSHASSY 1Z0Z/80/20
708IZTHLOOVY 0E0SZOANISHIDIOANT S6°7T
S6°¥%T 1Z0z/80/20 12vZ89 TLZZ-07-019 TZ0Z gdd SHDIAYAS DNIAATAHS ODIXHEW MIN A0 SNOZI¥OH 0ZTOSTT O 10
S6°%T YIENSYHALL ALNAOD
LBLITT 1202/80/20
#1DDVY BZOSZOANISHIDIOANT S6°7T
S6° 9T 6€€G¢E 1Z0Z/80/20 TTHILY TLZZ-0€-T0% TZA4 ¥0d4 SHDIAYAS DONIAAFUHS ODIXHENW MAN 40 SNOZIYUOH 6T0STT O TO
AUNOWY # 04 HIVd # SDToAUT woa3I SuUTT ﬁOﬂUnM..mHUWOD SWEeN JIYa #3ID
cebea TZ0Z/8T/Z OL 1Z0T/S/T WO¥E GHININFL SMOTHD DNILSIT MDHHD (09DHHD) ST:O0T L Tz/8T/2 i93'Q



00°19 ONINOZ % ONINNVId



00-00SL /7 CTZTZ-S0-T0% asn aNvy 00" P%1T%0C
00°€€698T TZ0Z/%0/20 TTHZTS €TZZ-S0-10%F NOILLOEIEINOD WYIDOUd INITI-ILTINW ALIVOHINY HEONVINSNTI ALNAOD NN €€0STT O TO
19°0€ X¥I SWH/SNOIIVDINQWWNOD 0T €ST NOISSTWWOD ALNAOD
87" ZZ1T INIRLOTIY HdId HILVLIS 88°vve FIINSVIAL XINOOD zZ2°0¢€ DNIYOLINOW ALINOQWWOD
09°9¢¢ AATIIHS AINOOD z9°0¢€ ONISSHIAAY TYINT z9°0¢€ DAL FTLYHOHEd
¥z 19 INTNIIVIEA d¥od AINQOD 9816 ONINOZ % ONINNYIA 98716 NYNZLNIVA ¥ SNOILIVYZAO
4 ARAAN LNANINVAIA FONYNII z9°0¢ AINIOLLY %2 19 NOIIVILSINIWNGY LNVID
96°¥¥T YIOUNYRN AINAOD LZ %1Z MIETD ALNOOD zE€L9E JOSSASSY XLNNOD
Te o€ /7 LOCZ-€8-F%09 LIDYNYH ZONIOTHNI
0T €ST /7 L0ZTZ-S0-T10% NOISNEIXHE
8% 2ZTT /7 L0ZZ-16-E1¥ NIWQY H3Id
88°¥VT / L0ZZ-0€-T0% ATINSVIILL
Z9°0€ /7 L0ZTZ-€L~0Z% OLINOW ALINOWWOD
09°9¢¢ / / LOZZ-0S-T0¥ JITITHS
29°0¢€ /o L0ZZT-L0-SLY ONISSHIAAY TYINd
z9°0¢ / /7 L0OZZ-06-T0¥ HLVEOId
YT IO / / L0TZ-0S8-20% avod
29°0€ /7 L0ZZ-99-T0% LI
co o€ /7 LOZZ-80-T0% INANIOIOAINT FAOD
219 / 7/ L0ZZ-80-T10% z2d
¥Z 19 / 7/ L0TZ-0T-TO¥ NOISSIWNOD
¥Z° 19 /7 L0OZZ-S9-T0% FONVNELNI VI
A ARAAN /7 L0CT-SS-T0% HONVYNTIA
297 0€ /7 L0ZZ-95-T0% TAZMET
vZ 19 / / L0OZZ-6%-T10% SINTED
ZL €8T /7 L0OZZ-0T-T0% 0% S6Z0ZHIDOOY /TTDYNYI 1z0Z/80/20
LT PTIT /7 L0ZZ-02-10% 8ZTLPTO06SCHEDIOANT /HITTD ve-gsce
ZE"L9E TZ0Z/%0/20 1Z%Z9¢ LOZTZ-0%-TOV JOSSISSY TZ NYL/SHENOHd JIIOA ONI VALLXEN ZEOSTIT O 10
00°0ST LNANIIVIZA FONYNIAL
OTTIgdEs
HYON €TTO0-STTO-TZ0ZIO-TZIT
YIATTO AWIEIL 1202/80/20
T9T0-%9T0-TZ0ZTO-TZOIHIDTOANT 00°0ST
00°0ST 0809¢ 1Z0T/%0/20 TTYCIE 992TZ-9S-T0% TZ/T0 HEONIUTINOD HATIVISIOIT NN SEIINOOCD ODIXHAW MIAN TEOSTT ¥ IO
2GS €65 NED FOINAS ITYNIVINAOW
120Z/80/20
91" €6 /7 0TCZ-LZ2-10% ITLTHIDOY/JALYM <9 €649
9€£°008 1202/%0/20 1Z%Z8C 6022-LZ-T0% 1202 NYL/SEDUVHD XTHINOW 40 NMOL ‘JIIVNIVINOOW 0E0STT O TO
00° 52 INVED ONINIVEL ¥ad
T20Z-TE-THADIOANT
T819¢€ MUYMAT IANYIL TZ02/80/20
00°S52 I8TI9E / /7 9922-98-T716 TIOYIYD ¥NETIS 00°Ss2
T819¢ TZVZIL NOIZVOIATILEADEY ddD J0 ALID 'AIIVI¥OW 6Z0STT ¥ IO
8Z°LVT JALNAD HOLVYASIA-TI6E
TZ0Z/80/20
090TPPTHIOOY 9E98ZLBTHIDIOANT 827 LVZ
8T LYCT TZ0Z/%0/20 1THZEE €022-08-1T6 WHLSAS ONINNYDS OJIdANVOS JANVE SSHEHNISNT NITIVR 8C0STT O IO
Junouwy # od qIYA # 9DTOAUT we3I SUTT uotidiIosag sweN qIYA #3D
L iabeg TZ0Z/81/Z OL T202/S/T WOES QAININd SADEHD DNILSIT ADHHD (C9DHHD) SZ:0T L 1z/81/C :93eQ



00" L62ZZ
00°¥L8

C12Z-90-T0% ALITIGYIT ¥AGED
CTTT-S0-T0% dHI¥D 1202/80/20

N
NN



T¥0STT ¥ 1O

LS LE TZ0Z/80/Z0 ITHZSL €0ZZ~ST-T0¥ NINQY AINQOD SJOW ANV SIVKA ATddNS TIVIZAO TYIINIQONA
08°SIE SEDIAI0 FAIIVILSINTWAY
HOUVHD ANIAITIA
TH 000T WYOd TYINEIOVETINY
ZT EASSIL TI0E QGWALR/SZT9LZS9
#I0DW PS9TLSOSTHADIOANI
§5985¢ NINGY THII TZ0zZ/80/20
§58G¢€ XIIAN0D TY¥IDIANC 08°9TIE
08°STE SS8S€E TZ0Z/80/20 1Z¥Z7L 622Z-ST-T0% NIWAY AINAOD X7ddNs TIVEEAO I¥IINIAANAL 0%0STT ¥ IO
OL"€ST YALNID HOLVASIA-TT6
STZLTSOH#HIODY 9LBYLSOSTHADIOANT
96°2T 6609¢€ /7 0ZZZ-08-116 ONIddIHS 1Z02/80/20
zZ Z6 6605¢ / /7 022Z-08-116 STIMOL ¥HIVd ANAOM (IVH HSYD oL €ST
z5° 8% 6609€ 1202/80/20 TZvZTL 0ZZZ-08-T16 HNSSIL IATIOL STI0¥ OgWAL FSWD A7ddNs TIVEIAO TVILNIANNd 6€0STT ¥ T0
Z26°0%T INSNIOTIY FITA HIVIS
Tz0z/80/20
S9€ETTZT/PPTT-P8S-GLSHIDDY Z6°0%T
Z6°0%T 1202/%0/20 TZvZ6% L0TZ-T6-L0% 1Z0Z AYVANVL ENITANYT NVENd SSHTHEYIM QVIIVIA 8E0STT ¥ T0
99°8TT  INIVW XTIAWOD IYIDIANL
T20Z/80/20
Z8B8OSSTEHIDOY 9CES9980THADIOANT 99°8TT
99°8TT 1Z0Z/%0/20 TT%ZLY €0ZZ-9T-10% 1Z0Z A¥YN¥EHd d04 QUVANVIS 2d “ONI NINEO LEOSTT O T0
»8°0ST AALNID HOIVASIA-T16
' 1z0Z/80/20
TPLOPISTHIDOY LSO79980ZHADIOANT %8 0GT
78 0ST TZ02/%0/20 1Z%Z9% STZZ-08-T116 TZ0T AIVA¥EHEd Y04 CEWANVIS D4 “ONI NINMO 9€0STT O I0
96" %8 YEOYNYW ZINOOD
6PLZIPTEHIIOY S2TES9980Z 120Z/80/20
H#IDIOANI TZ0Z Z¥EVNYEII Jod HATIE 96" %8
96" %8 1202/%0/20 12%ZS¥ TLZZ-0T-TO0% NINQY Dd-ATHINOW-TIV¥ANVIS Dd “ONI NIMNJIO SE0STT ©Q 10
00°5886%T JATITHS XINQOD
TEHIDOVY ZZOTOOTTHADIOANT
TZ0Z 1€ ¥IEWIDEA OL T AWVANYL 1202/80/20
dOoI¥Ed FHIL ¥04 NOILAFIMINOD 00°S886%T
00°5886%T 120Z/%0/20 TT¥ZZS ZIZZ-0S-T0% WYID0¥d INAWIDIOINT MYT ALT¥OHLOV FONWMOSNI XINAOD HN YEO0STT O 10
00" %%TH0Z NOISSIWHOD ALNNOD
TEHIDOY 06TTOOTHHEDIOANI TZOZ
TE€ DHEQ OI T NVYL QOI¥HEd THL ¥Ood
00°Z60T /7 ZIZZ-S0-T10% aNOd AIFINS SIVINIIIO OITdNd
00 GEEY / 7 Z122-5S0-T0% aqooTa
00°562 / 7 ZIZT-S0-10% NMOQIYIEE INIWI IO
00°818 /7 Z1ZZ-50-T0% NOIINTIOd
Junowy # Od qAIYA # 9DTOoAUT WwalI SUTT uot3ldixossg [ueN HIYAa #JID
8 s abegq 120Z/S/T7 WO¥d QHINI¥E SMDOHEHD  ONILSIT MDIHD (09DEHD) ST 0T L TZ/81T/T ie3ea

T20Z/81T/Z OL



ADIN TZ0Z/80/20
06759 / 9€2Z-59-10v YSSIY¥VH ATHAY NOSLALS SWIOIINQ 927291



6L8SE TIVISNI % ONIATIING HHL
6L8SE NI SWOO¥HIVH TTIV¥ Ol ASNOH INHJ
6L8SE HHL WO¥A XTAdNS ¥ALYAH YIILYM IHL Tz0z/80/20
S0°%TLT 6L85¢ / TT9Z-96-1T9 NO¥A ATAANS JHIVM JOH DILSHWOA LT SL8ES
ZT I9TTS 6L.8S¢ Tz0Z/80/20 IZ%Z9S 0S9C-65~€08 HHL HIId-Hd NOILVISNIWAY AINOOD ALITIIN ® ONIEWNT OIL 6%0STT ¥ TO
¥STTIOLT J4TIEHS ALNOOD
E 1Z0Z/80/20
T0-TZ0Z-0SDLH#EDIOANT YSTT9LT
TS TOLT LZTY9E 1Z0Z/80/20 1Z%Z08 TLZZ-05-T0% SEDIAYES FAILVOILSHANI ODNILTINSNOD OGNV ONINIVIL SIWIHIL 8¥0STT O T0
€€°08 INFNLIVIEG TONUNII
S8960T0L
TYAHIOOV 686628997 EHTDIIOANT
9€° €2 zTT9E /7 6TZT-SS~T0% Hd¥L DNINDVA/SYEJTOL ONIONVH
2S'L zZI9¢€ /7 61Z2-SS-T0% dWYLS
T8°21T ZZT9¢ / 7/ 6T22-95-10% AFAYd MOTIHAX
$0°LT ZZI9¢E /7 61ZZ-SS-T0% JAIYA FOTH
T9°€T ZZ19¢€ / 7/ 6TZZ-SS-T0V IV ASYAI XA 1Z0Z/80/20
66°S ZTI9E /7 61ZZ-55-10% A¥ddS XOd0TID €€£°08
TTI9E TZ¥ZSS dNYLS TOVINVAQY SSENISQY SHTAYLS L70STIT O TO
60°2TT MEETD ALNOOD
1202/80/20
OTS6THIOOY €Z80LHTDIOANT 60°CTT
60°2TT ZISSE T202/%0/20 TZ%EZ8% 80€C-0Z~2T9 AIATD ONITIOLINOW ATIZLAVADNIT HN 40 SWALSAS TYNDIS ® aNOos 9%0STT © T0
LS 9L2T INFWIAVAEA AVOM ALNOOD
TZ0Z/80/20
aqvodnL, LS 9LTT
LS°9LTT 1Z0Z/80/20 TZ%Zz8 z0Z2-09-20% #LODV 8S99FE6HEDIOANT TANS DTT ‘WNATOALIL ADIANEIS S¥0STT O T
00°56 HIYD HIVANI II00Y
1202/80/20
0zoz-zT 00° 56
00°S56 120Z/%0/20 1T%zee TLIZ-0L-0Z% JOL #IDIOANI ONISAOH ZLVWNI AINQOD HA YINVS ¥¥0STT ¥ 10
00° S5 INFWIIYdEd Y0¥ AINAOD
0Z-8T-8#IDIOANT TZ0T/86/20
LLI9E ADNAL MOT MONS J0d 00°SS
00- 5 LLTOE IZ02/80/20 TZWZLL ¥¥22-09-20% LI TAINN OLOY O¥HWOY £Y0STT ¥ TO
6L°E€S0T JINIWINVYAEQ AYO¥ XINNOD
592£95%¢ TZ02/80/20
#IDDVY €L~-%L-89-SS#EIDIOANT 6L7€S0T
6L°E€S0T 0509¢ 1202/80/20 TZ¥WZ8L 9€2Z-09-20% SHEOAINN A7ddNs TIVIHAO "TYILNIANAd ZVOSTT ¥ TO
6L°8S INTIVH XETIWNOD IVIDIdAL 06°59 NUYNZINIVH 3 SNOILVIAJIO LS LE SEDI440 HATIIVIISININGY
TL87-S909%/0L8Y-SSOSTHADTIOANT
6L°8S /7 £022-91-T0% TYIDIAN, SJdOW ANY SIVH
JUNOWY # od TIYA # 90TOoAUT wslI SuTI uotadransasg sweN HIYA #3ID
6 :obeg 1Z02/8T/2 OL 120Z/S/T WOYA dEINI¥d SYDIHD ONILSIT MDHHD (09DHHD) ST:O0T:L 1z/8t/T :°91eBC



6L85¢ JOgVT ATAVHASHOD ‘LIWIEJ
6L8S¢E ENIT NOIIVINDIEIDHEA



69 ESTOONNH#IDIOANT 1zoz/80/20
ecozse JOHHD aNOOIDAOYH 00" %%
00 7% cocoe TZ0Z/%0/C0 T2%Z6T 99¢Z-L9-5¢€9 Y04 FHA ONIILNIFJEIDNIAL ¥ AEINdIS “HIYM SS0STT © 1O
TC 6%6C INIWLIYYIAd QYO ALNNOD
STS0-£D I¥D NO INOd T202/80/20
XUOM PE088H#ILODVY LOI6HIDIOANI 1276962
1T 6%6C BLESE 120Z/80/20 TZ¥%Z6L YPZZ-09-20F SI¥Vd ANV ‘SEDCHE ODNILIOD ‘JIVATS TOD INFWAINOT TANOYM 7S0STT ¥ TO
[ 4 LTId aNIM
0%"99 FFINSTYIEL ALNQOD S7 90T DNINOZ » SONINNVId 987 LY TCXdL INVID TYDOT IMA
8L°0SZ YOSSISSY XLNOOD €T ¥%T FIINAD HOILYASIA-TI6 717695 XYL SHHE/SNOILYDINNWNWOD
LE 0geZ SHEDTIAIHS TYNINY Lo zE DNITIOLINOW ALINOWWOD ¥TT1°66€ NYNIINIVH ® SNOILYIHJO
0T L6€T SI¥d A0 NOIIVIMOJISNVAEL £87050L JdTYHHS ALNOOD <€9°010¢ LNENLOTIY HIId FIYLIS
Z29°1v /7 202Z~-60-069 0doL
0%° 89 /7 202Z-0€-107% YHINSYIIL
S7 90T /7 c0TZ-80-T0% zd
98 LY / c0TZ~-22-509 IMa
8L°0S2C / / 2022-0%-10% dDIA40 S.F0SSISSY
€C Ve / Z0Z2Z-08-116 HOLYdASTIA
YT 69% / /7 T0ZZ-€8-%09 LNINIDYNYR AONIDIIWH
LETQET / 7/ 20TT-28-107% SHOIAYHES TYWINY
Lotze / / Z02Z-€L~-0C% DNIJOLINOW DINOAEILIHETH
I S6¢ / / Z02Z-S9-T0% HONYNIINIVA ONY Sd0
0T L6EC / 7/ Z02Z~-%L-02% LIOdSNVIL
€8°050L /7 202Z-0S-10% TN AJTAHHS
88°60L /7 20ZZ-T6-€T¥ T68LESSSSPEI69GSHIIDY NIWAY =HAIA
cTTLOS / 7/ 2022-T6-S0% adans ¢ ISIa
90-98¢ /7 T0TZ-16-80% adn £ I8Ia TZ0Z/80/20
aiIA ¢ LSIa T9 TZZET
9% LOS 1Z0Z/80/20 TZHZT¥8 z0ZZ-T6-20% TZ0Z/ST/TO0 OL 0Z0Z/ST/ZT TINWALSAS INIWAVd HIVIOANOD MNVE SO €590GTT ¥ TO
SO"E€FT YADYNYW ALNNOD
1z0Z/80/20
STPETO0TO0TZOZHEDIOANT SO0 EPT
S0°€PT TO0%SE 1202/80/T0 TT%ZTY TLTZ-0T-TO0¥ AMDHHD ONAOUDADVE INIWXOTAWZ-TId ONINTHIDS ONNOIOAIVE TYSIIATNN ZS0S1IT ¥ 10
S9°%9T FENSYALL ALNNOD 79°%9T AHTO ALNOOD 69°250% NUNZLNIYW ® SNOILVAIIQ
STTIH#HILODY
S9°%9T LBESE / /7 €02Z-0€-1T0%7 ONINNYDS ® €M FATT S, dTINSVIIL 1202/80/20
9 99T LBESE /7 €02C-02-2T9 HOVIYAYH ® g3M JATIT §.3J31D 86 T8EY
6972907 LBESE 1Z0Z/%0/20 TZ¥%ZpS €TI2Z-99-T10% SHDIAYHES IOVELNOD LI DIUYIVL "ONI DIGVYIY¥L TSOSTT ¥ 10
86°09Z AATIAHS ALNAOD
ZL6SEHOI JHY SVEEET 120Z/80/20
66 V€T / 7/ 22Z22-09-0T% /¥Y6ECTHADTOANT QIVIIVE S100G 867092
66°9CT TZ0Z/80/20 TZ%ZES €ZTT~08-01% WOD0LS SLO0d SHEOAINO DIL 0S0STT O TO
S0°¥ILZ ¥ SS0¥D AYTIINO FIYLIAVYD CT T9TTIS SLDEL0dd AAILYISIDHET
6L89¢€ ST6TTHIOOY 680ESHEDIOANT /XYL
6L8SE SANO" ANV ‘MOO¥LITHS TYINSIVR
Junowy # od FIVA # oDTOAUI welI SUTY uotadransasa sweN HIVA #4D
iobeg TIZ0Z/8T/T OL 1Z0Z/S/Z WOIA JEINIAS SADTHD DNILSTT MDOHEHD (09DHHD) STO0T* 4 1Z/81/T :®3ed

0T






ZOTOYEOLALODY 96T8SHIDIOANT

00°ST €ET9E /7 TZZZ-TZ-T0% ONITANYH ® ONIddIHS 1Z0Z/TT/20
00709 €ETOE / / T2ZCC-T2-T0% ZAAVHD YIATAS SO¥¥D SSANISALI 005 00" S€ET
00°09 €E€T9E TZ0Z/TIT/Z0 TZTTITEZS TZZZ-1Z-10% O¥ILO INNOAZ SUYYD SSINISNG 00S SIADIAYIS NOILDETH JAIVWOLAY €90STIT O TO
00°500T INFWLOTIVY FII4 HILYLS
€TEELHEDTOANT T20Z/TT/20
LETSE INANATN0E NOTIIVOIEIXT QWL TYWOH 00" S00T
00°S00T L6TISE IZ0T/TIT/20 TTITZ9 8%ZZ-T16-80% d0 WIVdH¥ ONY DILSONODVYIA ONI INIFWIINDH FIIA VYISHINY Z90STT O TO
€€ TIOT NVYNIINIVW ¥ SNOILYIHAO
TZ0T/IT/20
S068#HADIOANT SHXVL €ETTTIOT
€ETTIOT TZ0Z/TIT/20 1211292 €122-59-T0% SIEMDIL ¥OEVT HSYHDOING MDOTE DTI dOO¥D ADOTONHDHL SNOILIEWY TI90STT O IO
78 FET NYNILNIVH ® SNOILVYZd0
TZ0Z/TIT/Z0
6168 P8 YET
¥8°%ET T20Z/TT/20 TTITIZE £€12C-599-10% HIDIOANI SEXVI FDAVHD IEADIL DTT JNO¥D ADOTONHDHL SNOILIEWY 090SIT O 10
0T S%¥% JIINED HOIVASIA-TI6
WSLZI6SISSILEY
#ID0V DU9X-XWHF -HEXTHIDIOANT TZ0Z/TT/Z0
TT S¥% ¥619¢€ /7 0ZZZ-08-T16 NYId NOIIDELO¥d AVHX ¥ 0T S¥%
66°66€ YETOE 1zZ0Z/TIT/20 TZITIZEZ 022Z-08-~T116 WANDVA XJA-LIM HAYMSSOUD TIASSIH SSENISNT NOZYWY 6S0STT O 10
TL TIF90T VIVE AINQOD
NOILU¥NOQ IDANL DI4 SNO
da¥ €0° SNOISSIWWOD qIvod dIVd 1Z0Z/TIT/20
INIMS S§% LOT €0° SNOISSIWHWOD VLTTY90T
TLTTIPOO0T 0zZ0Z/0Z/0T 0Z0ZOTST 6¥22-€5-21I¥% QIV0H JIVA INIMS 0€ 1OT NYHI¥YNOL 'A¥AY 8S0STT O TO
8T 9§ INIFWLOTTY BYId IIVLIS
T0°0TE izoz/80/20
#ILODOY JAMIAS /IIIVYM TT0Z/S2/T0 8T°99
8195 TZ0Z/¥%¥0/20 TCTHTES 01ZZ-T6-81% -020Z/8Z/TT SIDUVYHD ATHILNOW 40 HOVTIIIA ‘QUVTIIM LSOSTT ¥ TO
€97 0%T SHOIAYES TVWINY S0°€%6 INFAWILOTIY HIId HLYLS
600%T-€ZTB0-CHIDIY ZT-ELSGO
~LLYPT66HTDIOANT TUL NOISSIW
LIS €SL I¥ SEDIANES dAA
T6° €28 12Z0Z/%0/20 Tzvzez 0TZZ-T6-80% € LSIQ ¥04 SHEHOIVHD JHLSIWNA
£00¢€0
~Z¥¥SE-6#IDDY £00E£0-Z¥HSE-6
#IDIOANI SE€0L8 WN HSOLNIDW
THL NOISSIW II¥S TSL SHDIAYES
€57 09T 1202/%0/20 1T¥ZIZ 0IZZ-28-I0% TYWINY JOd SEHDIVHD AHLSIWNA
€00EE-0ET86-8THIODY
6-ELSO-¥BESTE6HEIDIOANT S£0L8 1202/80/20
KN ALIVISOW Q¥ NONNYD TIVD ¥¥ 897 €80T
Y1 6TV TZ02/%0/20 1T¥%Z0T 0T2Z-16-90% ddA S LSIA JO4 SEOHYVHD VALSAWOA "ONI WN d0 INIZWADYNYIH ZISYM 9G0STT O TO0
AUNOUY # 04 qIVA # So0TOAUT wa3T SUTT uotadransag sweN AIYd #ID

T :9bea

1Z0Z/81/Z OL IZ0Z/S/Z WOLA dFINTIAS SADIHD DNILSIT AOFHO

(09DHEHD) STO0T:L 1z/8T/2 :®¥3eQ



00" GET SNOIILDHETH



T20Z/T1/20

VLLYOETHIOOY 0897SE€TLHIDIOANT 61°88¢C
61°88¢C ST9S¢E 120Z/1IT/20 TCITZOE TLZZ-T6-E€17 NTWGY #¥Id 404 INAWAYd JHAIJOIDIAEAS TYIDNUNIS NHANYT IOVT #a CLOSTT O 10
29°81¢ ININLIVIAA JONVNIA
TZ0Z/TIT/20
TEBIPETHLIOY €9STSETLHADIOANT Z9°81¢
z9°8T¢ ZZLSE 1I20Z/TIT/20 TCIIChT £022-5959-107% HSVYAT JIIJCO HONUNIADIAJES TWIDNYNIIL NIANYT ADVI HA TLOSTT - O TO
29°8T¢€ YADENYW ALNNOD
FHEDYNYH T202/TT/20
TEQTPETHIOOY THSTSCILFADIOANT 29 8T¢E
Z9°81¢€ 00%S¢ T1202/1T/20 TZITZ8Z £02Z-0T-10% HSYAT AJOD IDVIINOHDIAYIS TYWIDNYNIA NIANYT ADYI HA 0LOSTT O TO
08°96 NOISSTHWWOD XINOOD
1Z/2T/TEIVA#TDIIOANT
9Z1T9¢ €8L'TTT *IDVITIN
9¢C1iot VE69ET *NIA
9CTTI9¢E §92¢€6D 471 TCz0Z/1IT/20
PrASE NYAYIYD JDAcd Ss00Z 0896
08°96 9¢CT9¢ TZ0Z/TT/20 IZTIZYL T0ZZ-S0-T0% AYALLYE MEN THSHIA ® FAILOWOLAY NIO0E0D 690STT O T0
00°%8 AIITD ALNNOD
120Z/T1/20
1Z/LT/T ONINIVIL 00°%8
00°%8 1202/TT/T0 TZITICEY S0C2-02-107% YHTAL WN ITIYOWODNL OL THATEL YIATAS ‘ZHEAVHD 8304TT O 10
YL 65L6¢C INHNLIVATA dYO0d ALNNOD
9978661
#ILODVY E€TTETSOECHADIOANI 000 1Z0Z/TI1/20
~0T1889L0-TOOH#IOVILNOD INIWAVA YL 6SLEE
YT 6SL6E TZ0Z/TT/20 TZTITZOL LTSZ-039-20% QIALDIFIOD ¥HAAVOT JIOMIDOVIIIOD SOAS TIYIDNYNIA IVITIA¥HELYD LS0STT © TO
P6°C8LT ¥ SS0¥D AVILNO TIYLIAYD
1202 NYC Tz0Z/TT/20
A0 HINOW 99%866T# AIWOLSND ¥6°Z8LT
¥6°28LT TZ0EZ/TT/Z0 TZITZEL €192-96-T22 000-88¥L9L0-TO0H# LIDOVIAINODIIOD SDAS TYIDNVNIA IVITIJIAIVD 990STT O IO
P6°C8LT ¥ SSO¥D AVILAO TYLIAYD
120C ga4 1202/11/20
40 HINOW 99¥%866T# VIWOLSND ¥6°Z8LT
¥6°2Z8LT TZ0Z/IT/20 TZITZCZL £€T92-96-TZ9 000-88VL9L0-TO0H#IDVIINODIIOD SDOAS TYIDNUYNIA AVTITANALYD S80STT O TO
00°99T AATIIHS ALNNOD
€06 ZHADIOCANT
00°9T Z809¢ /7 2Z2Z-09-01% LHDIEYA T202/T1/20
0o-oL Z2809¢ / /7 ZZTZ-0S-01% Ioavd IDS LE0dSNVIL 007991
00°0L Z2803%¢ T202/IT/T0 TZITZLT 2272-09-0T% aoavd INYNILOITT SLAVIDTIYLAN H ¥ D ¥90STT O 10
Junouy # Od HITA # apTOoAUT wonI SUIT uotadrInsaa SweN qTIYd #3D
A :abeg TZ0Z/8TI/T OL TZ0Z/S/T WO¥S QAINT¥d SADTHD ONILSTIT ADIHD (09DFHD) SZ:0T:L TZ/81/2 :93eQ



61°88C ININLOTIY IITI HIVLS



1Z0Z/TT/20

00°0€T ZEL9E / / 0Z2Z2Z-%Z-10¥% SSHINIYLS NOIIV.LID 80T DIYA
00°86C TETI9E /7 0TZC-91-10% FdNT AYM-Y-IVHIE $0T DUV 297108
00°862 ZEeT9¢C TZ0Z/TT/T0 IZITZIZ 022C-ST-T0% JANVETID NIVEA ALNA AAVIH S§ DUV DNI ‘MTIVWNIEI T80STT O TO
78 ¥V YEINID HOLYASIA-TTI6
B80FLHIDDOVY Z¥LSSHIADIOANT 120Z/TT/20
8676 0029¢ / 7/ 02ZZ-08-TT16 dOW HSINIA ¥8 7%
88 ¢ 00Z9¢ 1Z02/1T/20 TZIIZ%Z 0ZZZ-08-116 FEANVHTD JOOTA dOW dW¥d ONI 0D TYDIWHHD ONIWHTA 080STT O TO
00°G2TIE XYL ESIDXE HIId 3%/1
0E8TTO00#IDIOANT
Tzt AONAL HATA ININD ZOYAIA
T229%¢ ‘aEsn YO MEN
1Z29¢ TYN0OE WO FWYN ANVES
TZZ9¢ T0-TZ0Z "ON daT
TZZ9¢ INIRAYE NMOO %0S Tzoz/IT/20
TZZ9¢ SGZETOOVYZYSZOIDATY *NIA ‘WOOd AM¥S 00°SZTtTE
00 SZTTIE TZZ9¢ 1Z0T/I1/20 TZITCIL 8192-¢6-T11% 1 T9 WOINVOD FD¥AIA Z00Z OTT GEILIWITIND SMDNYLAEIL 6L0STT O IO
66 6667 INEWILIVAZA dYOY ALNOOD
TLO#HADIOANT
zZ019¢g €LO086FAATLOTEDIADT :NIA
20T19¢ FOSSHIANWOD VIV aaITAMOL TZ0Z/TT/TO
c019¢ SYD ONV ISIOH DITNVECAH HLIM 66° 6667
666667 Z0TsE 1202/1T/20 1ZITZIS 8T92Z-09-20% €YD ¥YINOIY 00GE LIATOIATHD 0002 NOIIVIDOSSY SYD MHE 8LOSTIT O TO
LT TIS A4dTIHHS ALNQCD
186 TSSSTHIDVILNOD TZ0ZT/IT/20
TLLPOETHIDOY 96ZSSETLHIDIOANT LTZIS
LT CTS Teose 1202/IT/20 TZITZSE £02C-05-T07% AJTIAHS 04 INAWAYI TEFIJAOHDIAYAS TYIONUYNTA NIEANYI HOVI HJ LLOSTT O TO
0L 8Z¢ DNINOZ % DNINNYIL
1202/T1/20
TESTPETHIODOY 6FSTSEILHFIDIOANT 0L 82¢
oL 8zge §S6¢€S¢€ T20Z/IT/20 TZIICTHE €0Z2Z2-80-T0% ESYET AJOD LOVILNOIDIAYHS TYIDNYNIZ NIEANYT IDYT =HA 9L0STT O IO
TI 85S¢ IITd ONIM
TzozZ/ItT/20
TECT699GTHIOOY OLSTSETLHADIOANT TL 89T
TIT°8SC TTLSE TZ0Z/TT/C0 TZTIIZEE £€02Z2-60-069 ASYHT JdIAIA0D AEDTIAYIS TYIDNVYNIL NIANYT =ZOVT HA SLOSTT O TO
69°39LZ FAINSYEAL ALNAOD
Y8VEZETHIOOY T20Z/TT/20
TZBSSETLH#IDIOANT ¥IINSTHANEL 69°9LT
69°9LT 62¢€89¢ 120Z/11/20 TTi1ZZE £022-0€-10% TZ0ZAI L¥D ® ISVAT YHIJOBDIAYES TIVIDNUYNIA NIANYT FOVI =a PLOSTT O TO
S1°Z9¢ JOSSHSSY ALNNOD
T202/TT/20
FPEBTPLTHILOOY LSSTSETLHEDIOANT S1°TS¢E
ST°ZS5¢ €TLSE TZ0Z/TT/20 ITTIIZIE €022-0%-019 ASVEAT YITAOD JOSSISSHOIAYHS TYIONYNIL NIANYI FOVT Hd €LOSTIT O T
JUNOWY # 0od FIVA # 9DTOAUT wa3T SUTT uwot3dTInsea QweN "IVA #ID
€T :obeg TZ0Z/8T/Z OL 120T/S/Z WO¥I AIINIIL SADHHD DONIILSIT MDHHD (09DHEHD) ST:0T:L TZ/81/¢ To7ea



ZEToE YINVETD SSYID 60T DYV
CTETO9E HSITOd TIELS



96°FT ININLIVAEA FONVNIA
SO8TZTTHIODY S9TSTOANISHEDIOANT T20Z/T1/20
S6°V%T 8E€ESE / /7 TLZZT-SS-TO% HOIAAO HADNUYNIL S6°¥T
8E€ESE TICTITZC6Y HOTAAO S EDYNYN ODIXHEW MEN A0 SNOZIJOH 8804TT O TO
S6°%T JIINSTHIL ALNAOD
1Z0Z/1T/20
LBLTIZTHIODY 99TSZOANISHIDIOANT S6°%T
G6°FT 6€E€SE T1Z02/IT/20 TCIIZ8% TLZZ-0E-T0T 1ZA4 Y04 SEADIAYNIS DNICQCQHYHS ODIXHWN MAN A0 SNOZIMOH L80CSIT O TC
S6°FT YOSTHSSY ALNNOD
FO08TZTHIODY T20Z/1T/20
89TSZOANISHADIOANT TZ/L/T ALYA S6°%T
S6°¥T 120Z/1IT/20 TIZTITZLY TLZZ-0%-TO0% HOINYES SHDIAYES ONIJAIIHS QDIXHW MIN J0 SNOZIYOH 980STT O TI0
T0°0¢€ LNAWLOTIV HdId HIVLS
1202/TT/20
0TLBTI9-DNIAVIE JYHILIW INIIIOD I0°0€
TO0 0¢€ 1202/1I1/20 TZIIZh% 0TEZ-16-50% 1Z02/1/2 #IVAd ADIOANI TOD WHILYM AYALSTWOH S80STT O TO
00°0060S NOISSIWWOD ZINAOD
ALNOCDO FONYIIOL 120Z/T1/20
#IDOVY €0-S0-02QZHIDIOANT 00" 0009
00" 0009 £F3SE 120Z/TT/20 TZITZSL TLZZ-S0-T07% ¥OJ JNA ILNAOWY DNINIVWIES LOHLIEM MO0¥dTIOH ¥80STT O TO
6L T FILNED YOINIS YIDNYISH 86" € NED JOINAS dFIYNIVINAORW 66" 1T YHILNHD JOINIS ALIVIEOW
SANYId AHM
FALSYH STIHIDOY O0VEZSTHIDIOANT
6L°T £€5¢€49¢ / /7 STCT-39¢-T0% TzoT A4
86°¢€ £€5€SE / /7 S1TC-LT-T0% SHLIS DNIAING
€8¢g9¢g ALNNOD TIV¥ ¥Od LSINDIY Od NHAJO
£9€S¢E HONYNAINIVA ONIJTIIOH J04
£5€9¢ 'SEITAANS HEVYMAYYH ¥ ONIJO0A 1202/11/20
€SESE ‘ONIENNTE TYDINIOHATE “DSIN 9L L
66 T €8€S¢E TZ0Z/TT/20 TZTIZ6T STZZ-LE-TOF “ONI HIVMAYYH NILSND €80STT O TO0
0S5 %% SHOTAIO FAIILVILSINIWAY
TZ0Z/IT/20
STTHIOOY L6FZSTHADIOANT 0SS %%
0S 9% 6L9SE I202/1T/20 TTItCZ STZZ-ST-T0% ‘ONTEROTE  TYOIILOETE “DSIN TONI FYYMAIYH NILSOD Z80STT O TO
0Z°SST INIVH 5074 LdEd HITYIH TZ €2¢ INIYW XdTdWOD TIY¥IDICAL TZ €z¢ SHOIAAO HAILVALSINIWAY
TTIZPT6T
-00#IDDY NI-SLTEZLO#IDIAONT
QT sz CET9E /7 0ZZe-¥Z-10% LHDIFIA
TZ°S¢ TETISE / 7/ 022CZ-91-10% IHDIHIIL
TZ g2 CETOE / 0ZZZ-ST-T10¥% LHDIZES
ZEI9C TOSOYAVY HSE¥A INIT 0PT DYTR
CEIoE TOYINOD LOO¥ ENIT NIVIA 0L DIENH
aunouy # 0od TINA # 9D0TOAUTL waaI SUTT uotadraossa SweN ZINA #3ID
¥T :abeg 1Z0Z/8T/Z OL T2Z0Z/S/Z WO¥d CHINI¥Ed SADHHD DNILSIT MDEHD (092HHD) ST 0T=L Tz/81t/2 193ed



S6°%T

66€9€E

TZ0Z/TIT/20 TZTTIZO0S

£€022-0¢-219

T6FTZTHLODOY LOTSTOANISHEDIOANT
TCOCAA 04 IOIAYAS DNIATIIHS

ODIXEW MIN 40 SNOZIUOH

S6°7T
680STT

O IO



60°g2 w«mmw /7 69CZ-0€-T0% 00-sz
TYESE TZIIZTT SENQ HIVITIAIV S.qTINSYEAL ALVITITAIY S, ITIOSYHAL WN L60STIT O TO
0L TES NOTISSTHWHOD ALNQOD
1Z0Z/IT/20
0-00-5S85S0S-TO#ILDDY TS6SSTBTSOT CL TIES
0L TES 1Z02/TIT/20 T2LICI¥® LOTZ-S0-TI0% H#HADTOANT SHEXVIL KN NO ALIYNAJ HOANIAZY ¥ NOILVXVI KN 960STT O T0
zT6°TIT WYID0dd 1M
PSSHIODY 6T8EHTDIOANT
TG09¢€ TYIDNV.LSH A0
T509¢€ NMOIL HDNO¥HL FATIA VINYS INYISIA
T809¢ ATIVIOOS NI HIV4IDII¥Yd TIIM ONY
TS09¢€ HAVEVd ITHHL DNINNA IIVNIV.INAOW
TS09¢ NI SO¥ID YINYS ODNIANVAWNODDY
TS09€ 79 TIIM ddTMADL) ~YIDNVISE
TS08¢€ NV JdIYNIVINOOW NI SINIAI TZ0Z/TIT/20
1809¢ HOVHILOO DNI¥NA NOILAEIVYLSIA Z6°Z1T
Z6°CTT TS09¢€ TZ0Z/TI/T0 1211207 LSTZ-5€-909 d0d AQNYD ¥HHLO A0 SINVD AQNYD STO0d ALITIYOW S60STT © TO
00°8% NYNAEINIVW ¥ SNOILYIAJO
1202/TT/20
STLOT#IODY 8T-STLOINE 00° 8%
00" 8% 1Z0Z/TT/20 T2TLT6E L0TZ-S9-T0% HDIOANI ILINYHINI ZINAOD HDNTINOL QLT SHDIAYES IINJIAINI 0dOT P60STT O IO
00°0% MAINID HOIVASIA-TT6
1Z02Z/TIT/20
8S60THIODDY ST-8S60TN 00" 0%
00" 0% TZ0Z/IT/20 ICITZLE L0Z2-08-TT6 #IDIOANT LANIAINI HOIVASIA QLT SHOIAYES IINIIINI 00T €60GTT O TO
00°STIET NOISSINWOD AILNOOCD
OTPEHHDIIOANT SONILIHA TzoZ/TT/C0
NOISSIWWOD ¥04 LSYOoavodd 00°STIET
00°SIE€T TZ0Z/TT/Z0 TTITZ8E £¥2Z-50-10% ALINAWHOD MNX-IDVALNOD L7 88 WA-HNXI ZE0STIT O 10
ST ¥PYPS  INIWLYYAEA d¥0d ALNAOD
TH#EOIOANT
SZ°%vE TEZSE / 7/ CTLTZT-09-20% (%SL°9) L¥DOWN
TEZ9E qIAYE XEOA T L 120Z/TT/20
TECSE HO¥A SIEDIA¥HES TIVANLDEILIHIYY J0JL YA 444
00°00TS TET9E TZ0Z/IT/T0 TZTIZ8T TLZZT-09-20% INIFHIFIOV SHDIAYIS TYNOISSIIOUA qINYE AM0A O T60STT O 10
00°00% JATIAHS XINAOD
TFO9EH#0d AT WODOLS
THGEEMHDS /IATTIOD /QIVTTYE ENIDS TZ0Z/1T/Z0
HATOIWOH ANV HIVAC SN0IDIESAS 00007
00°00% TZ0Z/TT/T0 TZTIIZ8 9922-0S-01I¥ HHI, OL HSNO4ASHE TO¥ELYd 07T ‘HA¥EI FHI HSQISNI 060STT O TO
S6°F%T AIETS AINOOD
T20Z/T1/20
Junouy # 04 FI¥Q ~ # 9DTOoAUT wS3T SUTT] wotadrIosag sweyn ALYA #AD
ST :obea TZ0Z/8T/Z OL 1T20T/S/T WO¥d QAINIIA SADTHD ONILSIT MDHHD (09DHHD) SZT:0T:L 1z/8T/2 t@3ea



00°9T YHINSYILL ALNAOCD

TZTOZHIDTOANT T202/TT/20



Teoz/Tt/20

TYIDIANL €S06LETE-PBESOSHIOOY 967011
967011 1Z0Z/TI/20 TZITZSS L0TT-9T-T0% TZ0Z €23 YOd SEDUVHD ATHINOW NOILWIOJEOD LSHEMD 90TSIT © TO
s0-6LT HIVD EIVANI IINAaY
o 1202/11/20
aNNd TIVD W96S8500-¥BE-SG0SHIODY s0°6LT
S0°6LT TZ0Z/TT/20 TEITTvS L0ZE-0L-0T¥ TZ0Z €32 ¥0I SHOUVHD ATHINOW NOTIVIOQAOD LSTMD SOISIT O 10
€ETEE8  UDOUA S, NIZILID WOINAS
TZ-953-6#EDTOANT T20Z/TT/20
TZ0Z X9YNIEHES Y04 YIINED HOINIS €£€°£€8
€€ €€8 1Z02/TT/20 IZITZSE TLEZ-LS-TEY ALNNOD ¥O4 SHSNIAXE DNINVETD SEOIANAS TVOICEN NYISZIASSTEd 7OISTT O TO
00°%8 MIATD AINOOD
1202/TT/20
TZ/LT/Z ONINIVEL 0078
00°%8 TZ02/TT/20 1ZI122¥ S022-0Z-10% FITAL WN IEY¥DHODAL OL TIAVEL ENNOAZ AMVW ‘O¥HLO €0TSIT O TO
€€°9g INEHIAYIEA SONYNTL
0TOL 120Z/T1/20
#IDDY ZOS9TNI#ZDIOANI TZ/TE/T OL €€°99
€€°95 T20Z/TT/20 1TITZLE £0ZZ-55-10% TZ/T0/T0 HOVIIAO SUTIAOD AOTOD ano¥d EENN ZOTSTT O TO
TL %91 EDOYNYH ALNOOD
TIDI# IDDY €0S9PNI
#EDIOANI ZO0%2=ST99T GNZ €1Z7T
NIDIE JOIOD TELE=906%S AN SLHTS 1202/TT/20
NIDEE M/€ TZ/TIE/T0 OL TZ/TO/TO TL 99T
TL 99T TZ02/IT/20 TZITZ0Z £0ZZ-0T-T0% HEL ¥O4 HOUVHD HOVEHEAO IOVALNOD dno¥d EENN TOISTT O 10
v6° %2 MYETO AINOOD
80DIHIODY 009SHNIHIDTOANT 1202/11/20
TZ0Z/TE/T OL 120Z/T0/T0 672
v6° T TZ02/TT/20 TZTTE9T €02Z-02-219 EDUVHD FOVATAOD IDVELNOD 4No¥D HENN 00TSTTI O TO
99" 1SV SNOIIDHTH
8ODI#IDDY 9EZSTNIHEDTOANT
z66S€ YHINIEG ESNADIT ZOVINIYH
00°L z66s€ /7 61ZZ-T2-10% H=® S
gz 8vT z66SE /7 612Z-12-10% YEANOL VINEOWH 1202/T1/20
zz*8vI z66S€ /7 6122-T2-10% TINOL MOTTHE 99°IS¥
zz 8% z66sE T20Z/TI1/20 1TTTZS 612Z-12-10% ANOL NYAD dno¥n EENN 660STT O TO
LETT JOSSTSSY AINAOD
YOSSESSY/ LODIHLIDY TZ0Z/T1/T0
66Y9PNI#IDIOANI IZ/TE/T OL LETT
LETTT 1Z0Z/T1/20 TZITTHT £022-0%-10% 1Z/T0/T EOVAEAO SHI0D ¥OTOD an0¥s =ENN 860STT O TO
Junouy # 0d HILVA # SDTIOAUT waj3I SUTT QOHH@._PHDMQQ [dueN gLYa #D
:obeg 1202/8T/Z OL TZ0Z/S/T WO¥I QEINTVE SMDEHD  ONIISIT MOHHD (09DEHD) ST:0T:L  TZ/8T/T :93ea

9T



96 0TT INIVW XATIWOD TY¥IDIANL



6T LPS

TZ0T/IT/20 TTIITSO

L0TZ-08-TT6

HOLVdSId HI8STES6-¥8ESO0SHIIDY
1202 €d4 SHDIVHD ATHINOW

NOIIWIOLH0D LSAMO

TzoZ/11/20
61°LYS
STTSTT O 10

T20T/TIT/20 TZTIZ¥®S

L0TZ-28-T0%

HLZZLTTS-P8ESOSHIDDIY
TT0CT €934 SHEOUVHD ATHLNOW

NOLIVIOJI0D ISEZMO

SHOIAYEAS TYWNINY

120Z/TIT/20
£€9°9g¢
STITSIT O 10

TZ0T/TIT/20 TZTTIZEQ

LOTC-0E-T0%

1T0T/TT/20 T2TITTY

L0CZ-02-T0%

08769

120Z/11/T0 TZITTIS

L0OZZ-0v-T07

YTINSTYHAAL 9668T8EY-¥8ESO0SHIIOY
1202 €dd SHDIVHD ATHLNOW

08765

NOLLYIOJJYO0D ISIMO

YHEIASTILL RILNROD

T202/1I1/20
08769
FTTSTT O 10

MEATD HESE080F-P8ESOSHIODY
TZ0Z €34 SHOYYHD ATHINOW

AITTO ALNNOD

T20Z/T1T/20
7565
€ITSIT O 1O

YOSSHESSY d668C9EY-¥8ES0SHIIOY
120C €gdd SHDUVHD ATHLNOW

0869

NOILVIOJYOD ISaMd

YOSSESSY ALNAOD

TZ0Z/1T/20
08°65
ZTISTIT O 10

€T° 99

1Z0Z/TT/Z0 TZITZO9

LOZTZ~LZ-T0¥

os
YIVNIVINOOW g%02988Z-L78S0SHIODY
TZ0Z €34 SEDYVHD XTHLNOW

€298

NOIIVIOFIOD LSEMO

NID ¥0INIS ATYNIVINAOW

T20Z/T1T/20
€295
TITSTT O 10

SET6PT

T20Z/TT/T0 TZITT6S

LOTZ-0T-T0V

YTDYNYIN dZ8076ZS-¥8ESOSHIDOVT
TZ20Z €gH4 SEDIVHO XTHLNOW

SeT6¥%C

NOTILYIOdIOD ISEMO

FADUNYW ZLNOOD

TZ0Z/TT/20
SE6%C
O0TTSIT © TO

8% ZST

12Z0Z/TT/20 TZITZ8S

L0ZZ-9€~-T07%

o8
VIDNVLSH €9660T09-78€S0SH#HIODY
TZ0C 9dd SHDIVHD ATHLNOW

8% CS8T

NOIIVIOdIOD LSIMO

YHLNID JOINAS VIDNYLSH

1Z0Z/T1/20
8% CST
60TSTT O TO

Tz0Z/TT/20 IZTITZLS

L0TZT-LE-TOY

o8
ALIYIIOW HEQTSZPH-ZE8SOSHIIDY
1Z0Z €934 ¥04 SHDIVHD ATHLNOW

€6°¥9T

NOILVIOIIOD ISIMD

FILNED ¥YOINHS ALIYIAOW

tzoz/TT/20
€6 99T
80TSTIT O T0

06°S0T

JuUnowy #

1z0Z/T1/20 TTITZ9S

dJrea # oDoToAUT

LT :abeg

tzoz/81/T

L0TT-09-20%

walI BUTT

OL TZ0Z/S/2T WOdd

avo¥ €Z800S5Z-%8ESOSHIDOV
TZ0T g¥d ¥YO4 SIOIVYHD ATHLNOW

uotadradsag

CQHINITId SADEHD ONILSIT MOHHD

06°S0T

NOIIVIOJAOD LSEMD

SWeN

(09DEHD) GZ:0T: L

INIWLIVIET d¥0d ALNNOD

1zZ02/tr/20
06°S0T
LOTSTT O 16

H2IYa #3D

Tz/81/c :93®C



61T LYS

YHLNED HOLVYASIA-TI6



CEIE0000NHFLIOY 8T69¥S00
#IDIOANT HONVIVE SNOIATIA
SHEHEA/SAXVL/SEDUVHD FOYSN

1Z0Z/1I1/T0
LT %99
STISIT O 1o

LT %9S 1zZ0Z/TT/20 TZIIZIT TLZZ-0T1~10% "ONI ‘SONICTIOH YEWYsS
¥0°99 NOISSIWWOD AINQOD
PETEC0ZHADTOANT
6509€ D¥ZO0T g7
6509¢ 6LSTIY NIA 120Z/T1/20
6509¢ S#SS HAVOSHE Q404 0202 ¥0°99
¥0°99 6509€ 120Z/T1/20 TZIIZET T022Z-S0-T0% HOVAOYd SA¥OM HHL SHTYS a¥0d HOIN FZISTT O 10
ZT°S00% INIWLIVAEA YO ALNONOD
L6LYTO0ZFTHIADIOANT
ST09¢ 0Z068 :NIA T dWAQ ATTHd T20Z/TT/20
ST09€ 0€90T :NIA T dWNCG A7T7Hd 2T S00%
ZT S00% ST09€ TZ0Z/IT/20 1ZITCES Y¥ZT-09-20% SHGYIE ¥OL SIIIL S ¥E/IT TOD H¥IL NINgagd €ZISTT O T0
80°STOT INIWLIVIIA AYO¥ ALNNOD
LELFTOOZTTHIDIOANT
9T09€ AY6F000-6T-000-06 VAMSHN
9T09¢ L08E :NIA ST IDAOD ST0Z
v¥°9ZS 9T09€ / 7 1022-09-20% LT-0L/S9T 1Z02/T1/20
9T09€E 9878 :NIA 00ST =DUOA Z00ZT 80°STOT
79 88% 9109¢ TZ0Z/TIT/20 TTITZZS 1022-09-20% SHIIL LI-0L/S¥C T0D HYIL NENEaE¥E ZZISTT O 10
8862 AJITYTHS AINAOD
1Z02/1TT/20
JATITHS €ELEO0LLTT-PBESOSHIODY 88°62
88762 Te0z/IT/20 TTITZOL L02Z-0S-T0% Tz0Z €334 SEOUVHD XTHINOW NOIIVIOEOD L1SIMD TZISTIT O IO
0T 80T INEWNLOTIV FdId FIVIS
T2Z0Z/TT/20
NINQY #8914 G0TTS9TE-P8ESOSHIODY 0T"80T
0T-°80T T20Z/1IT/20 IZITZ69 L0ZZ-T6-€T% Tz0Z €34 J0d STDUVHD ATHINOW Xvd NOIIVIOIHEOD ISAMD 0ZISTT O TO
60°65 INZHLOTIY T4 FIVLIS
120Z/11/20
ada § ISIA d€Z9F0TS-2E£8S0SHIDDY 60°6S
607659 TZ0Z/IT/T0 TZITZ89 L022-T6-50% TZ0Z €33 SEOUVHD ATHINOW NOTIWIOII0D LSHEMO 6TTISTIT O TO
66°8L INANLOTIV HATLd ITLVLS
TZ0Z/TT/Z0
gdA S 1SIA d%6%0000-ZE8S0SHIDDY 66°8L
667 8L TZ0Z/TIT/20 TZITZLY L0ZZ-T6-50% Tz0Z 934 JOoA4 SHDUVYHD XTHINOW NOLLYIOIAOD L1SIMD 8TTSTT O TI0
oL €€z INIWLOTIY FIIJL FILVIS
1T0ZT/TIT/T0
adns § ISIA €906890%-TEBSOSHIIIY oL €€T
0L €€T TZ0Z/TIT/20 TZITZ99 L0TZ-T6-50% TZ0Z €934 SHEDYVHD ATHINOW NOILYVIOJIOD LSAMD LTITISTT O IO
qunowy # od qHIYA # VDTOAUT walI DUTT .EO..n”Q..nHUW@Q DWRN HJIYa #3ID
ONILSTIT MDHEHD (09DHHD) STIOT:L Tz/81/T :o3®eQ

8T :ebeq 120Z/8T/2 OL

1Z0Z/S/Z WO¥A QIINT™E SADIHD



LT %2G DNV ALNNOD



TO0686FAOLHLODY Z8I00000NK
#ADTOANT ¥HAVT TYNOILIAAY

09°¥%9¢ DNISSHIAAY ‘ITVINd
tzoz/IT/20
09°%3¢

ANYJWOD ITAMAIS HHL €ETSTT O TO

09" ¥%9¢ 120Z/IT/20 TTIIZI £€0ZZ~-L0-SL9 ODIII0d HHA TYONNY HNILSOH d3m
TL™S68C XYL ESIDXE g¥Id $%/71
L608S00#HIIIOANT
€T TZ1T ¥909%¢ / 7/ T0ZZ-Z6-117% LIDAN
86°GEZT ¥909¢ / 7/ T0ZZ-Z6-TTV SLIYd
05°8€ST 7909¢ / 7 102Z-26-T1% q09Y'L
¥909¢ DESY90 4T
vo03¢ 86FTHGC68GA8SEINTIOZ NIA
¥909¢ JAOTIINW HAIS TZ0Z/IT/20
¥909¢ A0 INFWIADYIATE ANV ‘TTITHSANIM TL°S68T
¥209¢ TIZTTZ6 IDNYHD IO YIVAWI AAZHD 800Z OTT EOHVIVD HHL ZE€ISTT O 10
00" Se LNVED ONINTYAL ¥4d
8TSZOLI-TZHIDIOANT 1Z02/11/20
Z9TS¢ MONS "D - HIVAdQ 00" 986
0056 Z919¢ TZ02/11/20 TZ1IZZZ 99ZZ-58-116 FOLOAYLENT TYIHINED SAONILINSNOD % SHNINIVIL NODINHDIL TETSTT O TO
00°00% NOISSIWWOD AINAOD
¢-Tzoz
#IDTOANI NOILVIS dHAISNVAL
00°002Z 1202/TIT/20 TZTITZ9% 702Z-50-10% ENOILYIL HASYET TZ0Z AIvNdgdd T202/TT/20
T-IZ0ZTHHEDIOANT NOIIVIS UHJISNVAL 007 00%
00°002Z 1Z0Z/TT/20 TZITCSY ¥022-50-T0% ANOICYI ESYAT TZ0Z XAYNNYLD INVID ANVT Z00I0VL CETSTT O TO
6€°6¢€ LINHNIIYAId HONYNIIL
S$8960T0LIVA I20Z/1IT/20
#IDDY I8IZTSLIPEHTDIOANT 6C€°6¢€
6E€°6¢€ ZZ1s¢ T20Z/1IT/20 TZIIZLL 6TZZ-SS-10% dWY.LS ADVINVACY SSENISOY SHIJVIS 6ZISTT O IO
8% °86¢ YHLNHED HOLVASIA-TII6
L609¢E TONY¥d ‘SIEONOLS AILIIE-HOLODS
ZT°SST L609¢E / /7 0ZZZ-08-1T6 THANVATD NIAO AJ0-ASYH ‘' XANHITY TZ0Z/1IT/CO
L6039¢€ SOYIATIINY 09¢ NOILYON 8%°86¢
SE" €T L609¢€ T20Z/TT/Z0 TCLIZ® 61TZZ-08-1T16 ‘R¥ELIVE Sdn ‘SaQ¥0D NOISNALXI HOVLNVAOY SSENISNG SHIAVLS 8ZTSTT O TO
¢0° 099 XYL SWE/SNOIILTDINOWHOD
6CTTTTHEDIOANT
ST6SE JITIVIL I202/1T/20
916S¢E THLTHEHS AONADYHWNI 207099
20°09s% 9T6S¢ 1202/TT/20 T2itTzse 8%CZ-£8-%09 Fo4d JdIVIFE ANV DILSONDYIA SHIVS JYATIVIL VIANYS LZTSTT O 10
TP LSTT JINIEWIIYAIA AYOI ALNNOD
TZ-TE€-0THIDIOANT
[4A21 S «¥ SONINIYR 1202/TT/20
cerse JILNIVE FTIvEna - T¥ LSTT
T%°LSTT [4474°13 1z0Z/TIT/T0 TZITZOT €9¢2-09-20% HDIH ¥0LOHTIAHE A0 INIWIDYIA dd02 NOILOAYLSNOD d¥d NYS 9¢TSTT O 10
Junowy # od "IV # 90TOAUT wo3T SUTT uoTydTIosaq sweN HIVA #D
61 :abeg 120Z/81/2 OL T202/5/2 WOdd AAINTIIEG SADTHD DNILSIT ¥DHHD (09DHHD) SZT:0T:L 1Z/8T/2 :133eq



00°00€2T (%4418 TZ0Z/TT/Z0 TZTITZL ¥522-09-20% SHLNOW € ¥04 TYLNIY JITIOA 071 ‘INIWAINOE SWYHATT ¥ YE€ISIT O TO




£€9°896

Junowy

£VPSE
E£¥¥SE

# 0od

IILYa

# @DTOAUTL

0T

:abeg

TYLOL

/7 LL"T66869 €51

EFTSERILIDOV Z6TZI6HEDIOANT

YSTZT-09-20%

TLEDNN

JATION €7 000°%Z IZTH WAVH

we3T SUTT

1Z0Z/8T/Z OL TTOZ/S/Z HO¥A QEINI¥A SHDTHD

uoTadranssg

DNILSTIT MOdHD

€97892¢T LNHWLIVAId a¥O¥ ALNNOD

TZ0Z/TT/20
£€9°892¢tT

SWeN ALVA #30

(09DEHD) SEZ:0T:L  Tz/8T/Z :®aRa



00° 09°96 AALYM - SHILITILN 0TZZ-%2-10%
00°- £9°2Z%T HENVIOEA/SYD TYEQIYN - SATLITILIA 602Z-%2~T0%
00" ST LIE ALIDI¥IDATE - SHILITIIN 802Z-%Z-T0%
00" 0z LsT'T HONYNAINIVW 901€ IdZd HLIVIH LdHAQx *
00" 0%°5599 COALS/CTIING-SYIVATE 3 FONYNILNIVIH STZZ-€2-10%
00" 0% 559 INIVA DINITY HITVIH JIYNIVINNOW LaEx x
00" 00° €S FOVIOLS ENIHOVH ONILOA 80€Z-TZ-T0¥
00" 00 Sg€T DNISILIZACY/ONTHSIIENd /ONILNIEG 1zZT-12-10%
00" 99" TS¥ HOT4J0 TVIENTD - SHITAANS 6TZT-TZ~T0%
00" 99°6€9 SNOILDHETR IdAAx*
00" L9 6TE SNOIIVDINOWHODATALL L0Z2-02-10%
00" 00°89T SHIAOTANA - THAVIL 5022-0Z-T0%
el L9 L8Y MIFETD ALNOOD LdHx x
00" 1Z°€TE ONINVEID - SZITAdNS 0ZZZ-9T-10%
00" LO"€6F NALS /ATINL-SITVAHE ® TONYNILNIVRN STZZ-9T-10%
00" Z€°8Y%2 YILYM - SEILITIIAN 0TZZ-9T-T0%
oo TIZ LBE'T HNVJO¥d/SYD TVANIYN - SEILITILA 60ZZ-9T-T0%
00-° zE"0ZO'T ALIDIEIOETE - SHILITILIN 802Z~9T-T0%
00" 96°0TT SNOIIVDINNWAODHIIAL LOZZ-9T-TO0V
00° S¥TLLT INIVA INIFHAIADE - SIOVILNOD €0ZZ-9TI-T0%
00" ¥5 09L'% HONYNIINIVH XETAHOD TY¥IDIANS LA+ +
00- 08°ST€E JId¥d -~ SAITA4NS 622Z-ST-10%
00" TZ €2¢€ ONINVETD - SHITddNS 0ZZZ~ST-T0%
00" v6°LEL NILS/TIINI-SYIVATT ¥ HDNINILNIVH STZTZ-SI-T0%
00° TV L6T IIIYM - SHILITILA 0IZZ-ST-TO0%
00" ¥Z €0T’'T ANVIONd/SYD TVINIYN ~ SHEILITILA 60ZT-ST-T0%
00" 8E€°2ZLT'T ALIDINIDITHA - SHILITILN 8022-ST-TO0¥
00" Lg LE INIVA INIHIINDE - SIOVILNOD £0ZZ-ST-T0%
00" 95°L88 % NUYNZINIYWN STIDIII0 HAILVILSINIHAIY LA **
00" 8T Z6L SHDIAVES YHHIO - IDVALNOD TLZZ-0TI-T0%
00" T0°2%9 SNOILVDINMWHODATAL L022-0T-TO0%
00- €€ €87 INIVH INIWAINDHE - SIOVILNOD £02Z-0T-T0%
00° TSTLI6'T AIDYNYH ALNACD LdAA* x
00" 85° €8T SNOIIVDINOWHODETAL L0ZZ-80-T0%
00" 00°50¢€ SHEAOTANE - TIHATIL 5022-80-10%
00" oL"8ze INIVW INZWIINOT - SIOVIINOD £€022-80-T0%
00" ST ICT TINS TIDIHIA - SHITIANS 2022-80-I0%
00" £L°8€6 ONINOZ #® ONINNVId LIdHAx *
00- 00°000°S SHDIAYES TYNOISSHIOEd - IDVIINOD ZLZZ-S0-10%
00" 00°STE’T YANNOZ AIINOAWWOD WNXY - IDVIINOD €¥22-50-T0%
00" 00" %P %02 IT/d0¥3 ~SNNIWEId HONVINSNI UTHILO ZITZ-S0-TO0%
00" ¥6°¥SC SNOIIYDINNWAODITIL L0ZZ-5S0-1I0%
00" 00°00% SONICIING/ANYT A0 INTH ¥0Z2Z-50-T0%
00- ¥8°Z9T SHIDIHAA - SYIVAEY ¥ EDONYNAINIVH T022-S0-10%
00" 0L TE9 SHIAYIVS ¥HHLO LOTZ~S0-10%
00" 8% 806 'TTE NOISSTWWOD AINNOD LIJaA %+
00" TL 9TE'ETY aNQd TEEINED TYLOLx =
00" LL T66°'869 #x TYLOL QNYED =x#
SIIATUD S1IgIA

1Z0Z/8T/2 OL 1T20Z/S/T WO¥A

QHINTIG

SNDEHD

NOIILNHEgI¥ELSIA

6€CET L

iz/81/T

:93ed



00"
00~

027991
297 9%%

DNINVHTD - SHITAANS
NALS/TTING-SYTYAES ¥ HONYNIINIYIA

022Z-%2-10%
STZZ-%C-T0¥



00" 8%°9L AANIOLLY IdE0x *

00" 06°62 SEDIAYES WHHIO - LOVIINOD TLZZ-S5-T0¥
00" 00°0ST ’ ONINIVIL HIXOTAHH 992Z~-95-T0%
00 L 6TT FDIAA0 TYIEANED - SIAITIANS 61ZT-SS-T07
00" 8L°58¢2 SNOTILYDINOWWODHETHL L0ZZ-95-T0%
00" S6°%LE INIYW INZWIINOH - SIDWLINOD €022-95-T0%
00- S€°0%6 ININLEVAAA EIONYNIA LAdTdx+
00~ 66°LSC NILS/QIING-SUIVATL ¥ TONYNTLNTVA STZZT-£5-10%
00° 26" 91T YHIYM - SHILITIIN 0TCZT-€5-TO0%
00° 00°5¢ ANYIO¥d/SYD TVIALYN - SEILITILA 6022-€5-10%
00- 08" S¥%T ALIDI¥LOETE - SEILITILL 802Z-£9-T0%
00- TLS8Ss dIVd ALNNOD IAHT » »
00" 7S TI9L'T SHOTAYES TYNOISSHIOEd - IDVILNOD CLTZ-0S5-T0%
00~ 00°00€’€ SEDIA¥ES YHEHLO - IDVEINOD TLZZ-05-TO%
00° 00°S88°6%1T IT/d0¥3-SHOTWIEd HONVIONSNI ATHLO CTZZ-0S-T0%
00" Tz 152°¢ SNOILVDINOWWODEIHL L0ZZ-0S5-T0%
00" LT°CTIS INIVA INZWAINDT - SIOVALNOD €02Z-0S5-T0%
00-° €8°050°L 1304 FTDIHIEA - SHITIANS Z02Z-05-T07
00° 9L°09L'99T AATIIHS ALNAOD LAAQ* x
00~ 6T LOT SNOT.LYD INQWWOD A TH.L L0TZ-6%-TO0%
00~ 6T LOT NOIIVILSININAY INVID LATdx *
00" S6° 7T SEDIA¥ES ¥AHLO - LOYNLNOD TLZZ-0%-T07%
00" 00°LLS SNOILYDINNWHODHETIEL LOZZ-07~-TO0%
00- LETT INIVA INTFWGINDE - SIOVILNOD €022-0%-10%
00" 8L°0ST TENE FIDIHIA -~ SHITAENS 20TC-0%-T10%
00- 0T %58 FOSSASSY ALNNOD recle Xy
00" 80°06¢ NILS/ATING-SYIVAEE ® FAONUNILNIVH STCT-LE-TO¥
00" €6°9¢C¢ ANVAOEd /SYD IVEALYN - SEILITIIN 602C-LE-TO¥
00-° S5°20¢ ALIDIVLOATH - SHAILITILO 80CC-LE-TOF
00" €6° 791 SNOILVYDINQWHODITAL LOZZ-LE-TO¥
00° 67" %80'T INTVH JALNED YOINIS ALYYIYOW LAEdx+
00" 8% FLE N¥LS/ATINE-SATYEHE 3 HAONYNILNIVH STZC-9€-T0%
00° 80°LTIT YAIYM - SHEILITILIO 0TZZ-9€-T0%
00" €ET°SLT ANVAOEd/SYD TYINLYN - SHILITIIN 60ZZ-9€-TO07%
00- £¥ 9C¢t ALIDIELOATH - SHILITIIN 802Z-9€-10%
00° 8% °2sZ SNOILYOINAWWODHTHL L0ZTZ-9€~T0%
00" 09°S¥%€’T ANIVW JEINID JOINHS VIDNV.ISH IITT* +
00- 06°6¢2 SEDIAYAS ¥YHHLO - LOVILNOD TLZZ-0E-T0%
00~ 00°5¢ SHHAL/SANA/ SNOIIATEISENS 692C-0€-T0%
00" LB VES SNOILYD INNWWODHETHL L022Z-0€-TO0¥
00 TETIPY INIVW INTFWAINDT - SIDOVALNOD €02Z-0€-T0%
00" 0% 489 1304 FTIIHEA - SEITTAANS 20eCZ-0€-T0%
00- IS 96T'T TINSTALL ALNODOD prcicier ey
00° 68°50¢ QILS/ATING~-SATVARY B HAONYNIINIVH STCT-LT~TO¥
00° 91" €6 YILYM ~ SHALLITIIA 0TZZ-LZ-T0%
oo- 9€°008 ANVJO¥d/SYD TYANLYN - SHILITILA 60C2-LZ~-TO¥
00° TS €87 ALIDIELOATE - SHEILITILN 80CT-LZ-TO%
00" €¢°99 SNOILLVOINONWWOD A TEL LOCTZ-LT-TO0%
00" ST 6€%'T INIVH JAINAD ¥OINIS ATVYNIVINAOW LAHO * *
SLITHEID SLIgAq

T20Z/8T/Z OL 12Z0Z/S/T WO¥d CIINI¥A SADITHD NOILNgI¥YLSIA 6E€TET L 1Z/81/C :e3RQ



00"

00°

1]

95°506°0T

HONYNALNIVA ® SNOILYIEdO

IdIA*

SNOILYD INQWKODHTHL

LQCT-95-TO0¥



00- I6°L30°€ aiA € IDIALSIA TYLOL+ *

00" 69°9ST ALIDIVLDETE - SHILITILO 80CZ-T6~L0¥
00° T Vel SNOTILVDINNWNODETHL L02Z-16-L0%
00~ T6°6%¢ INZWLOTIVY H¥Id HLVLIS prcicie ey
00-" T6°6%¢ GdA T IDI¥LSIA TYLOL » »
00- 86°€9¢€ ANVA0Id /SYD TVINIYN - SHETLITIIN 6022-16-90%
00" £€7°09T ALIDTALDATE - SHILITILA 8022-16-90%
00~ LS°Z1C SNOIIYDINNWHNODETHL L02Z-T6-90%
00" 9% LOS THAS ATOIHAA - SHITAANS c0ce-16-90%
00~ 42 224N INEWLOTIVY HJId FIVIS LATAx *
co- AR 444N adp 2 IDI¥LSIA TELOL x
00" ST 67% YHIVM - SHILITILO 0TZZ-T6~S0%
00" v1°953 ANVIOUd/SVD TIVANIYN - SEILITIIA 60TC-T6-S07
00- 8% L0€E ALTDIFLOATE - SHILITILL 80CZ-16-S0%
0c- SE°¥89 SNOTLYD INQWAODETIL L0C2-T6-90%
00" €T LoS TENd HTOIHIEA - SHITIIANS 2022-16-90%
00° € v0s‘e INIWLOTIV HYIJ HIVLS IIHT* »
00-° Y€ V052 adn ¢ IDI¥LSIA TELOL + +
00- 0T 98T FHIVM - SHEILITILO 0TZZ-19-20%
00" c0 cezL ANVAONd /SYD TYINLYN - SHILITLIA 6022-19-20%
00" cz 806 dOHS QU0¥ ALNNOD LJHA*+
00~ 66°666"% SHIDIHDEA -~ OD 8192-09-20%
00" 7T 6SL'6€E AYANTHOVN ® INFWAINOH - 0D LTSZ-09-20%
00" ST ¥PP’S SHDIAYHES TYNOISSHIONd - IOIVELNOD CLTZT-09-20%
00- £€9°892°¢T SADATHA/SXYMAYOR ¥SCT-09-20%
00~ IV LST'T SAYMAYOY - SYUIVIHEY ® FONYNIILNIVI €£922-09-20%
00° €€°600°L AYANTHOVH-SIIVATT ® HONVYNAINIYR ¥Y¥ZZ-09-20%
00° 6L°€50°T SKECAINN - SHEITIANS 9€TT-09-20%
co- TLTOEC d0I440 IVIENED - SHITA4NS 6122-09-20%
00" ¥Z°102°T SNOILVYD INNWNODHETHL L022-09-20%
00~ LS 9LT'T Tand FIDIHIA - SHITIANS 20TT-09-207%
00~ 80°STO0'T SHTOTHHA - SUIYAEY 2 EONYNIAINIVH T0Z2-0%-20%
00" LT 9TS 9L INANLIVIHA d¥0d ALNAOD LI » %
00- 6E°¥ZY LL aNna gvod TEIOLx »
00° Z9°0¢€ SNOTLYOINAWWODITHL L0ZZ-06-T0%
00" T9°0¢ F2anc ILvdgodd IIHAx
00~ £S°0%T YAIYM - SEILITILO 0TZZ-28-TO0%
00" 89°09¢ ANVAONd /S¥D TVINI¥N - SATLLITILA 6022-28-10%
00° 8L"0zZ¢E ALIDI¥LOATA - SHETILITILO 80¢Z-28-T0%
00" L0°S8% SNOTILYD INNWHODETEL LOTZT-C8-T0%
00" Lgro0¢ee TENd HTOIHAA - SdITAANS z0ZT-28-10%
00~ €V LES'T SEDIAYES TYNINY IAHAx+
00~ 06799 SWHOQAING - SHITAANS 9€CC-99-T0%
00- 9€°TILO'OT SHOIAEHS II - LDYVALNOD £IZZ-99-10%
00~ ST gLE SNOILVD INOWWODETHL L0OZZ-539-T0%
00" YL S6¢ TaNd JATOIHIA - SHITAANS 20CT-599-T0%
SLIATID SLIFHT

1202/81/Z OL TZ0Z/S/Z WO¥d CIINI¥A SMDHEHD NOILQNdIYVYLSIA 6€ ET L Tz/81T/T :e3ea



co- 90°98¢ TENA JTOIHIA - SIITAANS c0TC-T6-80%
00- I6°L90°€ INIWLOTIY FdId FLIVLS LIAA» »



00" 8% 9L SNOILYOINAWWODATHL L0OZZ-E£L-0T%
00" Lo-zg TENE IIOIHAA - SEITAdANS coge-gL-0Cy
00- 557801 DNIYOLINCH ALINAWWOD LI *
00" S0°6LT SNOILVOINAWWNODITHL L0zZ-0L-02Z¥
00~ vE€ €Sz’ TYOIQIN HLVWNI ELIZ-0L-0T2%
00- IT°SSS €L SEHLVYHNI A0 IO CLTZ-0L-02%
00- 05°.80°9L ZAYD HIVANI LI0dY IATT* »
00- S8°6TT’C8 aNNA TIVD ITLOL + +
00" 81799 YALYVM - SIILITILIN 0TZZ-T6-81%
00" EA AR XA ANVIOId/SYD TVINIVN - SHILITILA 602Z-16-81%
00" ¥L 69 ALIDIVLOATE - SHILITIILIN 80CZ-16-81¥%
00" 0€ €9 SNOILYOINOWHODITAL L0TZ-T6-81%
00" 897208 INANLOTIVY JIId HZILVLS IIHEA» *
00" 897208 QLA 9 IDI¥LSIA TYLOL * +
00° 61°88C SEOIA¥AS ¥THLO - LOVALINOD TLTZT-T6-ET%
00" TZ°C%S MILS/ATING-SYIVAEE % HONYNIINIVH STTZ-16-€1%
00° £€6°2CT YILYM - SHILITILN 0TZZ-T6-€1%
00" 0€°607 ANV4OUd /SVD TYVENLYN - SHILITIILN 60CT-T6-€T¥
00" 807 €ELT ALIDTELDFETH - SHILITIIN 80Z2-T6-€1%
00" g€ 0LS SNOTLVOINQWWODHTHL LOZZ-T6-€T7
60" 88°60L T30d HIDIHIA - SAITddNS c0CZ-16-€1%
00" L6 STZ € INEWLOTIVY HdId HIVIS LIEAx *
00~ L6 STT’E NIRAY INIWILIVAEG HJIL TVLOL* +
00~ 7LTTP9 0T YIVd ALNQOD IV SHTYS TYHINY 6¥TT-€S-CT%
[e]e R FLTTIP9 0T YIVd ALNNOD EIHd* *
00" YL TF9 0T YIS ALNOOD TELOL * »
00° 00°SZT’'T¢E SHTIOIHDHEA - 0D 8T92Z-2T6-11%
00" LT SL SEDIAEAS ¥EHLO - LOTYAINOD TLZC~C6-TIV
00~ IL"S68°T SETOIHIA - SYIVAIE ® HONVYNILNIVRW T0ZT-26~T1¥
00° 86°560°%¢€ XYL HESIOXHE FYIA $%/1 IIIA » +
00~ 86°960°'v¢ aNNE NOILIDELO¥E HILJI ALNNOD TYLOL * »
00" 00"00% ONINIVAL IZA0TIWI 992¢2-05-01%
00° 86" 91% dTdId -~ SHEITA4ANS ¢TTZ-05-01%
60" 867918 JAIIIHS ALNAOD LIAA* *
00" 867918 aNQd NOIIDALO¥d "dH°1 TELOL+ =
00~ 99°L%T ALIDTELOETH - SIILIAILN 80TZ-16-60%
00~ €97 CLT SNOILYOINONWWODATHL LOZZ-16-607%
00" 6T°0C¢ INIWLOTTIV HIId HIYLS LI > >
00" 61°0cC¢ ain 7 LOIYULSICA TELOL+ +
G0~ 00°500°T ALIAYS - SALIJANS 8YCZ-16-80¥
00" T6°£CS YILYM - SHILITIIN 0TZZ-16-80%
00~ TE'0%89 ANVA0OIE/SYD TVANIYN - SEILITILA 60Z2C-16-80%
00- ¥y 96€ ALIDIELOETE - SHILITILIO 80CZ-16-807%
00" 6T°96T SNOILYOINNWNODETIL L0ZZ2-16-80%
SLITIID SLIIa

T20Z/8T/Z Ol 1T0Z/S/T WO¥A CHININ SNDIHD

NOILNEIAILSIA

6€ET L Tz/8T/z :93eQ



00"

08°€26’S

SYHANOSI¥d A0 NOIIVILYOJSNVIL

LAdd* +




00~ 00" %% LNYED HOILSNLC ITINIANLD I¥LOL* *
00" €g-€es8 SHOIAYHES ¥YIHLC - LOTELNOD TLTZ~LS-TE9
00~ €E€°€E8 WYID0¥d S NIEZILID JOINES LAFA >
00- €€ €E8 aNNd S NEZILID JOINIS TYLOL * »
00° 70 S9L NIIS/AIING-SYIVATE ¥ FONYNALNTIVH STZT-L8-0€9
00-° 70°S9L DINITO TIVOICEN VZNVIHISH ircicia Py
00" 0 S9L OINITO VZNYIHAdSH TELOL x »
00" 88°99S°¢€ IDNALSNODTY/ NOIIDNTLSNOD A¥Od~0D €T9Z-96~-TZ9
00" SO ¥TL'Z SINIWIAQEAWLI 3 SONIAIIING - 0D TI9Z-96-TZ9
00° €6°6LT 9 XL SI4IFDIY SSO¥H AVILAO TYLIAVD LI+
00-° €6°6LT79 XL SI4IEDHAY SSO¥D AVILAO FIVLIAYD TELOL * +
00-° 007009 dIN0E/XIJ/NINIL 81Z22-%6-029
00~ 80°€IT’'T NILS/ATING-SATIVIAE 3 HONYNIINIVIA STZZ-76-029
00~ 80°€TL'Z XL SIAIHDHY SSO0¥YD FTIALDNYLSYIINT ©LdEQx+
00~ 80°€IL’'T LED FAOLOAYLSYAANT ALNAOD TYILOL + +
00 0" %02 IOVIOLS ENIHDVYW ONIIOA 80€2-0C-2T9
00" 8%°61C INIVA INZHIINOE - SIOVILNOD €02¢-0Z-219
00" 0s €y TEETO ALNOOD LIHA*
00° 0s-€Cv N0 INFWAINOIT S A¥HTD TYILOL+ 5
00" S6°¥%T SHOIA¥AS ¥HHIO - LIVILINOD TLZT-0%~-0T9
00° ST-2ZS¢ INIVA INSHAINOT - SIDVALNOD £02Z-0%-0T9
00" 0T L9¢E JOSSESSY ALNAOD LA *
00- 0T L9¢E aNNd NOTIVATVA ALIAJOCEI TYLOL * +
o]0 €6 21T STYITALYW HOVHAALOO - SIITIAANS LSTZT-S€-909
00~ Z6°CIT WYED0dd IMa LdAd» »
co- 26°CIT TTOOHDS Ima TYLOL
00- 98°5% SNOILYO INQWNODHETHL L0TT-TC-509
00" 987 L% THNA TTIDIHIAA - SHITIANS c022-22-509
00-° CL'E6 TTAL INTID I¥00T IMT LI * »
00- ZL €6 aNQg WYID0¥d IMA TYLOL*+
00" 207098 ALZAYS - SHITFANS 8%2C-£8-%09
00" 00°9LT ALIDIEIDEATH - SHEILITILA 802Z-£8-%09
00" STTLLT SNOILVDINNWAODHTHL LOZZ-£8-%09
00" L1699 1304 FIDIHIA - SHITAANS z0CT~€8-%09
00" I7°28%°'1 XYL SHWH/SNOILVDINOWWNOD LAHT* +
0c- I¥°2T8% T ANOAE ISNEIZT TIAID TELOL * »
0G- 00°090°¢€ SHOTAYAS TYNOISSHIOYd - IDVHLNOD TLTZ-YL-0C¥
00" 0L 99% SNOTLVYD INAWWOD HTH.L LOTZ-7L-0T%
00" 0T L6E’T Ta0d HTIOIHIEA - SHITAANS 20ZZ-%L-0C%
SLIJIAD SLIgEA

T20Z/8T/Z OL TZ0Z/S/T WO¥d dEINIIA SADTHD

NOILNé4g

I¥ LS IdA 6ETETL tz/8T/2T

z83ed



00" 00" %% DNINIVAL FHX0TAWA 9922-L9-9€9
0c- 00" %% TZAL INVIED HOILSNL HIINJANL dARD LA Ed* ¥



00"
00°

00°
00°

00"
00°
00"
00°
60"

00"
00"
00"
00"

00~

00"

00°
co-

LL"ZTE6°869

*x SIYLOL JMNVE «=

LL T66°869 ANVE Sn TONYY
00°02T DNINIVIEL JZAOTINH 9922-598-TT6
00°02T INYED DNINIVEL vAd LA
SL™86L ODNINVEID - SdITddNS 022Z-08-116
9¢°€%¢ HOIAA0 TYHHANAD - SHITIANS 6122-08-TT6
717069 NALS/ATING-SYIVAEY ¥ IONUNILINIVA STZZ-08-116
£€S°6€T ANVI0Id /S¥D TYEALYN - SETILITIILIA 6022-08-TT6
61°8€C'T ALIDIELDATA - SHILITILN 802Z-08-T16
6L°698 SNOILVYOINNWWODATHL L0ZZ-08-T16
8T L¥YT INIVA INIWNGINDT ~ SIIOVILNOD £€022-08-T16
€T ¥C TENA FIDIHIA - SHITAANS 2022-08-T16
8Z TIST'% HIINID HOLYASIA-TII6 ircrcied
8Z TLZ 'V aNNd TT6-ADNIADIIWA IELOL #
ZTI " T9T'1S HAO¥ARWI DAT1d NIWAY DL TPZed 05992-65-€08
ZT I9T'TS SLOHAL0dEd FAILVISIDIET LAETx *
ZI I9T’'1S SNOILVI¥O¥ddY HATIVISIOET IVLOL* »
PT€8T SNOILVO INONWODHTHL L0ZZ-60-069
T 8S¢C INIVH INAWAINOE - SIOVILNOD €022-60-069
[4° R4 1and HIDIHAA - SHITAANS ¢02Z-60-069
LT E€8% LTId aNIM preicle
LT €8% INVED FONATOIA JILSHWOA TVLOL * +
8% 9L SNOILYOINNWWODATAL LOTZ-L0-GL9
09°%9¢ INIVA INIZNAINDT - SIDOVILNOD €022C-L0-5LS
80°TPE DNISSHIAAY IVINT LIAT > *
80°T¥%E ONISSTIAAY TVANT AYLOL * »
SLIATID SIIgHd
TZ0Z/8T/T OL IZ0Z/S/T WO¥A QIINIEd SMOTHD NOILINdgI3d3lLsSIda 6EET L iz/8T/T :e3eQ



Agenda Item
No. 10



Agenda Item
No. 11-4



TORRANCE COUNTY

RESOLUTION # 2021-
ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVAL OF THE FY2020 AUDIT

WHEREAS, Torrance County is required by statute to contract with an independent auditor to
perform the required annual audit or agreed upon procedures for Fiscal Year 2020 (FY2020); and,

WHEREAS, the Torrance County Board of County Commission has directed the accomplishment of
the audit for FY2020 be completed; and,

WHEREAS, this audit has been completed and presented to the Torrance County Board of
County Commission per the February 18, 2021, Letter from the Statue Auditor authorizing release of the
FY2020 audit; and, '

WHEREAS, NMAC 2.2.2.10 (M) (4) provides in pertinent part that “Once the audit report is
officially released to the agency by the state auditor (by a release letter) and the required waiting period of .
five calendar days has passed, unless waived by the agency in writing, the audit report shall be presented
by the IPA, to a quorum of the governing authority of the agency at a meeting held in accordance with the
Open Meetings Act, if applicable.” :

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Torrance County Board of County
Commissioners does hereby accept and approve the completed audit report and findings as indicated within
this document.

ACCEPTED AND APPROVED this 24" day of February 2021, in regular session by the Torrance
County Board of County Commissioners, at Estancia, Torrance County, New Mexico.

Approved as to Form only:

Kevin McCall, District 1

John M. Butrick
County Attorney

Ryan Schwebach, District 2
Attest:

County Clerk LeRoy M. Candelaria, District 3



Agenda Item

No. 11-B



TORRANCE COUNTY RESOLUTION# 2021-

Budget Increase
WHEREAS, the Torrance County Commission in regular session on Wednesday, February 24th, 2021, did propose to authorize Budget
Increases in the FY 2020-2021 Budget, and

WHEREAS, Budget Increases require authorization from the Department of Finance and Administration, and
WHEREAS, we request authorization for the following Budget Increases: (See Schedule A}

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, we respectfully request approval for the attached Increases in the FY 2020-2021 budget
from the Department of Finance and Administration.

DONE at Estancia, New Mexico
Torrance County this 24th day of

February 2021.

Approved as to Form only: ' Torrance County Board of Commissioners
John Butrick Kevin McCall, District 1

County Attorney :

Attest:

Ryan Schwebach, District 2

Yvonne Otero
Torrance County Clerk

LeRoy M. Candelaria, District 3

Vote Record yes no ‘abstaln absent
Kevin McCall yes no - abstain absent
Ryan Schwebach yes no abstain absent

Leroy M. Candelaria

wWCE ¢g

»

i

£ST 1909
Yew menes



00°L£6°8€ SBDIYSIA-0D 819 60 (069 | 00'Ze6'8E $ OsIN 0.1 | 00 069 aouefeg pund 9JUI[OIA DsBWod

00'zZLL'0Z 2O 612 ¥g |069 ] 00'ZLL'0C $ 12 Ad10eRU0D AQ GioL | 00 069 jueio ~SOUSIOIA dlisswiod
[esauan-sarddng

00°000°0¢ SIVINISS [eUOISS9J0Id| 212 09 |Zov | 000000 $ uig/L pIg 189 109t | GO0 484 1¥9 pecy

-S19BJIU0D

007000'2 Arunyepny /19 09 | 2o¥ | 00°000°Z $ UIg/1 PIC 14D 1091 [ 00 (44,4 189 PEOY
13 Juawdinb3-0d

00°09.'6€ Assuryosen 219 09 | zov | 00°09L'6E $ spunysy oLel Aco cov spunjey peoy

3 wawdinb3-od

uondiiasaq;

120Z ‘vz faenugad

V 3[npayog

Jajsueld ]
~1.Z0zZ uonnjosay
Afjunog aosuelio]

OOﬂ%N:

G061 sy




Agenda Item
No. 11-C




TORRANCE COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSONERS
RESOLUTION NO. R 2021-

ACCEPTANCE OF AGREEMENT FOR CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT
TORRANCE COUNTY EMERGENCY RESPONSE VEHICLES
20-E3419

WHEREAS, in the Laws of 2020, Chapter 81, Section 35, Paragraph 432; the
Legislature made an appropriation to the Department of Finance and Administration through the
Local Government Division, hereinafter called “DFA/LGD,” to make available to Torrance
County, hereinafter called the “Grantee,” and

WHEREAS, the DFA/LGD is granting to Grantee funding not to exceed Two Hundred
Twenty Five Thousand Dollars ($225,000.00) to purchase and equip emergency medical
response vehicles for the Torrance County volunteer fire department in Torrance County, and

WHEREAS, the DFA/LGD has submitted agreement 20-E3419 to grantee for
acceptance; and A

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body of TORRANCE
COUNTY that Torrance County agrees to the terms set forth in the agreement and Janice Y.
Barela, County Manager, or successor, or hier alternate, Philip Tenorio, Deputy County Manager,
or successor, is authorized on behalf of the County to sign the Grant Agreement for this project,
act as the project contact, and serve as the point of contact to sign all other documents necessary
to fulfill the Grant Agreement and requirements.

DONE THIS 24" DAY OF February, 2021.

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

County Attorney Date Ryan Schwebach, Chair

Kevin McCall, Vice Chair

LeRoy Candelaria, Member
ATTEST:

Yvonne Otero, County Clerk
Date:




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
FUND 93100 CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this day of ,20___,byand
between the Department of Finance and Administration, State of New Mexico, acting through the Local _
Government Division, Bataan Memorial Building, Room 202, Santa Fe, New Mexico, 87501, hereinafter called
the "Department” or abbreviation such as "DFA/LGD", and the Torrance County, hereinafter called the
"Grantee." This Agreement shall be effective as of the date it is executed by the Department.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, in the Laws of 2020, Chapter 81, Section 72, Para. 59, the Legislature made an appropriation
to the Department, funds from which the Department is making available to the Grantee pursuant to this
Agreement; and '

WHEREAS, the Department is granting to Grantee, and the Grantee is accepting the grant of, funds from
this appropriation, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 9-6-5 and 9-6-5.1 NMSA 1978, the Secretary of the Department of
Finance and Administration has the power and the authority to (i) maintain long-range estimates and plans for
capital projects and develop standards for measuring the need for, and utility of, proposed projects; (ii) contract
for, receive and utilize any grants or other financial assistance made available by the United States government
or by any other source, public or private; (iii) provide planning and funding assistance to units of local
government, council of government organizations, Indian tribal governments situated within New Mexico, and to
nonprofit entities having for their purpose local, regional or community betterment; (iv) incident to any such
programs, may enter into contracts and agreements with such units of local government, council of government
organizations, Indian tribal governments, nonprofit entities and the federal government; and (v) delegate such
authority to the Local Government Division as being necessary and appropriate to such delegation;

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations contained herein, the
parties hereby mutually agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, AMOUNT OF GRANT AND REVERSION DATE
A. The project that is the subject of this Agreement is described as follows:

20-E3419 $225.,000.00 Appropriation Reversion Date: 30-JUN-22

Laws of 2020, Chapter 81, Section 72, Paragraph 59, Two Hundred Twenty Five Thousand Dollars
($225,000.00) to purchase and equip emergency medical response vehicles for the Torrance county
volunteer fire department in Torrance county;

Page | of 14



The Grantee's total reimbursements shall not exceed Two Hundred Twenty Five Thousand Dollars
($225,000.00) (the "Appropriation Amount") minus the allocation for Art in Public Places ("AIPP amount")
if applicable, Zero Dollars ($0.00), which equals Two Hundred Twenty Five Thousand Dollars
(5225,000.00) (the "Adjusted Appropriation Amount").

In the event of a conflict among the Appropriation Amount, the Reversion Date, as defined herein and/or the
purpose of the Project, as set forth in this Agreement, and the corresponding appropriation language in the laws
cited above in this Article I (A), the language of the laws cited herein shall control.

This project is referred to throughout the remainder of this Agreement as the "Project"; the information
contained in Article I (A) is referred to collectively throughout the remainder of this Agreement as the
"Project Description". The Grantee shall reference the Project's number in all correspondence with and
submissions to the Department concerning the Project, including, but not limited to, Requests for Payment
and reports. :

ARTICLE II. LIMITATION ON DEPARTMENT'S OBLIGATION TO MAKE GRANT
DISBURSEMENT TO GRANTEE

A. Upon the Effective Date of this Agreement, for permissible purposes within the scope of the Project
Description, the Grantee shall only be reimbursed monies for which the Department has issued and the Grantee
has received a Notice of Department's Obligation to Reimburse 2 Grantee (hereinafter referred to as "Notice of
Obligation"). This Grant Agreement and the disbursement of any and all amounts of the above referenced
Adjusted Appropriation Amount are expressly conditioned upon the following:
(i) Irrespective of any Notice of Obligation, the Grantee's expenditures shall be made on or before the Reversion

Date and, if applicable, an Early Termination Date (i.e., the goods have been delivered and accepted or the title to

the goods has been transferred to the Grantee and/or the services have been rendered for the Grantee); and

(i) The total amount received by the Grantee shall not exceed the lesser of: (a) the Adjusted Appropriation Amount
identified in Article I(A) herein or (b) the total of all amounts stated in the Notice(s) of Obligation evidencing that
the Department has received and accepted the Grantee's Third Party Obligation(s), as defined in subparagraph iii

of this Article II(A); and

(i) The Grantee's expenditures were made pursuant to the State Procurement Code and execution of binding written

obligations or purchase orders with third party contractors or vendors for the provision of services, including
professional services, or the purchase of tangible personal property and real property for the Project, hereinafter
referred to as "Third Party Obligations"; and

(iv) The Grantee's submittal of timely Requests for Payment in accordance with the procedures set forth in Article IX

of this Agreement; and

(v) In the event that capital assets acquired with Project funds are to be sold, leased, or licensed to or operated by a
private entity, th¢ sale, lease, license, or operating agreement:

a. must be approved by the applicable oversight entity (if any) in accordance with law; or

b. if no oversight entity is required to approve of the transaction, the Department must approve the transaction as

complying with law.
Prior to the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement being approved pursuant to Articles II(A)(v)(a) and
II(A)(v)(b) herein, the Department may, in its sole and absolute discretion and unless inconsistent with New

Mexico State Board of Finance imposed conditions, reimburse the Grantee for necessary expenditures incurred to

develop the Project sufficiently to make the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement commercially feasible,
such as plan and design expenditures; and

[1] The ATPP amount is "an amount of money equal to one percent or two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000), whichever is less, of the amount of money appropriated for new
construction or any major renovation exceeding one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000)." Section 13-4A-4 NMSA 1978.

[2] "Reimburse" as used throughout this Agresment includes Department payments to the Grantee for invoices received, but not yet paid, by the Grantee from a third party contractor or

vendor, if the invoices comply with the provisions of this Agreement and are a valid liability of the Grantee.

Page 2 of 14



(vi) The Grantee's submission of documentation of all Third Party Obligations and amendments thereto (including
terminations) to the Department and the Department's issuance and the Grantee's receiving of a Notice of
Obligation for a particular amount in accordance with the terms of this Agreement shall be governed by the

following:

a. The Grantee shall submit to the Department one copy of all Third Party Obligations and amendments thereto
(including terminations) as soon as possible after execution by the Third Party but prior to execution by the
Grantee.

b. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that if it chooses to enter into a Third Party Obligation prior to receiving a
Notice of Obligation that covers the expenditure, it is solely responsible for such obligations.

c. The Department may, in its sole and absolute discretion, issue to Grantee a Notice of Obligation for the
particular amount of that Third Party Obligation that only obligates the Department to reimburse Grantee's
expenditures made on or before the Reversion Date or an Early Termination Date. The current Notice of
Obligation form is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 2.

d. The date the Department signs the Notice of Obligation is the date that the Department's Notice of Obligation

is effective. After that date, the Grantee is authorized to budget the particular amount set forth in the Notice
of Obligation, execute the Third Party Obligation and request the Third Party to begin work. Payment for any
work performed or goods received prior to the effective date of the Notice of Obligation is wholly and solely
the obligation of the Grantee.

B. The Grantee shall implement, in all respects, the Project. The Grantee shall provide all necessary qualified
personnel, material, and facilities to implement the Project. The Grantee shall finance its share (if any) of the
costs of the Project, including all Project overruns.

C. Project funds shall not be used for purposes other than those specified in the Project Description.

D. Unless specifically allowed by law, Project funds cannot be used to reimburse Grantee for indirect Project costs.

ARTICLE ITI. NOTICE PROVISIONS AND GRANTEE AND DEPARTMENT
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES

Whenever written notices, including written decisions, are to be given or received, related to this
Agreement, the following provisions shall apply.

The Grantee designates the person(s) listed below, or their successor as their official
representative(s) concerning all matters related to this Agreement.

Grantee Torrance County

Name Janice Barela

Title County Manager

Address P. O. Box 48, Estancia, NM 87016
Email jbarela@tcnm.us

Telephone 505-544-4703

The Grantee designates the person(s) listed below, or their successor, as their Fiscal Officer or Fiscal
Agent concerning all matters related to this Agreement.

Grantee Torrance County

Name Janice Barela

Title County Manager

Address P. O. Box 48, Estancia, NM 87016
Email jbarela@tcnm.us

Telephone 505-544-4703

Page 3 of 14



The Department designates the persons listed below, or their successors, as Points of Contact for
matters related to this Agreement.

Department  DFA/Local Government Division

Name Maria Urban

Title Project Manager

Address Bataan Memorial Bldg. Rm 202, Santa Fe, NM 87501
Email maria.urban(@state.nm.us

Telephone 505-827-8061

The Grantee and the Department agree that either party shall send all notices, including written
decisions, related to this Agreement to the above named persons by email, or regular mail. In the case
of mailings, notices shall be deemed to have been given and received upon the date of the receiving
party's actual receipt or five calendar days after mailing, whichever shall first occur. In the case of
email transmissions, the notice shall be deemed to have been given and received on the date reflected
on the delivery receipt of email.

ARTICLE IV. REVERSION DATE, TERM, DEADLINE TO EXPEND FUNDS

A. As referenced in Article I (A), the applicable law establishes a date by which Project funds must be
expended by Grantee, which is referred to throughout the remainder of this Agreement as the "Reversion Date."
Upon being duly executed by both parties, this Agreement shall be effective as of the date of execution by the
Department. It shall terminate on June 30, 2022, the Reversion Date, unless Terminated Before Reversion Date
("Early Termination") pursuant to Article V herein.

B. The Project's funds must be expended on or before the Reversion Date and, if applicable, Early
Termination Date of this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, it is not sufficient for the Grantee to
encumber the Project funds on its books on or before the Project's Reversion Date or Early Termination Date.
Funds are expended and an expenditure has occurred as of the date that a particular quantity of goods are
delivered to and received by the Grantee or title to the goods is transferred to the Grantee and/or as of the date
particular services are rendered for the Grantee. Funds are not expended and an expenditure has not occurred
as of the date they are encumbered by the Grantee pursuant to a contract or purchase order with a third party.

ARTICLE V. EARLY TERMINATION

A. Early Termination Before Reversion Date Due to Completion of the Project or Complete Expenditure

of the Adjusted Appropriation or Violation of this Agreement

Early Termination includes:
(i) Termination due to completion of the Project before the Reversion Date; or

(ii) Termination due to complete expenditure of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount before the Reversion Date; or
(iii) Termination for violation of the terms of this Agreement; or

(iv) Termination for suspected mishandling of public funds, including but not limited to, fraud, waste, abuse, and
conflicts of interest.

Page 4 of 14



Either the Department or the Grantee may early terminate this Agreement prior to the Reversion Date by providing the
other party with a minimum of fifteen (15) days' advance, written notice of early termination. Grantee hereby waives any
rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the Department or the State of New Mexico in the event of

Early Termination of this Agreement by the Department pursuant to Article V (A).

B. Early Termination Before Reversion Date Due to Non-Appropriation

The terms of this Agreement are expressly made contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorization being
made by the Legislature of New Mexico for the performance of this Agreement. Throughout this Agreement the term
"non-appropriate” or "non-appropriation" includes the following actions by the New Mexico Legislature: deauthorization,
reauthorization or revocation of a prior authorization, The Legislature may choose to non-appropriate the Appropriation
referred to in Article I and, if that occurs, the Department shall carly terminate this Agreement for non-appropriation by
giving the Grantee written notice of such termination, and such termination shall be effective as of the effective date of
the law making the non-appropriation. The Department's decision as to whether sufficient appropriations or
authorizations are available shall be accepted by the Grantee and shall be final. Grantee hereby waives any rights to
assert an impairment of contract claim against the Department or the State of New Mexico in the event of Early
Termination of this Agreement by the Department pursuant to Article V (B).

C. Limitation on Department's Obligation to Make Grant Disbursements to Grantee in the Event
of Early Termination

In the event of Early Termination of this Agreement by either party, the Department's sole and absolute obligation to
reimburse the Grantee is expressly conditioned upon the limitations set forth Article 1L,

ARTICLE VI. SUSPENSION OF NEW OR FURTHER OBLIGATIONS

A. The Department may choose, in its sole and absolute discretion, to provide written notice to the Grantee to
suspend entering into new and further obligations. Upon the receipt of such written notice by the Grantee:

(i) The Grantee shall immediately suspend entering into new or further written obligations with third parties; and

(ii) The Department will éuspend the issuance of any new or further Notice of Obligation under this Agreement;
and :
(iii) The Department may direct the Grantee to implement a corrective action plan in accordance with Article
. VI (D) herein. '

- B. Inthe event of Suspension of this Agreement, the Department’s sole and absolute obligation to reimburse the
Grantee is expressly conditioned upon the limitations set forth in Article II herein.

C. A suspension of new or further obligations under this Agreement shall remain in effect unless or until the date the
Grantee receives written notice given by the Department informing the Grantee that the Suspension has been lifted or
that the Agreement has been Early Terminated in accordance with Article V herein. If the Suspension is lifted, the
Department will consider further requests for Notice of Obligation.

D. Corrective Action Plan in the Event of Suspension

In the event that the Department chooses, in its sole and absolute discretion to direct the Grantee to suspend entering
into new or further written obligations with third parties pursuant to Article VI (A), the Department may, but is not
obligated to, require the Grantee to develop and implement a written corrective action plan to remedy the grounds for the
Suspension. Such corrective action plan must be approved by the Department and be signed by the Grantee. Failure to
sign a corrective action plan or meet the terms and deadlines set forth in the signed cotrective action plan, is hereby
deemed a violation of the terms of this Agreement for purposes of Early Termination, Article V(A)(iii). The corrective
action plan is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other equitable or legal remedy, including but not limited to Early
Termination, :

Page 5 of 14



ARTICLE VII. AMENDMENT

- This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by instrument in writing duly executed by both the
parties hereto.

ARTICLE VIII. REPORTS

A. Database reporting

The Grantee shall report monthly Project activity by entering such Project information as the Department and the
Department of Finance and Administration may require, such information entered directly into a database maintained by
the Department of Finance and Administration (http://cpms.dfa.state.nm.us). Additionally, the Grantee shall certify on
the Request for Payment form (exhibit 1) that updates have been maintained and are current in the database. The
Grantee hereby acknowledges that failure to perform and/or certify updates into the database will delay or potentially
- jeopardize the reimbursement of funds. The Department shall give the Grantee with a minimum of thirty (30) days'
advance written notice of any changes to the information the Grantee is required to report.

Monthly reports shall be due on the last day of each month, beginning with the first full month following execution of
this Agreement by the Department and ending upon the submission of the final request for reimbursement for the
Project.

B. Requests for Additional Information/Project Inspection -
During the term of this Agreement and during the period of time during which the Grantee must maintain records
pursuant to Article VIII, the Department may: : '
(i) request such additional information regarding the Project as it deems necessary; and
(i) conduct, at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, onsite inspections of the Project. Grantee shall
respond to such requests for additional information within a reasonable period of time, as established by the Department.

ARTICLE IX. REQUEST FOR PAYMENT PROCEDURES AND DEADLINES

A. The Grantee shall request payment by submitting a Request for Payment, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 1.
Payment requests are subject to the following procedures:

(i) The Grantee must submit a Request for Payment; and _

(ii) Each Request for Payment must contain proof of payment by the Grantee or liabilities incurred by the Grantee
showing that the expenditures are valid or the liabilities incurred by the Grantee in the form of actual unpaid invoices
received by the Grantee for services rendered by a third party or items of tangible personal property received by the
Grantee for the implementation of the Project; provided, however, that the Grantee may be reimbursed for unpaid
liabilities only if the Department, in its sole and absolute discretion, agrees to do so and in accordance with any special
conditions imposed by the Department. '

(iii) In cases where the Grantee is submitting a Request for Payment to the Department based upon invoices
received, but not yet paid, by the Grantee from a third party contractor or vendor, if the invoices comply with the
provisions of this Agreement and are a valid liability of the Grantee, the Grantee shall make payment to those contractors
or vendors within five (5) business days from the date of receiving reimbursement from the Department or such shorter
period of time as the Department may prescribe in writing, The Grantee is required to certify to the Department proof of
payment to the third party contractor or vendor within ten (10) business days from the date of receiving reimbursement
from the Department. ‘

B. The Grantee must obligate 5% of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount within six months of the acceptance of the
grant agreement and must have expended no less than 85% of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount six months prior to
the reversion date.

Page 6 of 14



C. Deadlines
Requests for Payments shall be submitted by Grantee to the Department on the earlier of:

(i) Immediately as they are received by the Grantee'but at a minimum of thirty (30) days from when the
expenditure was incurred or liability of the Grantee was approved as evidenced by an unpaid invoice received
- by the Grantee from a third party contractor or vendor; or

(ii) July 15 of each year for all unreimbursed incurred during the previous fiscal year; or
(iii) Twenty (20) days from the date of Early Termination; or

(iv) Twenty (20) days from the reversion date.

D. The Grantee's failure to abide by the requirements set forth in Article II and Article IX herein will result in
the denial of its Request for Payment or will delay the processing of Requests for Payment. The Department has
the right to reject a payment request for the Project unless and until it is satisfied that the expenditures in the
Request for Payment are for permissible purposes within the meaning of the Project Description and that the
expenditures and the Grantee are otherwise in compliance with this Agreement, including but not limited to,
compliance with the reporting requirements and the requirements set forth in Article II herein to provide Third
Party Obligations and the Deadlines set forth in Article IX herein. The Department's ability to reject any Request
for Payment is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other legal or equitable remedy available to the Department
due to Grantee's violation of this Agreement,

ARTICLE X. PROJECT CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTION S; REPRESENTATIONS AND
WARRANTIES

A. The following general conditions and restrictions are applicable to the Project:

(i) The Project's funds must be spent in accordance with all applicable state laws, regulations, policies, and
guidelines, including, but not limited to, the State Procurement Code (or local procurement ordinance, where
applicable).

(i) The project must be implemented in accordance with the New Mexico Public Works Minimum Works Act,
Section 13-4-10 through 13-4-17 NMSA 1978, as applicable. Every contract or project in excess of sixty
thousand dollars ($60,000) that the Grantee is a party to for construction, alteration, demolition or repair or any
combination of these, including painting and decorating, of public buildings, public works or public roads and that
requires or involves the employment of mechanics, laborers or both shall contain a provision stating the
minimum wages and fringe benefits to be paid to various classes of laborers and mechanics, shall be based
upon the wages and benefits that will be determined by the New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions
to be prevailing for the corresponding classes of laborers and mechanics employed on contract work of a
similar nature in the locality. Further, every contract or project shall contain a stipulation that the contractor,
subcontractor, employer or a person acting as a contractor shall pay all mechanics and laborers employed on
the site of the project, unconditionally and not less often than once a week and without subsequent unlawful
deduction or rebate on any account, the full amounts accrued at time of payment computed at wage rates and
fringe benefit rates not less than those determined pursuant to Section 13-4-11 (B) NMSA 1978 to be the
prevailing wage rates and prevailing fringe benefit rates issued for the project.

(iif) The Project may only benefit private entities in accordance with applicable law, including, but not limited to,
Article IX, Section 14 of the Constitution of the State of New Mexico, "Anti-Donation Clause."

(iv) The Grantee shall not for a period of 10 years, from the date of this agreement convert any property acquired,
built, renovated, required, designed or developed with the Project's funds to uses other than those specified in
the Project Description without the Department's and the Board of Finance's express, advance written
approval, which may include requirement to reimburse the State for the cost of the project, transfer proceeds
from the disposition of property to the State, or otherwise provide consideration to the State.

Page 7 of 14



V)

The Grantee shall comply with all federal and state laws, rules and regulations pertaining to equal employment
opportunity. In accordance with all such laws, rules and regulations the Grantee agrees to assure that no person
shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, sexual preference, age or handicap, be excluded from
employment with Grantee, be excluded from participation in the Project, be denied benefits or otherwise be
subject to discrimination under, any activity performed under this Agreement. If Grantee is found to be not in
compliance with these requirements during the life of this Agreement, Grantee agrees to take appropriate steps -
to correct any deficiencies. The Grantee's failure to implement such appropriate steps within a reasonable time
constitutes grounds for terminating this Agreement.

. The Grantee hereby represents and warrants the following:

@
(i)

(iif)

(iv)
V)

(vi)

The Grantee has the legal authority to receive and expend the Project's funds.

This Agreement has been duly authorized by the Grantee, the person executing this Agreement has authority to
do so, and, once executed by the Grantee, this Agreement shall constitute a binding obligation of the Grantee,
enforceable according to its terms.

This Agreement and the Grantee's obligations hereunder do not conflict with any law or ordinance or resolution
applicable to the Grantee, the Grantee's charter (if applicable), or any judgment or decree to which the Grantee
is subject.

The Grantee has independently confirmed that the Project Descrlptlon including, but not limited to, the amount
and Reversion Date, is consistent with the underlying appropriation in law.

The Grantee's governing body has duly adopted or passed as an official act a resolution, motion, or similar
action authorizing the person identified as the official representatlve of the Grantee to sign the Agreement and
to sign Requests for Payment,

The Grantee shall abide by New Mexico laws regarding conflicts of interest, governmental conduct and
whistleblower protection. The Grantee specifically agrees that no officer or employee of the local jurisdiction or
its designees or agents, no member of the governing body, and no other public official of the locality who

- exercises any function or responsibility with respect to this Grant, during their tenure or for one year thereafter,

shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be
performed or goods to be received, pursuant to this Grant. Further, Grantee shall require all of its contractors to
incorporate in all subcontracts the language set forth in this paragraph prohibiting conflicts of interest.

(vii) No funds have been pald or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Grantee, to any person for influencing or

attempting to influence an officer or employee of this or any agency or body in connection with the awarding of
any Third Party Obligation and that the Grantee shall require certifying language prohibiting lobbying to be '
included in the award documents for all subawards, including subcontracts, loans and cooperative agreements,
All subrecipients shall be required to certify accordingly.

ARTICLE XI. STRICT ACCOUNTABILITY OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS; PROJECT

RECORDS

A. The Grantee shall be strictly accountable for receipts and disbursements relating to the Project's funds. The

Grantee shall follow generally accepted accounting principles, and, if feasible, maintain a separate bank account or fund
with a separate organizational code, for the funds to assure separate budgeting and accounting of the funds.

B. For a period of five (5) years following the Pi‘oj ect's completion, the Grantee shall maintain all Project related

records, including, but not limited to, all financial records, requests for proposals, invitations to bid, selection and award
criteria, contracts and subcontracts, advertisements, minutes of pertinent meetings, as well as records sufficient to fully
account for the amount and disposition of the total funds from all sources budgeted for the Project, the purpose for which
such funds were used, and such other records as the Department shall prescribe.

Page 8 of 14



C. The Grantee shall make all Project records available to the Department, the Department of Finance and
Administration, and the New Mexico State Auditor upon request. With respect to the funds that are the subject of this
Agreement, if the State Auditor or the Department of Finance and Administration finds that any or all of these funds
were improperly expended, the Grantee may be required to reimburse to the State of New Mexico, to the originating
fund, any and all amounts found to be improperly expended.

ARTICLE XTI, IMPROPERLY REIMBURSED FUNDS

If the Department determines that part or all of the Appropriation Amount was improperly reimbursed to Grantee,
including but not limited to, Project funds reimbursed to Grantee based upon fraud, mismanagement, misrepresentation,
misuse, violation of law by the Grantee, or violation of this Agreement, the Grantee shall return such funds to the
Department for disposition in accordance with law.

ARTICLE XTIT. LIABILITY

Neither party shall be responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other party's acts or omissions in connection with
this Agreement. Any liability incurred in connection with this Agreement is subject to immunities and limitations of the
New Mexico Tort Claims Act.

ARTICLE XTV. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire and exclusive agreement between the Grantee and Department concerning the
subject matter hereof. The Agreement supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings,
discussions, communications, and representations, written or verbal.

ARTICLE XV. REQUIRED N ON-APPROPRIATIONS CLAUSE IN CONTRACTS FUNDED IN
WHOLE OR PART BY FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT

The Grantee acknowledges, warrants, and agrees that Grantee shall include a "non-appropriations" clause in all contracts
between it and other parties that are (i) funded in whole or part by funds made available under this Agreement and (i)
entered into after the effective date of this Agreement that states:

“The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorization being made by the
Legislature of New Mexico for the performance of this Agreement. If sufficient appropriations and authorization are not
made by the Legislature, the Torrance County may immediately terminate this Agreement by giving Contractor written
notice of such termination. The Torrance County's decision as to whether sufficient appropriations are available shall be
accepted by the Contractor and shall be final. Contractor hereby waives any rights to assert an impairment of contract
claim against the Torrance County, the Department of Finance and Administration, Local Government Division
(DFA/LGD), or the State of New Mexico in the event of immediate or Early Termination of this Agreement by the
Torrance County or the Department.”

ARTICLE XVI. REQUIRED TERMINATION CLAUSE IN CONTRACTS FUNDED IN WHOLE
OR PART BY FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT
Grantee acknowledges, warrants, and agrees that Grantee shall include the following or a termination clause in all

contracts that are (i) funded in whole or part by funds made available under this Agreement and (ii) entered into after the
effective date of this Agreement: : '

“This contract is funded in whole or in part by funds made available under DFA/LGD Grant Agreement. Should
DFA/LGD early terminate the grant agreement, the Torrance County may early terminate this

Page 9 of 14



contract by providing Contractor written notice of such termination. In the event of termination pursuant to this
paragraph, the Torrance County's only liability shall be to pay Contractor for acceptable goods delivered and services
rendered before the termination date."

Grantee hereby waives any rights to assert an iinpairment of contract claim against the Department or the State of New
Mexico in the event of Early Termination of this Agreement by the Department.

ARTICLE XVII. COMPLIANCE WITH UNIFORM FUNDING CRITERIA

A. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Grantee shall:

1. submit all reports of annual audits and agreed upon procedures required by Section 12-6-3(A)-(B) NMSA 1978
by the due dates established in 2.2.2 NMAC, reports of which must be a public record pursuant to Section 12-6-5(A)
NMSA 1978 within forty-five days of delivery to the State Auditor;

2. have a duly adopted budget for the current fiscal year approved by its budgetary oversight agency (if any);

3. timely submit all required financial reports to its budgetary oversight agency (if any); and

4. have adequate accounting methods and procedures to expend grant funds in accordance with applicable law and
account for and safeguard grant funds and assets acquired by grant funds.

B. In the event Grantee fails to comply with the requirements of Paragraph A of this Article XVII, the Department
may take one or more of the following actions:

1. suspend new or further obligations pursuant to Article VI(A) of this Agreement;

2. require the Grantee to develop and implement a written corrective action plan pursuant to Article VI(D) of this
Agreement to remedy the non-compliance; .

3. impose special grant conditions to address the non-compliance by giving the Grantee notice of such special
conditions in accordance with Article III of this Agreement; the special conditions shall be binding and effective on the
date that notice is deemed to have been given pursuant to Article III; or

4, terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article V (A) of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XVIII. SEVERANCE TAX BOND PROJECT AND GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
PROJECT CLAUSES

A. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the underlying appropriation for the Project is a severance tax bond or
general obligation bond appropriation, and that the associated bond proceeds are administered by the New Mexico State
Board of Finance (SBOF), an entity separate and distinct from the Department. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that
(i) it is Grantee's sole and absolute responsibility to determine through SBOF staff what (if any) conditions are currently
imposed on the Project; (ii) the Department's failure to inform Grantee of a SBOF imposed condition does not affect the
validity or enforceability of the condition; (iii) the SBOF may in the future impose further or different conditions upon the
Project; (iv) all SBOF conditions are effective without amendment of this Agreement; (v) all applicable SBOF conditions
must be satisfied before the SBOF will release to the Department funds subject to the condition(s); and (vi) the
Department's obligation to reimburse Grantee from the Project is contingent upon the then current SBOF conditions
being satisfied. : :

B. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that SBOF may in its sole and absolute discretion remove a project's assigned
bond proceeds if the project doesn't proceed sufficiently. Entities must comply with the requirement to encumber five
percent (5%) of Project funds within six months of bond issuance as certified by the grantee in the Bond Questionnaire
and Certification documents submitted to the SBOF. Failure to comply may result in the bond proceeds reassignment to a
new ready project. If this should occur this grant agreement will be suspended until the entity has demonstrated readiness
as determined by the SBOF and the Department. :

C. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that this agreement is subject to the SBOF's Bond Project Disbursements

Page 10 of 14



rule, NMAC 2.61.6, as may be amended or re-codified. The rule provides definitions and interpretations of grant
language for the purpose of determining whether a particular activity is allowable under the authorizing language of the
agreement. |

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

Page 11 of 14



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed Agreement as of the date of execution by
the Department. '

GRANTEE

Entity Name

By:

(Type or Print Name)

Its:

(Type or Print Title)

Signature of Official with Authority to Bind Grantee

Date

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION

Its: Division Director

Signature

Date

Page 12 of 14



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CAPITAL GRANT PROJECT
Request for Payment Form
Exhibit 1
l Grantee Information Il. Payment Computation
(Make sure information Is complete & aceurate) A. Payment Request No.
A Grantee: B. Grant Amount:
B. Address: C. AIPP Amount (If Applicable) :
(Complete Malllng, Sulte, If D Funds Requested to Date:
E. Amount Requested this Payment:
City, State, Zip F. Reversion Amount (If Applicable ).
C Phone No: G. Grant Balance:
D. Grant No: H. [TJGF [Jeos [1 8T8 (attach wire if first draw)
E. Project Title: . [C] Final Request for Payment (if Applicable )
F.

Grant Expiration Date:

. Fiscal Year:
(The State of NM Fiscal Year Is July 1, 20X through June 30, 20XX of the following year)

V. Reporting Certification: | hereby certify to the best of my knowledge and belef, that database reporting ls up to date; to Include the accuracy of
expenditures and grant balance, project status, project phase, achievements and milsstonss; and in compliance with Article VIl of the Capital Oullay Grant
Agreement, )
V. Com pliance Certification: under penatty of faw, | hereby certify to the best of my knowledge and belief, the above information is correct;
expenditures are properly documented, and are valid expenditures or actual recelipts; and that the grant activity is in full compliance with Article IX, Sec 14 of the

New Mexico Constitution known as the "ant! donation” clause,

Grantee Fiscal Officer ' Grantee Representative
or Fiscal Agent (if applicable )

Printed Name Printed Name

Date: ) Date:

(State Agency Use only)

Vendor Code: Fund No.: Loc No.:

I certify that the State Agency financial and vendor file information agree with the above submitted information.

Division Fiscal Officer Date Division Project Manager

Page 13 of 14

Date




Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee #

DATE:
TO: Department Representative:
FROM: Grantee Entity:

Grantee Official Representative:

SUBJECT: Nofice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee

Grant Number:

Grant Termination Date:

As the designated representative of the Department for Grant Agreement number

entered into between Grantee and the Department, I cestify that the Grantee has submitted to the Department the
following third party obligation executed, in writing, by the third party’s authorized representative:

Vendot or Contractor:

Third Party Obligation Amount:

Vendor or Contractor:

Third Party Obligation Amount:

I certify that the State is issuing this Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee for perrnissible purposes within
the scope of the project description, subject to all the terms and conditions of the above referenced Grant
Agreement.

Grant Amount (Minus AIPP if applicable):
The Amount of this Notice of Obligation:

The Total Amount of all Previously Issued Notices of Obligation:
The Total Amount of all Notices of Obligation to Date: § 0.00

Note: Contract amounts may exieed the total grant amonnt, bu the invoices paid by the grant will not exvoed the grant amonnt.

Department Rep. Approver:

Title:

Signature:
Date:

1 Administrative and/or Indirect Cost — geneally, the legislation authotizing the issuance of bonds prohibits the use of its proceeds for
indirect expenses (e.g. penalty fees or damages other than pay for work performed, attorney fees, and administrative fees). Such use of
bond proceeds shall not be allowed unless specifically authorized by statute.

Page 14 of 14



Agenda Item
No. 11-D



TORRANCE COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSONERS
RESOLUTION NO. R 2021-

ACCEPTANCE OF AGREEMENT FOR CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT
' TORRANCE COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE
20-E2774

WHEREAS, in the Laws of 2020, Chapter 81, Section 35, Paragraph 432; the
Legislature made an appropriation to the Department of Finance and Administration through the
Local Government Division, hereinafter called “DFA/LGD,” to make available to Torrance
County, hereinafter called the “Grantee,” and

WHEREAS, the DFA/LGD is granting to Grantee funding not to exceed Seventy Five
Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00) to plan, design, construct and equip county administrative offices
~in Estancia in Torrance county, and

WHEREAS, the DFA/LGD has submitted agreement 20-E2774 to grantee for
acceptance; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body of TORRANCE
COUNTY that Torrance County agrees to the terms set forth in the agreement and Janice Y.
Barela, County Manager, or successor, or her alternate, Philip Tenorio, Deputy County Manager,
or successor, is authorized on behalf of the County to sign the Grant Agreement for this project,
act as the project contact, and serve as the point of contact to sign all other documents necessary
to fulfill the Grant Agreement and requirements. ’

DONE THIS 24" DAY OF February, 2021.

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

County Attorney Date Ryan Schwebach, Chair

Kevin McCall, Vice Chair

, LeRoy Candelaria, Member
ATTEST:

Yvonne Otero, County Clerk
Date:




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
FUND 89200 CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this day of - ,20___,byand
between the Department of Finance and Administration, State of New Mexico, acting through the Local
Government Division, Bataan Memorial Building, Room 202, Santa Fe, New Mexico, 87501, hereinafter called
the "Department" or abbreviation such as "DFA/LGD", and the Torrance County, hereinafter called the
"Grantee." This Agreement shall be effective as of the date it is executed by the Department.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, in the Laws of 2020, Chapter 81, Section 35, Para. 430, the Legislature made an
appropriation to the Department, funds from which the Department is making available to the Grantee pursuant
to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Department is granting to Grantee, and the Grantee is accepting the grant of, funds from
this appropriation, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 9-6-5 and 9-6-5.1 NMSA 1978, the Secretary of the Department of
Finance and Administration has the power and the authority to (i) maintain long-range estimates and plans for
capital projects and develop standards for measuring the need for, and utility of, proposed projects; (i) contract
for, receive and utilize any grants or other financial assistance made available by the United States government
or by any other source, public or private; (iii) provide planning and funding dssistance to units of local
government, council of government organizations, Indian tribal governments situated within New Mexico, and to
nonprofit entities having for their purpose local, regional or community betterment; (iv) incident to any such
programs, may enter into contracts and agreements with such units of local government, council of government
organizations, Indian tribal governments, nonprofit entities and the federal government; and (v) delegate such
authority to the Local Government Division as being necessary and appropriate to such delegation;

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the rr.lutualrcovenants and obligations contained herein, the
parties hereby mutually agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, AMOUNT OF GRANT AND REVERSION DATE
A. The project that is the subject of this Agreement is described as follows:
20-E2774 $75.000.00 Appropriation Reversion Date: 30-JUN-24

Laws of 2020, Chapter 81, Section 35, Para. 430, Seventy Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00) to
plan, design, construct and equip county administrative offices in Estancia in Torrance county.

Page 1 of 14



The Grantee's total reimbursements shall not exceed Seventy Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00) (the

"Appropriation Amount") minus the allocation for Art in Public Places ("AIPP amount")q, if applicable, Zero

Dollars (30.00), which equals Seventy Five Thousand Dollars ($75.000.00) (the "Adjusted Appropriation

Amount"). . .

In the event of a conflict among the Appropriation Amount, the Reversion Date, as defined herein and/or the
purpose of the Project, as set forth in this Agreement, and the corresponding appropriation language in the laws
cited above in this Article I (A), the language of the laws cited herein shall control.,

This project is referred to throughout the remainder of this Agreement as the "Project"; the information
contained in Article I (A) is referred to collectively throughout the remainder of this Agreement as the
"Project Description". The Grantee shall reference the Project's number in all correspondence with and
submissions to the Department concerning the Project, including, but not limited to, Requests for Payment
and reports.

ARTICLE II. LIMITATION ON DEPARTMENT'S OBLIGATION TO MAKE GRANT
e e it D DR Vet N D D DLAGA LION 1O MAKE GRANT
DISBURSEMENT TO GRANTEE

A. Upon the Effective Date of this Agreement, for permissible purposes within the scope of the Project
Description, the Grantee shall only be reimbursed monies for which the Department has issued and the Grantee
has received a Notice of Department's Obligation to Reimburse ;) Grantee (hereinafter referred to as "Notice of
Obligation"). This Grant Agreement and the disbursement of any and all amounts of the above referenced
Adjusted Appropriation Amount are expressly conditioned upon the following: :

(i) Irrespective of any Notice of Obligation, the Grantee's expenditures shall be made on or before the Reversion
Date and, if applicable, an Early Termination Date (i.e., the goods have been delivered and accepted or the title to
the goods has been transferred to the Grantee and/or the services have been rendered for the Grantee); and

(i) The total amount received by the Grantee shall not exceed the lesser of: (a) the Adjusted Appropriation Amount
identified in Article I(A) herein or (b) the total of all amounts stated in the Notice(s) of Obligation evidencing that
the Department has received and accepted the Grantee's Third Party Obligation(s), as defined in subparagraph iii
of this Article II(A); and ,

(i) The Grantee's expenditures were made pursuant to the State Procurement Code and execution of binding written
obligations or purchase orders with third party contractors or vendors for the provision of services, including
professional services, or the purchase of tangible personal property and real property for the Project, hereinafter
referred to as "Third Party Obligations"; and _

(iv) The Grantee's submittal of timely Requests for Payment in accordance with the procedures set forth in Article IX
of this Agreement; and '

(v) In the event that capital assets acquired with Project funds are to be sold, leased, or licensed to or opefated bya
private entity, the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement:

a. must be approved by the applicable oversight entity (if any) in accordance with law; or

b. if no oversight entity is required to approve of the transaction, the Department must approve the transaction as
complying with law.

Prior to the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement being approved pursuant to Articles II(A)(v)(a) and

LI(A)(v)(b) herein, the Department may, in its sole and absolute discretion and unless inconsistent with New

Mexico State Board of Finance imposed conditions, reimburse the Grantee for necessary expenditures incurred to

develop the Project sufficiently to make the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement commercially feasible,

such as plan and design expenditures; and

[1} The AIPP amount is "an amount of money equal to one percent or two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000), whichever is less, of the amount of money appropriated for new
construction or any major renovation exceeding one hundred thousand dollars (8100,000)." Section 13-4A-4 NMSA 1978. : :

[2] "Reimburse” as used throughout this Agreement includes Department payments to the Grantee for invoices received, but not yet paid, by the Grantee from a third party contractor or
vendor, if the invoices comply with the provisions of this Agreement and are a valid liability of the Grantee.

Page 2 of 14



(vi) The Grantee's submission of documentation of all Third Party Obligations and amendments thereto (including
terminations) to the Department and the Department's issuance and the Grantee's receiving of a Notice of
Obligation for a particular amount in accordance with the terms of this Agreement shall be governed by the
following:

a.

The Grantee shall submit to the Department one copy of all Third Party Obligations and amendments thereto
(including terminations) as soon as possible after execution by the Third Party but prior to execution by the
Grantee. '

Grantee acknowledges and agrees that if it chooses to enter into a Third Party Obligation prior to receiving a
Notice of Obligation that covers the expenditure, it is solely responsible for such obligations.

The Department may, in its sole and absolute discretion, issue to Grantee a Notice of Obligation for the
particular amount of that Third Party Obligation that only obligates the Department to reimburse Grantee's
expenditures made on or before the Reversion Date or an Early Termination Date. The current Notice of
Obligation form is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 2.

The date the Department signs the Notice of Obligation is the date that the Department's Notice of Obligation
is effective. After that date, the Grantee is authorized to budget the particular amount set forth in the Notice
of Obligation, execute the Third Party Obligation and request the Third Party to begin work. Payment for any
work performed or goods received prior to the effective date of the Notice of Obligation is wholly and solely
the obligation of the Grantee.

B.  The Grantee shall implement, in all respects, the Project. The Grantee shall provide all necessary qualified
personnel, material, and facilities to implement the Project. The Grantee shall finance its share (if any) of the
costs of the Project, including all Project overruns.

C.  Project funds shall not be used for purposes other than those specified in the Project Description.

D. Unless specifically allowed by law, Project funds cannot be used to reimburse Grantee for indirect Project costs.

ARTICLE ITI. NOTICE PROVISIONS AND GRANTEE AND DEPARTMENT
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES

Whenever written notices, including written decisions, are to be given or received, related to this
Agreement, the following provisions shall apply.

The Grantee designates the person(s) listed below, or their successor as their official
representative(s) concerning all matters related to this Agreement.

Grantee Torrance County

Name Janice Barela

Title County Manager

Address P. O. Box 48, Estancia, NM 87016
Email jbarela@tcnm.us

Telephone  505-544-4703

The Grantee designates the person(s) listed below, or their successor, as their Fiscal Officer or Fiscal
Agent concerning all matters related to this Agreement.

Grantee Torrance County

Name Janice Barela

Title County Manager

Address P. O. Box 48, Estancia, NM 87016
Email jbarela@tcnm.us

Telephone 505-544-4703

Page 3 of 14



The Department designates the persons listed below, or their successors, as Points of Contact for
matters related to this Agreement.

Department  DFA/Local Government Division

Name ~ Maria Urban

Title Project Manager

Address Bataan Memorial Bldg. Rm 202, Santa Fe, NM 87501
Email maria.urban(@state.nm.us

Telephone 505-827-8061

The Grantee and the Department agree that either party shall send all notices, including written
decisions, related to this Agreement to the above named persons by email, or regular mail. In the case
of mailings, notices shall be deemed to have been given and received upon the date of the receiving
party's actual receipt or five calendar days after mailing, whichever shall first occur. In the case of
email transmissions, the notice shall be deemed to have been given and received on the date reflected
on the delivery receipt of email.

ARTICLE IV. REVERSION DATE, TERM, DEADLINE TO EXPEND FUNDS

A. As referenced in Article I (A), the applicable law establishes a date by which Project funds must be
expended by Grantee, which is referred to throughout the remainder of this Agreement as the "Reversion Date."
Upon being duly executed by both parties, this Agreement shall be effective as of the date of execution by the
Department. It shall terminate on June 30, 2024, the Reversion Date, unless Terminated Before Reversion Date
("Early Termination") pursuant to Article V herein.

B. The Project's funds must be expended on or before the Reversion Date and, if applicable, Early
Termination Date of this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, it is not sufficient for the Grantee to
encumber the Project funds on its books on or before the Project's Reversion Date or Early Termination Date.
Funds are expended and an expenditure has occurred as of the date that a particular quantity of goods are
delivered to and received by the Grantee or title to the goods is transferred to the Grantee and/or as of the date
particular services are rendered for the Grantee. Funds are not expended and an expenditure has not occurred
as of the date they are encumbered by the Grantee pursuant to a contract or purchase order with a third party.

ARTICLE V. EARLY TERMINATION

A. Early Termination Before Reversion Date Due to Completion of the Project or Complete Expenditure

of the Adjusted Appropriation or Violation of this Agreement

Early Termination includes:
(i) Termination due to completion of the Project before the Reversion Date; or

(ii) Termination due to complete expenditure of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount before the Reversion Date; or
(iii) Termination for violation of the terms of this Agreement; or

(iv) Termination for suspected mishandling of public funds, including but not limited to, fraud, waste, abuse, and
conflicts of interest.

Page 4 of 14



Either the Department or the Grantee may early terminate this Agreement prior to the Reversion Date by providing the

other party with a minimum of fifteen (15) days' advance, written notice of early termination. Grantee hereby waives any
rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the Department or the State of New Mexico in the event of

Early Termination of this Agreement by the Department pursuant to Article V (A).

B. Early Termination Before Reversion Date Due to Non-Appropriation .

The terms of this Agreement are expressly made contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorization being
made by the Legislature of New Mexico for the performance of this Agreement. Throughout this Agreement the term
"non-appropriate" or "non-appropriation" includes the following actions by the New Mexico Legislature: deauthorization,
reauthorization or revocation of a prior authorization. The Legislature may choose to non-appropriate the Appropriation
referred to in Article I and, if that occurs, the Department shall carly terminate this Agreement for non-appropriation by
giving the Grantee written notice of such termination, and such termination shall be effective as of the effective date of
the law making the non-appropriation. The Department's decision as to whether sufficient appropriations or
authorizations are available shall be accepted by the Grantee and shall be final. Grantee hereby waives any rights to
assert an impairment of contract claim against the Department or the State of New Mexico in the event of Early
Termination of this Agreement by the Department pursuant to Article V (B).

C. Limitation on Department's Obligation to Make Grant Disbursements to Grantee in the Event
- of Early Termination : ' ,
In the event of Early Termination of this Agreement by either party, the Department's sole and absolute obligation to
reimburse the Grantee is expressly conditioned upon the limitations set forth Article I1.

ARTICLE VI. SUSPENSION OF NEW OR FURTHER OBLIGATIONS

A. The Department may choose, in its sole and absolute discretion, to provide written notice to the Grantee to
suspend entering into new and further obligations. Upon the receipt of such written notice by the Grantee: _

(i) - The Grantee shall immediately suspend entering into new or further written obligations with third parties; and

(if) The Department will suspend the issuance of any new or further Notice of Obligation under this Agreement;
and .

(iii) The Department may direct the Grantee to implement a corrective action plan in accordance with Article
VI (D) herein,

B. In the event of Suspension of this Agreement, the Department's sole and absolute obligation to reimburse the
Grantee is expressly conditioned upon the limitations set forth in Article II herein,

C. A suspension of new or further obligations under this Agreement shall remain in effect unless or until the date the
Grantee receives written notice given by the Department informing the Grantee that the Suspension has been lifted or
that the Agreement has been Early Terminated in accordance with Article V herein. If the Suspension is lifted, the
Department will consider further requests for Notice of Obligation. '

D. Corrective Action Plan in the Event of Suspension

In the event that the Department chooses, in its sole and absolute discretion to direct the Grantee to suspend entering
into new or further written obligations with third parties pursuant to Article VI (A), the Department may, but is not
obligated to, require the Grantee to develop and implement a written corrective action plan to remedy the grounds for the
Suspension. Such corrective action plan must be approved by the Department and be signed by the Grantee. Failure to
sign a corrective action plan or meet the terms and deadlines set forth in the signed corrective action plan, is hereby
deemed a violation of the terms of this Agreement for purposes of Barly Termination, Article V(A)(iii). The corrective
action plan is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other equitable or legal remedy, including but not limited to Barly
Termination,

Page 5 of 14



ARTICLE VII. AMENDMENT

This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by instrument in writing duly executed by both the
parties hereto,

ARTICLE VIIL. REPORTS

A. Database reporting

The Grantee shall report monthly Project activity by entering such Project information as the Department and the
Department of Finance and Administration may require, such information entered directly into a database maintained by
the Department of Finance and Administration (http://cpms.dfa.state.nm.us). Additionally, the Grantee shall certify on
the Request for Payment form (exhibit 1) that updates have been maintained and are current in the database. The
Grantee hereby acknowledges that failure to perform and/or certify updates into the database will delay or potentially
jeopardize the reimbursement of funds. The Department shall give the Grantee with a minimum of thirty (30) days'
advance written notice of any changes to the information the Grantee is required to report.

Monthly reports shall be due on the last day of each month, beginning with the first full month following execution of
this Agreement by the Department and ending upon the submission of the final request for reimbursement for the
Project.

B. Requests for Additional Information/Project Inspection
During the term of this Agreement and during the period of time during which the Grantee must maintain records
pursuant to Article VIII, the Department may:
(i) request such additional information regarding the Project as it deems necessary; and
(ii) conduct, at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, onsite inspections of the Project. Grantee shall
respond to such requests for additional information within a reasonable period of time, as established by the Department.

ARTICLE IX. REQUEST FOR PAYMENT PROCEDURES AND DEADLINES

A. The Grantee shall request payment by submitting a Request for Payment, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 1.
Payment requests are subject to the following procedures:

(i) The Grantee must submit a Request for Payment; and

(ii) Each Request for Payment must contain proof of payment by the Grantee or liabilities incurred by the Grantee
showing that the expenditures are valid or the liabilities incurred by the Grantee in the form of actual unpaid invoices
received by the Grantee for services rendered by a third party or items of tangible personal property received by the
Grantee for the implementation of the Project; provided, however, that the Grantee may be reimbursed for unpaid
liabilities only if the Department, in its sole and absolute discretion, agrees to do so and in accordance with any special
conditions imposed by the Department.

(iii) In cases where the Grantee is submitting a Request for Payment to the Department based upon invoices
received, but not yet paid, by the Grantee from a third party contractor or vendor, if the invoices comply with the
provisions of this Agreement and are a valid liability of the Grantee, the Grantee shall make payment to those contractors
or vendors within five (5) business days from the date of receiving reimbursement from the Department or such shorter
period of time as the Department may prescribe in writing. The Grantee is required to certify to the Department proof of
payment to the third party contractor or vendor within ten (10) business days from the date of receiving reimbursement
from the Department.

B. The Grantee must obligate 5% of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount w1th1n six months of the acceptance of the
grant agreement and must have expended no less than 85% of the Adjusted Appropr1at10n Amount six months prior to
the reversipn date.

Page 6 of 14



C. Deadlines :
Requests for Payments shall be submitted by Grantee to the Department on the earlier of:

(i) Immediately as they are received by the Grantee but at a minimum of thirty (30) days from when the
expenditure was incurred or Hability of the Grantee was approved as evidenced by an unpaid invoice received
by the Grantee from a third party contractor or vendor; or

(ii) July 15 of each year for all unreimbursed incurred during the previous fiscal year; or
(iii) Twenty (20) days from the date of Early Termination; or

(iv) Twenty (20) days from the reversion date.

D. The Grantee's failure to abide by the requirements set forth in Article II and Article IX herein will result in
the denial of its Request for Payment or will delay the processing of Requests for Payment. The Department has
the right to reject a payment request for the Project unless and until it is satisfied that the expenditures in the
Request for Payment are for permissible purposes within the meaning of the Project Description and that the
expenditures and the Grantee are otherwise in compliance with this Agreement, including but not limited to,
compliance with the reporting requirements and the requirements set forth in Article Il herein to provide Third
Party Obligations and the Deadlines set forth in Article IX herein. The Department's ability to reject any Request
for Payment is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other legal or equitable remedy available to the Department
due to Grantee's violation of this Agreement,

ARTICLE X. PROJECT CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS; REPRESENTATIONS AND
WARRANTIES

A. The fdllowing general conditions and restrictions are applicable to the Project:

(i) The Project's funds must be spent in accordance with all applicable state laws, regulations, policies, and
guidelines, including, but not limited to, the State Procurement Code (or local procurement ordinance, where
applicable). ‘ :

(i) The project must be implemented in accordance with the New Mexico Public Works Minimum Works Act,
Section 13-4-10 through 13-4-17 NMSA 1978, as applicable. Every contract or project in excess of sixty
thousand dollars ($60,000) that the Grantee is a party to for construction, alteration, demolition or repair or any
combination of these, including painting and decorating, of public buildings, public works or public roads and that
requires or involves the employment of mechanics, laborers or both shall contain a provision stating the
minimum wages and fringe benefits to be paid to various classes of laborers and mechanics, shall be based
upon the wages and benefits that will be determined by the New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions

. to be prevailing for the corresponding classes of laborers and mechanics employed on contract work of a
similar nature in the locality, Further, every contract or project shall contain a stipulation that the contractor,
subcontractor, employer or a person acting as a contractor shall pay all mechanics and laborers employed on .
the site of the project, unconditionally and not less often than once a week and without subsequent unlawful
deduction or rebate on any account, the full amounts accrued at time of payment computed at wage rates and
fringe benefit rates not less than those determined pursuant to Section 13-4-11 (B) NMSA 1978 to be the
prevailing wage rates and prevailing fringe benefit rates issued for the project.

(iif) The Project may only benefit private entities in accordance with applicable law, including, but not limited to,
Article IX, Section 14 of the Constitution of the State of New Mexico, "Anti-Donation Clause."

(iv) The Grantee shall not for a period of 10 years, from the date of this agreement convert any property acquired,
built, renovated, required, designed or developed with the Project's funds to uses other than those specified in
the Project Description without the Department's and the Board of Finance's express, advance written
approval, which may include requirement to reimburse the State for the cost of the project, transfer proceeds
from the disposition of property to the State, or otherwise provide consideration to the State.

Page 7 of 14



V)

The Grantee shall comply with all federal and state laws, rules and regulations pertaining to equal employment
opportunity. In accordance with all such laws, rules and regulations the Grantee agrees to assure that no person
shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, sexual preference, age or handicap, be excluded from
employment with Grantee, be excluded from participation in the Project, be denied benefits or otherwise be
subject to discrimination under, any activity performed under this Agreement. If Grantee is found to be not in
compliance with these requirements during the life of this Agreement, Grantee agrees to take appropriate steps
to correct any deficiencies. The Grantee's failure to implement such appropriate steps within a reasonable time
constitutes grounds for terminating this Agreement.

. The Grantee hereby represents and warrants the following:

(i)
(i)

(i)

(iv)
V)

(vi)

The Grantee has the legal authority to receive and expend the Project's funds.

This Agreement has been duly authorized by the Grantee, the person executing this Agreement has authority to
do so, and, once executed by the Grantee, this Agreement shall constitute a binding obligation of the Grantee,
enforceable according to its terms.

This Agreement and the Grantee's obligations hereunder do not conflict with any law or ordinance or resolution
applicable to the Grantee, the Grantee's charter (if applicable), or any judgment or decree to which the Grantee
is subject.

The Grantee has independently confirmed that the Project Description, including, but not limited to, the amount
and Reversion Date, is consistent with the underlying appropriation in law.

The Grantee's governing body has duly adopted or passed as an official act a resolution, motion, or similar
action authorizing the person identified as the official representatlve of the Grantee to sign the Agreement and
to sign Requests for Payment. :

The Grantee shall abide by New Mexico laws regarding conflicts of interest, governmental conduct and
whistleblower protection. The Grantee specifically agrees that no officer or employee of the local jurisdiction or
its designees or agents, no member of the governing body, and no other public official of the locality who
exercises any function or responsibility with respect to this Grant, during their tenure or for one year thereafter,
shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be
performed or goods to be received, pursuant to this Grant. Further, Grantee shall require all of its contractors to
incorporate in all subcontracts the language set forth in this paragraph prohibiting conflicts of interest.

(vii) No funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Grantee, to any person for influencing or

attempting to influence an officer or employee of this or any agency or body in connection with the awarding of
any Third Party Obligation and that the Grantee shall require certifying language prohibiting lobbying to be
included in the award documents for all subawards, including subcontracts, loans and cooperative agreements.
All subrecipients shall be required to certify accordingly.

ARTICLE XI. STRICT ACCOUNTABILITY OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS; PROJECT

RECORDS

A. The Grantee shall be strictly accountable for receipts and disbursements relating to the Project's funds. The

Grantee shall follow generally accepted accounting principles, and, if feasible, maintain a separate bank account or fund
with a separate organizational code, for the funds to assure separate budgeting and accounting of the funds.

B. For a period of five (5) years following the Project's completion, the Grantee shall maintain all Project related

records, including, but not limited to, all financial records, requests for proposals, invitations to bid, selection and award
criteria, contracts and subcontracts, advertisements, minutes of pertinent meetings, as well as records sufficient to fully
account for the amount and disposition of the total funds from all sources budgeted for the Project, the purpose for which
such funds were used, and such other records as the Department shall prescribe.

Page 8 of 14



C. The Grantee shall make all Project records available to the Department, the Department of Finance and
Administration, and the New Mexico State Auditor upon request. With respect to the funds that are the subject of this
Agreement, if the State Auditor or the Department of Finance and Administration finds that any or all of these funds
were improperly expended, the Grantee may be required to reimburse to the State of New Mexico, to the originating
fund, any and all amounts found to be improperly expended. -

ARTICLE XII. IMPROPERLY REIMBURSED FUNDS

If the Department determines that part or all of the Appropriation Amount was improperly reimbursed to Grantee,
including but not limited to, Project funds reimbursed to Grantee based upon fraud, mismanagement, misrepresentation,
misuse, violation of law by the Grantee, or violation of this Agreement, the Grantee shall return such funds to the
Department for disposition in accordance with law,

ARTICLE XIII. LIABILITY
Neither party shall be responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other party's acts or omissions in connection with
this Agreement. Any liability incurred in connection with this Agreement is subject to immunities and limitations of the

New Mexico Tort Claims Act.

ARTICLE XTIV, SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire and exclusive agreement between the Grantee and Department concerning the
subject matter hereof. The Agreement supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings,
discussions, communications, and representations, written or verbal,

ARTICLE XV. REQUIRED NON-APPROPRIATIONS CLAUSE IN CONTRACTS FUNDED IN
WHOLE OR PART BY FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT

The Grantee acknowledges, warrants, and agrees that Grantee shall include a "non-appropriations” clause in all contracts
between it and other parties that are (i) funded in whole or part by funds made available under this Agreement and (i)
entered into after the effective date of this Agreement that states:

“The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorization being made by the
Legislature of New Mexico for the performance of this Agreement. If sufficient appropriations and authorization are not
made by the Legislature, the Torrance County may immediately terminate this Agreement by giving Contractor written
notice of such termination. The Torrance County’s decision as to whether sufficient appropriations are available shall
be accepted by the Contractor and shall be final. Contractor hereby waives any rights to assert an impairment of contract
claim against the Torrance County, the Department of Finance and Administration, Local Government Division
(DFA/LGD), or the State of New Mexico in the event of immediate or Early Termination of this Agreement by the
Torrance County or the Department."

ARTICLE XVI. REQUIRED TERMINATION CLAUSE IN CONTRACTS FUNDED IN WHOLE

OR PART BY FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT

Grantee acknowledges, warrants, and agrees that Grantee shall include the following or a termination clause in all
contracts that are (i) funded in whole or part by funds made available under this Agreement and (ii) entered into after the
effective date of this' Agreement:

“This contract is funded in whole or in part by funds made available under DFA/LGD Grant Agreement. Should
DFA/LGD early terminate the grant agreement, the Torrance County may early terminate this

Page 9 of 14



contract by providing Contractor written notice of such termination. In the event of termination pursuant to this
~ paragraph, the Torrance County's only liability shall be to pay Contractor for acceptable goods delivered and
servicesrendered before the termination date.”

Grantee hereby waives any rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the Department or the State of New
Mexico in the event of Early Termination of this Agreement by the Department.

ARTICLE XVII. COMPLIANCE WITH UNIFORM FUNDING CRITERIA

A. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Grantee shall:

1. submit all reports of annual audits and agreed upon procedures required by Section 12-6-3(A)-(B) NMSA 1978
by the due dates established in 2.2.2 NMAC, reports of which must be a public record pursuant to Section 12-6-5(A)
NMSA 1978 within forty-five days of delivery to the State Auditor;

2. have a duly adopted budget for the current fiscal year approved by its budgetary oversight agency (if any);

3. timely submit all required financial reports to its budgetary oversight agency (if any); and _

4. have adequate accounting methods and procedures to expend grant funds in accordance with applicable law and
account for and safeguard grant funds and assets acquired by grant funds.

B. In the event Grantee fails to comply with the requirements of Paragraph A of this Article XVII, the Department
may take one or more of the following actions:

1. suspend new or further obligations pursuant to Article VI(A) of this Agreement;

2. require the Grantee to develop and implement a written corrective action plan pursuant to Article VI(D) of this
Agreement to remedy the non-compliance;

3. impose special grant conditions to address the non-compliance by giving the Grantee notice of such special
conditions in accordance with Article III of this Agreement; the special conditions shall be binding and effective on the
date that notice is deemed to have been given pursuant to Article I1I; or

4, terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article V (A) of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XVIIL. SEVERANCE TAX BOND PROJECT AND GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
PROJECT CLAUSES

A. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the underlying appropriation for the Project is a severance tax bond or
general obligation bond appropriation, and that the associated bond proceeds are administered by the New Mexico State
Board of Finance (SBOF), an entity separate and distinct from the Department. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that
(i) it is Grantee's sole and absolute responsibility to determine through SBOF staff what (if any) conditions are currently
imposed on the Project; (i) the Department's failure to inform Grantee of a SBOF imposed condition does not affect the
validity or enforceability of the condition; (iii) the SBOF may in the future impose further or different conditions upon the
Project; (iv) all SBOF conditions are effective without amendment of this Agreement; (v) all applicable SBOF conditions
must be satisfied before the SBOF will release to the Department funds subject to the condition(s); and (vi) the
Department's obligation to reimburse Grantee from the Project is contingent upon the then current SBOF conditions
being satisfied. '

B. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that SBOF may in its sole and absolute discretion remove a project's assigned
bond proceeds if the project doesn't proceed sufficiently. Entities must comply with the requirement to encumber five
percent (5%) of Project funds within six months of bond issuance as certified by the grantee in the Bond Questionnaire
and Certification documents submitted to the SBOF. Failure to comply may result in the bond proceeds reassignment to a
new ready project. If this should occur this grant agreement will be suspended until the entity has demonstrated readiness
as determined by the SBOF and the Department.

C. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that this agreement is subject to the SBOF's Bond Project Disbursements

Page 10 of 14



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed Agreement as of the date of execution by
the Department.

GRANTEE

Entity Name

By:

(Type or Print Name)

Its:
(Type or Print Title)

Signature of Official with Authority to Bind Grantee

Date

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION

Its: Division Director

Signature

Date

Page 12 of 14



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CAPITAL GRANT PROJECT
Request for Payment Form
Exhibit 1
I Grantee Information Il. Payment Computation
(Make sure Information Iz complete & accurate) A. Payment Request No.
A Grantee: B. Grant Amount:
B. Address: C. AIPP Amount (If Applicable) :
(Completo Malling, Including Sulte, if applicabl D. Funds Requested to Date:
E. Amount Requested this Payment:
Cty, Stato, 2Ip F. Reversion Amount (If Applicable ):
C. Phene No: G. Grant Balance:
D. Grant No: H. ClGF [JGcoB 1 STB (attach wire if first draw)
E. Project Title: I [ Final Request for Payment (if Applicable )
F. Grant Expiration Date:

i, Fiscal Year : ‘
(The State of NM Fiscal Yearis July 1, 20XX through June 30, 20XX of the following year)

Iv. Reporting Certification: 1 hereby certity to the bast of my knowledge and bellef, that database reporting is up o date to Inclucte the accuracy of
expenditures and grant balance, project status, project phase, achievements and milestones; and in compliance with Article VIl of the Capital Outlay Grant
Agreement,
V. Compliance Certification: under penalty of law, | heraby certify to the best of my knowledge and belief, the above information is correct;
expeonditures are properly documented, and are valid expenditures or actual receipts; and that the grant activity is in full compliance with Article IX, Sec. 14 of the

New Maxico Constitution known as the "anti donation” clause.

Grantee Fiscal Officer v Grantee Representative
or Fiscal Agent (If applicable )

Printed Name v Printed Name

Date: Date:

(State Agency Use only)

Vendor Gode: Fund No.: . L.oc No.:

| certify that the State Agency financial and vender file information agree with the above submitted information.

Divislon Fiscal Officer - Date Division Project Manager Date

Page 13 of 14



Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee #

DATE:
TO: Department Representa‘rive: s
FROM: Grantee Entity:

Grantee Official Representative:

SUBJECT: Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee

Grant Number:

Grant Termination Date:

As the designated representative of the Department for Grant Agreement number

entered into between Grantee and the Department, [ certify that the Grantee has submitted to the Department the
following third party obligation executed, in writing, by the third party’s authorized representative:

Vendor or Contractor:

Third Party Obligation Amount:

Vendor or Contractor:

Third Party Obligation Amount;

I certify that the State is issuing this Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee for permissible purposes within
the scope of the project description, subject to all the terrns and conditions of the above referenced Grant
Agreement.

Grant Amount (Minus AIPP if applicable):

The Amount of this Notice of Obligation:
The Total Amount of all Previously Issued Notices of Obligation:

The Total Amount of all Notices of Obligation to Date: $0.00

Note: Contract amonnts may exveed the total grant antount, but the invoices paid by the grant will not escceed the grant amount.

Department Rep. Approver:

Title:

Signature:

Date:

1 Administrative and/or Indirect Cost — genenlly, the legislation authorizing the issuance of bonds prohibits the use of its proceeds for
indirect expenses (e.g. penalty fees or damages other than pay for work performed, attorney fees, and administrative fees). Such use of
bond proceeds shall not be allowed unless specifically authorized by statute.

Page 14 of 14



Agenda Item
No. 11-E



TORRANCE COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSONERS
RESOLUTION NO. R 2021-

ACCEPTANCE OF AGREEMENT FOR CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT
TORRANCE COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT EQUIPMENT
20-E2771

WHEREAS in the Laws of 2020, Chapter 81, Section 35, Paragraph 432; the
Legislature made an appropriation to the Department of Finance and Adrmmstratlon through the
Local Government Division, hereinafter called “DFA/LGD,” to make available to Torrance
County, hereinafter called the “Grantee,” and

WHEREAS, the DFA/LGD is gr.anting to Grantee funding not to exceed Fifty Thousand
Dollars ($50,000.00) to purchase and equip a double steel roller and other equipment for the road
department in Torrance County, and

WHEREAS, the DFA/LGD has submitted agreement 20-E2771 to grantee for.
acceptance; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body of TORRANCE
COUNTY that Torrance County agrees to the terms set forth in the agreement and Janice Y.
Barela, County Manager, or successor, or her alternate, Philip Tenorio, Deputy County Manager,
or successor, is authorized on behalf of the County to sign the Grant Agreement for this project,
act as the project contact, and serve as the point of contact to sign all other documents necessary
to fulfill the Grant Agreement and requirements.

DONE THIS 24" DAY OF February, 2021.

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

County Attorney Date Ryan Schwebach, Chair

Kevin McCall, Vice Chair

LeRoy Candelaria, Member
ATTEST:

Yvonne Otero, County Clerk
Date:




'STATE OF NEW MEXICO
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
FUND 89200 CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this day of ,20__ ,byand
between the Department of Finance and Administration, State of New Mexico, acting through the Local
Government Division, Bataan Memorial Building, Room 202, Santa Fe, New Mexico, 87501, hereinafter called
the "Department" or abbreviation such as "DFA/LGD", and the Torrance County, hereinafter called the
"Grantee." This Agreement shall be effective as of the date it is executed by the Department,

RECITALS

WHEREAS, in the Laws of 2020, Chapter 81, Section 35, Para. 427, the Legislature made an v
appropriation to the Department, funds from which the Department is making available to the Grantee pursuant
to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Department is granting to Grantee, and the Grantee is accepting the grant of, funds from
this appropriation, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and '

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 9-6-5 and 9-6-5.1 NMSA 1978, the Secretary of the Department of
Finance and Administration has the power and the authority to (i) maintain long-range estimates and plans for
capital projects and develop standards for measuring the need for, and utility of, proposed projects; (ii) contract
for, receive and utilize any grants or other financial assistance made available by the United States government
or by any other source, public or private; (iii) provide planning and funding assistance to units of local
government, council of government organizations, Indian tribal governments situated within New Mexico, and to
nonprofit entities having for their purpose local, regional or community betterment; (iv) incident to any such
programs, may enter into contracts and agreements with such units of local government, council of government
organizations, Indian tribal governments, nonprofit entities and the federal government; and (v) delegate such
authority to the Local Government Division as being necessary and appropriate to such delegation;

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations contained herein, the
parties hereby mutually agree as follows:

ARTICLE I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, AMOUNT OF GRANT AND REVERSION DATE
A. The project that is the subject of this Agreement is described as follows:

20-E2771 $50,000.00 Appropriation Reversion Date: 30-JUN-22
Laws of 2020, Chapter 81, Section 35, Para. 427, Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) to purchase
and equip a double steel roller and other equipment for the road department in Torrance county.

Page 1 of 14



The Grantee's total reimbursements shall not exceed Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) (the "Appropriation
Amount") minus the allocation for Art in Public Places ("AIPP amount")m, if applicable, Zero Dollars (50.00),
which equals Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) (the "Adjusted Appropriation Amount").

In the event of a conflict among the Appropriation Amount, the Reversion Date, as defined herein and/or the
purpose of the Project, as set forth in this Agreement, and the corresponding appropriation language in the laws
cited above in this Article I (A), the language of the laws cited herein shall control.

This project is referred to throughout the remainder of this Agreement as the "Project"; the information
contained in Article I (A) is referred to collectively throughout the remainder of this Agreement as the
"Project Description". The Grantee shall reference the Project's number in all correspondence with and
submissions to the Department concerning the Project, including, but not limited to, Requests for Payment
and reports.

ARTICLE II. LIMITATION ON DEPARTMENT'S OBLIGATION TO MAKE GRAN
DISBURSEMENT TO GRANTEE -

A. Upon the Effective Date of this Agreement, for permissible purposes within the scope of the Project
Description, the Grantee shall only be reimbursed monies for which the Department has issued and the Grantee
has received a Notice of Department's Obligation to Reimburse ¢ Grantee (hereinafter referred to as "Notice of
Obligation"). This Grant Agreement and the disbursement of any and all amounts of the above referenced
Adjusted Appropriation Amount are expressly conditioned upon the following:

(i) Irrespective of any Notice of Obligation, the Grantee's expenditures shall be made on or before the Reversion
Date and, if applicable, an Early Termination Date (i.e., the goods have been delivered and accepted or the title to
the goods has been transferred to the Grantee and/or the services have been rendered for the Grantee); and

(i) The total amount received by the Grantee shall not exceed the lesser of: (a) the Adjusted Appropriation Amount
identified in Article I(A) herein or (b) the total of all amounts stated in the Notice(s) of Obligation evidencing that
the Department has received and accepted the Grantee's Third Party Obligation(s), as defined in subparagraph iii
of this Article II(A); and '

(i) The Grantee's expenditures were made pursuant to the State Procurement Code and execution of binding written
obligations or purchase orders with third party contractors or vendors for the provision of services, including
professional services, or the purchase of tangible personal property and real property for the Project, hereinafter
referred to as "Third Party Obligations"; and

(iv) The Grantee's submittal of timely Requests for Payment in accordance with the procedures set forth in Article IX
of this Agreement; and

(v) Inthe event that capital assets acquired with Project funds are to be sold, leased, or licensed to or operated by a
private entity, the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement:
a. must be approved by the applicable oversight entity (if any) in accordance with law; or
b. if no oversight entity is required to approve of the transaction, the Department must approve the transaction as

complying with law,

Prior to the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement being approved pursuant to Articles II(A)(v)(a) and
II(A)(v)(b) herein, the Department may, in its sole and absolute discretion and unless inconsistent with New
Mexico State Board of Finance imposed conditions, reimburse the Grantee for necessary expenditures incurred to
develop the Project sufficiently to make the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement commercially feasible,
such as plan and design expenditures; and

[1] The ATPP amount is "an amount of money equal to one percent or two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000), whichever is less, of the amount of money appropriated for new
construction or any major renovation exceeding one liundred thousand dollars ($100,000)." Section 13-4A-4 NMSA 1978,

[2] "Reimburse" as used throughout this Agreement includes Department payments to the Grantee for invoices teceived, but not yet paid, by the Grantee from a third party contractor or
vendor, if the invoices conmply with the provisions of this Agteement and are a valid liability of the Grantee.

Page 2 of 14



(vi) The Grantee's submission of documentation of all Third Party Obligations and amendments thereto (including
terminations) to the Department and the Department's issuance and the Grantee's receiving of a Notice of
Obligation for a particular amount in accordance with the terms of this Agreement shall be governed by the
following:

a.

The Grantee shall submit to the Department one copy of all Third Party Obligations and amendments thereto
(including terminations) as soon as possible after execution by the Third Party but prior to execution by the
Grantee.

Grantee acknowledges and agrees that if it chooses to enter into a Third Party Obligation prior to receiving a
Notice of Obligation that covers the expenditure, it is solely responsible for such obligations.

The Department may, in its sole and absolute discretion, issue to Grantee a Notice of Obligation for the
particular amount of that Third Party Obligation that only obligates the Department to reimburse Grantee's
expenditures made on or before the Reversion Date or an Early Termination Date. The current Notice of
Obligation form is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 2.

The date the Department signs the Notice of Obligation is the date that the Department's Notice of Obligation
is effective. After that date, the Grantee is authorized to budget the particular amount set forth in the Notice
of Obligation, execute the Third Party Obligation and request the Third Party to begin work. Payment for any
work performed or goods received prior to the effective date of the Notice of Obligation is wholly and solely
the obligation of the Grantee.

B. The Grantee shall implement, in all respects, the Project. The Grantee shall provide all necessary qualified
personnel, material, and facilities to implement the Project. The Grantee shall finance its share (if any) of the
costs of the Project, including all Project overruns.

C.  Project funds shall not be used for purposes other than those specified in the Project Description.

D.  Unless specifically allowed by law, Project funds cannot be used to reimburse Grantee for indirect Project costs.

ARTICLE ITI. NOTICE PROVISIONS AND GRANTEE AND DEPARTMENT
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES

Whenever written notices, including written decisions, are to be given or received, related to this
Agreement, the following provisions shall apply.

The Grantee designates the person(s) listed below, or their successor as their official
representative(s) concerning all matters related to this Agreement.

Grantee Torrance County

Name Janice Barela

Title County Manager

Address P. O. Box 48, Estancia, NM 87016

Email jbarela@tcnm.us
Telephone 505-544-4703

The Grantee designates the person(s) listed below, or their successor, as their Fiscal Officer or Fiscal
Agent concerning all matters related to this Agreement.

Grantee Torrance County

Name Janice Barela

Title County Manager

Address P. O. Box 48, Estancia, NM 87016
Email jbarela(@tcnm.us

Telephone 505-544-4703

Page 3 of 14



The Department designates the persons listed below, or their successors, as Points of Contact for
matters related to this Agreement.

Department  DFA/Local Government Division

Name Maria Urban

Title Project Manager

Address Bataan Memorial Bldg. Rm 202, Santa Fe, NM 87501
Email maria.urban(@state.nm.us

Telephone 505-827-8061

The Grantee and the Department agree that either party shall send all notices, including written
decisions, related to this Agreement to the above named persons by email, or regular mail. In the case
of mailings, notices shall be deemed to have been given and received upon the date of the receiving
party's actual receipt or five calendar days after mailing, whichever shall first occur. In the case of
email transmissions, the notice shall be deemed to have been given and received on the date reflected
on the delivery receipt of email.

ARTICLE IV. REVERSION DATE, TERM, DEADLINE TO EXPEND FUNDS

A. As referenced in Article I (A), the applicable law establishes a date by which Project funds must be
expended by Grantee, which is referred to throughout the remainder of this Agreement as the "Reversion Date."
Upon being duly executed by both parties, this Agreement shall be effective as of the date of execution by the
Department. It shall terminate on June 30, 2022, the Reversion Date, unless Terminated Before Reversion Date
("Early Termination") pursuant to Article V herein.

B. The Project's funds must be expended on or before the Reversion Date and, if applicable, Early
Termination Date of this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, it is not sufficient for the Grantee to
encumber the Project funds on its books on or before the Project's Reversion Date or Early Termination Date.
Funds are expended and an expenditure has occurred as of the date that a particular quantity of goods are
delivered to and received by the Grantee or title to the goods is transferred to the Grantee and/or as of the date
particular services are rendered for the Grantee. Funds are not expended and an expenditure has not occurred
as of the date they are encumbered by the Grantee pursuant to a contract or purchase order with a third party.

ARTICLE V. EARLY TERMINATION

A. Early Termination Before Reversion Date Due to Completion of the Project or Complete Expenditure

of the Adjusted Appropriation or Violation of this Agreement

Early Termination includes:
(i) Termination due to completion of the Project before the Reversion Date; or

(ii) Termination due to complete expenditure of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount before the Reversion Date; or
(iii)Termination for violation of the terms of this Agreement; or

(iv) Termination for suspected mishandling of public funds, including but not limited to, fraud, waste, abuse, and
conflicts of interest.

Page 4 of 14



Either the Department or the Grantee may early terminate this Agreement prior to the Reversion Date by providing the
other party with a minimum of fifteen (15) days' advance, written notice of early termination. Grantee hereby waives any
rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the Department or the State of New Mexico in the event of

Early Termination of this Agreement by the Department pursuant to Article V (A).

B. Early Termination Before Reversion Date Due to Non-Appropriation

The terms of this Agreement are expressly made contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorization being
made by the Legislature of New Mexico for the performance of this Agreement, Throughout this Agreement the term
"non-appropriate” or "non-appropriation" includes the following actions by the New Mexico Legislature: deauthorization,
reauthorization or revocation of a prior authorization. The Legislature may choose to non-appropriate the Appropriation
referred to in Article I and, if that occurs, the Department shall early terminate this Agreement for non-appropriation by
giving the Grantee written notice of such termination, and such termination shall be effective as of the effective date of
the law making the non-appropriation. The Department's decision as to whether sufficient appropriations or
authorizations are available shall be accepted by the Grantee and shall be final. Grantee hereby waives any rights to
assert an impairment of contract claim against the Department or the State of New Mexico in the event of Early
Termination of this Agreement by the Department pursuant to Article V (B).

C. Limitation on Department's Obligation to Make Grant Disbursements to Grantee in the Event
of Early Termination

In the event of Early Termination of this Agreement by either party, the Department's sole and absolute obligation to
reimburse the Grantee is expressly conditioned upon the limitations set forth Article II.

ARTICLE VI. SUSPENSION OF NEW OR FURTHER OBLIGATIONS

A. The Department may choose, in its sole and absolute discretion, to provide written notice to the Grantee to
suspend entering into new and further obligations. Upon the receipt of such written notice by the Grantee:

(i) The Grantee shall immediately suspend entering into new or further written obligations with third parties; and

(ii) The Department will suspend the issuance of any new or further Notice of Obligation under this Agreement;
and .

(iii) The Department may direct the Grantee to implement a corrective action plan in accordance with Article
VI (D) herein.

B. In the event of Suspension of this Agreement, the Department's sole and absolute obligation to reimburse the
Grantee is expressly conditioned upon the limitations set forth in Article II herein.

C. A suspension of new or further obligations under this Agreement shall remain in effect unless or until the date the
Grantee receives written notice given by the Department informing the Grantee that the Suspension has been lifted or
that the Agreement has been Eatly Terminated in accordance with Article V herein. If the Suspension is lifted, the
Department will consider further requests for Notice of Obligation.

D. Corrective Action Plan in the Event of Suspension

In the event that the Department chooses, in its sole and absolute discretion to direct the Grantee to suspend enfering
into new or further written obligations with third parties pursuant to Article VI (A), the Department may, but is not
obligated to, require the Grantee to develop and implement a written corrective action plan to remedy the grounds for the
Suspension. Such cotrective action plan must be approved by the Department and be signed by the Grantee. Failure to
sign a corrective action plan or meet the terms and deadlines set forth in the signed corrective action plan, is hereby
deemed a violation of the terms of this Agreement for purposes of Early Termination, Article V(A)(iii). The corrective
action plan is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other equitable or legal remedy, including but not limited to Early
Termination., '

Page 5 of 14



ARTICLE VII. AMENDMENT

This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by instrument in Wwriting duly executed by both the
parties hereto.

ARTICLE VIII. REPORTS

A. Database reporting
The Grantee shall report monthly Project activity by entering such Project information as the Department and the

Department of Finance and Administration may require, such information entered directly into a database maintained by
the Department of Finance and Administration (http://cpms.dfa.state.nm.us). Additionally, the Grantee shall certify on
the Request for Payment form (exhibit 1) that updates have been maintained and are current in the database. The
Grantee hereby acknowledges that failure to perform and/or certify updates into the database will delay or potentially
jeopardize the reimbursement of funds. The Department shall give the Grantee with a minimum of thirty (30) days'
advance written notice of any changes to the information the Grantee is required to report.

Monthly reports shall be due on the last day of each month, beginning with the first full month following execution of
this Agreement by the Department and ending upon the submission of the final request for reimbursement for the
Project.

B. Requests for Additional Information/Project Inspection
During the term of this Agreement and during the period of time during which the Grantee must maintain records
pursuant to Article VIII, the Department may:
(i) request such additional information regarding the Project as it deems necessary; and
(ii) conduct, at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, onsite inspections of the Project. Grantee shall
respond to such requests for additional 1nformat10n within a reasonable period of time, as established by the Department

ARTICLE IX. REQUEST FOR PAYMENT PROCEDURES AND DEADLINES

A. The Grantee shall request payment by submitting a Request for Payment, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 1.
Payment requests are subject to the following procedures:

(i) The Grantee must submit a Request for Payment; and

(ii) Each Request for Payment must contain proof of payment by the Grantee or liabilities incurred by the Grantee
showing that the expenditures are valid or the liabilities incurred by the Grantee in the form of actual unpaid invoices
received by the Grantee for services rendered by a third party or items of tangible personal property received by the

- Grantee for the implementation of the Project; provided, however, that the Grantee may be reimbursed for unpaid
liabilities only if the Department, in its sole and absolute discretion, agrees to do so and in accordance with any special
conditions imposed by the Department. :

(iii) In cases where the Grantee is submitting a Request for Payment to the Department based upon invoices
received, but not yet paid, by the Grantee from a third party contractor or vendor, if the invoices comply with the
provisions of this Agreement and are a valid liability of the Grantee, the Grantee shall make payment to those contractors
or vendors within five (5) business days from the date of receiving reimbursement from the Department or such shorter
period of time as the Department may prescribe in writing. The Grantee is required to certify to the Department proof of
payment to the third party contractor or vendor within ten (10) business days from the date of receiving reimbursement
from the Department.

B. The Grantee must obligate 5% of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount within six months of the acceptance of the
grant agreement and must have expended no less than 85% of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount six months prior to
the reversion date.

Page 6 of 14



C. Deadlines
Requests for Payments shall be submitted by Grantee to the Department on the earlier of:

() Immediately as they are received by the Grantee but at a minimum of thirty (30) days from when the
expenditure was incurred or liability of the Grantee was approved as evidenced by an unpaid invoice received
by the Grantee from a third party contractor or vendor; or

(ii) July 15 of each year for all unreimbursed incurred during the previous fiscal year, or
(iii) Twenty (20) days from the date of Early Termination; or

(iv) Twenty (20) days from the reversion date.

D. The Grantee's failure to abide by the requirements set forth in Article IT and Article IX herein will result in

the denial of its Request for Payment or will delay the processing of Requests for Payment. The Department has
the right to reject a payment request for the Project unless and until it is satisfied that the expenditures in the
Request for Payment are for permissible purposes within the meaning of the Project Description and that the

~ expenditures and the Grantee are otherwise in compliance with this Agreement, including but not limited to,
compliance with the reporting requirements and the requirements set forth in Article II herein to provide Third
Party Obligations and the Deadlines set forth in Article IX herein. The Department's ability to reject any Request

for Payment is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other legal or equitable remedy available to the Department

due to Grantee's violation of this Agreement.

ARTICLE X. PROJECT CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS; REPRESENTATIONS AND

WARRANTIES

A. The following general conditions and restrictions are applicable to the Project:

(1) The Project's funds must be spent in accordance with all applicable state laws, regulations, policies, and
guidelines, including, but not limited to, the State Procurement Code (or local procurement ordinance, where
applicable). ' ‘

(ii) The project must be implemented in accordance with the New Mexico Public Works Minimum Works Act,
Section 13-4-10 through 13-4-17 NMSA 1978, as applicable. Every contract or project in excess of sixty
thousand dollars ($60,000) that the Grantee is a party to for construction, alteration, demolition or repair or any

- combination of these, including painting and decorating, of public buildings, public works or public roads and that

requires or involves the employment of mechanics, laborers or both shall contain a provision stating the
minimum wages and fringe benefits to be paid to various classes of laborers and mechanics, shall be based
upon the wages and benefits that will be determined by the New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions
to be prevailing for the corresponding classes of laborers and mechanics employed on contract work of a
similar nature in the locality. Further, every contract or project shall contain a stipulation that the contractor,
subcontractor, employer or a person acting as a contractor shall pay all mechanics and laborers employed on
the site of the project, unconditionally and not less often than once a week and without subsequent unlawful
deduction or rebate on any account, the full amounts accrued at time of payment computed at wage rates and
fringe benefit rates not less than those determined pursuant to Section 13-4-11 (B) NMSA 1978 to be the
prevailing wage rates and prevailing fringe benefit rates issued for the project.

(iif) The Project may only benefit private entities in accordance with applicable law, including, but not limited to,
Article IX, Section 14 of the Constitution of the State of New Mexico, "Anti-Donation Clause."

(iv) The Grantee shall not for a period of 10 years, from the date of this agreement convert any property acquired,
built, renovated, required, designed or developed with the Project's funds to uses other than those specified in
the Project Description without the Department's and the Board of Finance's express, advance written
approval, which may include requirement to reimburse the State for the cost of the project, transfer proceeds
from the disposition of property to the State, or otherwise provide consideration to the State.

Page 7 of 14



V)

The Grantee shall comply with all federal and state laws, rules and regulations pertaining to equal employment
opportunity. In accordance with all such laws, rules and regulations the Grantee agrees to assure that no person
shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, sexual preference, age or handicap, be excluded from
employment with Grantee, be excluded from participation in the Project, be denied benefits or otherwise be
subject to discrimination under, any activity performed under this Agreement. If Grantee is found to be not in
compliance with these requirements during the life of this Agreement, Grantee agrees to take appropriate steps
to correct any deficiencies. The Grantee's failure to implement such appropriate steps within a reasonable time
constitutes grounds for terminating this Agreement.

B. The Grantee hereby represents and warrants the following:

(1)
(i)

(iif)

(iv)
v

(vi)

The Grantee has the legal authority to receive and expend the Project's funds.

This Agreement has been duly authorized by the Grantee, the person executing this Agreement has authority to
do so, and, once executed by the Grantee, this Agreement shall constitute a binding obligation of the Grantee,
enforceable according to its terms.

This Agreement and the Grantee's obligations hereunder do not conflict with any law or ordinance or resolution
applicable to the Grantee, the Grantee's charter (if applicable), or any judgment or decree to which the Grantee
is subject.

The Grantee has independently confirmed that the Project Description, including, but not limited to, the amount
and Reversion Date, is consistent with the underlying appropriation in law.

The Grantee's governing body has duly adopted or passed as an official act a resolution, motion, or similar
action authorizing the person identified as the official representative of the Grantee to sign the Agreement and
to sign Requests for Payment,

The Grantee shall abide by New Mexico laws regarding conflicts of interest, governmental conduct and
whistleblower protection. The Grantee specifically agrees that no officer or employee of the local jurisdiction or
its designees or agents, no member of the governing body, and no other public official of the locality who
exercises any function or responsibility with respect to this Grant, during their tenure or for one year thereafter,
shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be
performed or goods to be received, pursuant to this Grant. Further, Grantee shall require all of its contractors to
incorporate in all subcontracts the language set forth in this paragraph prohibiting conflicts of interest.

(vii) No funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Grantee, to any person for influencing or

attempting to influence an officer or employee of this or any agency or body in connection with the awarding of
any Third Party Obligation and that the Grantee shall require certifying language prohibiting lobbying to be
included in the award documents for all subawards, including subcontracts, loans and cooperative agreements.
All subrecipients shall be required to certify accordingly.

ARTICLE XI. STRICT ACCOUNTABILITY OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS; PROJECT

RECORDS

A. The Grantee shall be strictly accountable for receipts and disbursements relating to the Project's funds. The
Grantee shall follow generally accepted accounting principles, and, if feasible, maintain a separate bank account or fund
with a separate organizational code, for the funds to assure separate budgeting and accounting of the funds.

B. For a period of five (5) years following the Project's completion, the Grantee shall maintain all Project related
records, including, but not limited to, all financial records, requests for proposals, invitations to bid, selection and award
criteria, contracts and subcontracts, advertisements, minutes of pertinent meetings, as well as records sufficient to fully
account for the amount and disposition of the total funids from all sources budgeted for the Project, the purpose for which
such funds were used, and such other records as the Department shall prescribe.

Page 8 of 14



C. The Grantee shall make all Project records available to the Department, the Department of Finance and
Administration, and the New Mexico State Auditor upon request. With respect to the funds that are the subject of this
Agreement, if the State Auditor or the Department of Finance and Administration finds that any or all of these funds
were impropetly expended, the Grantee may be required to reimburse to the State of New Mexico, to the originating
fund, any and all amounts found to be improperly expended.

ARTICLE XII. IMPROPERLY REIMBURSED FUNDS

If the Department determines that part or all of the Appropriation Amount was improperly reimbursed to Grantee,
including but not limited to, Project funds reimbursed to Grantee based upon fraud, mismanagement, misrepresentation,
misuse, violation of law by the Grantee, or violation of this Agreement, the Grantee shall return such funds to the
Department for disposition in accordance with law.

ARTICLE XIII. LIABILITY

Neither party shall be responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other party's acts or omissions in connection with
this Agreement. Any liability incurred in connection with this Agreement is subject to immunities and limitations of the
New Mexico Tort Claims Act.

ARTICLE XIV. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

Th1s Agreement constitutes the entire and exclusive agreement between the Grantee and Department concerning the
subject matter hereof. The Agreement supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings,
discussions, communications, and representations, written or verbal.

ARTICLE XV. REQUIRED NON-APPROPRIATIONS CLAUSE IN CONTRACTS FUNDED IN
WHOLE OR PART BY FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT

The Grantee acknowledges, warrants, and agrees that Grantee shall include a "non-appropriations" clause in all contracts
between it and other parties that are (i) funded in whole or part by funds made available under this Agreement and (i1)
entered into after the effective date of this Agreement that states:

“The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorization being made by the
Legislature of New Mexico for the performance of this Agreement. If sufficient appropriations and authorization are not
made by the Legislature, the Torrance County may immediately terminate this Agreement by giving Contractor written
notice of such termination. The Torrance County’s decision as to whether sufficient appropriations are available shall
be accepted by the Contractor and shall be final. Contractor hereby waives any rights to assert an impairment of contract
claim against the Torrance County, the Department of Finance and Administration, Local Government Division
(DFA/LGD), or the State of New Mexico in the event of immediate or Early Termination of thlS Agreement by the
Torrance County or the Department."

ARTICLE XVI. RE( zUIRED TERMINATION CLAUSE IN CONTRACTS FUNDED IN WHOLE

OR PART BY FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT

Grantee acknowledges, warrants, and agrees that Grantee shall include the following or a termination clause in all
contracts that are (i) funded in whole or part by funds made available under this Agreement and (ii) entered into after the
effective date of this Agreement:

“This contract is funded in whole or in part by funds made available under DFA/LGD Grant Agreement. Should
DFA/LGD early terminate the grant agreement, the Torrance County may early terminate this

Page 9 of 14



contract by providing Contractor written notice of such termination. In the event of termination pursuant to this
paragraph, the Torrance County's only liability shall be to pay Contractor for acceptable goods delivered and
services rendered before the termination date."

Grantee hereby waives any rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the Department or the State of New
Mexico in the event of Early Termination of this Agreement by the Department.

ARTICLE XVII. COMPLIANCE WITH UNIFORM FUNDING CRITERIA

A. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Grantee shall:

1. submit all reports of annual audits and agreed upon procedures required by Section 12- 6 -3(A)-(B) NMSA 1978
by the due dates established in 2.2.2 NMAC, reports of which must be a public record pursuant to Section 12-6- -5(A) ’
NMSA 1978 within forty-five days of delivery to the State Auditor;

2. have a duly adopted budget for the current fiscal year approved by its budgetary oversight agency (if any);

3. timely submit all required financial reports to its budgetary oversight agency (if any); and :

4. have adequate accounting methods and procedures to expend grant funds in accordance with applicable law and
account for and safeguard grant funds and assets acquired by grant funds.

B. In the event Grantee fails to comply with the requirements of Paragraph A of this Article XVIL, the Department
may take one or more of the following actions:

1. suspend new or further obligations pursuant to Article VI(A) of this Agreement;

2. require the Grantee to develop and implement a written corrective action plan pursuant to Article VI(D) of this
Agreement to remedy the non-compliance;

3. impose special grant conditions to address the non-compliance by giving the Grantee notice of such special
conditions in accordance with Article III of this Agreement; the special conditions shall be binding and effective on the
date that notice is deemed to have been given pursuant to Article IIT; or

4. terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article V (A) of this Agreement.

ARTiCLE XVIIL SEVERANCE TAX BOND PROJECT AND GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
PROJECT CLAUSES

" A. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the underlying appropriation for the Project is a severance tax bond or
general obligation bond appropriation, and that the associated bond proceeds are administered by the New Mexico State
Board of Finance (SBOF), an entity separate and distinct from the Department. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that
(i) it is Grantee's sole and absolute responsibility to determine through SBOF staff what (if any) conditions are currently
imposed on the Project; (ii) the Department's failure to inform Grantee of a SBOF imposed condition does not affect the
validity or enforceability of the condition; (iii) the SBOF may in the future impose further or different conditions upon the
Project; (iv) all SBOF conditions are effective without amendment of this Agreement; (v) all applicable SBOF conditions
must be satisfied before the SBOF will release to the Department funds subject to the condition(s); and (vi) the
Department's obligation to reimburse Grantee from the Project is contingent upon the then current SBOF conditions
being satisfied.

B. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that SBOF may in its sole and absolute discretion remove a project's assigned
bond proceeds if the project doesn't proceed sufficiently. Entities must comply with the requirement to encumber five
percent (5%) of Project funds within six months of bond issuance as certified by the grantee in the Bond Questionnaire
and Certification documents submitted to the SBOF. Failure to comply may result in the bond proceeds reassignment to a
new ready project. If this should occur this grant agreement will be suspended until the entity has demonstrated readiness
as determined by the SBOF and the Department.

C. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that this agreement is subject to the SBOF's Bond Project Disbursements

Page 10 of 14



rule, NMAC 2.61.6, as may be amended or re-codified. The rule provides definitions and interpretations of grant

language for the purpose of determining whether a particular activity is allowable under the authorizing language of the
agreement. |

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

Page 11 of 14



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed Agreement as of the date of execution by
the Department.

GRANTEE

Entity Name

By:

(Type or Print Name)

Its: ,
(Type or Print Title)

Signature of Official with Authority to Bind Grantee

Date

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION

Its: Division Director

Signature

Date

Page 12 of 14



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CAPITAL GRANT PROJECT
Request for Payment Form
Exhibit 1
I Grantee Information ll. Payment Computation
(Make sure information is complete & accurate) A. Payment Request No.
A Grantee: B. Grant Amount:
B. Address: C. AIPP Amount (If Applicable) :
(Cormiplote Mailing, including Suile, If applicable) D, Funds Reguested to Date:
E. Amount Requested this Payment;
Cily, State, Zip F. Reversion Amount (if Applicable ):
C. Phone No: G. Grant Balance; '
D. Grant No: H. [JGF CleoB ] STB (attach wire it first draw)
E. Project Title: 1. []Final Request for Payment (If Applicable)
F. Grant Expiration Date:
. Fiscal Year:
(The Stale of NM Flscal Year Is Jitly 1, 20XX through June 30, 20XX of the following year)
v. Reporting Certification: i hereby certity to the best of my knowledge and beliet, that database reporting Is up to date; 1o include the aceuracy of
expenditures and grant balance, project status, project phase, achievements and milestones; and in compliance with Article VI of the Capital Qullay Grant
Agreement.
V. Compliance Certification: under penally of law, | hereby certify to the best of my knowledge and belief, the above information is carrect:
expenditures are properly documented, and are valid expenditures or actua receipts; and that the grant activity is in full compliance with Article IX, Sec. 14 of the
New Mexico Constitution known as the "anti donation” clause.
Grantee Fiscal Officer : Grantee Representative

or Fiscal Agent (if applicable )

Printed Name _ Printed Name

Date: Date:

('State Ag_;ency Use Only)

Vendor Code: Fund No.: Loc No.:

| certify that the State Agency financial and vendor file information agree with the abm)e submifted information.

Division Fiscal Officer Date Division Project Manager

Page 13 of 14

Date




Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee #

DATE:
TO: Department Representative: : R
FROM: Grantee Entity:

Grantee Official Representative:

SUBJECT: Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee

Grant Number:

Grant Termination Date:

As the designated representative of the Depattment for Grant Agreement number

entered into between Grantee and the Department, I certify that the Grantee has submitted to the Department the
following third party obligation executed, in writing, by the third party’s authorized representative:

Vendor or Contractor:

Third Party Obligation Amount:

Vendor or Contractor:

Third I.’arty Obligation Amount:

I certify that the State is issuing this Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee for permissible purposes within
the scope of the project description, subject to all the terms and conditions of the above referenced Grant
Agreement.

Grant Amount (Mirius AIPP if applicable):
The Amount of this Notice of .Ob]igation:

The Total Amount of all Previously Issued Notices of Obligation:

The Total Amount of all Notices of Obligation to Date: , $ 0.00

Note: Contract antonnts may exceed the totol grqnt amonnt, but the inveices paid by the grant will not exceed the grant amount,

Department Rep. Approver:
Title:

Signature:

Date:

1 Administrative and/or Indirect Cost — generally, the legislation authotizing the issuance of bonds prohibits the use of its proceeds for
indirect expenses (e.g. penalty fees or damages other than pay for work performed, attorney fees, and administrative fees). Such use of
bond proceeds shall not be allowed unless specifically authorized by statute.

Page 14 of 14



Agenda Item
No. 11-F



TORRANCE COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSONERS
RESOLUTION NO. R 2021- '

ACCEPTANCE OF AGREEMENT FOR CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT
TORRANCE COUNTY FAIR GROUNDS IMPROVEMENTS
20-E2775

WHEREAS, in the Laws of 2020, Chapter 81, Section 35, Paragraph 432; the
Legislature made an appropriation to the Department of Finance and Administration through the
Local Government Division, hereinafter called “DFA/LGD,” to make available to Torrance
County, hereinafter called the “Grantee,” and

"-WHEREAS, the DFA/LGD is granting to Grantee funding not to exceed One Hundred
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000.00) to plan, design, construct and equip improvements to the
county fairgrounds in Estancia in Torrance County, and

WHEREAS, the DFA/LGD has submitted agreement 20-E2775 to grantee for
acceptance; and

-NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body of TORRANCE
COUNTY that Torrance County agrees to the terms set forth in the agreement and Janice Y.
Barela, County Manager, or successor, ot her alternate, Philip Tenorio, Deputy County Manager,
or successot, is authorized on behalf of the County to sign the Grant Agreement for this project,
act as the project contact, and serve as the point of contact to sign all other documents necessary
to fulfill the Grant Agreement and requirements.

DONE THIS 24" DAY OF February, 2021,

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

County Attorney Date : Ryan Schwebach, Chair

Kevin McCall, Vice Chair

LeRoy Candelaria, Member
ATTEST:

Yvonne Otero, County Clerk
Date:




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
FUND 89200 CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this - day of ,20__,byand
between the Department of Finance and Administration, State of New Mexico, acting through the Local
Government Division, Bataan Memorial Building, Room 202, Santa Fe, New Mexico, 87501, hereinafter called
the "Department" or abbreviation such as "DFA/LGD", and the Torrance County, hereinafter called the
"Grantee." This Agreement shall be effective as of the date it is executed by the Department.

\ RECITALS

WHEREAS, in the Laws of 2020, Chapter 81, Section 35, Para. 43 1, the Legislature made an
appropriation to the Department, funds from which the Department is making available to the Grantee pursuant
to this Agreement; and :

WHEREAS, the Department is granting to Grantee, and the Grantee is accepting the grant of, funds from
this appropriation, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 9-6-5 and 9-6-5.1 NMSA 1978, the Secretary of the Department of
Finance and Administration has the power and the authority to (i) maintain long-range estimates and plans for
capital projects and develop standards for measuring the need for, and utility of, proposed projects; (ii) contract
for, receive and utilize any grants or other financial assistance made available by the United States government’
or by any other source, public or private; (iii) provide planning and funding assistance to units of local '
government, council of government organizations, Indian tribal governments situated within New Mexico, and to
nonprofit entities having for their purpose local, regional or community betterment; (iv) incident to any such
programs, may enter into contracts and agreements with such units of local government, council of government
organizations, Indian tribal governments, nonprofit entities and the federal government; and (v) delegate such
authority to the Local Government Division as being necessary and appropriate to such delegation;

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations contained herein, the
parties hereby mutually agree as follows:

ARTICLE L. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, AMOUNT OF GRANT AND REVERSION DATE
A. The project that is the subject of this Agreement is described as follows:

20-E2775 $150.000.00 Appropriation Reversion Date: 30-JUN-24

Laws of 2020, Chapter 81, Section 35, Para. 431, One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars
($150,000.00) to plan, design, construct and equip improvements to the county fairgrounds in
Estancia in Torrance county.

Page 1 of 14



The Grantee's total reimbursements shall not exceed One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (8150.000.00) (the
"Appropriation Amount") minus the allocation for Art in Public Places ("AIPP amount") , if applicable, Zero
Dollars ($0.00), which equals One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000.00) (the "Adjusted
Appropriation Amount").

In the event of a conflict among the Appropriation Amount, the Reversion Date, as defined herein and/or the
purpose of the Project, as set forth in this Agreement, and the corresponding appropriation language in the laws
cited above in this Article I (A), the language of the laws cited herein shall control.

This project is referred to throughout the remainder of this Agreement as the "Project"; the information
contained in Article I (A) is referred to collectively throughout the remainder of this Agreement as the
"Project Description”. The Grantee shall reference the Project's number in all correspondence with and
submissions to the Department concerning the Project, including, but not limited to, Requests for Payment
and reports.

ARTICLE I1. LIMITATION ON DEPARTMENT'S OBLIGATION TO MAKE GRANT
DISBURSEMENT TO GRANTEE

A. Upon the Effective Date of this Agreement, for permissible purposes within the scope of the Project
Description, the Grantee shall only be reimbursed monies for which the Department has issued and the Grantee
has received a Notice of Department's Obligation to Reimburse Grantee (hereinafter referred to as "Notice of
Obligation"). This Grant Agreement and the disbursement of any and all amounts of the above referenced
Adjusted Appropriation Amount are expressly conditioned upon the following: ,

(i) Irrespective of any Notice of Obligation, the Grantee's expenditures shall be made on or before the Reversion
Date and, if applicable, an Early Termination Date (i.e., the goods have been delivered and accepted or the title to
the goods has been transferred to the Grantee and/or the services have been rendered for the Grantee); and

(i) The total amount received by the Grantee shall not exceed the lesser of: (a) the Adjusted Appropriation Amount
identified in Article I(A) herein or (b) the total of all amounts stated in the Notice(s) of Obligation evidencing that
the Department has received and accepted the Grantee's Third Party Obligation(s), as defined in subparagraph iii
of this Article II(A); and v

(i) The Grantee's expenditures were made pursuant to the State Procurement Code and execution of binding written
obligations or purchase orders with third party contractors or vendors for the provision of services, including
professional services, or the purchase of tangible personal property and real property for the Project, hereinafter
referred to as "Third Party Obligations"; and '

(iv) The Grantee's submittal of timely Requests for Payment in accordance with the procedures set forth in Article IX
of this Agreement; and '

(v) In the event that capital assets acquired with Project funds are to be sold, leased, or licensed to or operated by a
private entity, the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement:
a. must be approved by the applicable oversight entity (if any) in accordance with law; or
b. ifno oversight entity is required to approve of the transaction, the Department must approve the transaction as

complying with law.

Prior to the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement being approved pursuant to Articles II(A)(v)(a) and
II(A)(v)(b) herein, the Department may, in its sole and absolute discretion and unless inconsistent with New
Mexico State Board of Finance imposed conditions, reimburse the Grantee for necessary expenditures incurred to
develop the Project sufficiently to make the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement commercially feasible,
such as plan and design expenditures; and

[1] The AIPP amount is "an amount of money equal to one percent or two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000), whichever is less, of the amount of money appropriated for new
construction or any major renovation exceeding one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000)." Section 13-4A-4 NMSA 1978, )

[2] "Reimburse" as used throughout this Agresment includes Department payments to the Grantee for invoices received, but not yet paid, by the Grantee from a third party contractor or
vendor, if the invoices comply with the provisions of this Agreement and ate a valid liability of the Grantee.

Page 2 of 14



(vi) The Grantee's submission of documentation of all Third Party Obligations and amendments thereto (including
terminations) to the Department and the Department's issuance and the Grantee's receiving of a Notice of
Obligation for a particular amount in accordance with the terms of this Agreement shall be governed by the

following:

a. The Grantee shall submit to the Department one copy of all Third Party Obligations and amendments thereto
(including terminations) as soon as possible after execution by the Third Party but prior to execution by the
Grantee.

b. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that if it chooses to enter into a Third Party Obligation prior to receiving a
Notice of Obligation that covers the expenditure, it is solely responsible for such obligations.

c. The Department may, in its sole and absolute discretion, issue to Grantee a Notice of Obligation for the
particular amount of that Third Party Obligation that only obligates the Department to reimburse Grantee's
expenditures made on or before the Reversion Date or an Early Termination Date. The current Notice of
Obligation form is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 2.

d. The date the Department signs the Notice of Obligation is the date that the Department's Notice of Obligation

is effective. After that date, the Grantee is authorized to budget the particular amount set forth in the Notice
of Obligation, execute the Third Party Obligation and request the Third Party to begin work. Payment for any
work performed or goods received prior to the effective date of the Notice of Obligation is wholly and solely
the obligation of the Grantee.

B.  The Grantee shall implement, in all respects, the Project. The Grantee shall provide all necessary qualified
personnel, material, and facilities to implement the Project. The Grantee shall finance its share (if any) of the
costs of the Project, including all Project overruns.

C. Project funds shall not be used for purposes other than those specified in the Project Description.

D. Unless specifically allowed by law, Project funds cannot be used to reimburse Grantee for indirect Project costs.

ARTICLE II1. NOTICE PROVISIONS AND GRANTEE AND DEPARTMENT
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES

Whenever written notices, including written decisions, are to be given or received, related to this
Agreement, the following provisions shall apply.

The Grantee designates the person(s) listed below, or their successor as their official
representative(s) concerning all matters related to this Agreement.

Grantee Torrance County

Name Janice Barela

Title County Manager

Address P. O. Box 48, Estancia, NM 87016
Email jbarela@tcnm.us

Telephone 505-544-4703

The Grantee designates the person(s) listed below, or their successor, as their Fiscal Officer or Fiscal
Agent concerning all matters related to this Agreement.

Grantee Torrance County

Name Janice Barela

Title County Manager

Address P. O. Box 48, Estancia, NM 87016
Email jbarela(@tcnm.us

Telephone 505-544-4703

Page 3 of 14



The Department designates the persons listed below, or their successors, as Points of Contact for
matters related to this Agreement.

Department ~ DFA/Local Government Division

Name Maria Urban

Title Project Manager

Address Bataan Memorial Bldg. Rm 202, Santa Fe, NM 87501
Email maria.urban@state.nm.us

Telephone 505-827-8061

The Grantee and the Department agree that either party shall send all notices, including written
decisions, related to this Agreement to the above named persons by email, or regular mail. In the case
of mailings, notices shall be deemed to have been given and received upon the date of the receiving
party's actual receipt or five calendar days after mailing, whichever shall first occur. In the case of
email transmissions, the notice shall be deemed to have been given and received on the date reflected
on the delivery receipt of email.

ARTICLE IV. REVERSION DATE, TERM, DEADLINE TO EXPEND FUNDS

A. As referenced in Article I (A), the applicable law establishes a date by which Project funds must be
expended by Grantee, which is referred to throughout the remainder of this Agreement as the "Reversion Date."
Upon being duly executed by both parties, this Agreement shall be effective as of the date of execution by the
Department. It shall terminate on June 30, 2024, the Reversion Date, unless Terminated Before Reversion Date
("Early Termination") pursuant to Article V herein.

B. The Project's funds must be expended on or before the Reversion Date and, if applicable, Early
Termination Date of this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, it is not sufficient for the Grantee to
encumber the Project funds on its books on or before the Project's Reversion Date or Early Termination Date.
Funds are expended and an expenditure has occurred as of the date that a particular quantity of goods are
delivered to and received by the Grantee or title to the goods is transferred to the Grantee and/or as of the date
particular services are rendered for the Grantee. Funds are not expended and an expenditure has not occurred
as of the date they are encumbered by the Grantee pursuant to a contract or purchase order with a third party.

ARTICLE V. EARLY TERMINATION

A. Early Termination Before Reversion Date Due to Completion of the Project or Complete Expenditure

of the Adjusted Appropriation or Violation of this Agreement

Early Termination includes:
(1) Termination due to completion of the Project before the Reversion Date; or

(i1) Termination due to complete expenditure of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount before the Reversion Date; or
(iii) Termination for violation of the terms of this Agreement; or

(iv) Termination for suspected mishandling of public funds, including but not limited to, fraud, waste, abuse, and
conflicts of interest.

Page 4 of 14



Either the Department or the Grantee may early terminate this Agreement prior to the Reversion Date by providing the -
other party with a minimum of fifteen (15) days' advance, written notice of early termination. Grantee hereby waives any
rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the Department or the State of New Mexico in the event of

Early Termination of this Agreement by the Department pursuant to Article V (A).

B. Early Termination Before Reversion Date Due to Non-Appropriation '

The terms of this Agreement are expressly made contifigent upon sufficient appropriations and authotization being
made by the Legislature of New Mexico for the performance of this Agreement. Throughout this Agreement the term
"non-appropriate" or "non-appropriation" includes the following actions by the New Mexico Legislature: deauthorization,
reauthorization or revocation of a prior authorization. The Legislature may choose to non-appropriate the Appropriation
referred to in Article I and, if that occurs, the Department shall early terminate this Agreement for non-appropriation by
giving the Grantee written notice of such termination, and such termination shall be effective as of the effective date of
 the law making the non-appropriation. The Department's decision as to whether sufficient appropriations or
authorizations are available shall be accepted by the Grantee and shall be final. Grantee hereby waives any rights to
assert an impairment of contract claim against the Department or the State of New Mexico in the event of Early
Termination of this Agreement by the Department pursuant to Article V (B).

C. Limitation on Department's Obligation to Make Grant Disbursements to Grantee in the Event
of Early Termination

In the event of Early Termination of this Agreement by either party, the Department's sole and absolute obligation to
reimburse the Grantee is expressly conditioned upon the limitations set forth Article IL.

ARTICLE VI. SUSPENSION OF NEW OR FURTHER OBLIGATIONS

A. The Department may choose, in its sole and absolute discretion, to provide written notice to the Grantee to
suspend entering into new and further obligations. Upon the receipt of such written notice by the Grantee:

(i) The Grantee shall immediately suspend entering into new or further written obligations with third parties; and

(i) The Department will suspend the issuance of any new or further Notice of Obligation under this Agreement;
and ' ,

(i) The Department may direct the Grantee to implement a corrective action plan in accordance with Article
VI (D) herein. |

B. In the event of Suspension of this Agreement, the Department's sole and absolute obligation to reimburse the
Grantee is expressly conditioned upon the limitations set forth in Article I herein.

C. A suspension of new or further obligations under this Agreement shall remain in effect unless or until the date the
Grantee receives written notice given by the Department informing the Grantee that the Suspension has been lifted or
that the Agreement has been Early Terminated in accordance with Article V herein. If the Suspension is lifted, the
Department will consider further requests for Notice of Obligation,

D. Corrective Action Plan in the Event of Suspension

In the event that the Department chooses, in its sole and absolute discretion to direct the Grantee to suspend entering
into new or further written obligations with third parties pursuant to Article VI (A), the Department may, but is not
obligated to, require the Grantee to develop and implement a written corrective action plan to remedy the grounds for the
Suspension. Such corrective action plan must be approved by the Department and be signed by the Grantee. Failure to
sign a corrective action plan or meet the terms and deadlines set forth in the signed corrective action plan, is hereby
deemed a violation of the terms of this Agreement for purposes of Early Termination, Article V(A)(iii). The corrective
action plan is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other equitable or legal remedy, including but not limited to Early
Termination.

Page 5 of 14



ARTICLE VII. AMENDMENT

This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by instrument in writing duly executed by both the
parties hereto.

ARTICLE VIII. REPORTS

A. Database reporting

The Grantee shall report monthly Project activity by entering such Project information as the Department and the
Department of Finance and Administration may require, such information entered directly into a database maintained by
the Department of Finance and Administration (http://cpms.dfa.state.nm.us). Additionally, the Grantee shall certify on
the Request for Payment form (exhibit 1) that updates have been maintained and are current in the database. The
Grantee hereby acknowledges that failure to perform and/or certify updates into the database will delay or potentially
jeopardize the reimbursement of funds. The Department shall give the Grantee with a minimum of thirty (30) days'
advance written notice of any changes to the information the Grantee is required to report,

Monthly reports shall be due on the last day of each month, beginning with the first full month following execution of
this Agreement by the Department and ending upon the submission of the final request for reimbursement for the
Project.

B. Requests for Additional Information/Project Inspection

During the term of this Agreement and during the period of time during which the Grantee must maintain records
pursuant to Article VIII, the Department may:
(i) request such additional information regarding the Project as it deems necessary; and
(i) conduct, at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, onsite inspections of the Project. Grantee shall
respond to such requests for additional information within a reasonable period of time, as established by the Department.

ARTICLE IX. REQUEST FOR PAYMENT PROCEDURES AND DEADLINES

A. The Grantee shall request payment by submitting a Request for Payment, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 1.
Payment requests are subject to the following procedures:

(i) The Grantee must submit a Request for Payment; and

(ii) Each Request for Payment must contain proof of payment by the Grantee or liabilities incurred by the Grantee
showing that the expenditures are valid or the liabilities incurred by the Grantee in the form of actual unpaid invoices
received by the Grantee for services rendered by a third party or items of tangible personal property received by the
Grantee for the implementation of the Project; provided, however, that the Grantee may be reimbursed for unpaid
liabilities only if the Department, in its sole and absolute discretion, agrees to do so and in accordance with any special
conditions imposed by the Department.

(iii) In cases where the Grantee is submitting a Request for Payment to the Department based upon invoices
received, but not yet paid, by the Grantee from a third party contractor or vendor, if the invoices comply with the
provisions of this Agreement and are a valid liability of the Grantee, the Grantee shall make payment to those contractors
or vendors within five (5) business days from the date of receiving reimbursement from the Department or such shorter
period of time as the Department may prescribe in writing. The Grantee is required to certify to the Department proof of
payment to the third party contractor or vendor within ten (10) business days from the date of receiving reimbursement
from the Department. _

B. The Grantee must obligate 5% of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount within six months of the acceptance of the
grant agreement and must have expended no less than 85% of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount six months prior to
the reversion date,

Page 6 of 14



C. Deadlines
Requests for Payments shall be submitted by Grantee to the Department on the earlier of:

(i) Immediately as they are received by the Grantee but at a minimum of thirty (30) days from when the
expenditure was incurred or liability of the Grantee was approved as evidenced by an unpaid invoice received
by the Grantee from a third party contractor or vendor; or

(ii) July 15 of each year for all unreimbursed incurred during the previous fiscal year; or
(iii) Twenty (20) days from the date of Early Termination; or
(iv) Twenty (20) days from the reversion date.

D. The Grantee's failure to abide by the requirements set forth in Article II and Article IX herein will result in
the denial of its Request for Payment or will delay the processing of Requests for Payment. The Department has
the right to reject a payment request for the Project unless and until it is satisfied that the expenditures in the
Request for Payment are for permissible purposes within the meaning of the Project Description and that the
expenditures and the Grantee are otherwise in compliance with this Agreement, including but not limited to,
compliance with the reporting requirements and the requirements set forth in Article II herein to provide Third
Party Obligations and the Deadlines set forth in Article IX herein. The Department's ability to reject any Request
for Payment is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other legal or equitable remedy available to the Department
due to Grantee's violation of this Agreement.

ARTICLE X. PROJECT CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS; REPRESENTATIQONS AND
WARRANTIES _ :

A. The following general conditions and restrictions are applicable to the Project:

(i) The Project's funds must be spent in accordance with all applicable state laws, regulations, policies, and ‘
guidelines, including, but not limited to, the State Procurement Code (or local procurement ordinance, where
applicable). '

(i) The project must be implemented in accordance with the New Mexico Public Works Minimum Works Act,
Section 13-4-10 through 13-4-17 NMSA 1978, as applicable, Every contract or project in excess of sixty
thousand dollars ($60,000) that the Grantee is a party to for construction, alteration, demolition or repair or any
combination of these, including painting and decorating, of public buildings, public works or public roads and that
requires or involves the employment of mechanics; laborers or both shall contain a provision stating the
minimum wages and fringe benefits to be paid to various classes of laborers and mechanics, shall be based
upon the wages and benefits that will be determined by the New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions
to be prevailing for the corresponding classes of laborers and mechanics employed on contract work of a
similar nature in the locality. Further, every contract or project shall contain a stipulation that the contractor,
subcontractor, employer or a person acting as a contractor shall pay all mechanics and laborers employed on
the site of the project, unconditionally and not less often than once a week and without subsequent unlawful
deduction or rebate on any account, the full amounts accrued at time of payment computed at wage rates and
fringe benefit rates not less than those determined pursuant to Section 13-4-11 (B) NMSA 1978 to be the
prevailing wage rates and prevailing fringe benefit rates issued for the project,

(iif) The Project may only benefit private entities in accordance with applicable law, including, but not limited to,
Article IX, Section 14 of the Constitution of the State of New Mexico, "Anti-Donation Clause."

(iv) The Grantee shall not for a period of 10 years, from the date of this agreement convert any property acquired,
built, renovated, required, designed or developed with the Project's funds to uses other than those specified in
the Project Description without the Department's and the Board of Finance's express, advance written
approval, which may include requirement to reimburse the State for the cost of the project, transfer proceeds
from the disposition of property to the State, or otherwise provide consideration to the State.

Page 7 of 14



(v) The Grantee shall comply with all federal and state laws, rules and regulations pertaining to equal employment
opportunity. In accordance with all such laws, rules and regulations the Grantee agrees to assure that no person
shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, sexual preference, age or handicap, be excluded from
employment with Grantee, be excluded from participation in the Project, be denied benefits or otherwise be
subject to discrimination under, any activity performed under this Agreement. If Grantee is found to be not in
compliance with these requirements during the life of this Agreement, Grantee agrees to take appropriate steps
to correct any deficiencies. The Grantee's failure to implement such appropriate steps within a reasonable time
constitutes grounds for terminating this Agreement.

B. The Grantee hereby represents and warrants the following:
(i) The Grantee has the legal authority to receive and expend the Project's funds.

(i) This Agreement has been duly authorized by the Grantee, the person executing this Agreement has authority to
- do so, and, once executed by the Grantee, this Agreement shall constitute a binding obligation of the Grantee,
enforceable according to its terms.

(iii) This Agreement and the Grantee's obligations hereunder do not conflict with any law or ordinance or resolution
applicable to the Grantee, the Grantee's charter (if applicable), or any judgment or decree to which the Grantee
is subject.

(iv) The Grantee has independently confirmed that the Project Description, including, but not limited to, the amount
and Reversion Date, is consistent with the underlying appropriation in law. '

(v) The Grantee's governing body has duly adopted or passed as an official act a resolution, motion, or similar
action authorizing the person identified as the official representative of the Grantee to sign the Agreement and
to sign Requests for Payment.

(vi) The Grantee shall abide by New Mexico laws regarding conflicts of interest, governmental conduct and
whistleblower protection. The Grantee specifically agrees that no officer or employee of the local jurisdiction or
its designees or agents, no member of the governing body, and no other public official of the locality who
exercises any function or responsibility with respect to this Grant, during their tenure or for one year thereafter,
shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be
performed or goods to be received, pursuant to this Grant. Further, Grantee shall require all of its contractors to
incorporate in all subcontracts the language set forth in this paragraph prohibiting conflicts of interest.

(vii) No funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Grantee, to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of this or any agency or body in connection with the awarding of
any Third Party Obligation and that the Grantee shall require certifying language prohibiting lobbying to be
included in the award documents for all subawards, including subcontracts, loans and cooperative agreements.
All subrecipients shall be required to certify accordingly.

ARTICLE XI. STRICT ACCOUNTABILITY OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS; PROJECT
RECORDS : 9

A. The Grantee shall be strictly accountable for receipts and disbursements relating to the Project's funds. The
Grantee shall follow generally accepted accounting principles, and, if feasible, maintain a separate bank account or fund
with a separate organizational code, for the funds to assure separate budgeting and accounting of the funds.

B. For a period of five (5) years following the Project's completion, the Grantee shall maintain all Project related
records, including, but not limited to, all financial records, requests for proposals, invitations to bid, selection and award
criteria, contracts and subcontracts, advertisements, minutes of pertinent meetings, as well as records sufficient to fully
account for the amount and disposition of the total funds from all sources budgeted for the Project, the purpose for which
* such funds were used, and such other records as the Department shall prescribe.

" Page 8 of 14



C. The Grantee shall make all Project records available to the Department, the Departrient of Finance and
Administration, and the New Mexico State Auditor upon request. With respect to the funds that are the subject of this
Agreement, if the State Auditor or the Department of Finance and Administration finds that any or all of these funds
were improperly expended, the Grantee may be required to reimburse to the State of New Mexico, to the originating
fund, any and all amounts found to be improperly expended.

ARTICLE XII. IMPROPERLY REIMBURSED FUNDS

If the Department determines that part or all of the Appropriation Amount was improperly reimbursed to Grantee,
including but not limited to, Project funds reimbursed to Grantee based upon fraud, mismanagement, misrepresentation,
misuse, violation of law by the Grantee, or violation of this Agreement, the Grantee shall return such funds to the
Department for disposition in accordance with law.

ARTICLE XTI LIABILITY

Neither party shall be responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other party's acts or omissions in connection with
this Agreement. Any liability incurred in connection with this Agreement is subject to immunities and limitations of the
New Mexico Tort Claims Act. _ -

ARTICLE XIV. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire and exclusive agreement between the Grantee and Department concerning the
subject matter hereof, The Agreement supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings,
discussions, communications, and representations, written or verbal.

ARTICLE XV. RE UIRED'NON-APPROPRIATION S CLAUSE IN CONTRACTS FUNDED IN
WHOLE OR PART BY FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT

The Grantee acknowlédges, warrants, and agrees that Grantee shall include a "non-appropriations" clause in all contracts
between it and other parties that are (i) funded in whole or part by funds made available under this Agreement and (ii)
entered into after the effective date of this Agreement that states: '

“The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorization being made by the
Legislature of New Mexico for the performance of this Agreement. If sufficient appropriations and authorization are not
made by the Legislature, the Torrance County may immediately terminate this Agreement by giving Contractor written
notice of such termination. The Torrance County’s decision as to whether sufficient appropriations are available shall
be accepted by the Contractor and shall be final. Contractor hereby waives any rights to assert an impairment of contract
claim against the Torrance County, the Department of Finance and Administration, Local Government Division
(DFA/LGD), or the State of New Mexico in the event of immediate or Early Termination of this Agreement by the
Torrance County or the Department."

ARTICLE XVI. REQUIRED TERMINATION CLAUSE IN CONTRACTS FUNDED IN WHOLE

OR PART BY FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT

Grantee acknowledges, warrants, and agrees that Grantee shall include the following or a termination clause in all
contracts that are (i) funded in whole or part by funds made available under this Agreement and (ii) entered into after the
effective date of this Agreement:

“This contract is funded in whole or in part by funds made available under DFA/LGD Grant Agreement. Should
DFA/LGD early terminate the grant agreement, the Torrance County may early terminate this

Page 9 of 14



contract by providing Contractor written notice of such termination. In the event of termination pursuant to this
paragraph, the Torrance County's only liability shall be to pay Contractor for acceptable goods delivered and
servicesrendered before the termination date."

Grantee hereby waives any rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the Department or the State of New
Mexico in the event of Early Termination of this Agreement by the Department.

ARTICLE XVII. COMPLIANCE WITH UNIFORM FUNDING CRITERIA

A. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Grantee shall:

1. submit all reports of annual audits and agreed upon procedures required by Section 12-6-3 (A)-(B) NMSA 1978
by the due dates established in 2.2.2 NMAC, reports of which must be a public record pursuant to Section 12-6-5(A)
NMSA 1978 within forty-five days of delivery to the State Auditor;

2. have a duly adopted budget for the current fiscal year approved by its budgetary oversight agency (if any);

3. timely submit all required financial reports to its budgetary oversight agency (if any); and

4. have adequate accounting methods and procedures to expend grant funds in accordance with applicable law and
account for and safeguard grant funds and assets acquired by grant funds.

B. In the event Grantee fails to comply with the requirements of Paragraph A of this Article XVII, the Department
may take one or more of the following actions:

1. suspend new or further obligations pursuant to Article VI(A) of this Agreement;

2. require the Grantee to develop and implement a written corrective action plan pursuant to Article VI(D) of this
Agreement to remedy the non-compliance;

3. impose special grant conditions to address the non-compliance by giving the Grantee notice of such special
conditions in accordance with Article III of this Agreement; the special conditions shall be binding and effective on the
date that notice is deemed to have been given pursuant to Article III; or ' '

4. terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article V (A) of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XVIII. SEVERANCE TAX BOND PROJECT AND GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
PROJECT CLAUSES

A. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the underlying appropriation for the Project is a severance tax bond or
general obligation bond appropriation, and that the associated bond proceeds are administered by the New Mexico State
Board of Finance (SBOF), an entity separate and distinct from the Department. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that
(i) it is Grantee's sole and absolute responsibility to determine through SBOF staff what (if any) conditions are currently
imposed on the Project; (ii) the Department's failure to inform Grantee of a SBOF imposed condition does not affect the
validity or enforceability of the condition; (iii) the SBOF may in the future impose further or different conditions upon the
Project; (iv) all SBOF conditions are effective without amendment of this Agreement; (v) all applicable SBOF conditions
must be satisfied before the SBOF will release to the Department funds subject to the condition(s); and (vi) the
Department's obligation to reimburse Grantee from the Project is contingent upon the then current SBOF conditions
being satisfied.

B. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that SBOF may in its sole and absolute discretion remove a project's assigned
bond proceeds if the project doesn't proceed sufficiently. Entities must comply with the requirement to encumber five
percent (5%) of Project funds within six months of bond issuance as certified by the grantee in the Bond Questionnaire
and Certification documents submitted to the SBOF. Failure to comply may result in the bond proceeds reassignment to a
new ready project. If this should occur this grant agreement will be suspended until the entity has demonstrated readiness
as determined by the SBOF and the Department.

C. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that this agreement is subject to the SBOF's Bond Project Disbursements

Page 10 0f 14



rule, NMAC 2.61.6, as may be amended or re-codified. The rule provides definitions and interpretations of grant
language for the purpose of determining whether a particular activity is allowable under the authorizing language of the
agreement. |

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

Page 11 of 14



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed Agreement as of the date of execution by
the Department,

GRANTEE

Entity Name

By:

(Type or Print Name)

Its:
(Type or Print Title)

Signature of Official with Authority to Bind Grantee

Date

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION

Its: Division Director

Signature

Date

Page 12 of 14



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CAPITAL GRANT PROJECT
Request for Payment Form
Exhibit 1
L Grantee Information il. Payment Computation
(Make sure information is complete & ascurate) A. Payment Request No.
A Grantee: B. Grant Amount; _
B. Address: C. AIPP Amount (If Applicable) :
(Completo Malling, inclding Sulte, If spplicable) D. Funds Requested to Date:
E. Amount Requested this Payment:
Chy, State, Zip F. Reversion Amount (If Applicable ).
C. Pheone No: G. Grant Balance:
D. Grant No: H [JGF [(IcoB  []1STB (attach wire if first draw)
E. Project Title: I [T] Final Request for Payment (if Applicable )
F, Grant Expiration Date:
] Fiscal Year :
(The State of NM Fiscal Year Is July 1, 20XX through June 30, 20XX of the following year)
v. Reporting Certification: 1 hereny certify to the best of my knowledge and belief, that database raporting Is up o date; to Include the accuracy of
E‘:’] expenditures and grant balance, project status, project phase, achievements and milestones; and in comphance with Article Vil of the Capital Qutlay Grant
Agreement.
V. Compliance Certification: Under penalty of law, | hereby certify to the best of my knowledge and bellef, the above information Is correct;
"expenditures are properly documented, and are valid expenditures or actual recelpts; and that the grant activity is in full compliance with Article IX, Sec. 14 of the
New Mexico Constitution known as the "anti donation” clause,
Grantee Fiscal Officer Grantee Representative

or Fiscal Agent (if applicable )

Printed Name ‘Printed Name

Date: Date:

(State Agency Use Only)

Vendor Code: Fund No.: Loe No.:

1 certify that the State Agency financial and vendor file information agree with the abdve submitted information.

Division Fiscal Officer Date Division Project Manager Date

Page 13 of 14



Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee #

DATE:
TO: Department Representative:
FROM: Grantee Entity:

Grantee Official Representative:
SUBJECT: Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee

Grant Number:

Grant Termination Date:

As the designated representative of the Department for Grant Agreement numnber
entered into between Grantee and the Depattment, I certify that the Grantee has submitted to the Department the
following third party obligation executed, in writing, by the third pasty’s authonzed representative:

Vendor or Contractor:

Thitd Party Obligation Amount:

Vendor or Contractor:

Third Party Obligation Amount:

I certify that the State is issuing this Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee for permissible purposes within
the scope of the project description, subject to all the terms and conditions of the above referenced Grant
Agreement.

Grant Amount (Minus AIPP if applicable):
The Amount of this Notice of Obligation:

The Total Amount of all Previously Issued Notices of Obligation:

The Total Amount of all Notices of Obligation to Date: $ 0.00

Note: Contract amosunts may exceed the total grant amount, but the invoices paid by the grant will not exceed the grant amount.,

Department Rep. Approver:

Title:

Signature:

Date:

1 Administrative and/or Indirect Cost — generally, the legislation authorizing the issuance of bonds prohibits the use of its proceeds for
indirect expenses (e.g. penalty fees or damages other than pay for wotk performed, attorney fees, and administative fees). Such use of
bond proceeds shall not be allowed unless specifically anthorized by statute.

Page 14 of 14



Agenda Item
No. 12-A



Application Cover Sheet
FY22 Local DWI Program Distribution and Grant Funding
Local Government Division - DFA

County/Municipality: TORRANCE COUNTY

DWI Program Coordinator: Address where payment is received as listed on current W-9:

Name: DR. TRACEY MASTER Contact Person: TRACY SEDILLO
Address: PO BOX 2902 Mailing Address: pPoBOX 318

City, Zip: ESTANCIA 87016 City, Zip: ESTANCIA 87016
Telephone: 505-705-0332 Telephone: 505-544-4800
E-Mail: TMASTER@TCNM.US E-Mail: TSEDILLO@TCNM.US

Indicate amounts budgeted for each component area. -

Distribution Grant Component Total
Prevention $46,787.00 $49,500.00 $ 96,287.00
Law Enforcement $10,000.00  §$ 15,000.00 $ 25,000.00
Scrsoning $0.00 $0.00 $ 0.00
Treatment $ 0.00 $ 11,100.00 $ 11,100.00
Compl. Mtr.ftrack $ 1,850.00 $0.00 $ 1,850.00
Coord/Plana. Eval. $14,850.00 $62,403.00 $ 77,253.00
Alt. Sentencing - $23,300.00 ©  $0.00 $ 23,300.00
Total $96,787.00  $138,003.00 $ 234,790.00
Total Distrib. Total Grant Total Program
Request Request Request

Certification:

The attached resolution adopted by the governing body of __TORRANCECOUNTY on _ 2/242021 authorizes the
. (Applicant) (Date)

applicant to file this application for assistance from the State of New Mexico. To the best of my knowledge,

the information presented in this application is true and correct.

RYAN SCHWEBACH, COMMISSION CHAIR

Printed Name/Title Signature of County Commissioner/Mayor

Revised: January 2020



Agenda Item
No. 12-B



New Mexico Behavioral Health Collaborative

AT WIANTH GO
v SIS,

'A;;‘;"? ./ AN Secretary David R. Scrase, M.D.—Chair  Secretary Kathfeen Kunkel— Co-Chair
(':' N 74 'z\ Bryce Pittenger, LPCC—Interim CED
G M/) )
N, o 7
§ ~£¥v ;\;\f*‘f'g‘
02/05/2021
Torrance County
300 S. 8th St.

Estancia, NM 87016

Dear Torrance County,

For the CYFD BHS State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2021 funding for the 12-month period from July 1,
2020 through June 30, 2021, these dollars were provided by CYFD BHS and are the latest
values as of the date of this letter. While these allocations are being provided to you, please
note that these are subject to change and may change in the future contigent upon, but not
limited to, funding availability and expenditure rates. Expenditure rates will be closely

monitored in SFY 2021 and funds will be reallocated as necessary.

Fund Allocation

Fed : DV-FVPSA10 : Family Violence Prevention Services ACT Grant (8580) : Survivor
Services : $2,000.00

Fed : DV-FVPSA10 : Family Violence Prevention Services ACT Grant (8589) : Survivor
Services : $2,600.00

Fed : DV-FVPSA10 : Family Violence Prevention Services ACT: CARES Act (CARESD) :
Survivor Services : $300.00

State : DV-DVGF20 : GF : Domestic Violence (004307) : DV Offender Treatment and
Intervention : $2,300.00

State : DV-DVGF20 : GF : Domestic Violence (004307) : Survivor Services : $62,712.00
State : DV-DVGF30 : State Match FVPSA (004307) : Survivor Services : $1,000.00

State : DV-DVOTI30 : Domestic Violence Offender (004607) : DV Offender Treatment and

Intervention : $2,400.00

If you have questions regarding your allocations, please contact your CYFD BHS Program
Manager(s).

Best Regards,

Bryce Pittenger, LPCC

Director Behavioral Health Services
Children, Youth and Families Department
1120 Paseo De Peralta RM. 209

Santa Fe, NM 87502

505-280-4370




Cherxl Allen :

From: Anna Martinez

Sent: Monday, February 8, 2021 3:20 PM

To: Cheryl Allen

Subject: FW: Allocation Adjustment to Survivor Services

Attachments: Torrance County CYFD BHS-allocation-letter(193).pdf; TORRANCE - CYFD FY21 Survivor

Line-ltem Template V1.xIsx

" From: Magnusson, Britta, CYFD <Britta.Magnusson@state.nm.us>
Sent: Friday, February 5, 2021 4:25 PM

To: Anna Martinez <amartinez@tcnm.us>

Subject: Allocation Adjustment to Survivor Services

Hey Anna, e MZL;H;

So you have been aprarded additional funding for Survivor Services. $20,712.00 total. I
did take out 18% (#728.16) for the administrative fee and the remainder ($16,983.84)
to Supplies. But you can distribute the money to whatever line items you’d like. You do
need to move funds to “fringe benefits” if you could please.

2i112021 ST 28817 Torrance County Torrance County - Domestic Sunvar Services
Project Office Yolence

Domesho Sunavor Senaces
Violence

It's late Friday, so if you have questions please contact me next week.

Thanks

Buiila Wagnmm”

Domestic Violence Program Specialist
Behavioral Health Setvices, DV Unit

NM Children Youth and Families Department
505-467-9872

Let’s make New Mexico the best place to be a kid " FOSTER or ADOPT a New Mexico Youth: 1-800-432-2075
Report suspected child abuse or neglect by calling #SAFE (#7233) from a cell phone or 1-855-333-SAFE.

% Please print this 2mail only if absolutely necessary...thanks..,
Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail, including all attachments, is fpr the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information.
If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of this message.

Este mensaje (incluyendo los archivos adjuntos) esta dirigido solo al receptor senalado y puede contener informacion de caracter privilegiada, privada o confidencial.
Cualquier otro uso de este mensaje de correo electronico esta prohibido. Si usted no es el receptor senalado o bien ha recibido este mensaje por error, por favor
notifique inmediatamente al remitente y elimine el mensaje original.

1



(0Z0Z AINr) O°T UOISIBA
9210AU| WRYJ-3UIT TZAd HUNAQ ‘ oo

2in1eudis pazuoyiny ‘PAAIDIDI USI(Q PIISPUDI SBIINIBS
359y} 40} JuswAed sey Jou Jojue.d [eiopa4 J0 31e1S Jay30 Aue 40 g4AD 03 parHwgns Ansoinaid
U3 10U sey sDIAISS 353y} Jo JuswAed Joj 1sanbau 1eyy pue me| 3|qedtjdde uaWaa.8yY
12u3IS paziioyiny JO SWeN ' JI3PIA0IG SO J0 2d02S Aw y1im 2oueljdwod ui ‘939]dwod pue S1elndde ‘BNl ale [00] U0I3I3[|0D
e1eq SulAuedwodde pue 8210AUI SIY} Ul PAUIEIUOD SJUNOWE PUB UOIBWIOUI 3Y3 18yl AJI1I3D |

:UoI3eI13I3) J9pInoId

68°'T6E'8C S 68°'16£'8¢C S | :s|exol
G S - S - g
: s - ST - S
= S 5 S - 5
= S 5 S = S $92IAIS JOAIAINS : (0858) VSdA4  OTYSAA-AT
68'T6€'8C S 68'T6E'8C S S22IAIDS JOAIAINS (£0E¥00) : 49 : 0Z49AA-AA
5 m $391AI9S JOAIAINS (£0€¥00) VSdAA
2IBIA 23835 : OE4OAG-AT
= & & g S9IINISS JOAIAING (6858) VSdAd : OTVSIAI-AG
ID3SASHE Ul pa3si| saIunjag
wiozf 3310AUl Y203 YIM 310pdn
aouejeg 0TA4 23uejeg UOLEBIO|Y Jaquinp 3 apo)
Bujureway ‘ padioAu| JUNCWY | SjqejieAy Jualin) P2fouig jood puny

"JUNOWD 3210AUI YID3 Ylm dnyaoq pup a210AuUl [|p1uapl] siya ppojdn ‘yauow siy1 103foad siya

Jof spunf aydianw buidjoaul Jj "uoipauawniop dnyaog puo (00} U01123//0) biod AJyruo yim buojp upisgsHg 01 ppojdn pun (10gody

ul 24nnnbis 21u04123ja asn Abw) ubis ‘Qulid "SUOIIDIOJID [004 PUNH 2JGLJIDAD 01 S2IIAIIS 3[GD|[IG S,yIUOW SIY1 3210AUl pub 7z 3bpd uo
aojonuj 31a9/dwod uay abod sjy1 uo up3SgSHg Woif 123loid siy1 40f (Saoun|pqg JU1IN2) SUOIIDIOJD 3[GLIDAD PUD Sjo0d PUNnf 3|GoJIAD J31UF

o R i I :poniwgns sieq)

S92IAISS JOAIAING
[euIdlO

{yluoN S31oAud
921340 13l04d - Ajuno) sduedlo] “L_mn_>ohn__

9DI0AU| WRY-aUIT TZAS
iU 2IUS[OIA 21SWOT G4AD




(0zoz AInf) 0°T UOISIDA

9210AU| WaY]-aul] TZAd HUNAQ 7 93ed
z & | 1 u1109f04d SI1AIDS JOAINING 104 PIDIOAU] [EIOL
ST'IE0’S S 934 ulwpy : Sl - s $
¥9'SEV’S S $150D 13410 3 S - s % S
7S°0SL°T S S1UB}{NSUO0D/S12B11U0D - S - S = , S >
YT L8€ $ [sanddng weiSoid 109110 00°000°C S 00°000C S {58) VSdAS : 0TVSAAI-AQ IS
10°2C S [9ARI | 68 T6E8C S 68°'T6E'8T $ | (0ev00): 39 : ozona-nafES)
NMHmO-m W s1jauag NMC_LH_ (£0€v00) VSdNd et
YOIBINl 33E3S : OEIONG-AT [
Teeve’ee S jauuosiad (6858) VSdA4 1 OTVSAI-AQ nrou._
UYIUO| IXON 0} PIBMIO [ood (+e3sasHg ui paisi) s
pPadloAU] 2301 souejeg pung yoe3 o3 3d10AU| aouejeg S92IAISS JOAIAING
. Suluieway 0} [e10] jO Junowy uolled0||y ajqejieay plo] ] ?:oo..._ pung
abpd 1xau 3y uo uoIIPUD|AX3 UD J131US PUD dA0GD UOIIIS JUaWISN[pD 126png ay1 ul ay3 uj 1snfpp asnald "%0T Ubyl aJow Aq JuadSIaN0 SUIAY U] 310U 10 SUO dADY NOA
68'16£8C S = S . < | TT'026°6€ S | 00°CTER9 S |feloL
%C' VS T0'€96°S S 2 S | ST'TE0'S S | 9T'766'0T S [#@e4 wwpy
9%08T g 'OF %00°'8T ! 1% 994 ulwpy
88'8TvCT S 5 S 7 S | 96°888VE S | ¥8'LIELS $ |451s0D 1241Q [e301
%8'€ ¢9°c1e S - S | ¥9'SEV’S S | 9T'8¥9°'s S $1s0D 41?410
%9'T1 o917'61C'T S = S | ¥S'0SLT S | 00°000°E S || sweynsuod/s1enuo)
(00°¥€) S - S (00°%€) $ PBpng uo patedoyyy Jong
%8°L6 09'9€€/T S - S | vT /8¢ S| v8€TL LT S [senddns weiSoud 193110
%0°56 T LTIV S - S| T0°CC S | ET'6EY S [oned]
%C €T ANm.Hmmw S - S | ZETSO'S S | 00°00T ‘v S suyauag 28un4
%6'ST | OV'86TY S - $ | tTeve'ee $ | 19°0vv'9e S |suuosiad
Suiuleway }senbay
aouejeg (a1qedrjdde y) [ 9210AU| pad10AuU| 193png
way 3 i jusuwisnipy wia}| aulq
“aur 9 Suluieway 19spng _uwpm._:.g. way aun m_E. unowy Ajsnoinald [e1o1 panoiddy ;
0z0Z/t/L :93eq |enoiddy 128png T {uoisiap 398png
\mmu._>‘~®m JONIAING \wu_O>C | TCA4 =910 Hum.ﬂOL& = \S«C oD s0Ueldlo |




Torrance County Grants Committee

Grant review Summary

Department &

Project Manager: Domestic Violence Anna Marintez Date: 2/11/2021
Type of Grant: Reimbursable Match Other:

Name of Grant: Grant/Agreement Number:

Domestice Violence

Grantor: Grant Term:

NMCYFD 7/1/20-6/30/21

Grant Funding: Administration Fee:

S 47,600.00 Original grant S 10,994.16

S 20,712.00 Additional funding 02.05.21

$ 68,312.00 Total

Report Requirements:

Monthly billing - includes monthly administration fees, survivor services, offender treatment and intervention

matching:

Project Description:

Provide Domestic Violence Offender Treatment & Intervention Services in Torrance County to adult victims and offenders of domestic violence

Legal Requirements:

Signed contract with NMCYFD

Signed contract with Falling Colors (CYFD's financial billing representative)

WM;(—& J%?ZX/&
/U

Recommend: Approve
Approve With Conditions:

Do Not Approve

Counw manager Purchasing Director
///,Z———?
County Treasurer %nc( fector

(Pee—

erant Coordinator




Agenda Item
No. 13-4



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page No.
INTRODUCTORY SECTION:
Official ROSter (UNAUAItE).......uceereciiiiieeeeeecee et e e et e eeeeees oo e e teee s e e iv
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent AUAItOrS’ REPOM .........c.civiieeiiiie et ee e e e e e s et e e e eeeeeeeeeteeeees oo, 1-3
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net POSItION .........cccv i, 4
Statement of ACHVItIES ..o e e e 5
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet — Governmental FUNGS.........c.c.coviiiiieiieceiiise et es e 6
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet ~ Governmental Funds to
the Statement of Net PoSItion..........ccococeci i 7
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances —
Governmental FUNAS...........c.coiiiiinin et 8

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances — Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities .......... 9

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures & Changes in Fund Balance — Budget (Non-
GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis):

General FUNG........c.ocoiiiec e 10

ICE INMate FUN....cccoi i e 11

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities — Agency Funds .........ccecoeeevnnn.... 12

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ..........cooviiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e een e 13-50



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of the County’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability of
PERA Fund - Municipal General DivisSion.........ccccceeovevvviiiesiieeie e

Schedule of the County’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability of
PERA Fund - Municipal Police Division..........cccccviviiiinienesiee e

Schedule of the County’s Contributions PERA —Municipal General Division...

Schedule of the County’s Contributions PERA - Municipal Police Division .....

Schedule of the County’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability........

Schedule of the County’s OPEB Contributions .............c.cccocev i scien e

Notes to Required Supplementary Information ............coeeevvvie e vcvie e,
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Combined BalanNete SREET ...c.vuuee it et ee sttt e e e et ee e aeas

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances —

Governmental FUNAS ...,
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds - Descriptions .........cccovecviviveiiiiiieec e
Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds.....................

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance — Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds.........cccccevveveiveeeennnnnne

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds - DescriptionS........ccccce e,
Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds......................

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance — Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds.............coccevieniicivnenn,

Nonmajor Debt Service Fund - Description............c....covvv i,
Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Debt Service Fund ...........coceeviieeeenes

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance — Nonmajor Debt Service Fund .............c.oooecvvveevnvceviinnnenn.



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Fiduciary FUNd - DESCHIPHON ......cvoiiiviiieeeeee et et 97

Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
= AGENGY FUNAS......ooiiiiiiiei ettt et et es e eeee e 98

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Tax Roll Reconciliation ~ Changes in Property Tax Receivable ..........ovovovvovvinn 100

Property Tax SChedUIB. .......cc.vveieeeeiieiccce et eeeee e oo, 101 - 108

List of Individual Deposit and Investment ACCOUNTS..........ovoveevoeeeeeeoes oo, 109

Schedule of Pledged Collateral...............c.ccocvireeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo 110
COMPLIANCE SECTION

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matter Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards....................... 111-112
Schedule of Findings and RESPONSES ............c.cvveeeeiveeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo, 113-118
EXIt CONTEIENCE ..ottt ettt e e ee et e e e, 119

i



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
OFFICIAL ROSTER (UNAUDITED)
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

ELECTED OFFICIALS

Kevin MCCall ...t County Commissioner ~ District 1
Ryan Schwebach ..........ccocooeiiviiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee . County Commissioner — District 2
Javier SANChEZ........ccoouiuiiiiiee oo County Commissioner — District 3
JESSE LUCRIO ...ttt e ee e County Assessor
Linda Jaramillo ............oviireeieieceee et County Clerk
MartN RIVEIA. ...ttt oo County Sheriff
Tracy L. SO ... e, County Treasurer
JOSIE CAVEZ........oiiiee e, County Probate Judge

Wayne JONNSON ... e oo County Manager
Janice Y. Barela ... e Deputy County Manager
JEremMY OlIVET ...t oo Finance Director
NOAN J. Sedillo ..o Chief Procurement Officer



KuBiak EON & ASSOCIATES, LLC
AUDITORS ~ BUSINESS CONSULTANTS - CPAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Brian S. Col6n, Esq.
New Mexico State Auditor
Santa Fe, New Mexico
and
Honorable Members of the Board of County Commissioners
Torrance County
Estancia, New Mexico

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, the
aggregate remaining fund information, and the budgetary comparisons for the general fund and major special
revenue fund of Torrance County, New Mexico (the “County”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and
the related notes to the financial statements which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

| 6747 ACADEMY ROAD NE, STE. A
" ALBUQUERQUE, NM 87109 - '

. P:505.822.5100 | F: 505.822,5106. -
 KUBIAKCPACOM =+ o



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the County, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position thereof and the
respective budgetary comparisons for the general fund and major special revenue fund for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

The County has omitted management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. Our opinion on the
basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the County’s
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and their Proportionate Share of the OPEB Liability on pages
51, 52 and 55, the Schedule of the County’s Contributions on pages 53, 54 and 56, and the notes to the
required supplementary information, on page 57 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic and historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the Schedule of the County’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and
County’s Proportionate Share of the OPEB Liability in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements for
all nonmajor funds required by Section 2.2.2. NMAC are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the basic financial statements.



The combining and individual fund financial statements and other schedules required by Section 2.2.2 NMAC
are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the other schedules required by Section 2.2.2 NMAC are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 25, 2020
on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the County’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Kubiok edon & Assoarakin, LLC

Kubiak Melton & Associates, LLC
Auditors — Business Consultants - CPAs
Albuquerque, New Mexico
November 25, 2020



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

TORRANCE COUNTY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Property Tax Receivable
Other Taxes
Other Receivables, Net
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources of Resources:
Deferred Outflows - Pension Related
Deferred Outflows - OPEB Related
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits
Accrued Interest Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences
Current Portion of Capital Lease Payable
Current Portion of Long-term Debt

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Capital Lease Payable
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Long-term Debt Due After One Year

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Deferred Inflows - Pension Related
Deferred Inflows - OPEB Related

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

Governmental
Activities

$ 4,726,312
2,034,556

1,285,168
1,404,950
2,302,793

197,215

11,950,994

178,069
839,334

26,093,919
(13,607,807)

18,503,515

1,344,477
224,541

1,569,018

$ 27,023,527

$ 2,512,940
164,861

17,015

232,855

36,079

499,065

3,462,815

76,811
6,911,847
2,739,494
2,389,346

12,117,498

15,680,313

281,907
1,697,813

1,979,720

10,324,145
7,369,282
(8,229,933)

9,463,494

$ 27,023,527

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to Financial Statements

4



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Program Revenues Net
(Expense)
Operating Capital Revenue and
Charges for Grants and Grants and Changes in
Functions and Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Net Position
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities
. General Government $ 5747988 % 203,433 % 937,674 $ 72,589 $ (4,534,292)
Public Safety 25,497,240 20,424,074 1,086,011 72,802 (3,914,353)
Public Works 3,228,843 24,526 1,720,397 658,031 (825,889)
Culture and Recreation 237,221 - - - (237,221)
Health and Welfare 354,855 200 - 25618 (329,037)
Interest on Long-term Debt 94,650 - - - (94,650)
Total Governmental Activities $ 35,160,797 $ 20,652,233 § 3,744,082 § 829,040 (9,935,442)
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property Taxes levied for general purposes 4,913,026
Gross Receipts Taxes 4,001,071
Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes 654,584
Other Taxes 98,250
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 350,561
Investment Income 192,709
Miscellaneous Income 434 423
Subtotal, General Revenues 10,644,624
Change in Net Position 709,182
Net Position, Beginning 8,553,168
Restatement 201,144
Net Position, As Restated 8,754,312
Net Position, Ending $ 9463494

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to Financial Statements

5



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash
Investments
Receivables:
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Other Receivables, Net
Prepaid Expenses
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
- Accrued Salaries and Benefits

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue:
Property Taxes
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESCURCES

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses
Restricted For:
Special Revenue Funds
Debt Service Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Mimimum Fund Balance
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
AND FUND BALANCES

Total Nonmajor Total
ICE Inmate Governmental Governmental

General Fund Care Funds Funds
$ 135153 $ 789 % 4,590,370 $ 4,726,312
- - 178,069 178,069
2,034,556 - - 2,034,556
1,186,920 - 98,248 1,285,168
189,496 - 1,215,454 1,404,950
- 2,101,429 201,364 2,302,793
180,529 - 16,686 197,215
$ 3726654 $ 2,102,218 $ 6,300,191 $ 12,129,063
$ 49787 $ 2,103,010 $ 360,143 $ 2,512,940
102,432 - 62,429 164,861
152,219 2,103,010 422,572 2,677,801
1,101,490 - 91,635 1,193,025
1,101,490 - 91,535 1,193,025
1,253,709 2,103,010 514,107 3,870,826
180,529 - 16,686 197,215
- - 4,206,384 4,206,384
- - 569,959 569,959
- - 828,347 828,347
1,594,161 - 170,431 1,764,592
698,255 (792) (5,723) 691,740
2,472,945 (792) 5,786,084 8,258,237

$ 3726654 § 2102218 $ 6,300,191 212



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds

Capital Assets, Net

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are
applicable to future periods and therefore, are not reported in funds:

Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to GASB 68 - Pension
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to GASB 75 - OPEB
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to GASB 68 - Pension
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to GASB 75 - OPEB

Delinquent property taxes not collected within sixty days after year end are
not considered "available" revenues and are considered to be unavailable
revenue in the fund financial statements, but are considered revenue in
the Statement of Activities

Special assessment district revenue not collected within sixty days after year end are
not considered "available" revenues and are considered to be unavailable
revenue in the fund financial statements, but are considered revenue in
the Statement of Activities

Long-term and certain other liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the
funds. Long-term and other liabilities at year end consist of:

Accrued Interest Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences
Current Portion of Long-term Debt
Capital Leases Payable
Long-term Debt

Net Pension Liability (GASB 88)
Net OPEB Liability (GASB 75)

Total Net Position of Governmental Activities

$ 8,258,237

13,325,446

1,344,477
224,541

(281,907)

(1,697,813)

1,193,025

(17,015)
(232,855)
(499,065)
(112,890)

(2,389,346)
(6,911,847)

__ (2,739,494)
$ 9,463,494



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

TORRANCE COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes

Other Taxes

Federal Operating Grants
State Operating Grants
State Capital Grants
Payments in Lieu of Taxes
Charges for Services

" Investment Income
Miscellaneous Income

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Health and Welfare
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING
RESTATEMENT

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS RESTATED
FUND BALANCE, ENDING

Total Nonmajor Total
ICE Inmate Governmental Governmental
General Fund Care Funds Funds

$ 5,012,261 - $ 399,661 §$ 5,411,922
596,647 - 3,404,424 4,001,071
57,645 - 596,939 654,584

- - 98,250 98,250

- - 24,684 24,684

767,636 - 2,951,762 3,719,398

- - 829,040 829,040

350,561 - - 350,561

178,607 20,241,545 232,081 20,652,233 .

- - 192,709 192,709

24,290 - 410,133 434,423
6,987,647 20,241,545 9,139,683 36,368,875
4,043,624 - 671,304 4,714,928
1,652,023 20,242,337 3,119,773 24,914,133
- - 2,871,870 2,871,870

- - 237,221 237,221

- - 353,625 353,625

214,215 - 1,817,476 2,031,691

- - 561,501 561,501

- - 77,635 77,635
5,809,862 20,242,337 9,710,405 35,762,604
1,177,785 (792) (570,722) 606,271
151,418 - 2,291,527 2,442,945
(968,200) - (1,474,745) (2,442,945)
(816,782) - 816,782 -
361,003 (792) 246,060 606,271
2,060,290 - 5,390,632 7,450,822
51,652 - 149,492 201,144
2,111,942 - 5,540,024 7,651,966
$ 2,472,945 (792) 3 5786084 §$ 8,258,237




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Net Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds $

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in governmental
funds as expenditures. However, those costs are shown in the Statement

of Net Position and allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual
depreciation expenses in the Statement of Activities. This is the amount by which
depreciation exceeded capital outlays in the period:

Capital Outlay (net) 2,031,691
Depreciation Expense {1,386,928)

Excess (Deficiency) of Capital Outlay over Depreciation Expense

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenue in the funds:
Change in Property Taxes
Change in GRT Equilization

Governmental funds report County pension contributions as expenditures. However
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of pension benefits earned net of
employee contributions is reported as pension & OPEB expense:

Pension Expense
OPEB Expense

In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses including compensated
absences and long term debt payments are measured by the amounts incurred
during the year. In the fund financial statements, however, expenditures are measured

by the amount of financial resources used (essentially the amounts actually paid):

(Increase) Decrease in Accrued Compensated Absences
(Increase) Decrease in Accrued Interest Payable
Principal Payments on Debt and Capital L.ease Payable

606,271

644,763

(23,260)
(475,638)

(863,116)
297,095

(21,421)
(17,015)

561,501

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 709,182



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES & CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE, BUDGET
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) -
GENERAL FUND 401
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Variance With
Final Budget
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes $ 5,164,235 §$ 5,164,235 § 4,926,831 $ (237,404)
Gross Receipts Taxes 445,954 504,954 463,688 (41,266)
Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes 51,147 51,147 52,760 1,613
State Operating Grants 636,052 760,636 767,636 7,000
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 484,718 484,718 350,561 (134,157)
Charges for Services 171,468 198,905 178,607 (20,298)
Investment Income - - - -
Miscellaneous Income 32,621 32,621 24,290 (8,331)
TOTAL REVENUES 6,986,195 7,197,216 6,764,373 (432,843)
EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government 4,507,478 4,522,015 4,037,378 484,637
Public Safety 1,638,739 1,638,239 1,593,157 45,082
Capital Outlay 19,405 216,389 215,942 447
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,165,622 6,376,643 5,846,477 530,166
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 820,573 820,573 917,896 (963,009)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 46,989 46,989 46,989 -
Transfers Out (1,278,200) (1,278,200) (968,200) 310,000
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (1,231,211) (1,231,211) (921,211) 310,000
INCREASE (DECREASE) (410,638) (410,638) $ (3,315) $ (653,009)
PRIOR YEAR CASH BALANCE BUDGETED 3 - 8 -

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements:

Revenues, Actual on a Budget Basis $ 6,811,362
Revenues, Actual on Modified Accrual Basis 7,139,065
Adjustments to revenues for property tax and grant revenues $ (327,703)
Expenditures, Actual on a Budget Basis $ 6,814,677
Expenditures, Actual on Modified Accrual Basis 6,778,062
Adjustments to expenditures for general government, and transfers $ 36,615

10



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous Income

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Public Safety
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds From Sales of Equipment
Other Financing Uses
Transfers In
Transfers Out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
INCREASE (DECREASE)
PRIOR YEAR CASH BALANCE BUDGETED

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES & CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE, BUDGET
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) ~ ICE
INMATE CARE FUND 825

Variance With
Final Budget
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ - § - 8 - $ -
6,000,000 19,755,000 18,140,116 (1,614,884)
6,000,000 19,755,000 18,140,116 (1,614,884)
6,000,000 19,755,000 18,139,327 1,615,673
6,000,000 19,755,000 18,139,327 1,615,673
- - 789 (3,230,557)
- - 8 789 § (3,230,557)
$ - 3 -

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis Financial Statements:

Revenues, Actual on a Budget Basis
Revenues, Actual on Modified Accrual Basis

Adjustments to revenues for property tax and grant revenues

Expenditures, Actual on a Budget Basis
Expenditures, Actual on Modified Accrual Basis

Adjustments to expenditures for general government, and transfers

11

$ 18,140,116
20,241,545

$ (2,101,429)

$ 18,139,327
20,242,337

$ 2,103,010



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 582,749
Property Taxes Receivable 1,261,337
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS $ 1,844,086
LIABILITIES
Deposits Held in Trust $ 582,749
Due to Other Taxing Entities 1,261,337
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 1,844,086

12



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Torrance County (the “County”) is a political sub-division of the State of New Mexico established under the
provisions of Section 14-14-1 of NMSA, 1978 compilation and regulated by the constitution of the State of New
Mexico. The County operates under a Board of County Commissions-manager form of government and
provides the following services as authorized by public law: public safety (sheriff, fire, emergency medical,
etc.), roads, health and social services, recreation, sanitation, planning and zoning, property assessment, tax
collection and general administrative services.

The County is a body politic and corporate under the name and form of government selected by its qualified
electors. The County may:

Sue or be sued;

Enter into contracts and leases;

Acquire and hold property, both real and personal;

Have common seal, which may be altered at pleasure:

Exercise such other privileges that are incident to corporations of like character or degree that are not
inconsistent with the laws of New Mexico.

Protect generally the property of its county and its inhabitants:

Preserve peace and order within the county; and

Establish rates for services provided by the County utilities and revenue-producing projects, including
amounts which the governing body determines to be reasonable in the operation of similar facilities.

M A

o N>

This summary of significant accounting policies of the County is presented to assist in the understanding of the
County’s financial statements. The financial statements and notes are the representation of the County’s
management who is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. The financial statements of the County have
been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as
applied to governmental entities.

In August 2015, GASB Statement No. 77 Tax Abatement Disclosures, was issued. Effective Date: The
provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15,
2015. Earlier application is encouraged. The County implemented this standard during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2017. See Note 15,

A. Financial Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define the County, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all
potential component units. The decision to include any potential component units in the financial reporting
entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statement
No. 39 and GASB Statement No. 61. Blended component units, though legally separate entities, are, in
substance, part of the government’s operations. Each discretely presented component unit is reported in a
separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the
government.

The basic-but not the only-criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the
governing body's ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is
financial interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but
are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the ability to
significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
13



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

A. Financial Reporting Entity (continued)

A second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is the scope of public service. Application of
this criterion involves considering whether the activity benefits the government and/or its citizens.

A third criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting entity is
the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the government is able to exercise
oversight responsibilities. Finally, the nature and significance of a potential component unit to the primary
government could warrant its inclusion within the reporting entity.

Based upon the application of these criteria, the County has no component units, and is not a component unit
of another governmental agency.

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities)
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most part, the effect of
interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The County does not have any business-
type activities.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities were prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and
liabilities resulting from exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues,
expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from non-exchange transactions are recognized in
accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Report/ng for Non-
exchange Transactions.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the governmental activities column (a) is presented on a
consolidated basis by column, (b) and is reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes
all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt obligations. The County’s net position are
reported in three parts —~ net investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter
are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported
as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
14



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.

Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements of time,
reimbursement and contingencies imposed by the provider are met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. ‘

For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the
end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under
accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
Sales and use taxes are classified as derived tax revenues and are recognized as revenue when the
underlying exchange takes place, and the revenues are measurable and available. Only the portion of special
assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as
revenue of the current period.

Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred
and all other grant requirements have been met and the susceptible to accrual criteria have been met. All other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities are derived directly from the program itself or from
parties outside the County's taxpayer or citizenry, as a whole; program revenues reduce the cost of the
function to be financed from the County’s general revenues. Program revenues are categorized as (a) charges
- for services, which include revenues collected for fees and use of County facilities, etc., (b) program-specific
operating grants, which includes revenues received from state and federal sources to be used as specified
within each program grant agreement, and (c) program-specific capital grants and contributions, which include
revenues from state sources to be used for capital projects. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

The County reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly identifiable with a function. The County does not currently employ indirect cost allocation
systems. Depreciation expense is specifically identified by function and is included in the direct expense of
each function. Interest on general long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately
on the Statement of Activities.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
15



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (continued)

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County's policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Under the requirements of GASB Statement No. 34, the County is required to present certain of its
governmental funds as major based upon certain criteria. The major funds presented in the fund financial
statements include the following, which includes funds that were not required to be presented as major but
were at the discretion of management:

The General Fund (401) is the government’'s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The ICE Inmate Care Fund (825) is used to account for the payments for Immigration & Customs
Enforcement inmates that are housed at Corrections Corporation of America — Torrance County
Detention Facility under Torrance County’s agreement. Authority is the County Commission. This is a
special revenue fund.

Additionally, the government reports the following agency fund:

Fiduciary funds (700) are purely custodial (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of
results of operations. The County’s fiduciary funds are used to account for the collection and payment
of property taxes to other governmental agencies.

Agency funds—used to account for assets that government holds for others in an agency capacity.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and various other functions of the
government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the
various functions concerned.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
16



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or
Fund Equity

Deposits and Investments: The County’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand,
demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

State statutes authorize the County to invest in Certificates of Deposit, obligations of the U.S. Government, and
the State Treasurer's Investment Pool.

Investments for the County are reported at fair value. The State Treasurer's Pool operates in accordance with
appropriate state laws and regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool
shares.

Receivables and Payables: Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or
transfers. Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to
elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as
revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the
appropriate benefiting funds and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement.

All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental funds are netted as
part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not
expendable available financial resources.

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion
that is expected to be uncollectible. In the government-wide and governmental fund financial statements,
delinquent property taxes are recorded as revenue when levied net of estimated refunds and uncollectable
amounts.

Property taxes are levied on November 1 based on the assessed value of property as listed on the previous
January 1 and are due in two payments by November 10th and April 10th. Property taxes uncoliected after
May 10th are considered delinquent. The taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1st.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
17



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or
Fund Equity (continued)

Inventory: The County’'s method of accounting for inventory is the consumption method. Under the
consumption approach, the government reports inventory they purchase as an asset and defer the recognition
of the expenditures until the period in which the inventories actually are consumed. Inventory is valued at cost
and consists of supplies and materials. The cost of purchased supplies and materials is recorded as an
expenditure at the time individual inventory items are consumed. The County did not have material inventory
as of June 30, 2020.

Prepaid Expenses: Prepaid expenses include insurance payments to vendors and reflect costs applicable to
future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide financial statements
and the governmental fund financial statements.

Restricted Assets: Restricted assets consist of those funds expendable for operating purposes but restricted
by donors or other outside agencies as to the specific purpose for which they may be expended. Descriptions
for the related restriction of net position for special revenue, debt service and capital projects are found in the
notes to the financial statements.

Capital Assets: Capital assets are recorded at historical cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives
(with no salvage value). Capital assets are defined by the County as assets with an initial individual cost of
more than $5,000 in accordance with Section 12- 6-10 NMSA 1978 and an estimated useful life in excess of
one year. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Additions,
improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized.

Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. The County does not capitalize
interest in regard to its capital assets. The County capitalizes purchased software but has not internally
developed software.

Estimated useful life is management'’s estimate of how long the asset is expected to meet service demands.

Straight-line depreciation is used based on the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and Improvements 15-45
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 4-20
Infrastructure (Roads) 10-40

See Independent Auditors’ Report
18



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or
Fund Equity (continued)

Accrued Salaries and Benefits: Accrued salaries and benefits are comprised of the payroll expenditures
based on amounts earned by the employees through June 30, 2020, along with applicable PERA, FICA, and
Medicare payable.

Deferred Outflow of Resources: Deferred Outflow of Resources: In addition to assets, the Statement of Net
Position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element represents a use of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense) until that time. The County has multiple types of items that qualify for reporting
in this category related to GASB 68 and GASB 75: changes in proportion, net difference between expected
and actual experience and employer contributions subsequent to measurement date. These total $1,569,018
and have been reported as deferred outflows of resources. These amounts are reported in the Statement of
Net Position. These amounts are deferred and recognized as outflows of resources the next period.

Deferred Inflows of Resources: In addition to liabilities, the balance sheet reports a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until
that time. Revenue must be susceptible to accrual (measurable and available to finance expenditures of the
current fiscal period) to be recognized. If assets are recognized in connection with a transaction, but those
assets are not yet available to finance expenditures of the current fiscal period, then the assets must be offset
by a corresponding deferred inflow of resources.

The County has one item, which arise under the modified accrual basis of accounting, that qualify for reporting
in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue — property taxes is reported only in the
governmental funds balance sheet. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the
period that the amounts become available. The County has recorded $1,193,025 related to property taxes
considered “unavailable.”

In addition, the County has multiple types of deferred inflows which arise due to the implementation of GASB
68 and GASB 75 and the related net pension liability and net OPEB liability. Accordingly, these items, net
difference between projected and actual investment earnings, change in assumptions, and differences
between expected and actual experience, are reported on the Statement of Net Position in the amount of
$1,979,720 as of June 30, 2020. Net difference between expected and actual investment earnings are
amortized into pension expense over a five-year period. Changes in assumptions are amortized into pension
expense over the average remaining service life of the employee participants. Differences between expected
~and actual experience are amortized into pension expense over the five-year period. Detail is found in the
notes and the required supplementary information.

Unearned Revenue: The County recognizes grant revenue at the time the related expense is made if the
expenditure of funds is the prime factor for determining eligibility for reimbursement; therefore, amounts
received and not expended in the Special Revenue Funds are show as unearned revenues. The County had
$0 of unearned revenues as of June 30, 2020.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
19



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or
Fund Equity (continued)

Accrued Compensated Absences: Vested or accumulated vacation leave that is expected to be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the
governmental fund that will pay it. Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation leave that are not expected to
be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported in the government-wide Statement of
Net Position. The General Fund is typically the fund used to liquidate compensated absences not liquidated by
another fund.

It is the County’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits.
No liability is reported for unpaid accumulated sick leave. Sick leave accumulates at the rate of 3.69 hours per
bi-weekly pay period. Accrued sick leave is forfeited upon termination of employment. Full-time County
employees accrue annual leave based on hours per bi-weekly pay period and years of service according to the
following schedule:

Hours Per Bi-Weekly Pay Accrual Rate Range Per Bi-

Period Weekly Pay Period
64 2,46 -4.92
72 2.77-5.54
80 3.08-6.15

Annual leave must be taken within the calendar year. Employees are only allowed to carry over one hundred
and sixty (160) hours of annual leave to the next calendar year. Also included in accrued compensated
absences is the liability for unused compensatory time.

Long-term Obligations: In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the governmental activities statement of net position. For bonds issued
after GASB 34 was implemented, bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the effective interest method or on a straight-line basis if the difference is inconsequential. For
fund financial reporting, bond premiums, discounts as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the period the
bonds are issued. Bond proceeds are reported as other financing sources. Issuance costs, even if withheld
from the actual net proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures: For committed fund balance, the County's highest
level of decision-making authority is the County Commission. In order for a fund balance commitment to be
established, the County Commission must take formal action.

For assigned fund balance, the County Commission, or an official or body to which the County Commission
delegates the authority, is authorized to assign amounts to a specific purpose. The authorization policy is in
governmental funds other than the general fund. Unassigned fund balance represents the amount that is not
restricted or committed. This indicates that resources in other governmental funds are, at a minimum, intended
to be used for the purpose of that fund.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
20



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or
Fund Equity (continued)

Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures (continued):

For the classification of fund balances, the County considers restricted or unrestricted amounts to have been
spent when an expenditure is incurred for the purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance
is available. Also for the classification of fund balances, the County considers committed, assigned, or
unassigned amounts to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in
any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used

Nonspendable Fund Balance: At June 30, 2020, the nonspendable fund balance in the governmental funds
consists of amounts associated with prepaid expenses in the amount of $197,215 that are not in spendable
form.

Restricted and Committed Fund Balance: At June 30, 2020, the County has presented restricted fund
balance on the governmental funds balance sheet in the amount of $7,369,282 for various County operations
as restricted by enabling legislation. The County has no presented committed fund balance on the
governmental funds balance sheet.

Required Minimum Fund Balance. According to New Mexico State Statute and the New Mexico Department
of Finance and Administration (DFA), the County is required to reserve 3/12ths of the General Fund's
budgeted expenditures ($1,594,161) for subsequent year expenditures to maintain an adequate cash flow until
the next significant property tax collection. The DFA also requires that 1/12th of the Road Fund budgeted
expenditures be reserved ($170,431). The County has incorporated this reserve requirement within its financial
policies approved by the County Commission. These balances are reported as assigned to subsequent years
expenditures in the General Fund. The County is in compliance with these DFA requirements.

Net Position: The financial statements net position is reported in three categories: net investment in capital
assets, restricted, and unrestricted:

* Net Investment in Capital Assets — This component consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any related debt attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

¢ Restricted Net Position — Net position is reported as restricted when constraints placed on net
position use are either (1) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributions or laws or
regulations of other governments or (2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. Descriptions for the related restrictions for net position restricted for “special
revenue, debt service, and capital projects” are described on pages 16, 61-65, 90 and 93.

¢ Unrestricted Net Position — Net position that do not meet the definition of “restricted” and “Net
Investment in Capital Assets.”

See Independent Auditors’ Report
21



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or
Fund Equity (continued)

Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant
estimates for the County are management’s estimate of depreciation on assets over their estimated useful
lives, the current portion of accrued compensated absences, uncollectible amounts of receivables, pension
liability, and related deferred inflows and outflows of resources.

Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
the Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) and additions to/deductions from PERA’s fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERA, on the economic resources
measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB): For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability,
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the New Mexico Retiree Health Care Authority (NMRHCA) and
additions to and deductions from NMRHCA's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis
as they are reported by NMRHCA. For this purpose, NMRHCA recognizes benefit payments when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

COVID-19 (Coronavirus) Pandemic: In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the spread of
Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) a worldwide pandemic. In response to the COVID-19 Pandemic, the County
has seen several significant changes to the County's operations for the last few months of fiscal year 2020 and
to the start of fiscal year 2021. In light of recent public health orders mandated by the Office of the Governor,
all nonessential staff, and those staff eligible to telecommute were sent home. The safety and health of our
employees as well as the general public that we serve is of great importance to the County. We remain
committed to the purpose of our County and ensuring that adequate internal controls over financial
transactions and reporting were maintained. As a result of this pandemic, the economy in which the County
operates has seen significant declines various revenue streams. The related financial impact and duration
cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
22



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 2: Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

Budgetary Information

Annual budgets of the County are prepared prior to June 1 and must be approved by resolution of the County
Commissioners and submitted to the Department of Finance and Administration for State approval. Once the
budget has been formally approved, any amendments must also be approved by the County Commissioners
and the Department of Finance and Administration, A separate budget is prepared for each fund. Line items
within each budget may be over-expended; however, it is not legally permissible to over-expend any budget in
total at the fund level.

These budgets are prepared on the Non-GAAP cash budgetary basis. Budgetary basis expenditures exclude
encumbrances. The budget secures appropriation of funds for only one year. Carryover funds must be
reappropriated in the budget of the subsequent fiscal year.

The budgetary information presented in these financial statements has been properly amended by County
Commissioners in accordance with the above procedures. The accompanying Statements of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual present
comparisons of the legally adopted budget with actual data on a budgetary basis.

Since accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ significantly
from those used to present financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP), a reconciliation of resultant basis, perspective, equity and timing
differences in the excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources of financial resources for the year ended
June 30, 2020 is presented. Reconciliations between the Non-GAAP budgetary basis amounts and the
financial statements on the GAAP basis by fund can be found on each individual budgetary statement.

NOTE 3: Deposits and Investments

State statutes authorize the investment of County funds in a wide variety of instruments including certificates of
deposit and other similar obligations, state investment pool, money market accounts, and United States
Government obligations. All invested funds of the County properly followed State investment requirements as
of June 30, 2020.

Deposits of funds may be made in interest or non-interest-bearing checking accounts in one or more banks or
savings and loan associations within the geographical boundaries of the County. Deposits may be made to the
extent that they are insured by an agency of the United States or collateralized as required by County
Resolution.

The rate of interest in non-demand interest-bearing accounts shall be set by the State Board of Finance, but in
no case shall the rate of interest be less than one hundred percent of the asked price on United States treasury
bills of the same maturity on the day of deposit.

Excess funds may be temporarily invested in securities which are issued by the State or by the United States
government, or by their departments or agencies, and which are either direct obligations of the State or the
United States or are backed by the full faith and credit of those governments. All of the County’s accounts at an
insured depository institution, including all noninterest-bearing transaction accounts, will be insured by the
FDIC up to the Standard Maximum Deposit Insurance Amount of $250,000.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
23



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 3: Deposits and Investments (continued)

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the County’s deposits
may not be returned to it. New Mexico statutes provide that deposits of public monies in financial institutions
must be secured by pledged collateral in an aggregate value equal to one-half of the amount of the public
monies deposited after deducting the amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance coverage for
each financial institution. At June 30, 2020, $7,480,0026 of the County’s bank balance of $7,730,026 was
exposed to custodial credit risk. Although this amount was uninsured, it was collateralized by collateral held by
the pledging bank’s trust department, not in the County’s name. None of the County’s deposits were uninsured
and uncollateralized at June 30, 2020.

US Bank

Total Amount of Deposits $ 7,730,026
Less: FDIC Coverage (250,000)
Total Uninsured Public Funds 7,480,026
Collateral requirement (50%

of uninsured public funds) 3,740,013
Pledged Securities {9,000,000)
Total (Over) Under
Collateralized $ (5,259,987)

The collateral pledged is listed in the other supplementary information section of this report.

Investments: State Treasurer’s Office Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP)

Credit Risk - With respect to credit risk, the LGIP is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. Therefore, the LGIP
reports AAAm for credit risk. Public funds are not required to disclose custodial credit risk for external
investment pools. Therefore, the LGIP is exempt from this requirement.

Concentration of Credit Risk — Investments. GASB Statement No. 40 defines concentration of credit risk as
investments of more than 5% in any one issuer. External investment pools, such as the LGIP, are excluded
from the requirement of disclosing concentration of credit risk. Therefore, the LGIP is exempt from this
disclosure.

Foreign Currency Risk - GASB Statement No. 40 defines foreign currency risk as the potential that changes in
exchange rates may adversely affect the fair value of an investment or deposit. The LGIP does not have any
foreign currency risk as all investments are denominated in US dollars.

Interest Rate Risk — GASB Statement No. 40 defines interest rate risk as the potential that interest rate
changes may adversely affect the fair value of an investment.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
24



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 3: Deposits and investments (continued)

As of June 30, 2020, the County had the following investments and maturities:

Weighted Average
Investment Type Maturities Cost Basis Fair Value Rating*
[25] day WAM (R);
- New Mexico LGIP [77] day WAM (F) $ 2034556 § 2,034,556 AAAM

$ 2,034,556 $ 2,034,556

*Based of Standard & Poor's

The County also has $178,069 in NMFA reserve cash that is included as restricted cash on the Statement of
Net Position.

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Position:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,726,312

Petty Cash

Restricted Cash 178,069

Cash - Fiduciary Funds 582,749

Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) 2,034,556
Total Cash Equivalents and Investments $ 7,521,686

Reconciling ltems:

Add: Outstanding Checks 3 2,425,290
Less: Depostis in Transit (3,325)
Less: Restricted Cash (178,069)
Less: Investments in LGIP (2,034,556)
Less; Petty Cash (1,000)

Balance as per Bank 3 7,730,026

See Independent Auditors’ Report
25



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 3: Deposits and Investments {continued)

Fair Value Measurement

The fair value framework uses a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to the valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3
measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets that the Authority has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets.

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability.

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or
other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for substantially
the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

The asset’s or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level
of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. See above for discussion of valuation
methodologies used to measure fair value of investments.

The valuation methodologies described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative
of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the County believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or
assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value
measurement at the reporting date.

The following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy, the County’s assets at fair value as of
June 30, 2020:

Investment Type Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
New Mexico LGIP $ 2034556 § - $ -
Total $ 2034556 $ - $ -

See Independent Auditors’ Report
26



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 4: Receivables

Receivables as of June 30, 2020, are as follows:

General Fund

ICE Inmate  Governmental

Total
Governmental
Funds

Current Receivables:
Property Taxes levied for general purposes  $ 1,188,920

1,285,168
1,404,950
2,302,793

4,992,911

Other Taxes 189,496
Other Receivables -
Total Current Receivables 1,376,416
Less: Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts -
Receivables, Net $ 1,376,416

$ 2,101,429

4,992,911

Receivables include amounts property taxes, other taxes, and other receivables such as amounts due from
other governments. All receivables are current and therefore due within one year. Receivables are reported net
of an allowance or uncollectible accounts. The County considered all receivables to be collectable as of June
30, 2020 and therefore, no provision for allowances were made.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, property tax revenues in the amount of $1,193,025 that were not
collected within the period of availability have been reclassified as deferred inflow of resources in the

governmental fund financial statements.

See Independent Auditors’ Report

27



NOTE 5: Transfers

Net operating transfers, made to close out funds and to supplement other funding sources in the normal course

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

of operations, were as follows:

Fund #

Governmental Funds

Transfers In

Transfers Out

401
403
411
412
419
428
600
605
610
631
641
607
675
685
690
608
801
826
835
834
911
420
626
803
602

General Fund

Farm and Range

Fire Tax Pool

County Fair

EVSWA

Volunteer Recruitment

Safety Program

DWI Program

Reappraisal

Senior Citizens

Wind PILT

DWI SMART Choice

Rural Addressing

Planning and Zoning

Domestic Violence

DWI Screening

HIDTA Task Force

EMPG

COVID-19

Doghead Fire

Emergency 911

Adult Corrections

NMFA Grant

Legislative Appropriation

County Infrastructure
Total Transfers

$ 151,418
32,500
52,455
19,000
60,000
50,000
12,544

49,656
10,000
80,967
13,807
50,000

6,000
46,500

5,624

2,000
22,000
55,000

260,000
1,150,000
50,000
240,000
23,474

$ 968,200

19,431
23,474

1,147,000

185,396
46,989

52,455

$ 2,442945

$ 2,442,945

See Independent Auditors’ Report

28



NOTE 6: Capital Assets

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

The following is a summary of capital assets and changes occurring during the year ended June 30, 2020.
Land and right of way, artwork, antiques, and construction in progress are not subject to depreciation.

Governmental Activities

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land & Right of Way
Artwork and Antiques
Construction in Progress (CIP)

Total Capital Assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure (Roads)

Total Capital Assets being depreciated

Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure (Roads)

Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated, Net
Capital Assets, Net

Balance June 30,

Balance June 30,

2019 Increases Decreases Transfers 2020
$ 466,834 $ - % - 3 - % 466,834
372,500 - - - 372,500
51,869 54,511 - (106,380) -
891,203 54,511 - (1086,380) 839,334
9,484,515 156,135 - - 9,640,650
11,129,435 1,821,045 - 106,380 13,056,860
3,396,409 - ~ - 3,396,409
24,010,359 1,977,180 - 106,380 26,093,919
4,121,564 227,037 - - 4,348,601
6,341,148 1,019,020 - - 7,360,168
1,758,167 140,871 - - 1,899,038
12,220,879 1,386,928 - - 13,607,807
11,789,480 590,252 - 106,380 12,486,112
$ 12,680,683 $ 644763 $ - % - $ 13,325,446

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2020 was charged to the functions of the governmental

activities as follows:

Eunction
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Welfare

Total

Amounts
$ 445616
583,109
356,973
1,230

$ 1,386,928

See Independent Auditors’ Report

29



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 7: Long-term Debt

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the following changes occurred in the liabilities reported in the
government-wide statement of net position:

Amount Due
Beginning Ending Within One
Balance Additions Retirements Balance Year
General Obligation Bonds $ 1,720,000 $ - 3 335000 $ 1,385,000 $ 340,000
Notes Payable (NMFA Loans) 1,695,317 - 191,906 1,503,411 159,065
Capital Lease Payable 147,485 - 34,595 112,890 36,079
Compensated Absences 211,434 198,341 176,920 232,855 232,855
Total $ 3774236 $§ 198,341 $ 738421 $ 3234156 $ 767,999
Balance
June 30, 2020
General Obligation Bonds Payable $ 1,385,000
Less: Current Maturities (340,000)
Total GO Bond Liabilities $ 1,045,000
Balance
June 30, 2020
Notes Payable (NMFA Loans) $ 1,503,411
Less: Current Maturities (159,085)
Total Notes Payable $ 1,344,346
Balance
June 30, 2020
Capital Leases Payable $ 112,890
Less: Current Maturities (36,079)
Total Capital Leases Payable $ 76,811

Interest expense paid on long-term debt totaled $94,650 for the year ended June 30, 2020 as indicated on the
statement of activities.

General Obligation Bonds (GO Bonds)

The County sold general obligation bonds to construct, erect, equip, and acquire emergency communication
equipment and towers for the County's law enforcement, fire protection and emergency medical responders.
The bonds were also sold to construct and repair roads and purchase equipment for such projects. The terms
of the general obligation bonds are as follows:

GO bonds
Original
Date of Maturity Interest Amountof Balance, June
Description Issue Date Rate Issue 30, 2020

Series 2016 GO Bond
(NMFA #16 PP - 3641) Dec-16 Aug-31 1.69% $2,400,000 $ 1,385,000

See Independent Auditors’ Report
30



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 7: Long-term Debt (continued)

The annual requirements to amortize the general obligation bonds payable as of June 30, 2020, including

interest payments are as follows:

Gross Receipts Revenue Bonds

Year Ending Total
June 30, Principal Interest Requirements
2021 $ 340,000 $ 21,727  $ 361,727
2022 95,000 18,556 113,656
2023 95,000 17,025 112,025
2024 95,000 13,521 108,521
2025 95,000 15,351 110,351
2026-2030 475,000 36,032 511,032
2031-2035 190,000 740 190,740
Total $ 1385000 $ 122,952 % 1,507,952

Notes Payable

The County maintains multiple loans through the New Mexico Finance Authority (NMFA). These loans are for
multiple purposes including constructing, renovating, equipping, and/or furnishing several fire stations, a
dispatch building, and a communications tower, and purchasing several vehicles. Loans have been liquidated
by the Capital Outlay GRT capital projects fund as well as the Debt Service Fund in prior years. Loan principal
and interest payments are made on a monthly basis or semi-annually to the NMFA as is required per the loan’s

debt schedules.

NMFA Loans
Original
Date of Maturity Interest Amount of Balance, June
Description Issue Date Rate Issue 30, 2020

NMFA #3 PP - 1992 Jun-07  May-27 286% $ 581,320 $ 241,478
NMFA #4 PP - 2089 Dec-07 May-28 0.00% $ 50,000 20,301
NMFA #5 PP - 2116 Dec-07 May-23 3.00% $ 166,667 39,107
NMFA #8 PP - 2187 Sep-08 May-23 3.00% $ 30,450 7,353
NMFA #9 PP - 2251 Mar-08¢  May-29 3.77% $ 493,201 264,469
NMFA #12 PP - 2451 Jun-10  May-30 4.93% §$ 65,975 39,647
NMFA #13 PP - 2505 Jul-05  May-29 277% % 86,275 45,615
NMFA #14 PP - 2748 Aug-12  May-28 240% $ 203,000 116,596
NMFA #15 PP - 3406 Jan-16  May-36 3.02% $ 503,716 422,214
NMFA #17 PP - 3714 Jul-1¢  May-33 0.58% $ 280,618 259,683
Property Valuation Loan Agreement Apr-19  Jan-22 0.00% 3 70,422 46,948

$ 1,503,411
RETIRED
NMFA #10 PP - 2252 Jul-09  May-20 2.73% $ 382,729

See Independent Auditors’ Report

31



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 7: Long-term Debt (continued)

The annual requirements to amortize the NMFA Loans as of June 30, 2020, including interest payments are as

follows:

Year Ending June Total
30, Principal Interest Requirements
2021 $ 159,065 $ 39,804 3 198,869
2022 162,504 36,446 198,950
2023 142,726 32,835 175,561
2024 130,255 28,965 159,220
2025 133,991 25,321 159,312
2026-2030 531,702 69,815 601,517
2031-2035 210,306 21,835 232,141
2036-2040 32,862 1,183 34,045
Total $ 1,503,411 $ 256,204 § 1,759,615

Pledged Revenue

The County pledged total future revenues of $3,220,172 at June 30, 2020 to repay the outstanding loan and
bond indebtedness. During the year ended June 30, 2020, the County recognized $1,454,547 in total property
tax, Fire Protection Funds, Fire Protection Excise GRT, and 1/8% municipal GRT revenues pledged to retire
the debt indebtedness and retired $618,603 in loan and bond principal and interest. The information of the

loans and bonds payable and pledged revenue are detailed below:

Current Year

Total Future

Source of Revenue Revenues Current Year Revenues Terms
Loan No. Pledged Pledged Debt Service Pledged Through
General Obligation Bonds Property Tax $ 399,661 $ 361,376 $ 1,507,952 2031
Fire Protection Funds &

NMFA #3 & NMFA #4 Fire Protection Excise GRT 40,747 290,134 2028
NMFA #5 & NMFA #8 Fire Protection Excise GRT 318,887 16,134 48,830 2023
NMFA #9, NMFA #12 &

NMFA #13 1/8% Increment GRT 84,227 46,991 428,132 2030
NMFA #10, NMFA #14,

NMFA #15 651,772 153,355 945,124 2036,
& NMFA #17 Fire Protection Funds

Total $ 1454547 $ 618,603 §$ 3,220,172

See Independent Auditors’ Report

32



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 7: Long-term Debt {continued)

Capital Leases

The County has entered into a capital lease as follows:

Capital Lease

Original
Date of Maturity Interest Amount of Balance, June
Description Issue Date Rate Issue 30, 2020
Asphalt Zipper Jul-18  May-23 423% $ 180690 $ 112,890

The annual requirements to amortize the capital leases as of June 30, 2020, including interest payments are
as follows:

Year Ending June

30, Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 36,079 $ 4,785 % 40,864
2022 37,608 3,256 40,864
2036-2040 39,203 1,662 40,865
Total 3 112,890 $ 9,703 $ 122,593

Accrued Compensated Absences — Employees of the County are able to accrue a limited amount of vacation
and other compensatory time during the year. During fiscal year June 30, 2020, compensated absences
increased $21,421 from the prior year accrual. In prior years, the general fund was typically used to liquidate
such liabilities.

NOTE 8: Operating Leases

The County is obligated to several operating leases for the use of copiers. The County also entered into an
agreement for nine (9) Motor Graders with payments of $231,717 due semi-annually. Expenses related to
these leases were $286,258 for 2020. The minimum future lease payments are as follows:

Year Ending June

30, Amount
2021 $ 270,911
2022 262,017
2023 240,419
2024 233,400
2025 231,717

Thereafter 308,956

Total $ 1,547,420

See Independent Auditors’ Report
33



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 9: Risk Management

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; and natural disasters, for which the County carries insurance through the New Mexico
Insurance Authority and the New Mexico Association of Counties Multi-Line Pool. Although the outcome of
these lawsuits is not presently determinable, it is the opinion of the County’s legal counsel that resolution of
these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the County. The following is a
summary of some of the more significant insurance coverage information related to the County.

Coverage provided to the County through membership in the New Mexico County Insurance Authority Multi-
Line Pool (Authority) includes tort liability limits for casualty coverage (general automobile, civil rights and
public officials’ liability) on a “claim made” basis with an additional $200,000 for defense costs above the tort
limits. Property is subject to a limit of $50,000,000 each occurrence, with sublimits for certain coverage
extensions. Crime coverage has a limit of $200,000. The County pays a deductible of $500 for each property
or crime loss, and a deductible of $3,000 for each civil rights claim. The Authority pays losses up to $150,000
for property and $250,000 for liability per occurrence.

Coverage provided by the Authority’s Worker's Compensation Pool includes up to $300,000 for each accident
and up to $300,000 for each employee or occupational disease. The County also has volunteer firefighters and
boiler and machine insurance coverage through the Authority’s multi-line pool. Coverage provided to the
County through membership in the New Mexico Association of Counties Law Enforcement Liability Program
(Association) includes tort liability limits for police professional liability coverage on a “claims made” basis. The
County pays an operational deductible of $15,000 per occurrence. The Association pays covered losses above
the deductible up to $250,000 per occurrence from the Association’s funds collected for law enforcement only.
Excess coverage is provided in an amount up to $12,750,000 for the annual pool aggregate for covered claims
which exceed the self- insured retention.

NOTE 10: Other Required Individual Fund Disclosures

Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosures of certain information concerning individual funds
including:

A. There following funds had deficit fund balances at June 30, 2020.

e 825 ICE Inmate Care Fund ($792)
e 419 EVSWA Contract Fund ($5,524)
e 835 COVID-19 Fund ($199)

B. Excess of expenditures over appropriations. The following funds had expenditures in excess of the
budgeted appropriations.
e 631 Senior Citizens Program $ 1,440
e 805 Traffic Safety Grant $ 5,595

C. Designated cash appropriations in excess of available balances. The following funds exceeded
approved budgetary authority for the year ended June 30, 2020.
* 411 Fire Pool Fund $ 34,965
e 424 GO Bond Proceeds $ 32,085

See Independent Auditors’ Report
34



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 11: Pension Plan — Public Employees Retirement Association

Plan description: The Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERA Fund) is a cost-sharing, multiple employer
defined benefit pension plan. This fund has six divisions of members, including State General, State
Police/Adult Correction Officer, Municipal General, Municipal Police/Detention Officers, Municipal fire, and
State Legislative Divisions, and offers 24 different types of coverage within the PERA plan. All assets
accumulated may be used to pay benefits, including refunds of member contributions, to any of the plan
members or beneficiaries, as defined by the terms of this plan. Certain coverage plans are only applicable to a
specific division. Eligibility for membership in the PERA Fund is set forth in the Public Employees Retirement
Act (Chapter 10, Article 11, NMSA 1978). Except as provided for in the Volunteer Firefighters Retirement Act
(10-11A-1 to 10-11A-7, NMSA 1978), the Judicial Retirement Act (10-12B-1 to 10-12B-19, NMSA 1978), the
Magistrate Retirement Act (10-12C- 1 to 10-12C-18, NMSA 1978), and the Educational Retirement Act
(Chapter 22, Article 11, NMSA 1978), and the provisions of Sections 29- 4-1 through 29-4-11, NMSA 1978
governing the State Police Pension Fund, each employee and elected official of every affiliated public
employer is required to be a member in the PERA Fund.

PERA issues a publicly available financial report and a comprehensive annual financial report that can be
obtained at http://saonm.org/ using the Audit Report Search function for agency 366.

Benefits provided: For a description of the benefits provided and recent changes to the benefits see Note 1 in
the PERA audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 available at
http://s3.amazonaws.com/boardaudio/cafr/NM%20PERA%20CAFR%202019%20Final.pdf.

Contributions: The contribution requirements of defined benefit plan members and the County are
established in state statute under Chapter 10, Article 11, NMSA 1978. The contribution requirements may be
amended by acts of the legislature. For the employer and employee contribution rates in effect for fiscal year
2019 for the various PERA coverage options, for both Tier | and Tier II, see the tables available in the note
disclosures on page 43 of the PERA fiscal year 2019 annual audit report at
http://s3.amazonaws.com/boardaudio/cafr/NM%20PERA%20CAFR%202019%20Final.pdf.

The PERA coverage options that apply to County are Municipal Plan 2 and Municipal Police Plan 5. Statutorily
required contributions to the pension plan from the County were $449,450 and employer paid member benefits
that were “picked up” by the employer were $0 for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions: The PERA pension liability amounts, net pension liability amounts, and
sensitivity information were based on an annual actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2019. The PERA
pension liability amounts for each division were rolled forward from the valuation date to the Plan year ending
June 30, 2018, using generally accepted actuarial principles. Therefore, the employer's portion was
established as of the measurement date June 30, 2019. The assets of the PERA fund are held in one trust, but
there are six distinct membership groups (municipal general members, municipal police members, municipal
fire members, state general members, state police members and legislative members) for whom separate
contribution rates are determined each year pursuant to chapter 10, Article 11 NMSA 1978. Therefore, the
calculations of the net pension liability, pension expense and deferred Inflows and Outflows were performed
separately for each of the membership groups: municipal general members: municipal police members;
municipal fire members; state general members; state police members and legislative members.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
35



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 11: Pension Plan — Public Employees Retirement Association (continued)

The County’s proportion of the net pension liability for each membership group that the employer participates
in is based on the employer contributing entity’s percentage of that membership group’s total employer
contributions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. Only employer contributions for the pay period end dates
that fell within the period of July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 were included in the total contributions for a specific
employer. Regular and any adjustment contributions that applied to FY 2019 are included in the total
contribution amounts. In the event that an employer is behind in reporting to PERA its required contributions,
an estimate (receivable) was used to project the unremitted employer contributions. This allowed for fair and
consistent measurement of the contributions with the total population. This methodology was used to maintain
consistent measurement each year in determining the percentages to be allocated among all the participating
employers.

For PERA Fund Municipal General Division, at June 30, 2020, Torrance County reported a liability of
$5,568,947 its proportionate share of the net pension liability. At June 30, 2020, the County’s proportion was
0.3217% percent, which decreased 0.0139% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, Torrance County recognized PERA Fund Municipal General Division
- pension expense of $1,067,312. At June 30, 2020, Torrance County reported PERA Fund Municipal General
Division deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of

of Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 166,968 $ 60,244
Changes of assumptions 248,316 13,716
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments 187,658 -
Changes in proportion and differences between the County's

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 111,443 138,262
The County's contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 320,863 -

Total $ 1035248 § 212,222

See Independent Auditors’ Report
36



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 11: Pension Plan — Public Employees Retirement Association (continued)

$320,863 was reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the County’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date June 30, 2018 will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended_ Amount
2021 3 299,145
2022 127,064
2023 45,079
2024 30,875
2025 -
Total $ 502,163

For PERA Fund Municipal Police Division, at June 30, 2020, Torrance County reported a liability of
$1,342,900 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. At June 30, 2020, the County’s proportion
was 0.1818%, which decreased 0.0016% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, Torrance County recognized PERA Fund Municipal Police Division pension
expense of $241,935. At June 30, 2020, Torrance County reported PERA Fund Municipal Police Division
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following
sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of

of Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 3 56,102 § 57,205
Changes of assumptions 76,173 3,417
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments 41,935 -
Changes in proportion and differences between the County's

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 6,432 9,063
The County's contributions subsequent to the

Mmeasurement date 128,687 -

Total $ 309,229 § 69,685

See Independent Auditors’ Report
37



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 11: Pension Plan — Public Employees Retirement Association (continued)

$128,587 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the County’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date June 30, 2019 will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended Amount
2021 3 42,818
2022 42,733
2023 18,524
2024 6,882
2025 -
Total $ 110,957

Actuarial assumptions: As described above, the PERA Fund member group pension liabilities and net
pension liabilities are based on actuarial valuations performed as of June 30, 2018 for each of the membership
groups. Then each PERA Fund member group pension liability was rolled forward from the valuation date to
the Plan year ending June 30, 2018 using generally accepted actuarial principles. There were no significant
events or changes in benefit provisions that required an adjustment to the roll forward liabilities as of June 30,
2018. These actuarial methods and assumptions were adopted by the Board for use in the June 30, 2018
actuarial valuation,

Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2018
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level percentage of pay, Open
Asset valuation period Solved for based on statutory rates
Asset valuation method 4 Year Smoothed Market Value
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 7.25% annual rate
Projected benefit payment 100 years
Payroll growth 3.00% annual rate
Projected salary increases 3.25% to 13.50% annual rate
Includes inflation at 2.50% annual rate

The mortality assumptions are based on the RPH-2014 Blue Collar
mortality table with female ages set forward one year. Future
improvement in mortality rates is assumed using 60% of the MP-
2017 projection scale generationally. For non-public safety groups,
25% of in-service deaths are assumed to be duty related and 35%

Mortality assumption are assumed to be duty-related for public safety groups
July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2017 (demographic) and July 1, 2013
Experience study dates through June 30, 2017 (economic)

See Independent Auditors’ Report
38



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 11: Pension Plan — Public Employees Retirement Association (continued)

The long term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a statistical analysis
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and most recent best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
Global Equity 42.33% 7.48%
Risk Reduction & Mitigation 21.37% 2.37%
Credit Oriented Fixed Income 15.00% 5.47%
Real Assets to Include Real Estate 20.00% 6.48%
Multi-Risk Allocation 1.30%
Total 100.0%

Discount rate: Previously, a select and ultimate rate of return assumption had been adopted for funding
purposes, but new economic assumptions were adopted for the June 30, 2018 valuations including the change
to a 7.25% static rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 7.25%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that future contributions will be made in accordance
with statutory rates. On this basis, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position together with the expected future
contributions are sufficient to provide all projected future benefit payments of current plan members as
determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 67. Therefore, the 7.25% assumed long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate: The following tables show the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. In
particular, the tables present the County’s net pension liability in each PERA Fund Division that the County
participates in, under the current single rate assumption, as if it were calculated using a discount rate one
percentage lower (6.25%) or one percentage point higher (8.25%) that the single discount rate.

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
PERA Fund Division Municipal Government (6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)
The County's proportionate share of the net
pension liability $ 844269 $ 5568947 $ 3,207,851
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
PERA Fund Division Municipal Police (6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)
The County's proportionate share of the net
pension liability $ 2032234 $ 1,342,900 $ 780,533

See Independent Auditors’ Report
39



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 11: Pension Plan — Public Employees Retirement Association (continued)

Payables to the pension plan. At June 30, 2020 there was $11,078 of contributions due and payable to
PERA for the County.

NOTE 12: Post-Employment Benefits — Other Than Pensions

Plan Description. Torrance County contributes to the New Mexico Retiree Health Care Fund, a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan administered by the New Mexico Retiree
Health Care Authority (RHCA). The RHCA provides health care insurance and prescription drug benefits to
retired employees of participating New Mexico government agencies, their spouses, dependents, and surviving
spouses and dependents. The RHCA Board was established by the Retiree Health Care Act (Chapter 10,
Article 7C, NMSA 1978). The Board is responsible for establishing and amending benefit provisions of the
healthcare plan and is also authorized to designate optional and/or voluntary benefits like dental, vision,
supplemental life insurance, and long-term care policies.

Eligible retirees are: 1) retirees who make contributions to the fund for at least five years prior to retirement and
whose eligible employer during that period of time made contributions as a participant in the RHCA plan on the
person’s behalf unless that person retires before the employer's RHCA effective date, in which event the time
period required for employee and employer contributions shall become the period of time between the
employer’s effective date and the date of retirement; 2) retirees defined by the Act who retired prior to July 1,
1990; 3) former legislators who served at least two years; and 4) former governing authority members who
served at least four years.

The RHCA issues a publicly available stand-alone financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the postemployment healthcare plan. That report and further
information can be obtained by writing to the Retiree Health Care Authority at 4308 Carlisle NE, Suite 104,
Albuquerque, NM 87107.

Funding Policy. The Retiree Health Care Act (Section 10-7C-13 NMSA 1978) authorizes the RHCA Board to
establish the monthly premium contributions that retirees are required to pay for healthcare benefits. Each
participating retiree pays a monthly premium according to a service based subsidy rate schedule for the
medical plus basic life plan plus an additional participation fee of five dollars if the eligible participant retired
prior to the employer's RHCA effective date or is a former legislator or former governing authority member.
Former legislators and governing authority members are required to pay 100% of the insurance premium to
cover their claims and the administrative expenses of the plan. The monthly premium rate schedule can be
obtained from the RHCA or viewed on their website at www.nmrhca.state.nm.us.

The employer, employee and retiree contributions are required to be remitted to the RHCA on a monthly basis.
The statutory requirements for the employer and employee contributions can be changed by the New Mexico
State Legislature. Employers that choose to become participating employers after January 1, 1998, are
required to make contributions to the RHCA fund in the amount determined to be appropriate by the board.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
40



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 12: Post-Employment Benefits — Other Than Pensions (continued)

The Retiree Health Care Act (Section 10-7C-15 NMSA 1978) is the statutory authority that establishes the
required contributions of participating employers and their employees. For employees that were members of an
enhanced retirement plan (state police and adult correctional officer member coverage plan 1; municipal police
member coverage plans 3, 4 or 5; municipal fire member coverage plan 3, 4 or 5; municipal detention officer
member coverage plan 1; and members pursuant to the Judicial Retirement Act) during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2015, the statute required each participating employer to contribute 2.5% of each participating
employee’s annual salary; and each participating employee was required to contribute 1.25% of their salary.
For employees that were not members of an enhanced retirement plan during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2020, the statute required each participating employer to contribute 2.0% of each participating employee’s
annual salary; each participating employee was required to contribute 1.0% of their salary.

In addition, pursuant to Section 10-7C-15(G) NMSA 1978, at the first session of the Legislature following July
1, 2013, the legislature shall review and adjust the distributions pursuant to Section 7-1-6.1 NMSA 1978 and
the employer and employee contributions to the authority in order to ensure the actuarial soundness of the
benefits provided under the Retiree Health Care Act.

Torrance County’s contributions to the RHCA for the years ended June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018 were
$81,615, $73,233, and $71,804 respectively which equal the required contributions for each year.

General Information

Plan description. Employees of the County are provided with Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions
(OPEB) through the Retiree Health Care Fund (the Fund)—a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
OPEB plan administered by the New Mexico Retiree Health Care Authority (NMRHCA). NMRHCA was formed
February 13, 1990, under the New Mexico Retiree Health Care Act (the Act) of New Mexico Statutes
Annotated, as amended (NMSA 1978), to administer the Fund under Section 10-7C-1-19 NMSA 1978. The
Fund was created to provide comprehensive group health insurance coverage for individuals (and their
spouses, dependents, and surviving spouses) who have retired or will retire from public service in New Mexico.

NMRHCA is an independent agency of the State of New Mexico. The funds administered by NMRHCA are
considered part of the State of New Mexico financial reporting entity and are OPEB trust funds of the State of
New Mexico. NMRHCA's financial information is included with the financial presentation of the State of New
Mexico.

Benefits provided. The Fund is a multiple employer cost sharing defined benefit healthcare plan that provides
eligible retirees (including terminated employees who have accumulated benefits but are not yet receiving
them), their spouses, dependents and surviving spouses and dependents with health insurance and
prescription drug benefits consisting of a plan, or optional plans of benefits, that can be contributions to the
Fund and by co-payments or out-of-pocket payments of eligible retirees.

See Independent Auditors' Report
41



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 12: Post-Employment Benefits — Other Than Pensions (continued)

Employees covered by benefit terms — At June 30, 2019, the Fund’s measurement date, the following
employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Plan membership

Current retirees and surviving spouses $ 52,179
Inactive and eligible for deferred benefits 10,916
Current Active Members 91,082

$ 154177

Active membership

State general $ 17,097
State police and corrections 1,830
Municipal General 17,5638
Municipal Police 3,159
Municipal FTRE 1,966
Educational Retirement Board 49,492

$ 91,082

Contributions — Employer and employee contributions to the Fund total 3% for non-enhanced retirement
plans and 3.75% of enhanced retirement plans of each participating employee's salary as required by Section
10-7C-15 NMSA 1978. The contributions are established by statute and are not based on an actuarial
calculation. All employer and employee contributions are non-refundable under any circumstance, including
termination of the employer’s participation in the Fund. Contributions to the Fund from the County were
$74,787 for the year ended June 30, 2020.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2020, the County reported a liability of $2,739,494 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total OPEB liability used to
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The County's
proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on actual contributions provided to the Fund for the year ending
June 30, 2018. At June 30, 2018, the County’s proportion was 0.08449 percent.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
42



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 12: Post-Employment Benefits — Other Than Pensions (continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the County recognized a change in OPEB of ($297,095). At June 30, 2020
the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the
following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and
actual experience 3 - $ 689,396
Changes of Assumptions - 884,176
Change in proportion 137,302 98,770
Difference between actual and projected
earnings on OPEB plan investments - 25,471
Contributions made after the
measurement date 87,239 -
Total $ 224541 § 1,697,813

Deferred outflows of resources totaling $87,239 represent the County’s contributions to the Fund made
subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of net OPEB liability in the year
ending June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30,
2021 $ (429,978)

2022 (429,978)
2023 (375,048)
2024 (220,798)

2025 {104,709)
Total $ (1,560,511)

See Independent Auditors’ Report
43



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 12: Post-Employment Benefits — Other Than Pensions (continued)

Actuarial assumptions. The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation using the following
actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2019

Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal, level percent of pay,
calculated on individual employee basis

Asset valuation method Market value of assets

Actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.50% for ERB members; 2.50 for PERA Members
Projected payroll increases 3.25% to 13.50%, based on years of service, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.25%, net of OPEB plan investment expense
and margin for adverse deviation including inflation
Health care cost trend rate 8% graded down to 4.5% over 14 year for Non-

Medicare medicl plan costs and 7.5% graded down
to 4.5% over 12 years for Medicare medical plan costs

Mortality ERB members: RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality
Table with White Collar Adjustment (males) and GRS
Southwest Region Teacher Mortality Table (females)
PERA member; RP-2014 Combined Healthy Mortality

Rate of Return. The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which the expected future real rates of return (net of investment fees and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These returns are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage, adding
expected inflation, and subtracting expected investment expenses and a risk margin. The target allocation and
projected arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class, after deducting inflation, but before
investment expenses, used in the derivation of the long-term expected investment rate of return assumptions.

The best estimates for the long-term expected rate of return is summarized as follows:

Target Long-term Rate
Asset Class Allocation of Return

U.S core fixed income 20% 2.1%
U.S equity - large cap 20% 7.1%
Non U.S. - emerging markets 15% 10.2%
Non U.S - developed equities 12% 7.8%
Private equity 10% 11.8%
Credit and structured finance 10% 5.3%
Real estate 5% 4.9%
Absolute return 5% 41%
U.S equity - small/ mid cap 3% 7.1%

See Independent Auditors’ Report
44



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 12: Post-Employment Benefits — Other Than Pensions (continued)

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability is 4.16% as of June 30, 2019. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made
at rates proportional to the actuary determined contribution rates. For this purpose, employer contributions that
are intended to fund benefits of current plan members and their beneficiaries are included. Projected employer
contributions that are intended to fund the service costs for future plan members and their beneficiaries are not
included. Based on those assumptions, the Fund's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
all projected future benefit payments for current plan members through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2039.
The 7.25% discount rate, which includes the assumed inflation rate of 2.50%, was used to calculate the net
OPEB liability through 2039. Beyond 2039, the index rate for 20- year, tax exempt general obligation municipal
bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher (3.50%) was applied. Thus 4.16% is the blended discount
rate.

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rates. The
following presents the net OPEB liability, calculated using the discount rate of 4.16%, as well as what the
Fund's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percent lower or 1-
percent higher than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(3.16%) (4.16%) (5.16%)
3 3,351,062 $ 2,739,494 § 2,258,745

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the County, as well as what the County’s net OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or
1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Current Trend
1% Decrease Rates 1% Increase
$ 2,280,806 $ 2739494 $ 3,106,740

OPEB plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available
in NMRHCA'’s audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Payable Changes in the Net OPEB Liability. At June 30, 2020, the County reported a payable of $2,228 for
outstanding contributions due to NMRHCA for the year ended June 30, 2020.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
45



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 13: Joint Powers Agreements

Participants: County of Torrance, City of Moriarty, Town of Estancia, and Mountainair,
Village of Willard and Encino

Responsible Party: Estancia Valley Solid Waste Authority

Description: Coordinate solid waste resources in the area

Term of Agreement: Until Cancelled

Amount of Project: Unknown

County Contributions: $0

Audit Responsibility: Estancia Valley Solid Waste Authority

NOTE 14: Contingent Liabilities

The County is party to various claims and lawsuits arising in the normal course of business. The County is
insured through the New Mexico County Insurance Authority. In the opinion of management, the outcome of
these matters will not have a material effect on the financial position of the County.

NOTE 15: Tax Abatements

The County has evaluated GASB 77 with regard to tax abatements and has determined that the County is a
party to the following agreement that abate taxes:

See Independent Auditors’ Report
46



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 15: Tax Abatements (continued)

Agency Number 5030
Agency Name Torrance County
Agency Type County

Tax Abatement Agreement Name

El Cabo Wind, LLLC

Recipient(s) of tax abatement

El Cabo Wind, LLC (or its successor)

Parent company(ies) of recipient(s) of tax abatement

Avangrid Renewables {or its successor)

Tax abatement program (hame and brief description)

Industrial Revenue Bond - Renewable Energy (Wind Farm)

Specific Tax(es) Being Abated

Property Tax

Legal authority under which tax abatement agreement was entered
into

N.M.S.A. 1978, §4-59-1 et seq. and N.M.S.A. 1978 7-36-3

Criteria that make a recipient eligible to receive a tax abatement

The project is related to the generation, transportation and
delivery of electricity that constitutes an industrial development
project as defined in the County Industrial Revenue Bond Act
NMSA 1978 §§4-59-1 through 4-59

How are the tax abatement recipient's taxes reduced? (For example:
through a reduction of assessed value)

Through statutory abatement pursuant to the County Industrial
Revenue Bond Act.

How is the amount of the tax abatement determined? For example,
this could be a specific dollar amount, a percentage of the tax liability,
etc.

Through statutory abatement pursuant to the County Industrial
Revenue Bond Act.

Are there provisions for recapturing abated taxes? (Yes or No)

Yes

If there are provisions for recapturing abated taxes, describe them,
including the conditions under which abated taxes become eligible for
recapture.

Payment in Lieu of Taxes - Annual Payment to County &
School Districts

List each specific commitment made by the recipient of the
abatement.

Torrance County -$670,500, Vaugh Schools $268,200 &
Estancia Municipal Schools - $178,800

Gross dollar amount, on an accrual basis, by which the government'’s
tax revenues were reduced during the reporting period as a result of
the tax abatement agreement.

This was set up in 2008 through an IRB and Assessor's office
has no record of any values used to determine any reductions

For any Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILOTS) or similar payments
receivable by your agency or another agency in association with the
foregone tax revenue, list the authority for and describe the payment,
including the agency that is supposed to receive the payment

N.M.S.A. 1978, §4-69-1 et seq. and N.M.S.A. 1978 7-36-3

For any Payments in Lisu of Taxes (PILOTs) or similar payments
receivable by your agency in association with the foregone tax
revenue, list the amount of payments received in the current fiscal
year

$ 670,500

For any Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILOTS) or similar payments
receivable by a different agency in association with the foregone tax
revenue, list the name of the agency and the amount of payments
received in the current fiscal year

County receives $625,800 for years 1-10. Schools receive
$447,000.

List each specific commitment made by your agency or any other
government, other than the tax abatement.

N/A

Are any other governments affected by this tax abatement
agreement? (Yes or No) If yes, list each affected agency and
complete an intergovernmental disclosure for each such agency.

Estancia Public Schools, Vaughn Public Schools, East
Torrance SWCD, and Department of Finance and
Administration

if your agency is omitting any information required in this spreadsheet
or by GASB 77, cite the legal basis for such omission.

N/A

See Independent Auditors’ Report

47




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 15: Tax Abatements (continued)

Agency Number

5030

Agency Name

Torrance County

Agency Type

County

Tax Abatement Agreement Name

High Lonesome Mesa, LLC

Recipient(s) of tax abatement

High Lonesome Mesa, LLC (or its successor)

Parent company(ies) of recipient(s) of tax abatement

High Lonesome Mesa, LLC (or its successor)

Tax abatement program (name and brief description)

Industrial Revenue Bond - Renewable Energy (Wind Farm)

Specific Tax(es) Being Abated

Property Tax

Legal authority under which tax abatement agreement was entered
into

N.M.S.A. 1978, §4-59-1 et seq. and N.M.S.A. 1978 7-36-3

Criteria that make a recipient eligible to receive a tax abatement

The project is related to the generation, transportation and delivery of
electricity that constitutes an industrial development project as defined
in the County Industrial Revenue Bond Act NMSA 1978 §§4-59-1
through 4-59

How are the tax abatement recipient's taxes reduced? (For example:
through a reduction of assessed value)

Through statutory abatement pursuant to the County Industrial
Revenue Bond Act.

How is the amount of the tax abatement determined? For example,
this could be a specific dollar amount, a percentage of the tax liability,
etc.

Through statutory abatement pursuant to the County Industrial
Revenue Bond Act.

Are there provisions for recapturing abated taxes? (Yes or No)

Yes

If there are provisions for recapturing abated taxes, describe them,
including the conditions under which abated taxes become eligible for
recapture.

Payment in Lieu of Taxes - Annual Payment to County & School
Districts

List each specific commitment made by the recipient of the
abatement.

Torrance County -$175,500 & Estancia Municipal Schools - $149,500

Gross dollar amount, on an accrual basis, by which the government’s
tax revenues were reduced during the reporting period as a result of
the tax abatement agreement.

This was set up in 2008 through an IRB and Assessor's office has no
record of any values used to determine any reductions

For any Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILOTSs) or similar payments
receivable by your agency or another agency in association with the
foregone tax revenue, list the authority for and describe the payment,
including the agency that is supposed to receive the payment

N.M.S.A. 1978, §4-59-1 et seq. and N.M.S.A. 1978 7-36-3

For any Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILOTSs) or similar payments
receivable by your agency in association with the foregone tax

revenue, list the amount of payments received in the current fiscal

year $ 569,240
For any Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILOTS) or similar payments

receivable by a different agsncy in association with the foregone tax

revenue, list the name of the agency and the amount of payments

received in the current fiscal year $ 426,300
List each specific commitment made by your agency or any other

government, other than the tax abatement. N/A

Are any other governments affected by this tax abatement
agreement? (Yes or No) If yes, list each affected agency and
complete an intergovernmental disclosure for each such agency.

Estancia Public Schools, Claunch-Pinto SWCD, and Department of
Finance and Administration

If your agency is omitting any information required in this spreadshest
or by GASB 77, cite the legal basis for such omission.

N/A

See Independent Auditors’ Report

48




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 16: Restricted Net Position

The government-wide statement of net position reports restrictions as follows:

Restricted For: Amount
Capital Projects $ 828,347
Debt Service 569,959
Other Purposes 5,970,976

Total Restricted Net Position $ 7,369,282

NOTE 17: Concentrations

The County depends on financial resources flowing from, or associated with, property taxes, gross receipts
taxes, the Federal Government, and the State of New Mexico. Because of this dependency, the County is
subject to changes in specific flows of intergovernmental revenues based on modifications to Federal and
State laws and Federal and State Appropriations; changes in gross receipts tax rates, collections, tourism, and
property values. '

NOTE 18: Commitments

The County accepts prisoners from the State of New Mexico Department of Corrections and U.S. Marshal
Service and subcontracts with the Corrections Corporation of America (CCA) for housing those prisoners. If
CCA fails to meet the contract requirements, the County could be liable for awards or damages resulting from
legal actions filed by prisoners.

The County did not have construction commitments outstanding as of June 30, 2020.

NOTE 19: New Accounting Standards

- The County reviewed subsequent pronouncements to June 30, 2020 issued by GASB noting the following
statements that may have a potential material effect on the Office’s financial statements in subsequent periods.

GASB 95

GASB Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance (GASB 95), is
to provide temporary relief to governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID- 19 pandemic. That
objective is accomplished by postponing the effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and
Implementation Guides that first became effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning
after June 15, 2018, and later. The effective dates of certain provisions contained in the following
pronouncements are postponed by one year:

» Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities
¢ Implementation Guide No. 2019-2, Fiduciary Activities.

The effective dates of the following pronouncements are postponed by 18 months:

o Statement No. 87, Leases
s Implementation Guide No. 2019-3, Leases

See Independent Auditors’ Report
49



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 20: Environmental Gross Receipts Tax-Pledged Revenues

Torrance County and other members of the Torrance County Solid Waste Authority, now known as the
Estancia Valley Solid Waste Authority, entered into a loan agreement with the New Mexico Finance Authority
in 1999. The loan amount was $556,119 and the proceeds were used to (a) refund Torrance County Series
1992 Environmental Revenue Bonds and (b) construct solid waste facilities for the Solid Waste Authority.

As part of the above agreement, the County pledged the revenues received from its 1/8 of 1% county
environmental services gross receipts tax as security for payment of the loan agreement. The City of Moriarty,
Town of Estancia, Town of Mountainair, and the Village of Willard, as members of the Solid Waste Authority,
also pledged revenues received from the 1/16 of 1% municipal environmental services gross receipts tax
imposed by them. These revenues are all intercepted by the New Mexico Finance Authority.

The above referenced loan is payable solely from the pledged revenues noted above, and the note holder
cannot look to any other revenues of the County in payment. The loan is not considered to be a general
obligation of the County and it is not included in the financial statements of the County.

NOTE 21: Restatements

Fund balance and Net Position was restated as follows:

Gross receipts tax revenues: $88,809

MVD & Fuel Tax Revenues: $80,251

Invoice Paid Twice & Refunded: $32,084

Total Restatement to Fund Balance/Net Position: $201,144

NOTE 22: Subsequent Events

The County has evaluated subsequent events through November 25, 2020, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. See Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for the
COVID-19 (Coronavirus) Pandemic disclosure. There are no other matters identified for recognition in the
accounts.

See Independent Auditors’ Report
50



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF THE COUNTY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE

NET PENSION LIABILITY OF PERA FUND - MUNICIPAL GENERAL DIVISION
Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

MUNICIPAL GENERAL FUND
2020 2019 2018
County's proportion of the net pension liability 0.3217% 0.3356% 0.3186%

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability $5,568,947 $5,350,706 $4,377,833

County's covered-employee payroll $3,274107 $2,925,428 $2,846,756
County's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 170.09% 182.90% 153.78%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability 70.52% 71.13% 73.74%
2017 2016 2015
County's proportion of the net pension liability 0.3173% 0.3025% 0.3019%

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability $5,069,386  $3,084,250 $2,355,144
County's covered-employee payroll $2,824,653 $2,489,956  $2,348,461

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 179.47% 123.87% 100.28%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability 69.18% 76.99% 81.29%

*The amounts presented were determined as of June 30. This schedule is presented to illustrate

the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is
compiled, the County will present information for those years for which information is available.

See Independent Auditors’ Report

52



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF THE COUNTY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PENSION LIABILITY OF PERA FUND - MUNICIPAL POLICE DIVISION

Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) Plan

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

MUNICIPAL POLICE FUND

County's proportion of the net pension liability
County's proportionate share of the net pension liability
County's covered-employee payroll

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability

County's proportion of the net pension liability
County's proportionate share of the net pension liability
County's covered-employee payroll

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability

2020 2019 2018
0.1818% 0.1834% 0.1841%
$1,342,900 $1,251,346  $1,022,796
$ 821644 $ 671582 $ 653,521
163.44% 186.33% 166.561%
70.52% 71.13% 73.74%
2017 2016 2015
0.1797% 0.1683% 0.1533%
$1,325,880 $ 809,291 $ 499,741
$ 675169 $ 600,201 $ 525,038
196.38% 134.84% 95.18%
69.18% 76.99% 81.29%

*The amounts presented were determined as of June 30. This schedule is presented to illustrate
the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is
compiled, the County will present information for those years for which information is available.

See Independent Auditors’ Report

53



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF THE COUNTY’S CONTRIBUTIONS TO PERA PLAN - MUNICIPAL

GENERAL DIVISION
Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

MUNICIPAL GENERAL FUND

2020 2019 2018
Contractually required contribution $ 320,862 $ 274866 $ 279,378
Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution 320,883 274,866 279,378
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (1) $ - $ -
County's covered-employee payroll $ 3274107 $ 2,925428 $ 2,846,756
Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 9.80% 9.40% 9.81%
2017 2016 2015
Contractually required contribution $ 271,865 § 269,754 $ 237,915
Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution 271,865 269,754 237,915
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - 3 -
County's covered-employee payroll $ 2,824,653 $ 2,489,956 $ 2,348,461
Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 9.62% 10.83% 10.13%

*The amounts presented were determined as of June 30. This schedule is presented to illustrate
the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is
compiled, the County will present information for those years for which information is available.

See Independent Auditors’ Report

54



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF THE COUNTY’S CONTRIBUTIONS TO PERA FUND - MUNICIPAL

POLICE DIVISION
Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

MUNICIPAL POLICE FUND

2020 2019 2018
Contractually required contribution $ 128,687 § 868,717  $ 69,845
Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution - 68,717 69,845
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ 128,587 § - % -
County's covered-employee payroll $ 821644 $ 671582 $ 653,521
Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 0.00% 10.23% 10.69%
2017 2016 2015
Contractually required contribution $ 67,966 § 70218 § 62,391
Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution 67,966 70,218 62,391
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - % -
County's covered-employee payroll $ 675,169 $ 600,201 $ 525038
Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 10.07% -11.70% -11.88%

*The amounts presented were determined as of June 30. This schedule is presented to illustrate
the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is
compiled, the County will present information for those years for which information is available.

See Independent Auditors’ Report

55



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF COUNTY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET OPEB LIABILITY

NEW MEXICO RETIREE HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY (NMRHCA) PLAN
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2020 2019 2018

County's proportion of the net OPEB

liability 0.08449% 0.08144% 0.08417%
County's proportionate share of the

net OPEB liability $ 2739494 $ 3,641,300 $ 3,814,309
County covered employee payroll $ 3625707 $ 3,494278 § 3,506,225
County's proportionate share of the

net OPEB liability as a percentage of

its covered employee payroll 77.70% 101.35% 108.79%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total OPEB

liability 18.92% 13.14% 11.34%

*This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten years.
However, until a full ten-year trend is compiled, the County will present information for available
years.

See Independent Auditors’ Report

56



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF COUNTY’S OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS

NEW MEXICO RETIREE HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY (NMRHCA) PLAN
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2020 2019 2018

Contractually required contribution $ 74787 $ 127,264 $ 267,279
Less: Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contributions 74,787 125,710 134,144
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - $ 1554 $ 133,135
County's covered employee payroll $ 3525707 $ 3,494,278 $ 3,506,225
Contributions as a percentage of

covered employee payroll 2.12% 3.60% 3.83%

*This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten years.
However, until a full ten-year trend is compiled, the County will present information for available
years.

See Independent Auditors’ Report

57



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Changes of benefit terms:

The Public Employees Retirement Association’s (PERA) COLA and retirement benefits changes

in recent years are described in Note 1 of PERA’s CAFR at:
http://s3.amazonaws.com/boardaudio/cafr/NM%20PERA%20CAFR%202019%20Final.pdf

The Retiree Health Care Authority (RHCA) COLA and age eligibility benefits changes in recent
years are described in the Notes to the RHCA fiscal year 2019 audit available at
http://saonm.org/ using the Audit Search function for agency 343.

Assumptions:
The Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) of New Mexico’s Annual Actuarial
Valuations as of June 2019 report is available at http://www.nmpera.org/.

The Retiree Health Care Authority (RHCA) of New Mexico Biennial Actuarial Valuation as of
June 30, 2019 report is available at http://saonm.org/ using the Audit Search function for agency
343.

See Independent Auditors’ Report

58



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2020
Nonmajor Funds Total
Special Capital Debt Nonmajor
Revenue Projects Service Funds
ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,803,825 $ 415405 $ 371,140 $ 4,590,370

Restricted Cash - - 178,069 178,069

Investments - - - -

Receivables:

Property Taxes - - 98,248 98,248
Other Taxes 901,920 299,497 14,037 1,215,454
Other Receivables, Net 30,973 170,391 - 201,364

Prepaid Expenses 16,686 - - 16,688
TOTAL ASSETS 4,753,404 § 885,293 $ 661,494 §$ 6,300,191
LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 303,197 $ 56,946 § - 8 360,143

Accrued Salaries and Benefits 82,429 - - 62,429
TOTAL LIABILITIES 365,626 56,946 - 422,572
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue:

Property Taxes - - 91,635 91,635
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS - - 91,535 91,5635
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED

INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 365,626 56,946 91,535 514,107
FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses 16,686 - - 16,686

Restricted For:
Special Revenue Funds 4,206,384 - - 4,206,384
Debt Service Funds - - 569,959 569,959
Capital Projects Funds - 828,347 - 828,347
Minimum Fund Balance 170,431 - - 170,431

Unassigned (5,723) - - (5,723)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 4,387,778 828,347 569,959 5,786,084
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND
FUND BALANCES 4753404 $ 885293 $ 661494 § 6,300,191

See Independent Auditors’ Report

60



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Nonmajor Funds Total
Special Capital Debt Nonmajor
Revenue Projects Service Funds
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes $ - 3% - $ 399661 $ 399,661
Gross Receipts Taxes 2,435,078 885,119 84,227 3,404,424
Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes 596,939 - - 596,939
Other Taxes 98,250 - - 98,250
Federal Operating Grants 24,684 - - 24,684
State Operating Grants 2,951,761 - 1 2,951,762
State Capital Grants 633,031 196,009 - 829,040
Payments in Lieu of Taxes - - - -
Charges for Services 232,081 - - 232,081
Investment Income 100,098 - 92,611 192,709
Miscellaneous Income 407,055 3,078 - 410,133
TOTAL REVENUES 7,478,977 1,084,206 576,500 9,139,683
EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government 671,304 - - 671,304
Public Safety 3,119,773 - - 3,119,773
Public Works 1,979,487 892,383 - 2,871,870
Culture and Recreation 237,221 - - 237,221
Health and Welfare 353,625 - - 353,625
Capital Outlay 1,507,615 309,861 - 1,817,476
Debt Service:
Principal - 34,595 526,906 561,501
Interest - 6,269 71,366 77,635
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,869,025 1,243,108 598,272 9,710,405
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES ‘
OVER EXPENDITURES (390,048) (158,902) (21,772) (570,722)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 2,028,053 240,000 23,474 2,291,627
Transfers Out (1,422,290) - (52,455) (1,474,745)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES) 605,763 240,000 {(28,981) 816,782
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 215,715 81,098 (50,753) 246,060
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 4,036,608 747,249 608,675 5,390,532
RESTATEMENT 135,455 - 14,037 149,492
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS RESTATED 4,172,063 747,249 620,712 5,540,024
FUND BALANCE, ENDING $ 4387778 $ 828347 $ 569959 § 5,786,084

See Independent Auditors’ Report

61



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - DESCRIPTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for
particular purposes.

Farm and Range Fund (403) - To account for the operations of farm and range activities, including soil and
water conservation, predatory animal, and insect control. Financing is provided from distributions made under
the Taylor Grazing Act Authority is Section 6-11-6, NMSA 1978.

CR A085 Developer Fee Fund (404) - To account for fees received for improvements, as may be necessary
to County Road - A085. Financing is provided by a developer as a condition of approving a special use permit
from the County and as defined in a Road Maintenance Agreement. Authority is the County Commission.

Fire District Funds (405, 406, 407, 408, 409, 418) - To account for the operations of County’s fire districts,
which are defined by the area served. The individual fire districts are Northeast Torrance, Torrance County
District Il, Duran, Mcintosh, and Torreon-Tajique. Financing is provided from the County's share of the fire
allotment issued by the State Fire Marshal under 59A-53 -5, NMSA 1978, and also by gross receipts taxes
approved by the voters of the County.

Fire Pool 1/4% Tax Fund (411) - To account for expenditures incurred in providing services and equipment
purchases for the fire districts. Financing is provided by the County's share of gross receipts tax and may be
used only for that purpose. Authority granted by Section 7-20E-15 and 7-20E-16, NMSA 1978.

County Fair Board Fund (412) - To account for the proceeds and expenditures of all revenue associated with
the Torrance County Fair. Authority is the County Commission.

Fire Department Administration Fund (413) - This fund is used to provide resources to administer the
volunteer fire districts. Funds are provided by an allotment from the State Fire Marshal and gross receipts
taxes. Authorized by 59A-53-5, NMSA 1978.

Indigent Fund (414) - To account for expenditures incurred in providing services for the care of indigents.
Financing is provided by the County's share of gross receipts tax and may be used only for that purpose.
Authority is 27-5-7, NMSA1978.

Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Fund (415) - To account for a grant from the State of New Mexico to be
used for the provision of emergency medical services to County residents. Sources of funds are the State of
New Mexico Health Department Emergency Medical Services Bureau. Authority is Section 24-10A-3 through
10, NMSA 1978.

Law Enforcement Protection Fund (LEPF) (410) - To account for a grant from the State of New Mexico
Corrections Department through the Law Enforcement Protection Act. The funding is to be used for law
enforcement improvements. Authority is 29-13-1, NMSA 1978.

Estancia Valley Solid Waste Authority (EVSWA) Contract Fund (419) - To account for the transactions of
Torrance County's management contract with the Estancia Valley Solid Waste Authority. Authority is the
County Commission.

Environmental Gross Receipts Tax Fund (423) - To account for funds received for environmental gross

receipts taxes that are then provided to the Torrance County Solid Waste Authority to help repay a loan
arranged with the New Mexico Finance Authority. Authority is the County Commission.

See Independent Auditors’ Report

62



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS — DESCRIPTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

GO Bond Proceeds Fund (424) - To account for the proceeds from the GO Bond that is held by the New
Mexico Finance Authority. Authority is County Commission.

WIPP Funding Fund (427) - To account for the WIPP funding received from the State Fire Marshal's Office as
defined by the contract with the State Fire Marshal's Office. Authority is the State Fire Marshal's Office.

Volunteer Recruitment/Retention Fund (428) - To account for a grant from the National Rifle Association for
yearly membership fees for deputies to an indoor shooting range. Authority is the National Rifle Association.
State Animal Care Fund- To account for the allotment funds from the NM State Veterinary Board. Authority is
County Commission.

State Animal Care Fund (429) - To be used to account for fundraising money and donations given to the
Torrance County Animal Shelter. Authority is the County Commission.

Animal Shelter Fund (430) - To be used to account for fundraising money and donations given to the
Torrance County Animal Shelter. Authority is the County Commission.

Safety Program Fund (600) - To be used to account for fees received from the use of a separate dumping
area (asbestos and construction). The proceeds are used in the County's safety program. Authority is the
County Commission.

Civil Defense Fund (604) - To account for a grant from the State of New Mexico for the operation of the Civil
Defense Unit Proceeds are 25% from the State of New Mexico and 75% from reimbursements from the
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). Authority is FEMA.

DWI Program Fund (605) - To account for a grant from the State of New Mexico Department of Finance and
Administration for D.W.I. detection and prevention pursuant to Chapter 65, New Mexico Laws of 1993.
Authority is Section 6-5-8, NMSA 1978.

DWI School Fund (606) - To account for fees generated by the DWI School Authority is the County
Commission.

Treasurer's Fee Fund (609) - To account for certain fees collected by the County Treasurer's Office.
Resources are to be used for the upgrade of equipment in the office. Authorized by County Commission
Resolution #2005-24.

Reappraisal Fund (610) - To account for the operations of a fund to help with reappraisal of County property
to ensure valuation reflects current fair market value. Financing is provided by retainage of 1% of tax
collections. Authority is Section 7-38-38.1, NMSA 1978.

Clerk's Equipment Fund (612) - To account for an additional $7 recording fee collected by the Clerk's Office
to pay for equipment/supplies for the Clerk's Office. Authority is the Absentee- Early Voting Act (Section 14-89-
12.2, NMSA1978).

RPHCA Grant Fund (616) - To account for a grant from the State of New Mexico Department of Health, to

provide health services at the Mountainair Family Health Clinic. Authority is the State of New Mexico
Department of Health.

See Independent Auditors’ Report

63



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - DESCRIPTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Recycling & lllegal Dumping Grant Fund (628) - To account for a grant from the State of New Mexico
Environment Department, to clean up illegal tire dumps within Torrance County. Authority is the State of New
Mexico Environment Department.

Home Visiting Grant Fund (629) - To account for a grant from the State of New Mexico Children, Youth and
Families Department to be used for prenatal home visiting services. Authority is the State of New Mexico
Children, Youth and Families Department.

Esperanza Clinic Fund (630) - To account for funds received for rent on the Esperanza Clinic. The lease
agreement calls for these proceeds to be in a separate fund to help offset maintenance and repair costs of the
clinic. Authority is the County Commission.

Senior Citizens Program Fund (631) - To account for proceeds from the sale of senior program vehicles.
Funds to be used for senior citizen program operations. Authority is the County Commission.

Loan Proceeds Fund (632) - To account for the proceeds from the NM Property Tax Division loan obtained by
the County Assessor. Authority is County Commission.

NMFA Loan Proceeds Fund (633) - To account for the proceeds from any loans from the New Mexico
Finance Authority. Authority is County Commission.

Court Forfeiture Fund (634) - To accounts for funds forfeited to the County by the court system. This money
also includes any cash evidence seized by the Sheriff's Department for safekeeping until release by the court.
This money can only be used as defined by the court system on a case-by-case basis.

Juvenile Justice Grant Fund (635) - To account for a grant received from the State of New Mexico Children
Youth and Families Department to be used for the support and defense of juveniles. The Authority is the State
of New Mexico Children Youth and Families Department

Wind PILT Fund (641) - To account for the payment in lieu of taxes payments received from High Lonesome
Mesa, LLC according to the lease agreement and Ordinance 2008-01. Authority is the County Commission.

Investment Interest Fund (642) - To account for interest earned from the New Mexico State Treasurer Local
Government Investment Pool or any other investments. Authority is County Commission.

Estancia Basin Water Study Fund (650) - To account for funds received from local grants and from sales of
water conservation booklets to study water issues and to help inform and educate the County's residents about -
the Estancia Basin. Authority is the County Commission.

DWI Smart Choice Fund (607) - To account for the funds collected from the DWI Smart Choice Program.
Authority is County Commission.

Rural Addressing Fund (675) - To account for the proceeds of a part of the local option gross receipts tax to
be used to mark rural addresses for use by emergency personnel. Authority is Section 67- 3-28.2NMSA1978.

Attorney General Grant Fund (681) - To account for the DRAM grant the County received from the New
Mexico Attorney General's Office. Authority is County Commission.

See Independent Auditors’ Report

64



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - DESCRIPTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Planning and Zoning Court Fees Fund (685) - To account for the court fees which are the result of a zoning
case. Authority is the County Commission.

Domestic Violence Fund (690) - To account for a grant from the of New Mexico Children Youth and Families
Department, to be used for the prevention of domestic violence. Authority is the State of New Mexico Children
Youth and Families Department.

Domestic Violence (DV) Victim Restitution (691) - To account for supplemental funding and donations
received to assist victims of domestic violence. Authority is the County Commission.

DWI Screening Fund (608) - Referrals come from Magistrate and Municipal courts and also from the Juvenile
Probation office. DWI offenders are normally screened after conviction. We screen at the courthouse and at
the sheriff's office. The County charges $100.00 for the screening fee. These fees are dependent on annual
DWI convictions which have been decreasing in the County. Costs attributed to screening include court
attendance, telephone, internet, copy machine lease, supplies.

Title Il Forest Reserve Fund (693) - To account for resources received from the Secure Rural Schools and
Community Self Determination Act of 2000 to be used only for search, rescue and emergency services,
community service work camps or easement purchases. Authority is P.L.106-393.

U.S. Marshall JLEO Fund (802) - To account for funds allocated to reimburse Torrance County for overtime
incurred in association with the Joint Law Enforcement Operations task force. Authority is the U.S. Marshalls.

Drug Education Program Fund (804) - To account for fees received from offenders (instead of a fine) to be
used to educate people about the dangers of drug use. Authority is 9-17-17NMSA1978.

Traffic Safety Fund (8056) - To account for funds received from the U.S. Department of Transportation passed
through the State of New Mexico Highway and Transportation Department for the purpose of helping local law
enforcement officers reduce highway deaths and injuries resulting from individuals riding unrestrained or
improperly restrained in motor vehicles, to increase seatbelt use rates, and to discourage drunk driving.
Authority is the U.S. Department of Transportation.

Teen Court Donation Fund (807) - To account for donations made to the Teen Court Program. Authority is
the County Commission.

HIDTA Task Force (801) — To account for a grant from the National Office of Drug Control Policy utilized in
high intensity drug trafficking areas. Authority for creation is contained in Anti-drug Abuse Act of 1988. Public
Law 100-690.

Forest Service Patrol Fund (808) - To account for funds received from the U.S. Forest Service for the
provision of police services in and around national forest areas. Authority is the U.S. Forest Service.

Road Fund (402) - To account for funds used to maintain roads that the County is responsible for. Financing is

provided by motor vehicle fees. Expenditures are restricted to the construction and maintenance of County
roads. Authority is Section 67-4-1 NMSA 1978.

See Independent Auditors’ Report

65



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS —~ DESCRIPTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NMDHIS EMPG Fund (826) - To account for the Emergency Management Performance Grant funding from
NM Department of Homeland Security. Authority is State of New Mexico Department of Homeland Security.

NMDOH Cities Readiness Initiative Fund (826) - To account for the NM Department of Health Cities
Readiness Initiative contract funding. Authority is State of New Mexico Department of Health.

Disaster Public Assistance Fund (830) - To account for the FEMA disaster - public assistance funding for a
declared flooding disaster that occurred in Torrance County. Authority is FEMA.

COVID-19 Fund (835) - To account for any expenditures directly related to the COVID-19 Pandemic
emergency and any reimbursement under the CARES Act. Authority is County Commission.

Dog Head Fire Fund (834) - To account for Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) disaster public
assistance funding for the Dog Head Fire. Authority is FEMA

Emergency 911 Fund (911) - To account for local option gross receipts tax proceeds and a training grant from
the State of New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration. The training grant funds that are to be
used to pay for 911 training. Financing is provided by a grant from New Mexico Department of Finance and
Administration pursuant to Section 63-9D-1, NMSA 1978, "Enhanced 911 Act." Authority is the County
Commission.

Adult Corrections Fund (420) - To account for resources used to pay for the housing and care of Torrance
County Inmates. Funding is provided through charges to local municipalities, the NM Dept. of Corrections, local
gross receipts tax option and transfers from the County’s general fund. Also includes the Community
Monitoring Program. Authority is the County Commission.

NMFA Grant Fund (626) - To account for the NMFA grant the County received for the Southern Economic
Development Plan. Authority is County Commission.

See Independent Auditors’ Report

66



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

Farm and
Range

CR-A085
Developer

District 1 District 2
Fire Fire

District 3
Fire

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 8,582
Restricted Cash -
Investments -
Receivables:
Property Taxes -
Other Taxes -
Other Receivables, Net -
Prepaid Expenses -

$ 1,679

$ 131282 $ 174,166

2,236 2,236

$ 99,604

2,236

TOTAL ASSETS $ 8,582

3 1,579

$ 133518 § 176,402

$ 101,840

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ -
Accrued Salaries and Benefits -

$ 1058 $ 1,639

$ 1,471

TOTAL LIABILITIES -

1,058 1,639

1,471

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue:
Property Taxes -

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS -

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES -

1,058 1,639

1,471

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses -

Restricted For:
Special Revenue Funds 8,682
Debt Service Funds -
Capital Projects Funds -
Minimum Fund Balance -
Unassigned -

1,679

2,236 2,236

130,224 172,527

2,236

98,133

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 8,682

132,460 174,763

100,369

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND
FUND BALANCES $ 8,682

See Independent Auditors’ Report

67

$§ 133518 § 176402

$_101.840



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET — NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -

CONTINUED

AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash
Investments
Receivables:

Property Taxes

Other Taxes

Other Receivables, Net
Prepaid Expenses

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue:
Property Taxes

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses
Restricted For:
Special Revenue Funds
Debt Service Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Minimum Fund Balance
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND
FUND BALANCES

District 4 District 5 District-6 Fire Pool County
Fire Fire Fire 1/4% Tax  Fair Board
$ 35853 $§ 59538 § 140,168 § 109,057 $ 38,619
- - - 146,010 -
2,236 2,236 2,236 - -
$ 38089 $ 61774 § 142,404 § 255,067 $ 38,619
$ 1115 § 2421 $ 986 § 64 $ 450
1,115 2,421 986 64 450
1,115 2,421 986 64 450
2,236 2,236 2,236 - -
34,738 57,117 139,182 255,003 38,169
36,974 59,353 141,418 255,003 38,169
$ 38080 ¢ 61774 § 142,404 $ 255067 $ 38619

See Independent Auditors’ Report

68



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET — NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -
CONTINUED
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

Fire Dept. Indigent Law EVSWA
Admin. Fund EMS Enforcement Contract
ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 30,723 $ 454,457 $ 129,155 § - $ 12644
Restricted Cash - - - - -
Investments - - - - -

Receivables:
Property Taxes - - - - -
Other Taxes - 158,871 11,263 - -
Other Receivables, Net - - - - -
Prepaid Expenses 552 - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 31,2756 $ 613,328 $ 140,418 % - $ 12,644

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 3547 $ 91327 § - 8 $ 18,168
Accrued Salaries and Benefits - - 4,709 - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,647 91,327 4,708 - 18,168

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue:
Property Taxes - - - - -

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS - - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 3,547 91,327 4,709

18,168

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses 552 - - - -

Restricted For:
Special Revenue Funds 27,178 522,001 135,709 - -
Debt Service Funds - - - - -
Capital Projects Funds - - - - -
Minimum Fund Balance - - - - -
Unassigned - - - - (5,524

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 27,728 522,001 135,709 - (5,524)

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND
FUND BALANCES $ 31275 § 613328 §$ 140418 $

1
N
o
1N
S

See Independent Auditors’ Report

69



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET — NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -
CONTINUED
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

Env. GO Bond WIPP Volunteer State
GRT Proceeds Funding _Recruitment _Animal Care

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ - $ - % 400 % 28,782 % 1,008
Restricted Cash - - - - -
Investments - - - - -
Receivables:
Property Taxes - - - - -
Other Taxes 76,107 - - - -
Other Receivables, Net - - - - -
Prepaid Expenses - - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS $ 76,107 § - $ 400 § 28,782 § 1,098

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 76107 § - § - 8 - $ -
Accrued Salaries and Benefits - - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 76,107 - - - -

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue:
Property Taxes - - - - -

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS - - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 76,107 - - - -

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses - - - - -

Restricted For:
Special Revenue Funds - - 400 28,782 1,008
Debt Service Funds - - - . -
Capital Projects Funds - - - - .
Minimum Fund Balance - - - - -
Unassigned - - - - -

TOTAL FUND BALANCES - - 400 28,782 1,098

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND
FUND BALANCES $ 76,107 § - $ 400 § 28782 § 1,098

See Independent Auditors’ Report

70



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

TORRANCE COUNTY

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET —~ NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -
CONTINUED

AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash
Investments
Receivables:

Property Taxes

Other Taxes

Other Receivables, Net
Prepaid Expenses

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue:
Property Taxes

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses
Restricted For:
Special Revenue Funds
Debt Service Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Minimum Fund Balance
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND
FUND BALANCES

Animal Safety Civil Dwi DWI
Shelter Program Defense Program School
$ 3157 $ 24523 $ 3389 $ 48274 $ 866
- - 15,768 - -
$ 3157 $§ 24523 $ 19157 $ 48274 $ 866
$ - $ - § 427 % 348 % -
- - 427 348 -
- - 427 348 -
3,157 24,523 18,730 47,926 866
3,157 24,523 18,730 47,926 866
$ 3157 $§ 24523 $ 19157 $ 48 274 $_ 866

See Independent Auditors’ Report

71



ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash
Investments
Receivables:

Property Taxes

Other Taxes

Other Receivables, Net
Prepaid Expenses

TOTAL ASSETS

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET — NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -

CONTINUED

AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFL.OWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue:
Property Taxes
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses
Restricted For:
Special Revenue Funds
Debt Service Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Minimum Fund Balance
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND

FUND BALANCES

Treasurer's Reappraisal Clerk's RPHCA Recycling
Fee Fund Equipment Grant lllegal Dump

$ 1,510 § 60,181 $ 26,887 $ 26523 $ 14,979
- - - 7,502 -

$ 1,610 § 60,181 $§ 26887 $ 34,025 $ 14,979
$ -- % 687 § 636 § - % -
- 2,123 - - -

- 2,810 636 - -

- 2,810 636 - -

1,510 57,371 26,251 34,025 14,979

1,610 57,371 26,251 34,025 14,979

$ 1510 % 60181 $§ 26887 $ 34025 $ 14,979

See Independent Auditors’ Report

72



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET — NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -
CONTINUED
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

Home Esperanza Senior Loan NMFA Loan
Visiting Clinic Citizens Proceeds Proceeds

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3019 $ 11615 $ 6451 $ - $ 1,373
Restricted Cash - - - - -
Investments - - - - -
Receivables:
Property Taxes - - - R .
Other Taxes - - - - .
Other Receivables, Net - - - - -
Prepaid Expenses - - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS $ 3019 $ 11615 $ 6451 § - % 1,373

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ - § - $ 833 §$ - 8 -
Accrued Salaries and Benefits - - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES - - 833 - -

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue:
Property Taxes - - - - -

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS - - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES - - 833 - -

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses - - - - -

Restricted For:
Special Revenue Funds 3,019 11,615 5,618 - 1,373
Debt Service Funds - - - - -
Capital Projects Funds - - - - -
Minimum Fund Balance - - - - -
Unassigned - - - - .

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 3,019 11,615 5,618 - 1,373

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND
FUND BALANCES $ 3019 $ 11615 $ 6451 § - § 1,373

See Independent Auditors’ Report

73



COMBINING BALANCE SHEET — NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash
Investments
Receivables:

Property Taxes

Other Taxes

Other Receivables, Net
Prepaid Expenses

TOTAL ASSETS

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY

CONTINUED
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue:
Property Taxes
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses
Restricted For:
Special Revenue Funds
Debt Service Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Minimum Fund Balance
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
AND FUND BALANCES

Court Juvenile Wind Invest. Estancia Water DWI Smart
Forfeiture Justice PILT Interest Basin Study Choice

$ 13,739 $ 58,143 $ 194,088 $ 290633 $ 16,228 $ 11,774

- 3,438 - - - -

$ 13739 $ 61581 $ 194,088 $ 290633 $ 16,228 $ 11,774

$ - % - $ - $ - $ - 5 -

13,739 61,581 194,088 290,633 16,228 11,774

13,739 61,581 194,088 290,633 16,228 11,774

$ 13739 § 615681 §$ 194088 § 200633 §$ 16228 $ 11,774

See Independent Auditors’ Report

74




ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash
Investments
Receivables:

Property Taxes

Other Taxes

Other Receivables, Net
Prepaid Expenses

TOTAL ASSETS

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -

CONTINUED

AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue;
Property Taxes
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses
Restricted For:
Special Revenue Funds
Debt Service Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Minimum Fund Balance
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
AND FUND BALANCES

Rural Attorney Planning & Domestic DV Victim DWI
Addressing General Grant Zoning Violence  Restitution Screening
$ 63753 § - $ 25714 § 38937 § 28789 § 1,995

11,263 - - - - -

- - - 17,693 - -

$ 75,016 $ - $ 25714 § 56530 $ 28789 § 1,995
$ 4844 § - % - $ 472 $ - 8 -
1,920 - - 85 - -

6,764 - - 557 - -

6,764 - - 557 - -
68,252 - 25714 55,973 28,789 1,995
68,252 - 25714 55,973 28,789 1,995

$ 75016 $_ = § 25714 $ 56530 $ 28789 § 1,995

See Independent Auditors’ Report

75



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET —~ NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -
CONTINUED
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

Title lll Forest U.S. Marshall Drug Traffic Teen Court HIDTA Task
Reserve JLEO Education Safety Donation Force

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 171,939 § 15272 $ 4031 $ 6088 § 1,791 $ 773
Restricted Cash - - - - - -
Investments - - - - - -
Receivables:
Property Taxes - - - - . R
Other Taxes - - - - - -
Other Receivables, Net - - - - - -
Prepaid Expenses - - - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS $ 171,939 § 15272  § 4031 § 6,088 § 1,791 $ 773

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ - § - % - % - % - % -
Accrued Salaries and Benefits - 324 - 844 - . -
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 324 - 844 - -

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue:
Property Taxes - - - - - -

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS - - - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES - 324 - 844 - -

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses - - - - - -
Restricted For:
Special Revenue Funds 171,939 14,948 4,031 5,224 1,791 773
Debt Service Funds - - - - - -
Capital Projects Funds - - - - - -
Minimum Fund Balance - - - - - -
Unassigned - - - - - -

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 171,939 14,948 4,031 5,224 1,791 773

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
AND FUND BALANCES $ 171939 § 185272 8§ 4031 $ 6068 §$_ 1791 § 773

See Independent Auditors’ Report

76



ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash
Investments
Receivables:

Property Taxes

Other Taxes

Other Receivables, Net
Prepaid Expenses

TOTAL ASSETS

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET — NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -

CONTINUED

AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue:
Property Taxes
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable;
Prepaid Expenses
Restricted For:
Special Revenue Funds
Debt Service Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Minimum Fund Balance
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
AND FUND BALANCES

Forest Serv. Road NMDHIS NMDOH Cities Disaster
Patrol Fund EMPG Readiness Pub. Assist, COVID-19
$ 4674 $ 612747 $ 15393 $ 1,506 $ 74,345 $ 1,623
- 183,047 - - - -
$ 4674 $ 795794 $ 15393 §$ 1,506 $ 74,345 $ 1,623
$ - $ 29,030 % - 3 - $ - $ 1,106
343 23,794 1,154 - - 716
343 52,824 1,154 - - 1,822
343 52,824 1,154 - - 1,822
4,331 572,639 14,239 1,506 74,345 -
- 170,431 - - - -
- - - - - (199)
4,331 742,970 14,239 1,506 74,345 (199)
$ 4674 $ 795794 $§ 15393 $ 1506 $ 74345 % 1,623

See Independent Auditors’ Report

77




ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash
Investments
Receivables:

Property Taxes

Other Taxes

Other Receivables, Net
Prepaid Expenses

TOTAL ASSETS

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET — NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -

CONTINUED

AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

Total Nonmajor

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue:
Property Taxes
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:

Prepaid Expenses
Restricted For:
Special Revenue Funds
Debt Service Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Minimum Fund Balance
Unassighed

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
AND FUND BALANCES

Doghead Emergency Adult NMFA Spcial Revenue
Fire 911 Corrections Grant Funds

$ 1§ 226123 $ 210,292 $ 25000 $ 3,803,825
- 186,964 112,627 - 901,920
- - 2,440 - 30,973
- 2,718 - - 16,686

$ 1 $§ 415805 $ 325359 $ 25000 § 4,753,404

$ - 8 2,926 § 63,535 § - $ 303,197
- 15,618 10,799 - 62,429
- 18,544 74,334 - 365,626
- 18,544 74,334 - 365,626
- 2,718 - - 16,686
1 394,543 251,025 25,000 4,206,384
- - - - 170,431
- - - - (5,723)
1 397,261 251,025 25,000 4,387,778

$ 1§ 415805 $ 325350 $ 25000 4,753,404

See Independent Auditors’ Report

78



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Farm and CR-AO85 District 1
Range Developer Fire

District 2
Fire

District 3
Fire

Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes - -

Other Taxes
Federal Operating Grants
State Operating Grants
State Capital Grants

Payments in Lieu of Taxes

Charges for Services
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Income

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Health and Welfare
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

2,594 - 56,618

112,650

40,294

$ -

136,257

2,594 114 56,618

152,944

136,257

59,024

60,474

111,484

28,602 - 31,913

59,024

171,958

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES

(26,008) 114 24,705

93,920

(35,701)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers Out

32,500 -

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

(USES)

32,500 -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 6,492 114 24,705
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 2,090 1,465 107,755

RESTATEMENT

93,020
80,843

(35,701)
136,070

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS RESTATED 2,090 1,465 107,755
$ 8582 § 1579 § 132,460

. FUND BALANCE, ENDING

80,843

136,070

$ 174,763

See Independent Auditors’ Report

79

$ 100,369



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

District4  District5 District 6 Fire Pool County
Fire Fire Fire 1/4% Tax Fair Board

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes $ - % - 8 - -
Gross Receipts Taxes - - - 318,887 -
Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes - - - - -
Other Taxes - - - - -
Federal Operating Grants - - -
State Operating Grants 40,371 144,968 80,454 363 -
State Capital Grants - - - - -
Payments in Lieu of Taxes - - - - -
Charges for Services - - - 3,475 2,970
Investment Income - - - - -
Miscellaneous Income - - 23,458 1,207 200,989

TOTAL REVENUES 40,371 144,968 103,912 323,932 203,959

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government - - - -
Public Safety 43,505 92,733 29,632 86,218 -
Public Works - - - - -
Culture and Recreation - - - - 237,221
Health and Welfare - - -
Capital Outlay - 111,484 - 91,011 -
Debt Service:
Principal - - - - -
Interest - - - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 43,505 204,217 29,532 177,229 237,221

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (3,134) (58,249) 74,380 146,703 (33,262)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - - - 52,455 19,000
Transfers Out - - - - -

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

(USES) - - - 52,455 19,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (3,134) (59,249) 74,380 199,158 (14,262)
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 40,108 118,602 67,038 55,845 52,431
RESTATEMENT - - - - -
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS RESTATED 40,108 118,602 67,038 55,845 52,431
FUND BALANCE, ENDING $ 36974 $ 59353 § 141418 § 255003 § 38,169

See Independent Auditors’ Report

80



REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes

Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes

Other Taxes
Federal Operating Grants
State Operating Grants
State Capital Grants
Payments in Lieu of Taxes
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Income

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Health and Welfare
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In
Transfers Out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

(USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING

RESTATEMENT

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS RESTATED

FUND BALANCE, ENDING

Fire Dept. Indigent Law EVSWA
Admin. Fund EMS Enforcement Contract
$ - % -3 -3 - $ -
- 514,190 35,740 - -

80,454 - 16,559 28,400 -

- 10,535 - - 58,855

80,454 524,725 52,299 28,400 58,855

- - - - 158,270

109,490 - 67,092 30,607 -

- 341,223 - - -

- - - 9,341 -

109,490 341,223 67,092 39,948 158,270
(29,036) 183,502 (14,793) (11,548) (99,415)

- - - - 60,000

- - - - 60,000

(29,036) 183,502 (14,793) (11,548) (39,415)
56,764 338,499 150,502 11,548 33,891
56,764 338,499 150,502 11,548 33,891

$ 27728 $ 522,001 $ 135709 § - $ (5524)

See Independent Auditors’ Report

81



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

TORRANCE COUNTY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES —~ NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes
Other Taxes
Federal Operating Grants
State Operating Grants
State Capital Grants
Payments in Lieu of Taxes
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Income

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Health and Welfare
Capital Qutlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING
RESTATEMENT

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS RESTATED

FUND BALANCE, ENDING

Env. GO Bond WIPP Volunteer State
GRT Proceeds _Funding _ Recruitment Animal Care
$ - $ - 3 -3 - % -
178,061 - - - -
- - 7,000 - -
178,061 - 7,000 - -
193,176 - - 45,794 -
- - 400 - 1,025
- 308,229 - - -
- - 6,600 - -
193,176 308,229 7,000 45,794 1,025
(15,115) (308,229) - (45,794) (1,025)
- - - 50,000 -
- - - 50,000 -
(15,115) (308,229) - 4,206 (1,025)
- 276,145 400 24,576 2,123
15,115 32,084 - - -
15,115 308,229 400 24,576 2,123
$ - $ - $ 400 % 28782 $ 1,098

See Independent Auditors’ Report

82



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

TORRANCE COUNTY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES ~ NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Animal
Shelter

Safety
Program

Civil
Defense

DwI DWI
Program School

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes $ -
Gross Receipts Taxes -
Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes -
Other Taxes -
Federal Operating Grants -
State Operating Grants -
State Capital Grants -
Payments in Lieu of Taxes -
Charges for Services 200
Investment Income -
Miscellaneous Income 550

TOTAL REVENUES 750

50,037

161,129 -

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government -
Public Safety 40
Public Works -
Culture and Recreation -
Health and Welfare -
Capital Outlay -
Debt Service:
Principal -
Interest -

10,851

55,373

150,976 1,196

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 40

22,769

66,224

150,976 1,196

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 710

(13,490)

(16,187)

10,153 _ (1,196)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In -
Transfers Out -

12,544

(19,431) ;

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES) -

12,544

(19,431) -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 710
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 2,447
RESTATEMENT -

(946)
25,469

(16,187)
34,917

(9,278) (1,1986)
57,204 2,062

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS RESTATED 2,447

25,469

34,917

57,204 2,062

FUND BALANCE, ENDING $ 3157

$_24523

$ 18730 $ 47006 $ 866

See Independent Auditors’ Report

83



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES —~ NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes
Other Taxes
Federal Operating Grants
State Operating Grants
State Capital Grants
Payments in Lieu of Taxes
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Income

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Health and Welfare
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING
RESTATEMENT

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS RESTATED
FUND BALANCE, ENDING

Treasurer's Reappraisal Clerk's RPHCA Recycling
Fee Fund Equipment Grant lllegal Dump
$ - $ - $ - $ - 8 -
- 98,225 - - -
- - 21,292 146,151 -
21,856 1,410 - - -
- 712 111 - -
21,856 100,347 21,403 146,151 -
7,382 161,631 17,445 - -
- - - 112,126 -
17,661 37,233 - - -
25,043 198,864 17,445 112,126 -
(3,187) (98,517) 3,958 34,025 -
- 49,656 - - -
- (23,474) - - -
- 26,182 - - -
(3,187) (72,335) 3,958 34,025 -
4,697 129,706 22,293 - 14,979
4,697 129,708 22,293 - 14,979
$ 1510 $ 57371 $ 26251 $ 34025 $ 14979

See Independent Auditors’ Report

84



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Home Esperanza Senior Loan NMFA Loan
Visiting Clinic Citizens Proceeds Proceeds

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes $ - ¢ - % - % - 5 .
Gross Receipts Taxes - - - - -
Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes - - - - -
Other Taxes - - - - -
Federal Operating Grants - - - - -
State Operating Grants - - - - -
State Capital Grants - - - - -
Payments in Lieu of Taxes - - - - -
Charges for Services - 200 - - -
Investment Income - - -
Miscellaneous Income - - 1,712 - -

TOTAL REVENUES - 200 1,712 - 29

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government - - - - -
Public Safety - - - - -
Public Works - - - - -
Culture and Recreation - - -
Health and Welfare - 962 11,440 - -
Capital Outlay - - - - -
Debt Service:
Principal - - - - -
Interest - - - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES - 962 11,440 - -

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES - (762) (9,728) - 29

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - - 10,000 - -
Transfers Out - - - - -

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

(USES) - - 10,000 - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - (762) 272 - 29
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 3,019 12,377 5,346 - 1,344
RESTATEMENT - - - - -
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS RESTATED 3,019 12,377 5,346 - 1,344
FUND BALANCE, ENDING $ 3019 $ 11615 $ 5518 § - $ 1373

See Independent Auditors’ Report

85



REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes
Other Taxes
Federal Operating Grants
State Operating Grants
State Capital Grants
Payments in Lieu of Taxes
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Income

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Health and Welfare
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Qut

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING
RESTATEMENT

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS RESTATED

FUND BALANCE, ENDING

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES ~ NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

See Independent Auditors’ Report

86

Court Juvenile Wind Investment Estancia Water DWI Smart
Forfeiture Justice PILT Interest Basin Study Choice
$ - % - % - -3 - % -
- 29,217 1,697,240 - - 102
- - - 100,069 - -
- - - 289 15,250 -
- 29,217 1,597,240 100,358 15,250 102
. - - 10,053 - -
- 28,799 - - - 2,135
- - 429,328 - 3,321 -
- - 184,051 - - -
- 28,799 613,379 10,053 3,321 2,135
- 418 983,861 90,305 11,929 (2,033)
- - 80,967 - - 13,807
- - (1,147,000) - - -
- - (1,066,033) - - 13,807
- 418 (82,172) 90,305 11,929 11,774
13,739 61,163 276,260 200,328 4,299 -
13,739 61,163 276,260 200,328 4,299 -
$_13739 §$ 61581 § 194088 § 290633 §_ 16228 $ 11,774




COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONTINUED

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes
Other Taxes
Federal Operating Grants
State Operating Grants
State Capital Grants
Payments in Lieu of Taxes
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Income

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Health and Welfare
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING
RESTATEMENT

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS RESTATED

FUND BALANCE, ENDING

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

See Independent Auditors’ Report

87

Rural Attorney Planning & Domestic DV Victim Dwi
Addressing General Grant Zoning Violence Restitution ~ Screening
$ - 3 - 3 - 8 - § - % -

35,740 - - - - -
- - - - 25 -

- - - 51,143 - -
5,162 - 7,900 - - 1,100
- - - - 2,250 -
40,902 - 7,900 51,143 2,275 1,100
77,313 - 240 - - -
- 37 - 70,108 2,268 4,729
77,313 37 240 70,108 2,268 4,729
(36,411) (37) 7,660 (18,965) 7 (3,629)
50,000 - 6,000 46,500 - 5,624
50,000 - 6,000 46,500 - 5,624
13,589 (37) 13,660 27,535 7 1,995
54,663 37 12,054 28,438 28,782 -
54,663 37 12,054 28,438 28,782 -
$ 68250 8 - § 25714 $ 55973 $ 28780 $ 1005



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Title lll Forest  U.S. Marshall Drug Traffic Teen Court  HIDTA Task
Reserve JLEO Education Safety Donation Force

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes $ - 3 - $ - § - 3 - % -
Gross Receipts Taxes - - - - - -
Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes - - - - - -
Other Taxes -
Federal Operating Grants - - -
State Operating Grants 11,537 - - 2,750 - 2,344
State Capital Grants - - - - - -
Payments in Lieu of Taxes - - - - - -
Charges for Services - - - - 648 -
Investment Income - - - - - -
Miscellaneous Income - - - - - -

TOTAL REVENUES 11,537 17,684 - 2,750 648 2,344

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government - - - - -
Public Safety - 19,323 9,197 6,439 182 3,571
Public Works - - - - _ R
Cuiture and Recreation - - - - _ -
Health and Welfare - - - - - -
Capital Outlay - - - - - -
Debt Service:
Principal - - - - - .
Interest - - - - - .

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - 19,323 9,197 6,439 182 3,571

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 11,537 (1,639) (9,197) (3,689) 466 - - (1,227)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - - - - - 2,000
Transfers Qut - - - - _ R

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

(USES) u - u - - 2,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 11,5637 (1,639) (9197)  (3,689) 466 773
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 160,402 16,587 13,228 8,913 1,325 -
RESTATEMENT - - - - - -
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS RESTATED 160,402 16,587 13,228 8,913 1,325 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING $ 171939 §$ 14948 $ 4031 §$5224 $ 1791 $_ 773

See Independent Auditors’ Report

88



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES ~ NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Forest Serv. Road NMDHIS NMDOH Cities Disaster
Patrol Fund EMPG Readiness Pub. Assist. COVID-19

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes $ - § - 8 - $ - 8 - 8 -
Gross Receipts Taxes - 359,741 - - - -
Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes - 596,939 - - - -
Other Taxes - - - - - -
Federal Operating Grants - - -
State Operating Grants 6,189 98,068 9,454 ) - -
State Capital Grants - 633,031 - - - -
Payments in Lieu of Taxes - - - - - -
Charges for Services - 760 - - - -
Investment Income - -
Miscellaneous Income - 17,846 - - - -

TOTAL REVENUES 6,189 1,706,385 9,454 (1) - -

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government - - - - -
Public Safety - - 42,447 11,172 - 55,199
Public Works 5,182 1,096,301 - - - -
Culture and Recreation - - - - - -
Health and Welfare - - -
Capital Outlay - 666,551 - 6,179 - -
Debt Service:
Principal - - - - - -
Interest - - - - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,182 1,762,852 42,447 17,351 - 55,199

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 1,007 (66,467) _ (32,993) (17,352) - (565,199)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - - 22,000 - - 55,000
Transfers Qut - - - - - -

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

(USES) - - 22,000 - - 55,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 1,007 (56,467)  (10,993) (17,352) - (199)
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 3,324 719,186 25,232 18,858 74,345 -
RESTATEMENT - 80,251 - - : -
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS RESTATED 3,324 799,437 25,232 18,858 74,345 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING $ 4331 $ 742970 $ 14239 $ 1506 § 74345 § (199)

See Independent Auditors’ Report

89



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes
Other Taxes
Federal Operating Grants
State Operating Grants
State Capital Grants
Payments in Lieu of Taxes
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Income

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Public Safsty
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Health and Welfare
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING
RESTATEMENT

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AS RESTATED

FUND BALANCE, ENDING

See Independent Auditors’ Report

Total Nonmajor

90

Doghead  Emergency Adult NMFA Spcial Revenue
Fire 911 Corrections Grant Funds

$ - -8 - 3 - 3 -
- 593,297 349,385 - 2,435,078

- - - - 596,939

- - - - 98,250

- - - - 24,684

80,967 - 34,491 - 2,951,761

- - - - 633,031

- 130,396 48,710 - 232,081

- - - - 100,098

- 2,341 30,657 - 407,055

80,967 726,034 461,143 - 7,478,977

- - - - 671,304

- 855,064 1,182,656 - 3,119,773

- - - 25,000 1,979,487

- - - - 237,221

- - - - 353,625

- - 210,647 - 1,507,615

- 855,064 1,393,303 25,000 7,869,025
80,967 (129,030) (932,160) _ (25,000) (390,048)

- 260,000 1,150,000 50,000 2,028,053
(185,396) (46,989) - - (1,422,290)
(185,396) 213,011 1,150,000 50,000 605,763
(104,429) 83,981 217,840 25,000 215,715
104,430 313,280 25,180 - 4,036,608
- - 8,005 - 135,455
104,430 313,280 33,185 - 4,172,083
$ 1 § 307261 $ 251025 $ 25000 § 4,387,778



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS - DESCRIPTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition, construction, and repair of major capital assets.
Non-major capital projects funds consist of the following:

County Infrastructure GRT (620) - To account for funds received for the County infrastructure gross receipts
taxes. County Ordinance 2006-1 states the specific purposes for which this tax can be used. Authority is the
County Commission.

Capital Outlay GRT (621) - To account for funds received for the capital outlay gross receipts taxes. County
ordinance 2014-03 states the specific purposes for which this tax can be used. Authority is County
Commission.

Legislative Appropriations (803) - To account for resources received from State of New Mexico Legislative

Appropriations for the acquisition of capital assets for Torrance County. This was authorized by the legislation
involved.

See Independent Auditors’ Report

91



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
: TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET — NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

Total Nonmajor

County Infra. Capital Legis. Capital Projects
GRT Outlay GRT Approp. Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 154,418 $ 258,449 $ 2538 $ 415,405
Restricted Cash - - - -
Investments - - - -
Receivables:
Property Taxes - - - -
Other Taxes 76,094 223,403 - 299,497
Other Receivables, Net - - 170,391 170,391
Prepaid Expenses - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 230,512 $ 481,852 $ 172,929 § 885,293

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 2497 $ 4866 $ 49583 $ 56,946
Accrued Salaries and Benefits - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,497 4,866 49,583 56,946

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue:
Property Taxes - - - .

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2,497 4,866 49,583 56,946

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses - - - -
Restricted For:;
Special Revenue Funds - - - -
Debt Service Funds - - - -
Capital Projects Funds 228,015 476,986 123,346 828,347

Minimum Fund Balance - - - -
Unassigned - - - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 228,015 476,986 123,346 828,347

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND
FUND BALANCES $ 230512 § 481852 $ 172,920 § 885,293

See Independent Auditors’ Report

92



REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes
Other Taxes
Federal Operating Grants
State Operating Grants
State Capital Grants
Payments in Lieu of Taxes
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Income

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Health and Welfare
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Qut
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING
RESTATEMENT

BEGINNING BALANCE AS RESTATED
FUND BALANCE, ENDING

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES —~ NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Total Nonmajor

County Infra. Capital Legis. Capital Projects
GRT Outlay GRT Approp. Funds

$ - $ - % - $ -
177,940 707,179 - 885,119

- - 196,009 196,009

- 3,078 - 3,078

177,940 710,257 196,009 1,084,206
191,500 510,233 190,650 892,383

14,525 150,448 144,888 309,861

- 34,595 - 34,595

- 6,269 - ~ 6,269

206,025 701,545 335,538 1,243,108
(28,085) 8,712 (139,529) (158,902)

- - 240,000 240,000

- - 240,000 240,000

(28,085) 8,712 100,471 81,098
256,100 468,274 22,875 747,249
256,100 468,274 22,875 747,249

$__ 228015 § 476986 § 123346 § 828,347

See Independent Auditors’ Report

93



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND - DESCRIPTION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Debt Service Fund (636) - This fund accounts for gross receipts and state allotment revenues collected to pay
the current year's debt service on NMFA Loans. This fund also accounts for property tax revenues collected to
pay off current year debt service on the 2001 general obligation bonds of the County.

See Independent Auditors’ Report

94



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET — NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

Total Nonmajor

Debt Service
Fund
ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 371,140

Restricted Cash 178,069

Investments -

Receivables:

Property Taxes 08,248
Other Taxes 14,037
Other Receivables, Net -

Prepaid Expenseas -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 661,494
LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable $ -

Accrued Salaries and Benefits -
TOTAL LIABILITIES -
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue:

Property Taxes 91,5635
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 91,535
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED

INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 91,535

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses -

Restricted For:
Special Revenue Funds -
Debt Service Funds 569,959
Capital Projects Funds -
Minimum Fund Balance -
Unassigned -

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 569,959

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND

BALANCES $ 661,494

See Independent Auditors’ Report

95



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Total Nonmajor

Debt Service
Fund
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes $ 399,661
Gross Receipts Taxes 84,227
Gasoline and Motor Vehicle Taxes -
Other Taxes -
Federal Operating Grants -
State Operating Grants 1
State Capital Grants -
Payments in Lieu of Taxes -
Charges for Services -
Investment Income 92,611
Miscellaneous Income - -
TOTAL REVENUES 576,500
EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government -
Public Safety -
Public Works -
Culture and Recreation -
Health and Welfare -
Capital Outlay -
Debt Service:
Principal 526,906
Interest 71,366
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 598,272
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (21,772)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 23,474
Transfers Out (52,455)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES) (28,981)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (50,753)
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 606,675
RESTATEMENT 14,037
BEGINNING BALANCE AS RESTATED 620,712
FUND BALANCE, ENDING $ 569,959

See Independent Auditors’ Report

96



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - DESCRIPTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Fiduciary Funds - Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for other
governments and/or other funds.

Children’s Trust Fund—To account for a $15.00 fee collected by the County Clerk for issuing,
acknowledging, and recording a marriage license and marriage certificate in accordance with Section
40-1-11E, NMSA 1978. The $15.00 fee shall be remitted by the County Treasurer to the State
Treasurer within 15 days of the last day of each month for credit to the Children’s Trust Fund.

Undistributed Taxes—To account for property taxes collected by the County Treasurer and distributed
to other governmental units in accordance with Section 7-38-43, NMSA 1978.

Overpayment of Taxes 7-38-38—To account for the overpayment of property taxes in accordance
with Section 7-38-38B NMSA 1978. The fund is used to account for excess property taxes paid until a
refund can be made to the taxpayer.

Taxes Paid in Advance—To account for the prepayment of property taxes in accordance with Section
7-38-38.2 NMSA 1978, which are not legally due.

Penalty and Interest—To account for costs collected for the State of New Mexico and for penalty and
interest on delinquent taxes collected for the State.

See Independent Auditors’ Report

97



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
-Property Taxes Receivable

Total Assets
Liabilities

Deposits Held for Others
Due to Other Taxing Entities

Total Liabilities

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES -
AGENCY FUNDS

Balance Balance

June 30, 2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020
295,912 286,837 - 3 582,749
895,180 4,828,066 4,461,909 1,261,337
1,191,092 5,114,903 4461909 $ 1,844,086
295,912 286,837 - $ 582,749
895,180 4,828,066 4,461,909 1,261,337
1,191,092 5,114,903 4461909 $ 1,844,086

See Independent Auditors’ Report

98



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
RECONCILIATION OF PROPERTY TAX ROLLS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Property Taxes Receivable, Beginning of Year $ 1,804,898
Changes to Tax Roll:
Net Taxes Charged to Treasurer for Fiscal Year 10,189,780
Adjustments:
Charge Off of Taxes Receivable (19,682)
Total Receivables Prior to Collections 11,974,996
Collections for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 (9,428,491)
Property Taxes Receivable, End of Year $ 2,546,505
Property Taxes Receivable by years:
2010 - 2013 $ 428,375
2014 161,957
2015 188,584
2016 231,498
2017 286,888
2018 430,973
2019 818,230
Total Property Taxes Receivable $ 2,546,505
Property taxes receivable reported in the financial statements as follows:
Statement of Net Position $ 1,285,168
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 1,261,337
Total Property Taxes Receivable $ 2,546,505

100



LOL

8vZ'86 - (ro1'2i5') (159'78€) (bo1zL8'e) (g15'781°€) ore'0.29'c leloL
12'¢ - (0z072re) (cve) (020°2Z¥E) (£2271¥¢€) 06.°G%E A¥3S 1930 00 0102
160'S - (0zs°z1v) (s0¢) (0zs'zL) S1z'21w) 699°'2Z¢ A¥3S 193009 LloZ
188'% - (eo1°68€) (cce) (zor'6¢€) (0£2'8¢€€) YEO'PPE AY3S$ 193000 zZloz
968's - (sog'cee) (829) (sog’eee) (ze9°zee) 808°'8S Ad3S 1930 09 €loz
68’9 - (6z1°158) (0s9) (6z1°15¢) (62%°058) ovs'Ise Ad3S 1930 00 vloz
880°L - (Lso‘spe) (G60°1) (150's¥e) (956'cye) §91°25¢ AYIS 1930 00 5102
IrL'6 - (1ez‘g9g) (0eg2) (Lez'g9e) (106's9€) (R Wi A¥3S 1930 09 9l0z
90G°0L - (z86'csE) (996°5) (£86°¢5€) (Lzo'sre) eleleg el AY3S 1930 00 ZloZ
zro'ol - (e6¥'09€) (9e6°21) (eB¥'99¢) (z55°8pe) G99'v8¢ AY3S 1930 00 810z
G.6'6Z - (9gz‘g5¢) (99z'55¢) (99z's5¢) - 651°'c8¢e AY3S 1930 00 6102
1Z6°981°L - (+0Z'685'0%) (z£0'c86'p) (+0zZ°'685°0%) (ze1'909's8) L79'08L Ly lejoL
IR - (60£°681°E) (zogD) (60c’681°E) (zoo'esie) 125'02Z°¢ NOILVY3dO 00 0102
980°2Y - (e¥8'ri'e) (967'2) (e¥8'vsi'e) Urezar'e) 0¥ L6¥'S NOILYY3Id0 0D LL0Z
¥66'25 - (z80'c89°e) (0ss'c) (z80'c89'c) (zes'629') 166'9¢/°e NOILVY3dO 0D zZlozZ
82£'29 - (c12'109°c) (666°G) (z12'198°) (g12'558°c) L1G'¥26'E NOLLYYIdO 00 €102
01 ard] - (Gzg8's66°c) vz'2) (5z8's66°E) (185°886'c) 09¥'890'% NOILYY3dO 0D ¥10Z
0zL'98 - UsLviz'y) (ze0'c1) 81'¥LZ'Y) (080°10Z'v) 985°00¢'Y NOILYH3dO 0D <10z
69901 - (ss1°zoc'y) (608°92) (g51'z208'%) (ove'szz'y) 1SE'60%' NOILYH3dO 00 9102
Y66'vEL - (€52'25'Y) (z68°52) (€52'815'%) (958°'205'p) 62S'vLLY NOILVY3dO 00 /102
$52'502 - (80zZ°269'%) (e+5'622) (802'269'%) (599°29%'v) 801'06'p NOLLYY3dO 00 210z
6.°68¢ - (0e1'9L9'Y) (og1L'9L9'p) (ocL'9L9'p) - 655'8/6F NOILVH3dO 00 6102
618°L¥L (z05'y1L) (509°'/86"%) (r+9'€09) (601°200°G) (ov6'86E'p) oV vrL's
65Z'S 1 (998°08¥%) - (zs€) (99s8°08Y) (5zsosy) 991'98¥F AY3S 193Q NN 0102
€8s (o1) (ov9'0¥p) (16¢) (z99°01¥) (oveopy) 1B0°gt AG3S 1930 NN 1102
6£9°9 (L) (rzo‘oo) (849) (8e9'09v) (ZsL‘09%) 688 Lop AJIS 1930 NN Z10Z
699°7 (62) (z62'c) (989) (ces'esy) (1g0'cL¥) 296°18% Ad3S 1930 NN €102
69/'g (¥9) (z9s'18¥) (966) (s16°'18%) (veo'Led) SLL'06Y AY3S 193d WN  $102
80v'0L 73] (£25'909) (19g°1) (+59'905) (ov0°509) 860°L1G AY3S 193A NN S10Z
$98°C1 (g82) (co9'215) (164°¢) (188°/15) 019'719) o¥8'0es AY3S 1930 WN 9102
286'Sl (zs8) (g5s°/€5) (999°6) (£0s°'8€%) (Lev'6zs) £€86'455 ANY3S 1930 NN 2102
689'ce (zg9'1) (90s°625) (£82'98) (Z81°1¥5) (zos'pLg) 1LS0'895 AY3S 193d NN 8102
281°6H $ (F8eLl) $ (G25'epS) $ (6/5'8%G) $ (096°655) $ - $ Z+6°109 $ AM3S 1930 WN 6102
0202 ‘0¢ NN 0202 ‘0 aaLngpilsia 020z ‘0 a3LoaT1i0o 610z 610Z ‘L 7INF adA], Ieaj
SV ITEVAIZOIY  NNr-6L0Z ‘L INr vioL NAr-8Loz ‘L 10 XV1 IVLOL ‘L INF OL MORId - ORI AIDUVHD
ONIONVLISLNO Q3LNgryisSIaNn asLnaiisia Q3L0ITI00 XVL  XVL g3Lsnray

0202 ‘0¢ INNC A3ANT ¥VIA IHL ¥O4
FTNAIHOS XVL1 AL¥IdONd
ALNNOD IONVHNOL
OJIX3IW M3N 40 31VI1S




ol

LEV'681 (8s1'61) (91 '¥68°9) (g80°922) (gos'cL69) r8L'1€1°9) SOL'POL‘L el
¥LL'9 L (8z2’0z9) (957) (1zz°029) (z62°619) 610°229 NddNT LdYD HOS 0102
1881 (€2) (Z18°019) (o19) (9e6°0v9) (89%'0%9) 198810 NSdl LdYD HOS 1102
£2.'6 12) (006°129) (Z+9) (cz6129) (192°1.29) $£2°189 Nddl 1dYD HOS 2ZLozZ
£0Z'11 (z9) (e12'689) (g62°1) (022'689) (r£9'889) 1L0°102 AddNI LdYD HOS €102
$68'21 (82) 622'%02) (tor't) (858'v02) (0ss'c0L) LSLILL AYdINI LdYD HOS ¥102
£g8/'¢l (coL) (685°269) “iz'o (881'Z69) (6££'069) ¥1£°002 AddI LdVD HOS §102
£96°91 (zz€) (121802 (090°G) {(rrs'802) (881'702) 6z9°6z. ANSdNI 1dVYD HOS 9102
ye0'te (ovz‘L) (c98'gz2) (1e821) (60L'0gL) (z66°212) 89715/ NddNI LdYD HOS 2102
os8iig (1zz'2) (z86'v52) (081°6%) (g0z'282) (0zs‘Lon) Se0°cLL ANddNI LdYD HOS 8102
ovL'8s (8s0's1) (80z°20L) (80z'202) ovz'210) - 12v'LiL NI 1dVO HOS 6102
986°0¥2 (VAR-N W) (881ev5'z2) (es0°'219°2) (600'519'22) (G89'700'02) 126'28¢'eT lelol
8/€'€T [ (0zz'es.71) (8D (T AT IAN) (ez5°162°1) $06'918°L AY3S 1930 HOS 0l0zZ
505°/2 (z8) (198'/68°L) (068'1) (6v6°268°L) (012'968°L) 96.'G26°L AY3S 193AQ HOS 1102
¥¥8'ze w2 (096°c16°L) (oc0'e) (ss6'c16°L) (S02°L16°L) LGL 6L NY3S 1930 HOS zZloz
9GL v (z21) 8L vpe'T) (o16') (Gog'vre'2) (S/¢'0ve'2) 868'88¢°C AY3S 193Q HOS €102
812'2S (ev2) (L18¥'zs¥'e) (zz6°9) (rz2.'25%°2) (WA Zard) 961°605°2 A¥3S 1930 HOS ¥Loz
611'8S (L) Uiz'vor'e) (861'6) (ec9'var'z) (992'551°2) gT9'eTsec AY3S 1930 HOS sLog
658'69 (z65°1L) (189'00+°7) (09e'61) (822'80%°2) (evv'16€°2) 9198+ AY3S 193 HOS 9102
689°28 (068'%) (685'681'2) (+06°L¥) 624'v67°2) (s60'06+°2) 6¥9'115°C AY3S 193 HOS 2102
990221 (995°9) Z11'2ev'2) (ts1'821) (#89'G¥¥'2) (06'61£'2) ¥r.11/5'T AY3S 1930 HOS 8102
965°/22 (528'ss) (698‘ce'2) (698'cre'2) (+69'66£°2) - SPELL9T AY3S 1930 HOS 6102
9L GH #99'7) (e52°225°)) (98¢161) (Lze'os5°L) (cL9's8g'L) 252'229'L [eio].
OL¥L - (682°621) (88) (68Z°6Z1) {(roc'6eL) 6LL°0EL AITHOS 0102
789°'1 (9] (8sz'gel) (oo1) (e9z'sel) (Lz1°gg1) 196'6S1 AITHOS LL0Z
880'C (¥) (0g0's¥1) (zoL) (r80'spL) (956'v¥1) 681°/¥1 AMIATHOS 2102
LZv'2 (zv) (oce's¥1) (g92) (zv6'6PL) GLz'6p1) €851 ANITHOS €102
618°C @y (2¥6'¥S1) (go¢) (#96'v51) (639'v51) 06.°151 ATTHOS ¥102
6le'e (€2) (tio'est) ((4%)) (geo'eol) (ovs'zoL) €98°991 AMITHOS S102
z60'% (06) (189'591) sy (122's91) (e22'vo1) 888'691 AMITHOS 9102
¥60'G (262) (% 72))] (286'2) (z1s'v21) (689°121) 2£9'6L1 AMITHOS 102
619°2 (2g9) (zoo'gzL) (G16°L1) (ovs'sLL) (9¢6'691) SLE'/81L AMIATHOS 8102
719'vL $ (089'c) $ (pe'csL) $ (Lvg'csL) $ (Lzg'zz1) $ - $ ZLO'L6L $ AMITHOS 6102
0202 ‘0¢ NN 0202 ‘0¢ agLngpilsia 0202 ‘0t a3LoaT110o 6102 6L0Z L INr adAy FEEY
SV ITGVAIIOTY  NNr-6L0Z ‘L I0r Tviol NNr- 610z ‘L Inr XVL VLol ‘L INF OL ¥OId - HORd AIDUVHD
ONIONVISINO Qg3ILNgNISIaNN aalngpylsia a3L03ITI0O XYL XVL g3lsnrav

0202 ‘0¢ INNr AIANT ¥VIA FHL ¥OS

FINAIHOS XV1 ALYIdONd

ALNNOD FONVHOL

OJIX3IN M3AN 40 31vViS



€0l

zs 1) (08s) (z11) (689) (o6%) 0b9 [elol
- - (re) - el ) ¥€ AITTSIVOD 0LozZ
- - (52) - (G2) (g2) 74 AMITSIVOD L10Z
- - (ov) - (ov) (ov) oF AMITSIVOD ZLoZ
- - (19) - (19) (19) 19 ATTSIVOD €10z
I - (09) - (09) (09) 19 AT1SIV0D vioZ
Z - (19 (1) (19) (19) €9 ANTTSIVOD §L0Z
G - €2) (€) (€2) €2) 8. MITSLIVOD 910z
L @) (99) (e1) (89) (62) 66 ATTSLIVOD 1102
6 @) (89) (en) (09) £9) 89 AT SILVOD 8102
24 © (29) (z9) (z9) - 1L ANTTSIVOD 6102
59 (]9 (6vz'c) (zse) (09z'¢) (¥Z6'2) GZe'e felo1
[ - (512) - (812) (812) ¥4 AITd3THS 0L0Z
4 - (ovz) - (ov2) (9v2) 6vZ AITJIIHS L1102
z - (2z9) - (229) (229) 625 AMITdITHS 2loz
€ - (Lzv) - (1z¥) (1zp) G2y ANITdITHS £loz
¢ - (292) - (292) (292) 0.2 AITTdITHS ¥10Z
Z - (ov2) - (ov2) (ov2) vz AITdITHS SLoz
z (2] 61¢) - (gz¢) (%] LA AMITdITHS 9loz
G @ (ove) (] €ve) (9g¢) 8ve ANTTdIIHS 2102
L @ (Lse) (82) (cs¢) (0g¢) $G¢ AI1d3IIHS 8L02
ov @ (0zg) (0z¢) (zze) - £9¢ AMITdIIHS 6L02
¥69'9 (zs¥) (Leg'oey) (Li¥'SP) 8z LD (o15'98¢) v6'LEY felog
99 - (900°0¢) - (g00°0¢€) (900°0¢) £/0°0¢ AITITLLYD 0L0Z
18 - (1v6°zg) - (L¥6°ze) (1v6°z8) 820°ce ANITIUULYD L0z
A% - (112'98) - (£22'98) (Liz'9g) ¥19'0¢ ANTTTILLYD 2102
0S¢ - (0ss°0v) - (0sg‘ov) (0sg‘op) 002'L¥ AITILLYD €102
YA4d - (€99'/€) - (£99'2¢) (e99'25) oLL'gg AMITTILLYD vlog
00g - (rog'sy) @) (r9g'sy) (cos'sh) Y9861 AITIILLYD S10Z
8¢9 (99) (r6zZ'cq) ) (Loe'es) (222'c9) 866°cS MITIILLYD 9L0Z
gLl (6¢) (£00°19) (ov2) (zr0'19) (862°09) 11129 ANITITLLIVYD 2102
96/ (6€) (821'8%) (1s2°¢) (215°g%) (z¥8‘cr) rAKA 4 ANTTIILLYD 8L0Z
111'Z (80¢) (Ss¥'1p) (Gsv'1v) (£92°L¥) - 90L'p¥ AITTILLYD 6102
¥19'01 (o¥0°2) (129°022) (916°'09) (12°212) (086°502) zv8'98z
9Ly L 8) (£82° 1) (812) (962°21) (880°2%) rl'gy HIALHVHI HOS §102
1181 (v} (e80°6¥) (65%) (9z1'6%) (Lrz'ey) $66°'05 HIALYVHI HOS 9102
£52'C (zg1) (z08°95) (Loz‘L) (6£6'95) (e58°gs) £02'65 HAILHVHO HOS 2102
€5 (9r2) (192°25) (008'%) (£05'25) (825¥S) 00119 Y3LYVHO HOS 8102
G65°Z $ (OL9'L) $ (8ez'09) $ (882'09) $ (8+8'19) - $ £v8'89 $ HILAVHO HOS 6102
020z ‘0¢ NN 020z ‘o¢ a3ilngriLsiq 0202 ‘0 a31o93 71109 6L0Z 6L0Z ‘1 INr adAl FEENY
SV I1aVAIZOTd  NNr-610Z ‘L 10r IVLOL Nnr-8Loz ‘L 1nre XVLTWLOL ‘L INT OL HORd - ¥ORd GIOUYHD
ONIONVLSLAO  Q3LNgmyisSIaNn a3ingisiqg Q3LO3TIOD XVL  XVL a3isnray

020Z ‘0¢ INNCr A3ANT ¥VIA IHL ¥O4

FTNAIHOS XV.L ALMIdONd

ALNNOD IONVHIOL

OJIX3W M3N 40 31V1S



12"

8 V2)) (ovse) (181) (+9s°e) (68g'c) 0.5'¢
- - (60g) - (60¢) (60¢) 60¢ AMITNOSIE 0102
- - (z6¢) : - (z68) (z6g) z6¢ ANITNOSIE 1102
- - (2ov) - (2ov) (29%) L9¥ ANTTNOSIE Zloz
L - (ove) - (ove) (ore) 25¢ AITNOSIE €102
- - e - (zig) (21¢) A% AITNOSIE ¥10Z
- - (Z19) )] (z19) (219) L1G AITNOSIE S1L0Z
- - (¥8¥) (z1) (r8p) (v8v) 4 AITNOSIS 9102
- @ (697) - (Liv) (697} Liv AITNOSIE 2102
L (1) (z9) ) (69) (89) 68 AITNOSIE 8L0Z
- (49) (ss1) (gs1) (zz1) - zLL AMITNOSIE 6102
Z (4] (62) (€1) (19) 29) Z8
- ) (o1} - (/1) (o1) 9l AITIANIMS €102
~ (1) (L) - (z1) (L) 1L MITIANIMS ¥L02
- - (AW - (4% (1) ZL AITINIMS SLOZ
- - (o1) - (oL) {on) ol AITINIMS 9102
l - (r4Y) - (z1) ((4)) €l ANTTANIMS 2102
L - 9] 1) 93] ) 8 AMITIANIMS 810z
- - (V) (z1) 1) - zl AATTINIMS 6102
14 - (z12'29) (o151 (Z12'29) (80z'19) 18229
- - (eev'L) - (gsv'L) (eer'L) £SFL AITTLO AdIva 0102
- - (62¥'1) - (6z¥'L) (6zv'L) 6z¥'L ATTILO AHIVA 1102
- - (69g'9) - (69g'g) (69c'g) 69¢°g AITILD AdIVa 2102
- ~ (096°8) - (096°g) (096°g) 096'Q ATT LD AMIVA €102
z - (zs6°9) - (zg69) (zs6'g) £66'g T AATTILD AMIVA vloz
- - (zr1'g) - (211g) (zrr'e) zZLL'e AITILD ANIVA S10Z
- - (699°2) - (699'2) (699°2) 6992 AITTLD AHIVa 9102
€ - (soo's) - (s00'6) (500°6) 8006 AITTILO AYIVA 2102
S - (622'0) () (612°2) 622°0) 58Z'L AMITILO AYIVA 8102
¥ - (60s‘1) (60s°1) (605°1) - €15'L ANTTILD ANIVA 6102
895 (86) (Lzg'z) (g95°1) (69t'z1) (9zg‘ol) ovo'sl
[ - (8z1°1) - (8z1L) (8z1°1) 6EL°L AAITANINDI 0102
6 - (egz'1) - (ggz'1L) (egz'1) 2621 ANTTIANINOT 1102
€l (9) (zo1'1L) - (891°1) (zar‘y) LgLL AITTININDI 2102
62 ©) (z61°1) - (coz'1) (z61°1) A Al ANITIANINDA €L02
0z 9) (ee1) - (ge1°1) (zery) 8511 ANITIANINDT ¥102
101 (g) (X:1H)] (2 (981°1) (921°1) 1821 AMITININOI 5102
£zl (1) (8o¢‘1) (S) (ore1) (gog'L) ¥ AMITIANINOT 9L02Z
6Ll - (zgz'1) (62) (zgz'1) (z9z'L) 0%t AITIANINDT Zloz
9F (z2) (zocL) (se1) (gze') (es11) 0/€'L AITIANINDI 8l0Z
16 $ (29) $ (16g'L) $ (6e'L) $ (Err'L) $ - $ evsL $ AATTININOT 6102
0Z0Z ‘0¢ NNr 0Z0Z ‘og aaiLngrisia 0202 ‘0¢ a3aLro3IT1oo 6102 6102 ‘L Inr adAL Jeay
SY 3T7aVAIIOIY  NNr- 6102 ‘L Inr v1ioL NMr- 610z ‘1L 00 XVL1VLOL ‘L INC OL MOIYd - YOI dIDUVHD
ONIONVISINO  Q3aLngRNISIANN a3Lngrisig Q3LOITIOO XVL  XVL g3lsnrav

0202 ‘0€ INN AIANT ¥VIA IJHL HOA
FINAIHOS XVL AL¥IdONd
ALNNOD FONVHNOL
OOJIX3IN M3N 40 31VIS




Gol1

608'Gr (c6v'c) r28'vc6) (roc‘ooL) (z9¢g's¢e6) (cet'ge8) 124'€86
0.1°) - (8z8°98) {9) (8z8'99) (262°98) 66588 - aoms dooMmIoas 0Loz
$50°2 1 (659'68) (g6) (859°69) (925'68) €LLL6 aoMs aooMIDAd3a 110z
615°C L (205'68) (z81) (205°69) (98¢°68) 22026 aoOMsS aooMIDaa zZLoz
£86°C 3 (rov'16) (622 (#9v'L6) (zee'L6) 8v'v6 aoMs aooMana €Loz
08Z'c 3] (822'ch) (582) (1e2'¢8) (e¥5°c) z10°26 aoMs aoOMIDA3 ¥1L0Z
199'¢ (3Y) (6¥256) (66%) (652'56) (91¢'6) 871’66 aoMS A0OMIDAT SLoz
LBS'¥ (ogL) (558'/6) (1z6) (¥86°26) ¥81°26) 625'20L QOMS AOOMISDAT 910z
91'6 (222 (ese's01) (v2s'2) (625'801) 2v'901) 0S2'€LL doOMS aOOMIDAaT LLozZ
29¥'L (¥es) (Zv6'¢6) (ov2'n) (LL¥'v6) (cz6'88) 8£6°L0L aoMs aooMIna 8Loz
9Le'zL (109°2) (682°28) (682°28) (16£°06) - z8z'z0L asms aoomanal 610z
19¥°L (zs1) (e52'9v) (20Z'v) (016'9%) (£0L°2¥) ¥6E'8Y
9/ - (zg0'9) - (z80°9) (280°9) 651G IALVHISININGY 0L0Z
€6 - (2L1'6) ) Z21'0) (891°6) $92'G IALLVHISININGY  LLOZ
06 - (r16') © rLe'y) (€L6'p) L00's IALLVHISININGY 2102
68 - (222'6) (9) (222'9) (g22°9) 0/8'S IALLVHISININGY €102
801 - (9z8'W) @) (9z8'y) (o18'v) 8£6'Y IAILVHISININGY +L0Z
Lzl ) (ov9'y) (92) (G¥9'y) (909'%) 19y SALLVHISININGY §L02
0¥l (2] (z8e'y) (z9) (88¢p) (see'p) £25'y IALLVILISININGY 9102
29l 8 (z8L'p) (G2 ¥6LP) ©LL'y) 09’y JALLVHISININGY 2102
1z ()] #80'y) (0z¢) (650'%) (z68'€) z0¢'y IALLVHISININGY 8102
9/€ (og1) (689'¢) (689'¢) (9zg'e) - €0z'y INLVALSININGY 6102
€6 - (8ec'z) - (8e€'2) (8£'2) 8ee'e
- - (9) - (q) (©) 5 NOILIONIY-NON 0102
- - () - ©) Q) G NOLLIONTIY-NON 1102
- - ) - () (q) S NOLLIONZY-NON 2102
- - @ - @ @ 4 NOILIONIY-NON €Log
zz - (v1) - (t¥1) (vL) (A48 NOILIONTY-NON ¥l0z
61 - (216°1) - ') (z16°1) L16°) NOLLIAN3IY-NON SL02
9l - (Gv2) - (Gve) (s¥2) Svz NOILIONIY-NON 9102
A - (81) - (81) (s1) gL NOILIONTY-NON 2102
Gt - - - - - - NOILIONTH-NON 8L0Z
14 - - - - - - NOILIGNIY-NON 6L0Z
- - ©) - ()] (9) G
- - - - - - - S3ALILVY €102
- - @ - @ @) Z S3LVY ¥l0Z
- - (1) - (1) (1) L S3LLYY SLoT
- - (1) - (1) (1) 2 S3LILVY 9L02
- $ - $ (1) ¢ - $ (1) $ (1) l $ SALILYY /102
0202 ‘0¢ NN 020z ‘0¢ a3ailngriLsia 0202 ‘o¢ a3LoImoo 6102 610Z ‘1 INr adAL FEN
SV I19VAIZOI™  NNr- 6102 ‘L INr IVLiOL NNr- 6102 ‘L 10 XV1IvloL ‘L INF OL YORId - MO AIDUVHI
ONIONVISING Qg3ILNIRILSIANN asLnglsid a3Lo3TI0D XVL  XVL a3isnravy

020Z ‘0¢ ANNr A3IANI ¥VIA FHL ¥OH

FTNAIHOS XVL ALNAdOdd

OOJIXIN M3N 40 31VIS

ALNNOD IONVHYHOL



901

9y - (gs2) (€12) (Gs2) (z8) GS2
- - (e) - ® ) ] AOMS OZOZIMHVYD 010z
- - ) - (8 () ] AJMS 0ZOZINYYD LLoZ
- - ® - () (9 8 QOMS OZOZINNYD 2102
- - ® - 1)) )] g AOMS OZOZIMYVYD €10z
- - 8) - ® ® g ADMS 0ZOZIHHVD ¥10Z
- - (45} - G (1) Ll aOMS 0ZOZINHYD 5102
- - ) - (1) (L) N AOMS 0ZOZIdYvYDd 910z
- - (g51) - (es1) (es1) €61 AOMS OZOZIYYYD 2102
- - (292) - (292) (292) 192 AOMS 0ZOZINYYD 8102
oy - (e12) (€/2) (¢£2) - €12 AOMS 0ZOZIYNYD 6102
¥0.'62 (656'c) (z08'982°1) (09'vs1) (092'062°1) @isveL'l) ¥8¥'618°L
€01 - o1 (82) (ST 622°111D) 18€ZLL JONVHHOL 1SY3 0loZ
6le'L € (8rg'cLL) 01 (tzgeLl) waz'cL1) 6£0'GLL JONVHYOL 18V LLoZ
L (¢RY) (CIAN-IR))] (95) (Gz1'811) (rao'sLL) 9e¥'6LL JONVHEOL 18SVT 2L0Z
6051 (s1) (1s8s'zz1) (0s1) (985°221) @1v'zeL) SoL'vZt JONVHYOL 1SV3 €102
GLIL (o1 (s0z'szl) (901) (8Lz'szl) (zv0'szL) ££6°0Z1L JONVIHOL 1SV3 102
00€°Z (c4¥)] (z60'621) (982) (601L'621) (Lzg'szL) 60%°LEL JONVHYOL 1SV3 §10Z
6£L'C (ge) wi1'sel) (z6L) (60z'se1) (geo'vel) ¥16°'1€1 JONVHHOL 1SY3 910z
r kA 012 (Gzz'zg1) (020°2) (g8v281) (r1v'sel) ¥8.'0¥1 JONVHHOL 1SV3 2102
€10'G (5z¢) (zzg'evL) (685'0) (z8L°0G1) (962°5¥1) £YZ'GG1L JONVHHOL 1SV3 8L0Z
£65'6 (88z'c) (Sov'prL) (Sov'pyL) (c69'2¥1) - 08L‘os1L JONVHHOL 1SV 6102
9608 (Zs1'1) (r6e'LE9) (eL8'92) (L8s‘ze9) (G9g8'555) ¥2Leh9
651 - (8e6°29) - (826°2S) (8e6°29) 160°ES OLNId HONNV1D 0102
e/l - (69z'96) (1) (69z°95) (89Z°95) Zrr'9s OLNId HONAVTO  LLOZ
682 - (cs2'65) (1) (esz'6%) (zsz'69) Zrs'6s OLNId HONNYID 210z
11z - (125'65) @ (125°65) (695°65) £8.1'65 OLNId HONNV1O €102
L€Z ) (18+'09) ¥) {58%'00) (L2¥'09) 91209 OLNId HONNVID +10Z
182 (1) (6v€'v9) (go1) (05e'v9) (R 9¢9't9 O1NId HONNVY1D §102
85 9) (519'79) (g82) (1z9'29) (85¢'/9) 6/0°89 OLNId HONNVYID 9L0Z
44Nt (z+) (66%'69) (1) (0v5°69) (6¥£°89) 299°02 OLINId HONNY1D 21L0Z
¥¥8'L (Lv1) (geg'12) (Z1z'9) (L16°1L1) (e1+'29) 8209/ OLNId HONNVID 8L0z
12e'e $ (c66) $ (¥85'69) $ (¥85'69) $ (128'00) $ - $ 6el'es $ OLNId HONNV1D 6102
0202 ‘0¢ NNr 020z ‘0¢ aaLngisia 0202 ‘0¢ a3aLo3aTioo 610z 610Z 4 Inr adAL FE=EYN
SV ITGVAIZOIN  NNr-6102 ‘L 10r VioL NNr-6L0Z 4 0 XVLIVLOL ‘LN OL MORId - O aIsuvHD
ONIONVISING Q3LNSRILSIANN aaLngpiLsia Q3L03ITI0D XVL XVL galsnrav

0202 ‘0 ANNC A3ANT ¥VIA THL ¥OH

J7NAIHOS XV1 AL¥3d0O¥d

ALNNOD FONVHHOL

OOJIX3IW M3N 40 3LVIS



L0l

VISV (69) (G1e°1L59) (589) r8g'159) (5z8'059) 228659 [eloL
680¥°¢ - (0g89°22€) (e21) (0g89°z2€) (z0s°228) ciLi'ele 193a HO3L HOS 0102
6zt (1) (ove'1p) ¥2) (Lpe'Ly) BLE'LY) LU 1930 HO3IL HOS 1102
g - (rs6'PL) - (¥S6'vL) (¥s6'vL) 296'v1 183A HO3L HOS €102
9z - (69.'v2) - (892'%2) (G9.'vz) $6.'vC 1990 HO3L HOS 102
9¢ - (09¢'82) © (09¢'g2) (85¢'82) 86£°8T 1930 HOIL HOS s1LoZ
el - (058°Z9) (o1 (0s8°z%) r8°zs) £16°25 193a HO3L HOS 9l0g
oLl (89) (L+'09) (o) (605°09) (66£°09) 929°05 1930 HO3L HOS 2102
orz - (526'59) (62v) (526'59) (629'G9) Z81'99 1930 HO31L HOS 8102
L¥0E (806'P) (0z9'ees’y) (5¥2°102) (628 L¥5°L) (Lez'zve'y) PO'LLS L [ejo1
oct - (Ss6°211) (9) (gs6°2L1L) 6¥6°211) 2oL'8LL NOILVH3dO NN 0102
¥61 - (r90'szL) ) (+90'621) (zs0'621) coe'szl NOILLYYIHO NNIN L E0Z
902 - (z96'8€1) (€1) (896'3¢1) (r96'gel) yANAlIA NOILYY3dO NN Z1L0Z
£/2 ®) (960°2¥1) (9 (GoL'zy1) (Lv0'2pL) L2V i) NOILVYIdO NNIN €102
6%9 1) (821°251) (18) (s62'zZ51) (zg9'zsL) 0.¥'€S1L NOILYY3dO NN +L0Z
9/9 (91) (z¥'oL) (902) (evv'1oL) (zzz'191) Skl'ZoL NOILYH3dO NNIN' §10Z
Lo¥L (ze) (861°coL) (zz8'1) (622'co1) (ror'LoL) 182'%91 NOLLVYIdO NNIN 910T
S1z'c (a19) (66%'591) (s0s'¢) (910'991) (gve'zal) ¥ze'e9L NOILVY3IdO NN 2102
ov6's &1 (ez¥'181) (525°91) (981°281) (os¥'1L21) 182881 NOILLYY3dO NN 8102
12l L) $ (s¥5'e) (eLz'6Ll) $ (e12'6L1) $ (g52Z81) $ - $ L00'66) $ NOILY¥3dO NNIN 6102
020z ‘0¢ NN aaLngriisia 020z ‘0 a3LoaTioo 610z 6102 ‘L INF adAL Jeap
SV I1avAIIOaN  NNr- 6102 ‘L A IViOL NNr-610Z ‘L Ine XVLTVLOL ‘L 1N OL HORId - HORId AIDUVHD

ONIONV1SLINO

Q3aLngaiylsiann

a3aLngriLsia

g3aLo3aTIod XVvL XVl gaisarav

020Z ‘0¢ INNr A3ANT ¥VY3IA JHL HO4
(@Q3INNILNOD) I TNATIHIS XYL ALNIdONd
ALNNOD IONVHNOL

OJIX3IN M3N 40 3LV1S



801

gos'ors'z ¢ (6¥S'ozl) $ (oov'cco'98) § (09z0lcor) ¢ (bzo09L98) ¢ (ze9'6G6'52) $§ 7/960.88 ¢
59618 [ (co8’0cc™) (08¥'g) {0980ce™ ) (9zs'eze™l) gBlEly . oLoz
9£8°ch (sz1) (/69°L97°2) (0zZ8'g) (zz8'L9v'2) (zsz'osy's) BY/'955°, L10T
re'sLL (62) (PSeL29°2) (65.'8) (oet'129°2) (5¥8'c99°/) Li'98. L rAN 4
zeo'set (s1e) (co0'gve'e) (esevL) (lzgove'e) (Zre'eee'e) chL 98y’ €10z
1S6°191 (csp) (zog'Leo's) (96L°21) (962'159'8) {rsi'sco'e) £6e'yL8'g ¥10¢2
#8588l (229) (zsz'126'8) (es1'62) (0e6°226'8) (coc'er6'e) 661°29L°6 S10Z
867°LET (999°2) (z60°Z0L'6) (5£6°29) (162701 '6) (esL'9p0'6) 9/8'7¢€'6 glog
893°'99¢ (gc9'9) (16€'225'6) (Leg'oal) (620'9¢5°6) (oez'sze'6) 6197226 1102
£16°0ch (og1's1) (6er'se9'6) (90Z'029) (£/5'059'6) (8¥¥'v21°6) Gzl'zel'ol 8102
0€T'8Le $ (zgp'e6) $ (200'0¢£'6) $ (200'05E6) $ (L6v'9zZ1'6) $ - $ 08/68L0L ¢ slLOZ
020z 02Z0Z ‘0¢ aalngiyisia 0Z0Z ‘0¢ a3Lo3ITioo 6102 6102 Jeap
'0ENNrSY  NOk-610Z °L TNr viol NAM-61L02°LINF  XVLIVIOL  ‘LINF OLMOINA ‘L INF - MORd
F1GVAIZOIY  Q3LNgrRISIaNN a3Lngryisia a3a1o3T110o AIDUVHO
DNIANVLSLNG XVl XV1g3aisnray
IVLIOL ANVYED

0202 ‘0€ INNC A3IAN3 YVIA IHL ¥MO4
(QINNILNOY) 3TINATHIS XV ALNIdONd

ALNNOD IONVHNOL
OJIX3IN M3N 40 31VI1S



601

FARSNS TR 7 syuajeAinba yses pue yses pajoLysatun jejo
(690°8/1) sjusjeAinb3 yseD pue ysed psjouisay s
(6¥72'289) yseo spund Aousby :sso7
(956°¥£0°2) SIUSLWSOAU| (SSOT

000°L yse9 Ajed

989°02G° . 95G'¥e0'C $ 6908/ $ 190'80¢'S $ dduejeg pajlouoaay
(596°L2¥'T) - - (G96°12¥'2) sway Buijlouoosy
1G9'CY6'6 95602 690°8L1 920'0€.'L lejol
69081 - 690°8/1 - aAIeseY V4NN
285'v8T's 9G65'7£0°C - 920°'05¢2'c Sjusul]ssAu]
000°08Y'¥ - $ - $ 000°08¥'¥ $ [euonelsdQ Bupioayd

|ejol dio1 SAAIOSIY yueg sn SWIBN JUNossy
OJIX3N MSN ysed V4N

0202 ‘0€ ANNCr 40 SV

SINNODJV LNINLSIANI ANV 11SOd3A TVNAIAIAGNI 40 1SI71

ALNNOD ADNVINOL
OOIX3AIN M3N 4O 31VIS



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF PLEDGED COLLATERAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Name of Description of LOC Fair Market Value
Depository Pledged Collateral Maturity Number at June 30, 2020 Name and Location of Safekeeper
US Bank Letter of Credit 10/1/2020 551279 3 6,000,000 FHLB Cincinnati, Cincinnati, OH
US Bank Letter of Credit 10/1/2020 550452 3,000,000 FHLB Cincinnati, Cincinnati, OH
Total Pledged Collateral § 9,000,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
110



1 o i Al

UBLAK MEON & ASC(\TES, LLC
AUDITORS ~ BUSINESS CONSULTANTS - CPAS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Brian S. Colén, Esq.
New Mexico State Auditor
Santa Fe, New Mexico
and
Honorable Members of the Board of County Commissioners
Torrance County
Estancia, New Mexico

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major
fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the budgetary comparisons of the general fund and major
special revenue funds of Torrance County, New Mexico (the “County”) as of and for the year ended June 30,
2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial
statements, and the combining and individual funds of the County, presented as supplementary information,
and have issued our report thereon dated November 25, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the County's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less than severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

6747 AQADEMY ROAD. NE,
_ ALBUQUERQUE, NM 87109

P:505.822.5100 | F:505.822.5106 ~
KUBIAKCPACOM




Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses that we consider to be significant deficiencies: FS 2019-
001.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, and which
are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item FS 2020-001.

We noted certain matters that are required to be reported per section 12-6-5 NMSA 1978 that we have
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses — Section IIl. 12-6-5 NMSA 1978 Findings
as items NM 2020-001 and NM 2020-002.

County’s Response to Findings

The County’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses. The County’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express ho opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the County’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not

suitable for any other purpose.
Kinbioh Teten & Associatin, L C

Kubiak Melton & Associates, LLC
Auditors — Business Consultants - CPAs
Albuquerque, New Mexico
November 25, 2020

112



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Section I. Summary of Audit Results

Financial Statements:
1. Type of Auditors’ Report Issued: Unmodified

2. Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:

a. Material weaknesses identified? No
b. Significant deficiencies identified? Yes
¢.  Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

113



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Section ll. Financial Statement Findings

FS 2019-001 (2019-001) Financial Close and Material Adjustments (Significant Deficiency) (Repeated
and Modified)

Condition: While conducting the audit, three (3) adjustments were identified by the auditor that were required
to be made in order to present the financial statements materially correct. Based on the adjustments made, it
was determined that the County should improve the effectiveness of its financial close, monitoring, and
reporting process. The financial close should include, but not be limited to:
» Establishing and implementing procedures to initiate, authorize, record, process, and correct the
general ledger, and report transactions and
e Monitoring if assigned personnel are completing their task timely and accurately.

The following outlines the categories and balances of significant adjustments that were proposed:
e Gross receipts tax revenues: $88,809
¢ MVD & Fuel Tax Revenues: $80,251
* Invoice Paid Twice & Refunded: $32,084
s Total Restatement to Fund Balance: $201,144

Management’s Progress: The County did not make significant progress toward correcting this during FY2020.

Criteria: Some of the key underlying concepts of AU-C 265 Communicating Internal Control Related Matters
Identified in an audit:
e The auditor cannot be part of a client's internal control. Becoming part of a client’s internal control
impairs the auditor's independence.
* What the auditor does is independent of the client's internal control over financial reporting. Therefore,
the auditor cannot be a compensating control for the client.
e A system of internal control over the financial reporting does not stop at the general ledger; rather it
includes controls over the review of the financial statements.

Financial Close and the recording of these adjustments are considered significant processes of internal control
and should be performed by the County’s staff or addressed as nonaudit procedures to be performed by the
auditor, but all threats to independence must be properly mitigated according to independence requirements.

Cause: The County did not have proper internal controls in place to ensure that revenues are being
recognized in the correct fiscal year.

Effect: Revenues were materially overstated as of June 30, 20290.

Auditors’ Recommendations: The County should design and implement internal controls to ensure
revenues are being captured in the correct fiscal periods.

Management’s Response: Torrance County will develop a written procedure to ensure all aspects of the
fiscal year closeout are fully completed.

Management’s Timeline to Correct: June 30, 2021 closeout.

Responsible Party: Finance Director, Assistant Finance Director, County Treasurer, and Grants Manager.

114



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Section Il. Financial Statement Findings (continued)

ES 2020-001 Reporting (Other Noncompliance)

Condition: The County had fourteen (14) instances of late reporting under the DWI Distribution (4) and Rural
Primary Health Care (10) grants for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Criteria: The Local DWI Grant and Distribution Program agreement, fiscal year 2020, between the County and
the Department of Finance and Administration Local Government Division (DFA), states that the County shall
submit the following reporting:

e The first quarter narrative and fiscal reports due on the last working day of October: the second quarter
due on the last working day of January; the third quarter reports due on the last working day of April:
and the fourth and final narrative and distribution fiscal reports due the last working day of July.

e Annual protocols for the screening, treatment, and compliance monitoring components are due the last
working day of July for the current fiscal year.

The Memorandum of Agreement between New Mexico department of Health (DOH), dated July 8, 2019, states
the County shall comply with the following reporting:

e Submit for agency approval a monthly invoice equal to 1/12 draw for the previous completed month’s
services by the 3 working day of each month in the amount of $7,502.

* Submit for agency approval the annual project level of operations forms, Contract Action Plan, and
Quality Improvement/Assurance Plan by the 3™ working day in August in each fiscal year with an
invoice no to exceed $11,100.

* Submit for agency approval the Monthly Level of Operations and Summary Monthly Narrative Report by
the 2" Friday of each month in each fiscal year.

Cause: The County did not have proper internal controls in place to ensure compliance with the above
reporting requirements.

Effect: The County was noncompliant with its reporting requirement set by its Grantor for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2020.

Auditors’ Recommendations: The County should design and implement internal controls to ensure the
County is submitting all reporting to Grantors in a timely manner.

Management’s Response: The County will develop better internal controls within the Grants Department to
ensure that all deadlines are met. The County also recently (October 2020) hired an assistant for the grants
department.

Management’s Timeline to Correct: Immediately moving forward.

Responsible Party: Grants Manager, Grants Assistant, Finance Director, DWI Program Coordinator.

115



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Section lll. New Mexico State Audit Rule Section 12-6-56 NMSA 1978 Findings

NM 2020-001 Exceeded Budget Authority (Other Noncompliance)

Condition: The County over expended its budget in the following funds:

Criteria: Section 2.2.2.10.(R)(1)(a) NMAC, states that if the actual budget exceed budgeted expenditures at
the legal level of budgetary control, that fact shall be reported in a finding and disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. The following funds exceeded budget authority:

e 631 Senior Citizens Program $ 1,440
» 805 Traffic Safety Grant $ 5,595

Cause: The County over expended its budget in the above funds because of inadequate monitoring of the
budget.

Effect: The County was noncompliant with 2.2.210(R)(1)(a) NMAC.

Auditors’ Recommendations: The County should monitor their budget regularly and make budget
adjustments through commission resolution as needed.

Management’s Response: The County will develop internal procedures to ensure that all budget funds are
correctly captured within the yearly fiscal budget for the County. The County will coordinate with DFA Local
Government Division to ensure that all funds are within compliance. The County will ensure that all new
revenues not previously captured into the budget receive a BAR passed by the County Commission and
submitted and approved by DFA.

Management’s Timeline to Correct: | mmediately to affect FY 2021.

Responsible Party: Finance Director.

116



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Section lll. New Mexico State Audit Rule Section 12-6-§ NMSA 1978 Findings (continued)

NM 2020-002 Cash Appropriations in Excess of Available Cash Balances (Other Noncompliance)

Condition: The County maintained a deficit budget in excess of available cash balances in the following
funds:

* 411 Fire Pool Fund $ 34,965
e 424 GO Bond Proceeds $ 32,085

Criteria: Section 2.2.2.10.(R)(1)(b) NMAC, states that If budgeted expenditures exceed budgeted revenues
(after prior-year cash balance and any applicable federal receivables used to balance the budget), that fact
shall be reported in a finding.

Cause: The County did not monitor their budgets to ensure that designated cash was available in the funds
with expense appropriations in excess of budget.

Effect: Expenditures can be incurred for which the County is obligated to cover.

Auditors’ Recommendation: The budget should be reviewed to ensure all funds have adequate budget
authority and cash balances for budgeted expenditures. The County should work with the DFA-LGD and its
assigned budget analyst in order to ensure that available cash reported to DFA matches the cash balances in
the audited financial statements.

Management’s Response: The County will develop internal controls to ensure that all funds have sufficient
balances prior to the fiscal year end. The Finance Department and Treasurer's Office will work closely on
monitoring fund balances.

Management’s Timeline to Correct: June 30, 2021.

Responsible Parties: Finance Director, County Treasurer.

117



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Section IV. Status of Prior Year Findings

FS 2019-001 (2019-001) Financial Close and Material Adjustments (Significant Deficiency) (Repeated and
Modified)

2019-002 - Improper Use of Vehicle and Timesheet Inconsistencies (Resolved)

2019-003 - Payroll-Termination of Benefits (Resolved)

2019-004 - Payroll-RHC Withholding (Resolved)

2019-005 - Controls Over Disbursements (Resolved)

2019-006 - Qutstanding Check Listing (Resolved)

2019-007 - Capital Assets (Resolved)

2019-008 - Certification of Capital Assets Annual Inventory (Resolved)

118



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
TORRANCE COUNTY
EXIT CONFERENCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

An exit conference was held on November 25, 2020 to discuss the results of the audit.
Attending were the following:

Representing the County:

Kevin McCall, County Commissioner

Tracy Sedillo, County Treasurer

Janice Barela, County Manager

Jeremy Oliver, Finance Director

Noah Sedillo, Chief Procurement Officer
Michelle Gardner, Treasury Controller
Kathryn Hernandez, Chief Deputy Treasurer
Joanna Romero, Assistant Finance Director

Representing the Independent Auditors:

Daniel O. Truiillo, CPA, CFE, CGFM, CGMA
Jose “Joe” Ortiz, Audit Manager

Note: The financial statements in this report were prepared substantially by the Independent
Audit firm of Kubiak Melton & Associates, LLC, with the assistance of County management.

119



Agenda Item
No. 13-B



Agenda Item
No. 13-C



Agenda Item
No. 14-A



Agenda Item

No. 15



Agenda Item
No. 17



